Delphi Automotive PLC Form 424B1 November 17, 2011 Table of Contents

> Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) Registration No. 333-174493

24,078,827 SHARES

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

Ordinary Shares

This is an initial public offering of ordinary shares of Delphi Automotive PLC.

The selling shareholders identified in this prospectus are selling all of the shares offered hereby. Delphi Automotive PLC is not selling any shares in the offering and will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the shares being sold by the selling shareholders.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for the ordinary shares. The ordinary shares have been approved for listing on The New York Stock Exchange under the symbol DLPH .

See <u>Risk Factors</u> on page 16 to read about factors you should consider before buying ordinary shares.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

	Per Share	Total
Initial public offering price	\$ 22.000	\$ 529,734,194
Underwriting discounts and commissions (1)	\$ 1.375	\$ 33,108,387
Proceeds, before expenses, to the selling shareholders (1)	\$ 22.000	\$ 529,734,194

(1) The selling shareholders will not pay any underwriting discount on certain of the shares sold by them. In lieu thereof, Delphi Automotive PLC will pay a commission with respect to such shares to the underwriters, and certain other fees in connection with this offering. See Underwriting.

To the extent that the underwriters sell more than 24,078,827 ordinary shares, the underwriters have the option to purchase up to an additional 3,611,824 shares from certain of the selling shareholders at the initial public offering price less any commissions payable by Delphi Automotive PLC in respect of the shares sold by such selling shareholders.

The underwriters expect to deliver the shares against payment in New York, New York on November 22, 2011.

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

BofA Merrill Lynch

Citigroup Morgan Stanley

Baird	Credit Suisse	Lazard Capital Mar	UBS Investment Bank			
CRT Capital G	roup LLC	Guggenheim Securities	Houlihan Lokey	Scotia Capital		
Ticonderoga Se	ecurities	The Williams Capital Group, L.P.		UniCredit Capital Markets		
8		I I)		1		

Prospectus dated November 16, 2011.

J.P. Morgan

Barclays Capital

Deutsche Bank Securities

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
About This Prospectus	i
Market and Industry Data	ii
Prospectus Summary	1
The Offering	12
Summary Historical Consolidated Financial Data	13
Risk Factors	16
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements	31
Use of Proceeds	32
Dividend Policy	32
Capitalization	33
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Information	35
Dilution	45
Selected Financial and Other Data	47
	Page
Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	50
Business	101
Management	120
Executive Compensation	126
Relationships and Related Party Transactions	157
Principal and Selling Shareholders	161
Description of Share Capital	169
Tax Considerations	172
Shares Eligible for Future Sale	178
Underwriting	180
Validity of Ordinary Shares	186
Experts	186
Where You Can Find More Information	186
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements	F-1

Through and including December 11, 2011 (the 25th day after the date of this prospectus), all dealers effecting transactions in these securities, whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver a prospectus. This is in addition to a dealer s obligation to deliver a prospectus when acting as an underwriter and with respect to an unsold allotment or subscription.

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

In this prospectus, Delphi, the Company, the Successor, we, us and our refer to Delphi Automotive PLC, a public limited company which formed under the laws of Jersey on May 19, 2011, together with the entities that will become its subsidiaries following the completion of this offering. Delphi Automotive PLC will, in connection with this offering, acquire all membership interests in Delphi Automotive LLP, a limited liability partnership incorporated under the laws of England and Wales which was formed on August 19, 2009 for the purpose of acquiring certain assets of the former Delphi Corporation. The former Delphi Corporation and, as the context may require, its subsidiaries and affiliates, are referred to herein as the Predecessor or Old Delphi . As the context may require, references to Delphi , the Company , us , we and our include the Predecessor.

We and the selling shareholders have not authorized anyone to provide any information other than that contained in this prospectus or in any free writing prospectus prepared by or on behalf of us or to which we have referred you. We and the selling shareholders take no responsibility for, and can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. The selling shareholders are offering to sell, and seeking offers to buy, ordinary shares only in jurisdictions where offers and sales are permitted. The information contained in this prospectus is accurate only as of the date of this prospectus, regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus or of any sale of the ordinary shares offered hereby.

The directors of the Company have taken all reasonable care to ensure that the facts stated in this prospectus are true and accurate in all material respects, and that there are no other facts the omission of which would make misleading any statement in this prospectus, whether of facts or of opinion. All the directors accept responsibility accordingly.

i

A copy of this document has been delivered to the registrar of companies in Jersey in accordance with Article 5 of the Companies (General Provisions) (Jersey) Order 2002, and he has given, and has not withdrawn, his consent to its circulation. The Jersey Financial Services Commission has given, and has not withdrawn, its consent under Article 2 of the Control of Borrowing (Jersey) Order 1958 to the issue of the ordinary shares. It must be distinctly understood that, in giving these consents, neither the registrar of companies in Jersey nor the Jersey Financial Services Commission takes any responsibility for the financial soundness of the Company or for the correctness of any statements made, or opinions expressed, with regard to it.

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this prospectus, you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, lawyer, accountant or other financial advisor.

MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

In this prospectus, we refer to information regarding market data obtained from internal sources, market research, publicly available information and industry publications, including industry data derived from information provided by J. D. Power & Associates, which we refer to as J. D. Power & Associates, and The Freedonia Group, Inc., Cleveland, OH, which we refer to as The Freedonia Group. Market share data included in this prospectus about our product lines and segments is based in large part on internal analyses as there is limited public information about such market share. We estimate the size of the applicable market based on our general market knowledge of our competitors and their capacities. We further estimate our market share and position based on our understanding regarding business awards to our competitors. Accordingly, figures for our market share are estimates. While we believe our estimates of market share to be accurate in all material respects, because this data is based on a number of estimates there can be no assurance that the actual market share data will not be materially different. Estimates are inherently uncertain, involve risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed under the heading Risk Factors in this prospectus. We believe that these sources and estimates are reliable but have not independently verified them.

ii

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this prospectus. This summary may not contain all of the information that you should consider before deciding to invest in our ordinary shares. You should read this entire prospectus carefully, including the Risk Factors section and Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this prospectus.

Our Company

We are a leading global vehicle components manufacturer and provide electrical and electronic, powertrain, safety and thermal technology solutions to the global automotive and commercial vehicle markets. We are one of the largest vehicle component manufacturers, and our customers include the 25 largest automotive original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) in the world. We operate 110 manufacturing facilities and 15 major technical centers utilizing a regional service model that enables us to efficiently and effectively serve our global customers from low cost countries. We have a presence in 30 countries and have over 16,000 scientists, engineers and technicians focused on developing market relevant product solutions for our customers. In line with the growth in the emerging markets, we have been increasing our focus on these markets, in particular in China, where we have a major manufacturing base and strong customer relationships.

We believe we are well-positioned for growth from increasing global vehicle production volumes, increased demand for our Safe, Green and Connected products which are being added to vehicle content, and new business wins with existing and new customers. In order to transform its business portfolio and rationalize its cost structure, the former Delphi Corporation and certain of its U.S. subsidiaries filed for Chapter 11 protection in October 2005. As a result of the actions taken by the Predecessor and Delphi Automotive LLP s continuing efforts following its acquisition of the majority of the Predecessor s businesses in October 2009, we have substantially reduced our costs, aligned our product offerings with the faster-growing industry mega trends and re-aligned our manufacturing footprint into an efficient regional service model, allowing us to increase our profit margins. For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, we generated revenue of \$12.1 billion, net income of \$911 million, and EBITDA (as defined in Summary Historical Consolidated Financial Data in this prospectus) of \$1,589 million, with gross margins of 16.3% and EBITDA margins of 13.1%, and for the year ended December 31, 2010, we generated revenue of \$13.8 billion, net income of \$703 million, and EBITDA of \$1,361 million, with gross margins of 14.8% and EBITDA margins of 9.9%.

We believe the automotive industry is being shaped by increasing government regulations for vehicle safety, fuel efficiency and emissions control, as well as rapidly increasing consumer demand for connectivity. These industry mega trends, which we refer to as Safe, Green and Connected, are driving higher growth in products that address these trends than growth in the automotive industry overall. We have reorganized our business into four diversified segments, which enable us to develop solutions and manufacture highly-engineered products that enable our customers to respond to these mega trends:

Electrical / Electronic Architecture This segment provides complete design of the vehicle s electrical architecture, including connectors, wiring assemblies and harnesses, electrical centers and hybrid power distribution systems. Our products provide the critical electrical and electronics backbone that supports increased vehicle content and electrification, reduced emissions and higher fuel economy through weight savings. For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the year ended December 31, 2010, our revenues in this segment were \$5,012 million and \$5,620 million, respectively, and segment EBITDA was \$690 million and \$650 million, respectively.

Powertrain Systems This segment provides systems integration of full end-to-end gasoline and diesel engine management systems including fuel handling, fuel injection, combustion, electronic controls

and test and validation capabilities. We design solutions to optimize powertrain power and performance while helping our customers meet new emissions and fuel economy regulations. For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the year ended December 31, 2010, our revenues in this segment were \$3,729 million and \$4,086 million, respectively, and segment EBITDA was \$487 million and \$361 million, respectively, with EBITDA margins of 13.1% and 8.8%, respectively.

Electronics and Safety This segment provides critical components, systems and advanced software for passenger safety, security, comfort and infotainment, as well as vehicle operation, including body controls, reception systems, audio/video/navigation systems, hybrid vehicle power electronics, displays and mechatronics. Our products integrate and optimize electronic content, which improves fuel economy, reduces emissions, increases safety and provides occupant infotainment and connectivity. For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the year ended December 31, 2010, our revenues in this segment were \$2,245 million and \$2,721 million, respectively, and segment EBITDA was \$279 million and \$247 million, respectively, with EBITDA margins of 12.4% and 9.1%, respectively.

Thermal Systems This segment provides powertrain cooling and heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) systems, such as compressors, systems and controls, and heat exchangers for the vehicle markets. Our products improve the efficiency by which the powertrain and cabin temperatures are managed, which are critical factors in achieving increased fuel economy and reduced emissions. For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the year ended December 31, 2010, our revenues in this segment were \$1,353 million and \$1,603 million, respectively, and segment EBITDA was \$133 million and \$109 million, respectively, with EBITDA margins of 9.8% and 6.8%, respectively.

Our business is diversified across end-markets, regions, customers, vehicle platforms and products. Our customer base includes the 25 largest automotive OEMs in the world, and, in 2010, 24% of our net sales came from emerging markets (Asia Pacific and South America). Our six largest platforms in 2010 were with six different OEMs. In addition, in 2010 our products were found in 17 of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in the United States, in all of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in Europe and in 13 of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in China. We have further diversified our business by increasing our sales in the commercial vehicle market, which is typically on a different business cycle than the light vehicle market and has grown to 8% of our 2010 net sales. In addition, approximately 8% of our 2010 net sales were to the aftermarket, which meets the ongoing need for replacement parts required for vehicle servicing.

- (1) Includes aftermarket sales, which comprised 8% of our 2010 revenue.
- (2) General Motors North America (GMNA) and General Motors International Operations (GMIO) are segments of General Motors Company (GM) and together represent 21% of our 2010 revenue.

We have substantially restructured and transformed our business to achieve a lean cost structure and global footprint to compete profitably in our industry. Since 2005, we have reduced our product lines from 119 to 33, exited 11 businesses, closed over 70 sites, and decreased our global headcount, including temporary employees, by approximately 23%. As a result of our transformation, 91% of our hourly workforce is now located in low cost countries. In addition, approximately 30% of our hourly workforce is composed of temporary employees, making it easier for us to flex our workforce as volumes change. We no longer have any employees represented by the International Union, United Automobile, Aerospace and Agricultural Implement Workers of America (UAW). In addition, we do not have any significant U.S. defined benefit pension or workforce postretirement health care benefits or employer-paid postretirement basic life insurance benefits (OPEB) obligations.

We have established a worldwide design and manufacturing footprint with a regional service model that enables us to efficiently and effectively serve our global customers from low cost countries. This regional model is structured primarily to service the North American market from Mexico, the South American market from Brazil, the European market from Eastern Europe and North Africa, and the Asia Pacific market from China. Our global scale and regional service model enables us to engineer globally and execute regionally to serve the largest OEMs, which are seeking suppliers that can serve them on a worldwide basis. Our footprint also enables us to adapt to the regional design variations the global OEMs require and serve the emerging market OEMs.

Together, our cost reductions and re-alignment of our manufacturing footprint have substantially increased our profit margins and operational flexibility. Our business model is now designed to be profitable at all points in the normal automotive business cycle. For example, in 2010, we would have maintained positive EBITDA even if volumes were approximately 30% below actual industry production volumes (or global production of 55 million vehicles rather than 78 million vehicles), assuming constant pricing and product and regional mix and based on our fixed cost structure in 2010 of approximately \$3.2 billion and our variable costs which approximated two-thirds of sales in 2010; actual pricing, product and regional mix would likely differ in any future downturn. Our business model also has operating leverage, from which we believe we will benefit as our production volumes increase due to forecasted industry growth, content growth, and new business wins. We do not believe we will need to add substantial manufacturing capacity over the next several years to support this growth. We have had significant success winning new business with existing and new customers on both global platforms and on regional specific platforms. In 2010, we won business that we estimate will represent \$20 billion of gross anticipated revenues based on expected volumes and assumed pricing. Actual results could vary if these assumptions prove incorrect. See Risk Factors Risks Related to Business Environment and Economic Conditions Continued pricing pressures, OEM cost reduction initiatives and the ability of OEMs to re-source or cancel vehicle programs may result in lower than anticipated margins, or losses, which may have a significant negative impact on our business. We believe our operating leverage will enable us to generate increased profitability and higher margins from these new business wins.

Our Industry

Demand for vehicle component parts from OEMs is generally a function of the number of vehicles produced and trends in content per vehicle, which can be affected by a number of factors including social, political and economic conditions.

Recovery of Developed Markets and Continued Emerging Markets Growth

According to J.D. Power & Associates, global vehicle production is forecast to grow at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 6.5% from 2010 to 2015. In the near term, the mature markets, including North America and Western Europe, are expected to grow at 3.3% from 2010 to 2015 for an increase of approximately 6.8 million units, while the emerging markets are forecast to grow at 9.6% during the same period, for an increase of approximately 20.7 million units. However, current OEM production volumes in North America and

Western Europe continue to be substantially less than OEM production volumes prior to the disruptions in the economic and credit markets experienced in 2008 and 2009. We expect that nearly half of our total future growth will be generated from emerging markets, especially China, which now represents a larger market for automotive components than either the United States or Japan. As a consequence of this shift in demand, many automotive manufacturing and supply companies have located operations in China and have entered into strategic partnerships and supply arrangements designed to support increased production. The total market and the relative growth in the emerging markets are shown in the illustrations below.

Source: J.D. Power & Associates

Note: Vehicles in thousands. Mature markets refers to Australia, Japan, South Korea, North America (including Mexico) and Western Europe. Emerging markets refers to the rest of the world.

Demand for Increased Safety

OEMs continue to focus on improving occupant and pedestrian safety in order to meet increasingly stringent regulatory requirements in various markets, such as the recent proposal by the U.S. National Highway Traffic Safety Administration to mandate rear view cameras in all vehicles by 2014. As a result, suppliers are focused on developing technologies aimed at protecting vehicle occupants when a crash occurs, as well as those that proactively mitigate the risk of a crash occurring. Examples of new and alternative technologies are lane departure warning systems and collision avoidance technologies, which incorporate sophisticated electronics and advanced software. According to The Freedonia Group, the value of safety and security electronics content globally is expected to grow (based on increasing production and increased content per vehicle) in excess of 13% CAGR from 2009 to 2014, a trend which favors suppliers with the ability to fulfill demand for these important components and systems.

Trend of Increased Fuel Efficiency and Reduced Emissions

OEMs also continue to focus on improving fuel efficiency and reducing emissions in order to meet increasingly stringent regulatory requirements in various markets. On a worldwide basis, the relevant authorities

in the European Union, the United States, China, India, Japan, Brazil, South Korea and Argentina have already instituted regulations requiring further reductions in emissions and/or increased fuel economy through 2014. In many cases, the same authorities have initiated legislation that would further tighten the standards through 2020 and beyond. Based on proposed European legislation, we believe OEMs may be required to reduce fleet average CO_2 emissions for passenger cars by nearly 40% from 140 grams/kilometer, or approximately 39 miles/gallon, in 2008 to 85 grams/kilometer, or over 60 miles/gallon, by 2020. Based on the current regulatory environment, we believe that OEMs in other parts of the world, including the U.S. and China, will be subject to even greater reductions in CO_2 emissions from their current levels over the next ten years. These standards will require meaningful innovation as OEMs and suppliers are forced to find ways to improve thermal management, engine management, electrical power consumption, vehicle weight and integration of alternative powertrains (e.g., electric/hybrid engines). According to The Freedonia Group, the value (i.e., the absolute dollar amount of demand, which may grow based on vehicle sales, more content per vehicle and higher prices for content) of powertrain and emissions electronics systems content globally, including fuel injection systems and engine management systems, is expected to grow (based on increasing production and increased content per vehicle) in excess of 11% CAGR from 2009 to 2014. We expect that as the market for these products expands, we will have the opportunity to obtain proportional growth in prices and margins in these areas, subject to competitive market dynamics.

Trend Towards Connectivity

The technology content of vehicles continues to increase as consumers demand greater safety, personalization, infotainment, productivity and convenience while driving. The automotive industry is focused on developing technologies designed to seamlessly integrate the highly complex electronic world in which automotive consumers live in the cars they drive, so that time in a vehicle is more productive and enjoyable. Advanced technologies offering mobile voice and data communication, while minimizing driver distraction, such as those used in our mobile electronics products coupled with global positioning systems and in-vehicle infotainment will continue to grow in importance. These and other related products are leading to higher electronic content per vehicle. According to The Freedonia Group, the value of OEM-installed infotainment systems globally, including communication and navigation equipment, backup monitors and heads up displays, entertainment systems, and other comfort and convenience systems are expected to increase (based on increasing production and increased content per vehicle) at CAGRs of approximately 20%, 28%, 10%, and 14%, respectively, from 2009 to 2014.

Standardization of Sourcing by OEMs

Many OEMs are adopting global vehicle platforms to increase standardization, reduce per unit cost and increase capital efficiency and profitability. As a result, OEMs are selecting suppliers that have the capability to manufacture products on a worldwide basis as well as the flexibility to adapt to regional variations. Suppliers with global scale and strong design, engineering and manufacturing capabilities, are best positioned to benefit from this trend. OEMs are also increasingly looking to their suppliers to simplify vehicle design and assembly processes to reduce costs. As a result, suppliers that sell vehicle components directly to manufacturers (Tier I suppliers) have assumed many of the design, engineering, research and development and assembly functions traditionally performed by vehicle manufacturers. Suppliers that can provide fully-engineered solutions, systems and pre-assembled combinations of component parts are positioned to leverage the trend toward system sourcing.

Our Competitive Strengths

Global Market Leader

We are one of the world s largest vehicle component manufacturers. We estimate that we hold the #1 or #2 position in product categories representing over 70% of our 2010 net sales, including electrical/electronic

distribution systems, automotive connection systems, diesel engine management systems, and infotainment & driver interface. In addition, in 2010 our products were found in 17 of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in the United States, in all of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in Europe and in 13 of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in China.

Product Portfolio Tied to the Key Industry Mega Trends

Our product offerings satisfy the OEMs need to meet increasingly stringent government regulations and fulfill consumer preferences for products that address the mega trends of Safe, Green and Connected, leading to increased content per vehicle, greater profitability and higher margins. With these offerings, we are well-positioned to capitalize on demand for increased safety, fuel efficiency, emissions control and connectivity to the global information network. There has been a substantial increase in vehicle content and electrification requiring a complex and reliable electrical architecture and systems to operate, such as hybrid power electronics, electrical vehicle monitoring, lane departure warning systems, integrated electronic displays, navigation systems and consumer electronics. Our ability to design a reliable electrical architecture that optimizes power distribution and/or consumption is key to satisfying the OEMs need to reduce emissions while continuing to meet the demands of consumers. Additionally, our Powertrain Systems and Thermal Systems segments are also focused on addressing the demand for increased fuel efficiency and emission control by controlling fuel consumption and heat dissipation, which are principal factors influencing fuel efficiency and emissions.

Global and Diverse Customer Base

Our customer base includes the 25 largest automotive OEMs in the world. Our long-standing relationships with both the leading global OEMs and regional OEMs position us to benefit from the cyclical recovery in North America and Europe and secular growth in emerging markets. Our six largest platforms in 2010 were with six different OEMs. Our top five customers are Daimler AG (Daimler), Ford Motor Company (Ford), General Motors Company (GM), PSA Peugeot Citroën (Peugeot) and Volkswagen Group (VW), collectively representing 49% of our 2010 revenue, with our largest customer representing only 21% of our 2010 revenue. We have further diversified our business by increasing our sales in the commercial vehicle market, which is typically on a different business cycle than the light vehicle market and represented 8% of our 2010 net sales. In addition, approximately 8% of our 2010 net sales were to the aftermarket.

We have substantially expanded our presence in emerging markets to enable us to capture the rapid growth principally in China, Brazil, India and Russia. Our presence in these countries will, for example, enable us to continue growing our market share among the regional automotive OEMs in these countries, including AVTOVAZ, Brilliance China, Changan, Chery, China FAW, Geely, Mahindra & Mahindra, Tata Motors and Ulyanovsk.

Global Manufacturing Footprint and Regional Service Model

We have a global manufacturing footprint and regional service model that enable us to efficiently and effectively operate from primarily low cost countries. We operate 110 manufacturing facilities and 15 major technical centers with a presence in 30 countries throughout the world. We have located these technical and manufacturing facilities in close proximity to our customers, enabling us to rapidly meet customer support requirements and satisfy regional variations in global vehicle platforms, while minimizing supply chain costs. Our global footprint enables us to serve the global OEMs on a worldwide basis along with gaining market share with the emerging market OEMs. This regional model has largely migrated to service the North American market out of Mexico, the South American market out of Brazil, the European market out of Eastern Europe and North Africa and the Asia Pacific market out of China.

Leading Supplier in the China Automotive Market

We have a strong presence in China, where we have operated for nearly 20 years. All of our business segments have operations and sales in China, where we employ approximately 23,000 people (including temporary workers), including approximately 2,800 scientists, engineers and technicians. Our strong engineering capabilities allow us to provide full product design and system integration to OEMs in China. As a result, we are a supplier to every major automotive OEM in China, with whom we have well-established relationships, including: Brilliance China, Changan, Chery, China FAW, Geely, Shanghai General Motors and Shanghai Volkswagen. The Delphi brand is recognized by OEMs in China as a leading supplier, and we estimate that we hold the #1 or #2 position in product categories representing over 75% of our 2010 China revenues. We conduct our business through fully consolidated, wholly-owned subsidiaries and joint ventures over which we have management control. Our local partners in the joint ventures are not our competitors. This legal entity structure gives us control over our strategy and operational activities in the region. We generated approximately \$1.8 billion in revenue from China in 2010. In support of our growing revenue, we anticipate our facilities in China will expand their operations with the addition of four new manufacturing sites over the next two years. With only 21 of our 33 offered products currently locally manufactured, we believe we have the opportunity to expand additional product lines into China, and as a result, we see further growth potential.

Lean and Flexible Cost Structure

We have a world-class, lean manufacturing system that allows us to provide customers with quality products and just-in-time delivery at competitive costs. In 2010, we largely completed our restructuring activities, resulting in a lower fixed cost base, improved manufacturing footprint and reduced overhead. We dramatically reduced our U.S. and Western European footprints, realigned our selling, general and administrative cost structure and increased the variable nature of our employee base. As a result, 91% of our hourly workforce is located in low cost countries. Furthermore, we have substantial operational flexibility by leveraging a large workforce of temporary workers, which represented approximately 30% of the hourly workforce as of September 30, 2011. We are focused on maintaining a low fixed cost base to minimize our EBITDA breakeven, which we estimate to be approximately 30% below the current production volumes, assuming constant product mix and based on 2010 results. We believe that our lean cost structure will allow us to remain profitable at all points of the traditional vehicle industry production cycle.

World-Class Engineering Capabilities

Our history and culture of innovation have enabled us to develop significant intellectual property and design and development expertise to provide advanced technology solutions that meet the demands of our customers. We have a team of more than 16,000 scientists, engineers and technicians focused on developing leading product solutions for our key markets, located at 15 major technical centers in Brazil, China, France, Germany, India, Luxembourg, Mexico, Poland, South Korea, the United Kingdom and the United States. We invest approximately \$1 billion annually in engineering to maintain our portfolio of innovative products, and currently own approximately 6,000 patents. We also encourage

open innovation and collaborate extensively with peers in the industry, government agencies and academic institutions. Our technology competencies are recognized by both customers and government agencies, who have co-invested approximately \$300 million of additional funds annually in new product development, increasing our total spend accordingly, accelerating the pace of innovation and reducing the risk associated with successful commercialization of technological breakthroughs. One example of co-investment is that we received an \$89 million grant from the U.S. Department of Energy for reimbursement for up to 50% of the project costs associated with the development and manufacturing of power electronics related to electric and hybrid electric vehicles.

Our heritage includes the first factory installed radio, and we were a developer and designer of digital satellite radios, non-CFC refrigerant systems, high efficiency heat & mass exchangers, halogen free cables, dual

mode electronically scanning radar, gas direct injection, power electronics & high voltage architectures for hybrid electric vehicles and electric vehicles. We have been recognized for our long history of innovation as a winner of the prestigious Automotive News PACE Award. The Automotive News PACE awards honor superior innovation, technological advancement and business performance in the automotive industry and is judged by an independent panel of industry experts. Over the past two years we have been a winner three times and over the 17-year history of the PACE awards, we have received more awards than any other automotive supplier. In 2010, we launched approximately 800 new product programs around the globe. Our future pipeline has promise in collision mitigation with auto braking, electric cam phasing, software defined radio, 2-step continuous variable valvetrain, ammonia and particulate sensors, high power density inverter switches for hybrid electric vehicles and other Safe, Green and Connected solutions.

Significant Operating Leverage Leading to Higher Margins

Our business model has generated strong margins. We believe our operating leverage will enable us to generate increased profitability from higher OEM production volumes, increased content per vehicle and new business wins, and our profitability has been increasing with these trends. We generated gross margins of 16.3% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to 14.8% for the year ended December 31, 2010, and EBITDA margins of 13.1% as compared to 9.9% for the year ended December 31, 2010. Segment EBITDA margins were approximately 10% or greater in each of our operating segments for the nine months ended September 30, 2011.

Strong Cash Flow Generation and Balance Sheet

Our margins have also translated to strong cash flow generation. In 2010, we generated \$781 million in cash flow before financing (which is defined as cash flows from operating activities and cash flows from investing activities (excluding investments in time deposits)). Furthermore, we have a strong balance sheet with gross debt of \$2.2 billion and substantial liquidity of \$2.7 billion as of September 30, 2011, and no significant U.S. defined benefit or OPEB liabilities. We intend to maintain strong financial discipline targeting industry-leading earnings growth, cash flow generation and return on invested capital and to maintain sufficient liquidity to sustain our financial flexibility throughout the industry cycle.

Experienced Management Team

Our management team has significant experience, a deep understanding of the vehicle components industry and a firm focus on sustaining our leadership and financial strength. This team has been responsible for implementing the key operational restructuring initiatives that have positioned us for sustainable leadership in our industry with a strong and competitive financial profile. Key accomplishments since 2005 have included:

Aligning our portfolio with the mega trends Safe, Green and Connected by reducing our business units from 27 to 10 and our product lines from 119 to 33;

Diversifying our geographic, product and customer mix, resulting in only 33% of our 2010 net sales generated in the North American market and 21% from our largest customer;

Reducing our cost structure by repositioning 91% of our hourly workforce in low cost countries; reducing our manufacturing space by 64%, or 43 million square feet; and reducing total headcount by approximately 23%;

Sustaining our commitment to innovation by investing approximately \$1 billion annually in engineering; and

Generating a record level of business bookings, including \$20 billion in 2010 and \$19.1 billion in the first nine months of 2011. **Our Strategy**

Our strategy is to develop and manufacture innovative market-relevant products for a diverse base of customers around the globe and leverage our lean and flexible cost structure to achieve strong earnings growth and returns on invested capital. Through our culture of innovation and world class engineering capabilities we will continue to employ our rigorous, forward-looking product development process to deliver new technologies that provide solutions to OEMs.

Leverage Our Engineering and Technological Prowess

We will continue to leverage our strong product portfolio tied to the industry s key mega trends with our global footprint to increase our revenues. We remain committed to sustaining our substantial annual investment in research and development to maintain and enhance our leadership in each of our product lines. We expect to introduce new products and customized solutions that enable OEMs to meet the increasing fuel economy and emissions regulations as well as consumer demand for increased connectivity and active safety features. We will continue to focus on identifying the next market trends that we believe will position us to capture new growth.

Capitalize on Our Scale, Global Footprint and Established Position in Emerging Markets

We intend to generate sustained growth by capitalizing on the breadth and scale of our operating capabilities, our global footprint that provides us the important proximity to our customers manufacturing facilities and allows us to serve them in every region of the world in which they operate, and our established presence in high growth emerging markets.

We are one of only a few vehicle component manufacturers with the resources and scale of operations to provide our customers with complete end-to-end systems solutions. From the development and design of innovative new products, to world class engineering, manufacturing and supply-chain management capabilities, we have significant resources that we use to help our customers meet the changing demands of the market. We have engineering and production capabilities in every major auto-producing market in the world, including North America, South America, Europe and Asia. As a result, we are able to capitalize on the global standardization of vehicle platforms by the largest OEMs, while adapting our products for regional variations and regional OEMs.

We continue to expand our significant presence in emerging markets, positioning us to benefit from the expected growth opportunities in these regions. We will accomplish this by capitalizing on our long-standing relationships with the global OEMs and further enhancing our positions with the emerging market OEMs, thereby continuing to expand our worldwide leadership. We will continue to build upon our extensive geographic reach to capitalize on the fast-growing automotive markets, particularly in China, Brazil, India and Russia. We believe that our presence in low cost countries positions us to realize incremental margin improvements as the global balance of automotive production shifts towards the emerging markets.

Leverage Our Lean and Flexible Cost Structure to Deliver Profitability and Cash Flow

We recognize the importance of maintaining a lean and flexible cost structure in order to deliver stable earnings and cash flow in a cyclical industry. We intend to focus on maximizing manufacturing output to meet increasing production requirements with minimal additions to our fixed-cost base. We will continue to utilize a meaningful amount of temporary workers to ensure we have the appropriate operational flexibility to scale our operations so that we maintain our profitability as industry production levels increase or contract.

⁹

Target the Right Business with the Right Customers

We are strategic in pursuing new business and customers. We conduct in-depth analysis of market share and product trends by region in order to prioritize research, development and engineering spend for the customers that we believe will be successful. We collaborate with these customers in our 15 major technical centers around the world to help develop innovative product solutions for their needs. As more OEMs design vehicles for global platforms, where the same vehicle architecture is shared among different regions, we are well suited to provide global design and engineering support while manufacturing these products for a specific regional market. In addition we are disciplined in our pursuit of new business to ensure that we earn appropriate returns on capital. We have a rigorous internal approval process that requires senior executive review and approval to ensure consistency with our strategic and financial goals.

Pursue Selected Acquisitions and Strategic Alliances

Acquisitions and strategic alliances represent an important element of our business strategy and we believe we have the financial flexibility to pursue these opportunities with our current capital structure and liquidity profile. We believe that there are opportunities to grow through acquisitions, given the trend by OEMs to source globally and from a smaller number of suppliers, and that strategic alliances will allow us to pursue new opportunities faster and with less risk and investment. We intend to pursue selected transactions that leverage our technology capabilities, enhance our customer base, geographic penetration and scale to complement our current businesses. These complementary opportunities will provide us with access to new technologies, expand our presence in existing markets and enable us to establish a presence in adjacent markets.

Our History and Structure

On August 19, 2009, Delphi Automotive LLP, a limited liability partnership organized under the laws of England and Wales, was formed for the purpose of acquiring certain assets and subsidiaries of the Predecessor, which had filed for bankruptcy protection. At this time, three firms, GM and affiliates of Silver Point Capital and Elliott Management, agreed to take a controlling stake in Delphi Automotive LLP. These three equity holders had jointly established a plan to fund the restructuring and repositioning of the business. As a part of this plan, these equityholders established a board of proven senior executives to assist the management team in the continued restructuring of the business.

On October 6, 2009, Delphi Automotive LLP acquired the major portion of the business of the Predecessor, other than the global steering business, the U.S. manufacturing facilities in which the hourly employees were represented by the UAW and certain non-productive U.S. assets, and Delphi Automotive LLP issued membership interests to a group of investors consisting of lenders to the Predecessor, GM and the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (the PBGC).

On May 19, 2011, Delphi Automotive PLC, a Jersey public limited company, was formed. Delphi Automotive PLC has nominal assets and no liabilities and has conducted no operations prior to completion of this offering. Immediately prior to the closing of this offering, it will acquire all of the outstanding membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP from its existing equity holders in exchange for ordinary shares and, as a result, Delphi Automotive LLP will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi Automotive PLC. All historical financial information presented in this prospectus for periods subsequent to October 6, 2009 is that of Delphi Automotive LLP.

Recent Developments

On March 31, 2011, Delphi Automotive LLP redeemed the membership interests owned by GM and the PBGC for \$3.8 billion and \$594 million, respectively. In addition, on April 26, 2011, Delphi Automotive LLP amended its limited liability partnership agreement to adjust the distribution rights among the holders of the remaining classes of membership interests and to modify and normalize governance rights by eliminating special control rights held by affiliates of Silver Point Capital and Elliott Management to more closely reflect a typical public company.

On March 31, 2011, Delphi Corporation, a wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary of Delphi Automotive LLP, entered into a credit agreement (the Credit Agreement) with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. that provided for a \$500 million undrawn revolver and \$2.5 billion in funded term loans, guaranteed by Delphi Automotive LLP and certain of its existing and future subsidiaries. The \$2.5 billion in term loan proceeds, along with existing cash, were utilized to finance the redemptions of the membership interests owned by GM and PBGC and repayment of our 12.00% unsecured notes due 2014. On May 17, 2011, the Credit Agreement was modified to increase the amount of commitments on the revolver to \$1.2 billion, to reduce the amount of the term loans to \$1.2 billion and to reduce certain interest rates applicable to the term loans. Additionally, on August 1, 2011, the Credit Agreement was further amended to increase the amount of commitments under the revolver to \$1.3 billion.

On May 17, 2011, Delphi Corporation issued \$500 million of 5.875% senior notes due 2019 and \$500 million of 6.125% senior notes due 2021 (collectively, the Senior Notes) in a transaction exempt from registration under Rule 144A and Regulation S of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act). The Senior Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by Delphi Automotive LLP and certain of its existing and future subsidiaries. The net proceeds of approximately \$1.0 billion, together with cash on hand, were used to pay down amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement.

In August 2011, the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP approved a repurchase program of Class B membership interests. As of September 30, 2011, 7,705 Class B membership interests were repurchased for a cumulative cost of approximately \$140 million at an average price per membership interests unit of \$18,261. Of the approximately \$140 million, approximately \$72 million was settled during the three months ended September 30, 2011, and the remaining approximately \$68 million was settled in October 2011. Subsequent to September 30, 2011, an additional 2,300 Class B membership interests were repurchased at a cumulative cost of approximately \$39 million at an average price of \$16,709 per membership interests unit. All information in this prospectus as to the number of ordinary shares to be issued and outstanding on the closing date reflects the repurchases described in this section.

In October 2011, the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP approved the payment of a distribution of approximately \$95 million on December 5, 2011, principally in respect of taxes, to members who hold membership interests as of the close of business on October 31, 2011.

Risks Affecting Us

Investing in securities involves substantial risk, and our business is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties. Investors should carefully consider the information set forth in this prospectus and, in particular the information under the heading Risk Factors.

Company Information

Our principal executive offices are located at Courtney Road, Hoath Way, Gillingham, Kent ME8 0RU, United Kingdom and our telephone number is 011-44-163-423-4422. Our register of members is kept at our registered office, which is Queensway House, Hilgrove Street, St Helier, Jersey JE1 1ES, Channel Islands.

Our internet address is *www.delphi.com*. The information on our website and any other website that is referred to in this prospectus is not part of this prospectus.

THE OFFERING

Ordinary shares offered by the selling shareholders	24,078,827 shares
Ordinary shares to be outstanding after this offering	328,244,510 shares
Option to purchase additional shares	3,611,824 shares from certain of the selling shareholders
Use of proceeds	We will not receive any proceeds from the ordinary shares being sold in this offering.
Dividend policy	We do not intend to pay dividends on our ordinary shares. We plan to retain any earnings for use in the operation of our business and to fund future growth.
NYSE symbol	Our ordinary shares have been approved for listing on The New York Stock Exchange,

or NYSE, under the symbol DLPH . Unless we specifically state otherwise and except for historical financial information, the information in this prospectus reflects our issuance of 328,244,510 ordinary shares to Delphi Automotive LLP s equityholders in connection with this offering in exchange for all of the equity interests in Delphi Automotive LLP, including 1,938,249 shares issued to our directors who are holders of its Class E-1 membership interests and 326,306,261 remaining shares issued to its other equityholders.

Unless we specifically state otherwise, the information in this prospectus does not take into account:

the sale by certain selling shareholders of an additional 3,611,824 ordinary shares to the underwriters pursuant to the underwriters option to acquire additional shares; and

8,589,445 shares reserved for issuance pursuant to outstanding awards under our existing Management Value Creation Plan, or Value Creation Plan (which provides for issuances of equity and/or cash, at our option, to members of our management based on the value of the Company at December 31, 2012, including the amounts used to repurchase membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP prior to the date of this offering), based on the offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus. While we have reserved all such shares for potential issuance, we currently expect to settle a significant portion of such awards in cash instead of shares.

SUMMARY HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Delphi Automotive PLC was formed on May 19, 2011, has nominal assets and no liabilities and will conduct no operations prior to the completion of this offering. Accordingly, the following presents historical financial information for Delphi Automotive LLP, which will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi Automotive PLC immediately prior to completion of this offering.

The following selected consolidated financial data of the Successor and the Predecessor have been derived from the audited and unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Successor and the Predecessor and should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified by reference to, Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations , Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Information and the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this prospectus.

	Nine n ended Sep	nonths	ccessor	Period from	Predecessor(1)			
	2011	2010	Year ended December 31, 2010	August 19 to December 31, 2009	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 (dollars in mil per	· •		
	(dollars a	and shares in mi	share of					
Statements of operations data:								
Net sales	\$ 12,141	\$ 10,165	\$ 13,817	\$ 3,421	\$ 8,334	\$ 16,808		
Depreciation and amortization	356	311	421	139	540	822		
Operating income (loss)	1,233	827	940	(10)	(1,118)	(1,425)		
Interest expense	(84)	(22)	(30)	(8)		(434)		
Reorganization items, net					10,210	5,147		
Income (loss) from continuing operations	911	612	703	(3)	9,391	3,163		
Net income (loss)	911	612	703	(3)	9,347	3,066		
Net income attributable to noncontrolling	-	-			•	•		
interests	56	56	72	15	29	29		
Net income (loss) attributable to	0.5.5		(21	(10)	0.010	2.027		
Successor/Predecessor	855	556	631	(18)	9,318	3,037		
Net income (loss) per membership interests								
unit and per share data: (actual) Class A net income (loss) per membership								
interests unit	\$ 43.50	\$ 55.58	\$ 65.35	\$ (1.80)				
Class B net income (loss) per membership	φ +3.50	φ 55.50	\$ 05.55	\$ (1.00)				
interests unit	2,119.04	1,019.02	1,156.98	(33.00)				
Class C net income (loss) per membership	2,117.04	1,019.02	1,150.70	(55.00)				
interests unit	253.78	972.58	1,064.88	(31.50)				
Class E-1 net income per membership	200110	<i>y</i> /100	1,00 1100	(61100)				
interests unit	125.31							
Income (loss) per share from continuing								
operations attributable to Predecessor					\$ 16.58	\$ 5.55		
Loss per share from discontinued operations								
attributable to Predecessor					(0.08)	(0.17)		
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share								
attributable to Predecessor					\$ 16.50	\$ 5.38		
Per share data: (pro forma)(2)								
Income (loss) from continuing operations								
attributable to Successor	\$ 838	\$	\$ 556					
Income (loss) per share attributable to Successor								
Basic and diluted	2.55		1.69					
Weighted average shares outstanding	328		328					

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Other financial data:

Cash and cash equivalents (as of period end)	\$ 1,386	\$ 3,705	\$ 3,219	\$ 3,107	\$	\$ 959
Capital expenditures	454	281	500	88	321	771
EBITDA(3)	1,589	1,138	1,361	129	(514)	(211)
Adjusted EBITDA(3)	1,609	1,291	1,633	313	(229)	269
EBITDA margin(4)	13.1%	11.2%	9.9%	3.8%	(6.2%)	(1.3%)
Adjusted EBITDA margin(4)	13.3%	12.7%	11.8%	9.1%	(2.7%)	1.6%
Net cash provided by (used in) operating						
activities	\$ 909	\$ 855	\$ 1,142	\$ 159	\$ (257)	\$ 455
Net cash provided by (used in) investing						
activities	175	(148)	(911)	885	(1,052)	(958)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing						
activities	(2,908)	(117)	(126)	2,062	315	465

	Successor As of September 30, 2011					
	Historical (dollars	As usted(2)(5) ons)				
Balance sheet and employment data:						
Cash and cash equivalents(6)	\$ 1,386	\$	1,347			
Total assets	\$ 9,318	\$	9,277			
Total debt	\$ 2,173	\$	2,173			
Working capital(7)	\$ 1,405	\$	1,405			
Owners equity(6)(8)	\$ 2,098	\$	2,060			
Global employees(9)	102,000		102,000			

- (1) The Predecessor adopted the accounting guidance in Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) 852, *Reorganizations*, effective October 8, 2005 and has segregated in the financial statements for all reporting periods subsequent to such date and through the consummation of the transactions pursuant to the Modified Plan (as defined in Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein), transactions and events that were directly associated with the reorganization from the ongoing operations of the business. Our consolidated financial statements are not comparable to the consolidated financial statements of the Predecessor due to the effects of the consummation of the Modified Plan and the change in the basis of presentation. For more information, please refer to Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
- (2) Reflects issuance of 328,244,510 ordinary shares in exchange for Delphi Automotive LLP membership interests immediately prior to the completion of this offering.
- (3) Our management utilizes net income before depreciation and amortization (including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment), interest expense, other income (expense), net, income tax expense and equity income, net of tax (EBITDA) to evaluate performance. EBITDA was used as a performance indicator for the nine months ended September 30, 2011.

Adjusted EBITDA means net income before depreciation and amortization (including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment), interest expense, other income (expense), net, income tax expense, equity income, net of tax, transformation and rationalization charges related to plant consolidations, plant wind-downs and discontinued operations. Through December 31, 2010, our management relied on Adjusted EBITDA as a key performance measure. Our management believed that Adjusted EBITDA was a meaningful measure of performance and it was used by management and the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP to analyze Company and stand-alone segment operating performance and for planning and forecasting purposes. Effective January 1, 2011, our management began utilizing EBITDA as a key performance measure because our restructuring was substantially completed in 2010. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered substitutes for results prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) and should not be considered alternatives to net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor, which is the most directly comparable financial measure to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, as determined and measured by us, should also not be compared to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

In the nine months ended September 30, 2011, we reached a final customer commercial settlement that resulted in an unusual warranty expense of \$76 million. This amount adversely affected EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA in such period.

The reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to EBITDA includes other transformation and rationalization costs related to 1) the implementation of information technology systems to support finance, manufacturing and product development initiatives, 2) certain plant consolidations and closure costs and 3) consolidation of many staff administrative functions into a global business service group. The reconciliation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor follows:

		Nine n		s	iccesso	essor Period from				Predecessor			
		ended September 30, 2011 2010		August Year ended to December 31, Decembe 2010 2009		igust 19 to ember 31,	Ist 19Period fromoJanuary 1ber 31,October 1						
				(in	million	s)				(in m	nillions)	
Adjusted EBITDA	\$	1,609	\$	1,291	\$	1,633	\$	313	\$	(229)	\$	269	
Transformation and rationalization charges:													
Employee termination benefits and other exit													
costs		(20)		(124)		(224)		(126)		(235)		(326)	
Other transformation and rationalization costs				(29)		(48)		(58)		(50)		(154)	
EBITDA	\$	1,589	\$	1,138	\$	1,361	\$	129	\$	(514)	\$	(211)	
				,		,				. ,	, i	. ,	
Depreciation and amortization		(356)		(311)		(421)		(139)		(540)		(822)	
Goodwill impairment charges		(330)		(311)		(421)		(139)		(340)		(325)	
Discontinued operations										(64)		(67)	
Discontinued operations										(04)		(07)	
	¢	1 000	¢	007	¢	0.40	¢	(10)	¢	(1, 110)	¢	(1.405)	
Operating income (loss)	\$	1,233	\$	827	\$	940	\$	(10)	Э	(1,118)	\$	(1,425)	
Interest expense		(84)		(22)		(30)		(8)				(434)	
Other (expense) income, net		13		7		34		(17)		24		9	
Reorganization items										10,210		5,147	
Income from continuing operations before													
income taxes and equity income		1,162		812		944		(35)		9,116		3,297	
Income tax (expense) benefit		(276)		(209)		(258)		27		311		(163)	
Equity income (loss), net of tax		25		9		17		5		(36)		29	
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax										(44)		(97)	
Net income (loss)	\$	911	\$	612	\$	703	\$	(3)	\$	9,347	\$	3,066	
Net income attributable to noncontrolling								(-)				.,	
interest		56		56		72		15		29		29	
Net income (loss) attributable to													
Successor/Predecessor	\$	855	\$	556	\$	631	\$	(18)	\$	9,318	\$	3,037	
	Ψ	000	Ψ	220	Ψ	551	Ψ	(10)	Ψ	2,010	Ψ	0,007	

(4) EBITDA margin is defined as EBITDA as a percentage of revenues. Adjusted EBITDA margin is defined as Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of revenues.

⁽⁵⁾ Reflects the \$33 million of commissions payable by us to the underwriters in connection with the sale of ordinary shares by the selling shareholders in this offering, together with estimated offering expenses and certain IPO-related bonuses. We will not receive any proceeds from this offering. See Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Information.

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

- (6) Does not reflect the payment by Delphi Automotive LLP of \$95 million in distributions to holders of record on October 31, 2011, which is payable on December 5, 2011, or repurchases of Class B membership interests in the amounts of \$68 million for trades not settled prior to September 30, 2011 and \$39 million for trades that occurred after September 30, 2011.
- (7) Working capital is calculated herein as accounts receivable plus inventories less accounts payable.
- (8) Historical owners equity does not reflect \$39 million of repurchases of Class B membership interests that occurred after September 30, 2011.
- (9) Excludes approximately 40,000 temporary and contract workers.

RISK FACTORS

An investment in our ordinary shares involves a high degree of risk. You should consider carefully the following information about these risks, and the other information included in this prospectus in its entirety before investing in our ordinary shares. Any of the risks we describe below could cause our business, financial condition and/or operating results to suffer. The market price of our ordinary shares could decline if one or more of these risks and uncertainties develop into actual events. You could lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Business Environment and Economic Conditions

The cyclical nature of automotive sales and production can adversely affect our business.

Our business is directly related to automotive sales and automotive vehicle production by our customers. Automotive sales and production are highly cyclical and, in addition to general economic conditions, also depend on other factors, such as consumer confidence and consumer preferences. Lower global automotive sales result in substantially all of our automotive OEM customers significantly lowering vehicle production schedules, which has a direct impact on our earnings and cash flows. The most recent example of this was the 2009 downturn in which North American and Western Europe automotive production declined approximately 43% and 26%, respectively, below production levels in 2007. While the industry is recovering from the 2009 downturn, production volumes in North America and Western Europe remain below levels experienced prior to 2009. In addition, automotive sales and production can be affected by labor relations issues, regulatory requirements, trade agreements, the availability of consumer financing and other factors. Economic declines that result in a significant reduction in automotive sales and production by our customers have in the past had, and may in the future have, an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our sales are also affected by inventory levels and OEMs production levels. We cannot predict when OEMs will decide to increase or decrease inventory levels or whether new inventory levels will approximate historical inventory levels. Uncertainty and other unexpected fluctuations could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

A prolonged economic downturn or economic uncertainty could adversely affect our business and cause us to require additional sources of financing, which may not be available.

Our sensitivity to economic cycles and any related fluctuation in the businesses of our customers or potential customers may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. If global economic conditions deteriorate or economic uncertainty increases, our customers and potential customers may experience deterioration of their businesses, which may result in the delay or cancellation of plans to purchase our products. If vehicle production were to remain at low levels for an extended period of time or if cash losses for customer defaults rise, our cash flow could be adversely impacted, which could result in our needing to seek additional financing to continue our operations. There can be no assurance that we would be able to secure such financing on terms acceptable to us, or at all.

Any changes in consumer credit availability or cost of borrowing could adversely affect our business.

Declines in the availability of consumer credit and increases in consumer borrowing costs have negatively impacted global automotive sales and resulted in lower production volumes in the past. Substantial declines in automotive sales and production by our customers could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

A drop in the market share and changes in product mix offered by our customers can impact our revenues.

We are dependent on the continued growth, viability and financial stability of our customers. Our customers generally are OEMs in the automotive industry. This industry is subject to rapid technological change, vigorous

competition, short product life cycles and cyclical and reduced consumer demand patterns. When our customers are adversely affected by these factors, we may be similarly affected to the extent that our customers reduce the volume of orders for our products. As a result of changes impacting our customers, sales mix can shift which may have either favorable or unfavorable impact on revenue and would include shifts in regional growth, shifts in OEM sales demand, as well as shifts in consumer demand related to vehicle segment purchases and content penetration. For instance, a shift in sales demand favoring a particular OEM s vehicle model for which we do not have a supply contract may negatively impact our revenue. A shift in regional sales demand toward certain markets could favorably impact the sales of those of our customers that have a large market share in those regions, which in turn would be expected to have a favorable impact on our revenue.

The mix of vehicle offerings by our OEM customers also impacts our sales. A decrease in consumer demand for specific types of vehicles where we have traditionally provided significant content could have a significant effect on our business and financial condition. Our sales of products in the regions in which our customers operate also depend on the success of these customers in those regions.

Declines in the market share or business of Daimler, Ford, GM, Peugeot and VW may have a disproportionate adverse impact on our revenues and profitability.

Daimler, Ford, GM, Peugeot and VW accounted for approximately 49% of our total net sales in the year ended December 31, 2010. Accordingly, our revenues may be disproportionately affected by decreases in any of their businesses or market share. Because our customers typically have no obligation to purchase a specific quantity of parts, a decline in the production levels of any of our major customers, particularly with respect to models for which we are a significant supplier, could disproportionately reduce our sales and thereby adversely affect our financial condition, operating results and cash flows. See Business Supply Relationships with Our Customers.

Continued pricing pressures, OEM cost reduction initiatives and the ability of OEMs to re-source or cancel vehicle programs may result in lower than anticipated margins, or losses, which may have a significant negative impact on our business.

Cost-cutting initiatives adopted by our customers result in increased downward pressure on pricing. Our customer supply agreements generally require step-downs in component pricing over the period of production, typically one to two percent per year. In addition, our customers often reserve the right to terminate their supply contracts for convenience, which enhances their ability to obtain price reductions. OEMs have also possessed significant leverage over their suppliers, including us, because the automotive component supply industry is highly competitive, serves a limited number of customers, has a high fixed cost base and historically has had excess capacity. Based on these factors, and the fact that our customers product programs typically last a number of years and are anticipated to encompass large volumes, our customers are able to negotiate favorable pricing. Accordingly, as a Tier I supplier, we are subject to substantial continuing pressure from OEMs to reduce the price of our products. It is possible that pricing pressures beyond our expectations could intensify as OEMs pursue restructuring and cost cutting initiatives. If we are unable to generate sufficient production cost savings in the future to offset price reductions, our gross margin and profitability would be adversely affected. See Business Supply Relationships with Our Customers for a detailed discussion of our supply agreements with our customers.

While we provide estimates of new business in this prospectus, these estimates could be materially different from actual results in light of the risks set forth above.

Our supply agreements with our OEM customers are generally requirements contracts, and a decline in the production requirements of any of our customers, and in particular our largest customers, could adversely impact our revenues and profitability.

We receive OEM purchase orders for specific components supplied for particular vehicles. In most instances our OEM customers agree to purchase their requirements for specific products but are not required to

purchase any minimum amount of products from us. The contracts we have entered into with most of our customers have terms ranging from one year to the life of the model (usually three to seven years, although customers often reserve the right to terminate for convenience). Therefore, a significant decrease in demand for certain key models or group of related models sold by any of our major customers or the ability of a manufacturer to re-source and discontinue purchasing from us, for a particular model or group of models, could have a material adverse effect on us. To the extent that we do not maintain our existing level of business with our largest customers because of a decline in their production requirements or because the contracts expire or are terminated for convenience, we will need to attract new customers or win new business with existing customers, or our results of operations and financial condition will be adversely affected. See Business Supply Relationships with Our Customers for a detailed discussion of our supply agreements with our customers.

We have invested substantial resources in markets where we expect growth and we may be unable to timely alter our strategies should such expectations not be realized.

Our future growth is dependent on our making the right investments at the right time to support product development and manufacturing capacity in areas where we can support our customer base. We have identified the Asia Pacific and South American regions, and China, Brazil and India, in particular, as key markets likely to experience substantial growth, and accordingly have made and expect to continue to make substantial investments, both directly and through participation in various partnerships and joint ventures, in numerous manufacturing operations, technical centers and other infrastructure to support anticipated growth in those regions. If we are unable to deepen existing and develop additional customer relationships in these regions, we may not only fail to realize expected rates of return on our existing investments, but we may incur losses on such investments and be unable to timely redeploy the invested capital to take advantage of other markets, potentially resulting in lost market share to our competitors. Our results will also suffer if these regions do not grow as quickly as we anticipate.

Our business in China is subject to aggressive competition and is sensitive to economic and market conditions.

Maintaining a strong position in the Chinese market is a key component of our global growth strategy. The automotive supply market in China is highly competitive, with competition from many of the largest global manufacturers and numerous smaller domestic manufacturers. As the size of the Chinese market continues to increase, we anticipate that additional competitors, both international and domestic, will seek to enter the Chinese market and that existing market participants will act aggressively to increase their market share. Increased competition may result in price reductions, reduced margins and our inability to gain or hold market share. In addition, our business in China is sensitive to economic and market conditions that drive sales volume in China. If we are unable to maintain our position in the Chinese market or if vehicle sales in China decrease or do not continue to increase, our business and financial results could be materially adversely affected.

Disruptions in the supply of raw materials and other supplies that we and our customers use in our products may adversely affect our profitability.

We and our customers use a broad range of materials and supplies, including copper, aluminum and other metals, petroleum-based resins, chemicals, electronic components and semiconductors. A significant disruption in the supply of these materials for any reason could decrease our production and shipping levels, which could materially increase our operating costs and materially decrease our profit margins.

We, as with other component manufacturers in the automotive industry, ship products to our customers vehicle assembly plants throughout the world so they are delivered on a just-in-time basis in order to maintain low inventory levels. Our suppliers also use a similar method. However, this just-in-time method makes the logistics supply chain in our industry very complex and very vulnerable to disruptions.

Such disruptions could be caused by any one of a myriad of potential problems, such as closures of one of our or our suppliers plants or critical manufacturing lines due to strikes, mechanical breakdowns, electrical outages, fires, explosions or political upheaval, as well as logistical complications due to weather, volcanic eruptions, or other natural or nuclear disasters, mechanical failures, delayed customs processing and more. Additionally, as we grow in low cost countries, the risk for such disruptions is heightened. The lack of even a small single subcomponent necessary to manufacture one of our products, for whatever reason, could force us to cease production, even for a prolonged period. Similarly, a potential quality issue could force us to halt deliveries while we validate the products. Even where products are ready to be shipped, or have been shipped, delays may arise before they reach our customer. Our customers may halt or delay their production for the same reason if one of their other suppliers fails to deliver necessary components. This may cause our customers, in turn to suspend their orders, or instruct us to suspend delivery, of our products, which may adversely affect our financial performance.

When we fail to make timely deliveries in accordance with our contractual obligations, we generally have to absorb our own costs for identifying and solving the root cause problem as well as expeditiously producing replacement components or products. Generally, we must also carry the costs associated with catching up, such as overtime and premium freight.

Additionally, if we are the cause for a customer being forced to halt production, the customer may seek to recoup all of its losses and expenses from us. These losses and expenses could be significant, and may include consequential losses such as lost profits. Any supply-chain disruption, however small, could potentially cause the complete shutdown of an assembly line of one of our customers, and any such shutdown that is due to causes that are within our control could expose us to material claims of compensation. Where a customer halts production because of another supplier failing to deliver on time, it is unlikely we will be fully compensated, if at all.

Adverse developments affecting one or more of our suppliers could harm our profitability.

Any significant disruption in our supplier relationships, particularly relationships with sole-source suppliers, could harm our profitability. Furthermore, some of our suppliers may not be able to handle the commodity cost volatility and/or sharply changing volumes while still performing as we expect. To the extent our suppliers experience supply disruptions, there is a risk for delivery delays, production delays, production issues or delivery of non-conforming products by our suppliers. Even where these risks do not materialize, we may incur costs as we try to make contingency plans for such risks.

The loss of business with respect to, or the lack of commercial success of, a vehicle model for which we are a significant supplier could adversely affect our financial performance.

Although we receive purchase orders from our customers, these purchase orders generally provide for the supply of a customer s requirements for a particular vehicle model and assembly plant, rather than for the purchase of a specific quantity of products. The loss of business with respect to, or the lack of commercial success of, a vehicle model for which we are a significant supplier could reduce our sales and thereby adversely affect our financial condition, operating results and cash flows.

We operate in the highly competitive automotive supply industry.

The global automotive component supply industry is highly competitive. Competition is based primarily on price, technology, quality, delivery and overall customer service. There can be no assurance that our products will be able to compete successfully with the products of our competitors. Furthermore, the rapidly evolving

nature of the markets in which we compete may attract new entrants, particularly in low-cost countries such as China, Brazil, India and Russia. Additionally, consolidation in the automotive industry may lead to decreased product purchases from us. As a result, our sales levels and margins could be adversely affected by pricing pressures from OEMs and pricing actions of competitors. These factors led to selective resourcing of business to competitors in the past and may also do so in the future. In addition, any of our competitors may foresee the course of market development more accurately than us, develop products that are superior to our products, have the ability to produce similar products at a lower cost than us, or adapt more quickly than us to new technologies or evolving customer requirements. As a result, our products may not be able to compete successfully with their products. These trends may adversely affect our sales as well as the profit margins on our products.

Increases in costs of the materials and other supplies that we use in our products may have a negative impact on our business.

Significant changes in the markets where we purchase materials, components and supplies for the production of our products may adversely affect our profitability, particularly in the event of significant increases in demand where there is not a corresponding increase in supply, inflation or other pricing increases. In recent periods there have been significant fluctuations in the global prices of copper, aluminum and petroleum-based resin products, and fuel charges, which have had and may continue to have an unfavorable impact on our business, results of operations or financial condition. Continuing volatility may have adverse effects on our business, results of operations or financial condition. We will continue efforts to pass some supply and material cost increases onto our customers, although competitive and market pressures have limited our ability to do that, particularly with domestic OEMs, and may prevent us from doing so in the future, because our customers are generally not obligated to accept price increases that we may desire to pass along to them. Even where we are able to pass price increases through to the customer, in some cases there is a lapse of time before we are able to do so. The inability to pass on price increases to our customers when raw material prices increase rapidly or to significantly higher than historic levels could adversely affect our operating margins and cash flow, possibly resulting in lower operating income and profitability. We expect to be continually challenged as demand for our principal raw materials and other supplies, including electronic components, is significantly impacted by demand in emerging markets, particularly in China, Brazil, India and Russia, and by the anticipated global economic recovery. We cannot provide assurance that fluctuations in commodity prices will not otherwise have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations, or cause significant fluctuations in quarterly and annual results of operations.

Our hedging activities to address commodity price fluctuations may not be successful in offsetting future increases in those costs or may reduce or eliminate the benefits of any decreases in those costs.

In order to mitigate short-term volatility in operating results due to the aforementioned commodity price fluctuations, we hedge a portion of near-term exposure to certain raw materials used in production. The results of our hedging practice could be positive, neutral or negative in any period depending on price changes in the hedged exposures. Our hedging activities are not designed to mitigate long-term commodity price fluctuations and, therefore, will not protect from long-term commodity price increases. Our future hedging positions may not correlate to actual raw material costs, which could cause acceleration in the recognition of unrealized gains and losses on hedging positions in operating results.

We face manufacturing challenges.

The volume and timing of sales to our customers may vary due to: variation in demand for our customers products; our customers attempts to manage their inventory; design changes; changes in our customers manufacturing strategy; and acquisitions of or consolidations among customers. Due in part to these factors, many of our customers do not commit to long-term production schedules. Our inability to forecast the level of customer orders with certainty makes it difficult to schedule production and maximize utilization of manufacturing capacity.

We rely on third-party suppliers for the components used in our products, and we rely on third-party manufacturers to manufacture certain of our assemblies and finished products. Our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows could be adversely affected if our third party suppliers lack sufficient quality control or if there are significant changes in their financial or business condition. If our third-party manufacturers fail to deliver products, parts and components of sufficient quality on time and at reasonable prices, we could have difficulties fulfilling our orders, sales and profits could decline, and our commercial reputation could be damaged.

From time to time, we have underutilized our manufacturing lines. This excess capacity means we incur increased fixed costs in our products relative to the net revenue we generate, which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations, particularly during economic downturns. If we are unable to improve utilization levels for these manufacturing lines and correctly manage capacity, the increased expense levels will have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, some of our manufacturing lines are located in China or other foreign countries that are subject to a number of additional risks and uncertainties, including increasing labor costs and political, social and economic instability.

We may not be able to respond quickly enough to changes in regulations, technology and technological risks, and to develop our intellectual property into commercially viable products.

Changes in legislative, regulatory or industry requirements or in competitive technologies may render certain of our products obsolete or less attractive. Our ability to anticipate changes in technology and regulatory standards and to successfully develop and introduce new and enhanced products on a timely basis are significant factors in our ability to remain competitive and to maintain or increase our revenues. We cannot provide assurance that certain of our products will not become obsolete or that we will be able to achieve the technological advances that may be necessary for us to remain competitive and maintain or increase our revenues in the future. We are also subject to the risks generally associated with new product introductions and applications, including lack of market acceptance, delays in product development or production and failure of products to operate properly. The pace of our development and introduction of new and improved products depends on our ability to implement successfully improved technological innovations in design, engineering and manufacturing, which requires extensive capital investment. Any capital expenditure cuts in these areas that we may determine to implement in the future to reduce costs and conserve cash could reduce our ability to develop and implement improved technological innovations, which may materially reduce demand for our products.

To compete effectively in the automotive supply industry, we must be able to launch new products to meet changing consumer preferences and our customers demand in a timely and cost-effective manner. Our ability to respond to competitive pressures and react quickly to other major changes in the marketplace including in the case of automotive sales, increased gasoline prices or consumer desire for and availability of vehicles using alternative fuels is also a risk to our future financial performance.

We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to install and certify the equipment needed to produce products for new product programs in time for the start of production, or that the transitioning of our manufacturing facilities and resources to full production under new product programs will not impact production rates or other operational efficiency measures at our facilities. Development and manufacturing schedules are difficult to predict, and we cannot provide assurance that our customers will execute on schedule the launch of their new product programs, for which we might supply products. Our failure to successfully launch new products, or a failure by our customers to successfully launch new programs, could adversely affect our results.

Changes in factors that impact the determination of our non-U.S. pension liabilities may adversely affect us.

Certain of our non-U.S. subsidiaries sponsor defined benefit pension plans, which generally provide benefits based on negotiated amounts for each year of service. Our primary non-U.S. plans are located in Mexico and the United Kingdom and were underfunded by \$310 million as of September 30, 2011. The funding requirements of

these benefit plans, and the related expense reflected in our financial statements, are affected by several factors that are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty and volatility, including governmental regulation. In addition to the defined benefit pension plans, we have retirement obligations driven by requirements in many of the countries in which we operate. These legally required plans require payments at the time benefits are due. Obligations related to the defined benefit pension plans and statutorily required retirement obligations totaled \$618 million at September 30, 2011, of which \$13 million is included in accrued liabilities and \$605 million is included in long-term liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet. Key assumptions used to value these benefit obligations and the cost of providing such benefits, funding requirements and expense recognition include the discount rate and the expected long-term rate of return on pension assets. If the actual trends in these factors are less favorable than our assumptions, this could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

We may suffer future asset impairment and other restructuring charges.

We have taken restructuring actions in recent years to realign and resize our production capacity and cost structure to meet current and projected operational and market requirements. If we are required to take further restructuring actions, the charges related to these actions may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. We cannot assure that any future restructurings will be completed as planned or achieve the desired results. Additionally, from time to time in the past, we have recorded asset impairment losses relating to specific plants and operations. Generally, we record asset impairment losses when we determine that our estimates of the future undiscounted cash flows from an operation will not be sufficient to recover the carrying value of that facility s building, fixed assets and production tooling. We cannot assure that we will not incur such charges in the future.

Employee strikes and labor-related disruptions involving us or one or more of our customers or suppliers may adversely affect our operations.

Our business is labor-intensive and utilizes a number of work councils and other represented employees. A strike or other form of significant work disruption by our employees would likely have an adverse effect on our ability to operate our business. A labor dispute involving us or one or more of our customers or suppliers or that could otherwise affect our operations could reduce our sales and harm our profitability. A labor dispute involving another supplier to our customers that results in a slowdown or a closure of our customers assembly plants where our products are included in the assembled parts or vehicles could also adversely affect our business and harm our profitability. In addition, our inability or the inability of any of our customers, our suppliers or our customers suppliers to negotiate an extension of a collective bargaining agreement upon its expiration could reduce our sales and harm our profitability. Significant increases in labor costs as a result of the renegotiation of collective bargaining agreements could also adversely affect our business and harm our profitability.

We may lose or fail to attract and retain key salaried employees and management personnel.

An important aspect of our competitiveness is our ability to attract and retain key salaried employees and management personnel. Our ability to do so is influenced by a variety of factors, including the compensation we award and the competitive market position of our overall compensation package. We may not be as successful as competitors at recruiting, assimilating and retaining highly skilled personnel. The loss of the services of any member of senior management or a key salaried employee could have an adverse effect on our business.

We are exposed to foreign currency fluctuations as a result of our substantial global operations, which may affect our financial results.

We have currency exposures related to buying, selling and financing in currencies other than the local currencies of the countries in which we operate. Approximately 65% of our net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010 was invoiced in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, and we expect net revenue from

non-U.S. markets to continue to represent a significant portion of our net revenue. Price increases caused by currency exchange rate fluctuations may make our products less competitive or have an adverse effect on our margins. Currency exchange rate fluctuations may also disrupt the business of our suppliers by making their purchases of raw materials more expensive and more difficult to finance.

Historically, we have reduced our exposure by aligning our costs in the same currency as our revenues or, if that is impracticable, through financial instruments that provide offsets or limits to our exposures, which are opposite to the underlying transactions. However, any measures that we may implement to reduce the effect of volatile currencies and other risks of our global operations may not be effective. We cannot provide assurance that fluctuations in currency exposures will not otherwise have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations, or cause significant fluctuations in quarterly and annual results of operations.

We face risks associated with doing business in non-U.S. jurisdictions.

The majority of our manufacturing and distribution facilities are in countries outside of the U.S., including Mexico and countries in Asia Pacific, Eastern and Western Europe, South America and Northern Africa. We also purchase raw materials and other supplies from many different countries around the world. For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, approximately 69% of our net revenue came from sales outside the United States. International operations are subject to certain risks inherent in doing business abroad, including:

exposure to local economic, political and labor conditions;

unexpected changes in laws, regulations, trade or monetary or fiscal policy, including interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and changes in the rate of inflation in the U.S. and other foreign countries;

tariffs, quotas, customs and other import or export restrictions and other trade barriers;

expropriation and nationalization;

difficulty of enforcing agreements, collecting receivables and protecting assets through non-U.S. legal systems;

reduced intellectual property protection;

limitations on repatriation of earnings;

withholding and other taxes on remittances and other payments by subsidiaries;

investment restrictions or requirements;

export and import restrictions;

violence and civil unrest in local countries; and

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

compliance with the requirements of applicable anti-bribery laws, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Additionally, our global operations may also be adversely affected by political events, domestic or international terrorist events and hostilities or complications due to natural or nuclear disasters. These uncertainties could have a material adverse effect on the continuity of our business and our results of operations and financial condition.

Increasing our manufacturing footprint in Asian markets, including China, and our business relationships with Asian automotive manufacturers are important elements of our strategy. In addition, our strategy includes increasing revenue and expanding our manufacturing footprint in lower-cost regions. As a result, our exposure to the risks described above may be greater in the future. The likelihood of such occurrences and their potential impact on us vary from country to country and are unpredictable.

If we fail to manage our growth effectively or to integrate successfully any future acquisition or strategic alliance into our business, our business could be harmed.

We expect to pursue acquisitions and strategic alliances that leverage our technology capabilities, enhance our customer base, geographic penetration, and scale to complement our current businesses. While we believe that such transactions are an integral part of our long-term strategy, there are risks and uncertainties related to these activities. Such risks and uncertainties include difficulty in integrating acquired operations, technology and products and potential unknown liabilities associated with the acquired company.

Risks Related to Legal, Regulatory, Tax and Accounting Matters

We may incur material losses and costs as a result of warranty claims and product liability and intellectual property infringement actions that may be brought against us.

We face an inherent business risk of exposure to warranty claims and product liability in the event that our products fail to perform as expected and, in the case of product liability, such failure of our products results in bodily injury and/or property damage. The fabrication of the products we manufacture is a complex and precise process. Our customers specify quality, performance and reliability standards. If flaws in either the design or manufacture of our products were to occur, we could experience a rate of failure in our products that could result in significant delays in shipment and product re-work or replacement costs. Although we engage in extensive product quality programs and processes, these may not be sufficient to avoid product failures, which could cause us to:

lose net revenue;

incur increased costs such as warranty expense and costs associated with customer support;

experience delays, cancellations or rescheduling of orders for our products;

experience increased product returns or discounts; or

damage our reputation, all of which could negatively affect our financial condition and results of operations.

If any of our products are or are alleged to be defective, we may be required to participate in a recall involving such products. Each vehicle manufacturer has its own practices regarding product recalls and other product liability actions relating to its suppliers. However, as suppliers become more integrally involved in the vehicle design process and assume more of the vehicle assembly functions, OEMs continue to look to their suppliers for contribution when faced with recalls and product liability claims. A recall claim brought against us, or a product liability claim brought against us in excess of our available insurance, may have a material adverse effect on our business. OEMs also require their suppliers to guarantee or warrant their products and bear the costs of repair and replacement of such products under new vehicle warranties. Depending on the terms under which we supply products to a vehicle manufacturer, a vehicle manufacturer may attempt to hold us responsible for some or all of the repair or replacement costs of defective products under new vehicle warranties when the OEM asserts that the product supplied did not perform as warranted. Although we cannot assure that the future costs of warranty claims by our customers will not be material, we believe our established reserves are adequate to cover

potential warranty settlements. Our warranty reserves are based on our best estimates of amounts necessary to settle future and existing claims. We regularly evaluate the level of these reserves and adjust them when appropriate. However, the final amounts determined to be due related to these matters could differ materially from our recorded estimates.

In addition, as we adopt new technology, we face an inherent risk of exposure to the claims of others that we have allegedly violated their intellectual property rights. We cannot assure that we will not experience any material warranty, product liability or intellectual property claim losses in the future or that we will not incur significant costs to defend such claims.

We may be adversely affected by environmental regulation, litigation or other liabilities.

We are subject to various U.S. federal, state and local, and non-U.S., environmental, health and safety laws and regulations governing, among other things:

the generation, storage, handling, use, transportation, presence of, or exposure to hazardous materials;

the emission and discharge of hazardous materials into the ground, air or water;

the incorporation of certain chemical substances into our products, including electronic equipment; and

the health and safety of our employees.

We are also required to obtain permits from governmental authorities for certain operations. We cannot assure you that we have been or will be at all times in complete compliance with such laws, regulations and permits. If we violate or fail to comply with these laws, regulations or permits, we could be fined or otherwise sanctioned by regulators. We could also be held liable for any and all consequences arising out of human exposure to hazardous substances or other environmental damage.

Certain environmental laws impose liability, sometimes regardless of fault, for investigating or cleaning up contamination on or emanating from our currently or formerly owned, leased or operated property, as well as for damages to property or natural resources and for personal injury arising out of such contamination. These environmental laws also assess liability on persons who arrange for hazardous substances to be sent to third party disposal or treatment facilities when such facilities are found to be contaminated. At this time, we are involved in various stages of investigation and cleanup related to environmental remediation matters at a number of present and former facilities in the U.S. and abroad. The ultimate cost to us of site cleanups is difficult to predict given the uncertainties regarding the extent of the required cleanup, the potential for ongoing environmental monitoring and maintenance that could be required for many years, the interpretation of applicable laws and regulations, alternative cleanup methods, and potential agreements that could be reached with governmental and third parties. While we have environmental reserves of approximately \$23 million at September 30, 2011 for the cleanup of presently-known environmental contamination conditions, it cannot be guaranteed that actual costs will not significantly exceed these reserves. We also could be named a potentially responsible party at additional sites in the future and the costs associated with such future sites may be material.

In addition, environmental laws are complex, change frequently and have tended to become more stringent over time. While we have budgeted for future capital and operating expenditures to maintain compliance with environmental laws, we cannot assure that environmental laws will not change or become more stringent in the future. Therefore, we cannot assure that our costs of complying with current and future environmental and health and safety laws, and our liabilities arising from past or future releases of, or exposure to, hazardous substances will not adversely affect our business, results of operations or financial condition. For example, adoption of greenhouse gas rules in jurisdictions in which we operate facilities could require installation of emission controls, acquisition of emission credits, emission reductions, or other measures that could be costly, and could also impact utility rates and increase the amount we spend annually for energy.

We may identify the need for additional environmental remediation or demolition obligations relating to facility divestiture, closure and decommissioning activities.

As we sell, close and/or demolish facilities around the world, environmental investigations and assessments will continue to be performed. We may identify previously unknown environmental conditions or further delineate known conditions that may require remediation or additional costs related to demolition or decommissioning, such as abatement of asbestos containing materials or removal of polychlorinated biphenyls or storage tanks. Such costs could exceed our reserves.

We are involved from time to time in legal proceedings and commercial or contractual disputes, which could have an adverse impact on our profitability and consolidated financial position.

We are involved in legal proceedings and commercial or contractual disputes that, from time to time, are significant. These are typically claims that arise in the normal course of business including, without limitation, commercial or contractual disputes, including warranty claims and other disputes with customers and suppliers; intellectual property matters; personal injury claims; environmental issues; tax matters; and employment matters. There is also a pending antitrust investigation in the European Union.

In addition, we conduct significant business operations in Brazil that are subject to the Brazilian federal labor, social security, environmental, tax and customs laws as well as a variety of state and local laws. While we believe we comply with such laws, they are complex, subject to varying interpretations, and we are often engaged in litigation with government agencies regarding the application of these laws to particular circumstances. As of September 30, 2011, related claims totaling approximately \$230 million (using September 30, 2011 foreign currency rates) had been asserted against us. As of September 30, 2011, we maintained reserves for these asserted claims of approximately \$40 million (using September 30, 2011 foreign currency rates). We are also subject to class action complaints filed in various U.S. federal district courts alleging violations of U.S. antitrust laws, and are subject to a pending antitrust investigation in the European Union related to the supply of wire harnesses to vehicle manufacturers, for which no accruals have been recorded as of September 30, 2011. For further information concerning these matters, see Business Legal Proceedings. While we believe our reserves are adequate, the final amounts required to resolve these matters could differ materially from our recorded estimates and our results of operations could be materially affected.

For further information regarding our legal matters, see Business Legal Proceedings. No assurance can be given that such proceedings and claims will not have a material adverse effect on our profitability and consolidated financial position.

Developments or assertions by us or against us relating to intellectual property rights could materially impact our business.

We own significant intellectual property, including a large number of patents and tradenames, and are involved in numerous licensing arrangements. Our intellectual property plays an important role in maintaining our competitive position in a number of the markets we serve. Developments or assertions by or against us relating to intellectual property rights could negatively impact our business. Significant technological developments by others also could materially and adversely affect our business and results of operations and financial condition.

There is a significant risk that Delphi Automotive LLP and, as a result, Delphi Automotive PLC could be treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, which could have a material impact on our future tax liability.

Delphi Automotive LLP, which acquired the automotive supply and other businesses of the Predecessor on October 6, 2009 (the Acquisition Date), was established on August 19, 2009 as a limited liability partnership

²⁶

incorporated under the laws of England and Wales. At the time of its formation, Delphi Automotive LLP elected to be treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Prior to the Acquisition Date, the Internal Revenue Service (the IRS) issued Notice 2009-78 (the Notice) announcing its intent to issue regulations under Section 7874 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), with an effective date prior to the Acquisition Date. If regulations as described in the Notice are issued with the effective date indicated in the Notice and with no exceptions for transactions that were subject to binding commitments on that date, we believe there is a significant risk that Delphi Automotive LLP could be treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, retroactive to the Acquisition Date. If Delphi Automotive LLP were treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we expect that, although we are incorporated under the laws of Jersey, we would also be treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Delphi Automotive LLP filed an informational 2009 U.S. federal partnership tax return on September 15, 2010. In light of the Notice, the IRS is currently reviewing whether Section 7874 applies to Delphi Automotive LLP s acquisition of the automotive supply and other businesses of the Predecessor. While we believe, based on the advice of counsel, that it is more likely than not that neither we, nor Delphi Automotive LLP, are a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and therefore have not reserved any amounts on our financial statements in respect of this issue, no assurance can be given that the IRS will not contend that Delphi Automotive LLP, and therefore we, should each be treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, or that, if we were to challenge any such contention by the IRS, that a court would not agree with the IRS.

If we were treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we would be subject to U.S. federal income tax on our worldwide taxable income, including some or all of the distributions from our subsidiaries as well as some of the undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries that constitute controlled foreign corporations. This could have a material adverse impact on our future tax liability related to these distributions and earnings. Future cash distributions made by us to non-U.S. shareholders could be subject to U.S. income tax withholding at a rate of 30%, unless reduced or eliminated by a tax treaty. In addition, we could be liable for additional U.S. federal income taxes on such distributions and earnings, and for the failure by Delphi Automotive LLP to withhold U.S. income taxes on distributions to its non-U.S. members, for periods beginning on or after, the Acquisition Date, which liability could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

Taxing authorities could challenge our historical and future tax positions.

The amount of tax we pay is subject to our interpretation of applicable tax laws in the jurisdictions in which we file. We have taken and will continue to take tax positions based on our interpretation of such tax laws. In particular, we will seek to run ourselves in such a way that we are and remain tax resident in the United Kingdom. While we believe that we have complied with all applicable tax laws, there can be no assurance that a taxing authority will not have a different interpretation of the law and assess us with additional taxes. Should additional taxes be assessed, this may result in a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Our application of acquisition accounting could result in additional asset impairments and may make comparisons of our financial position and results of operations to prior periods more difficult.

As required by U.S. GAAP, we recognized and measured the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed from the Predecessor. This resulted in the recognition of significant identifiable intangible assets which could be impaired in future periods. Additionally, the consolidated financial statements of Delphi Automotive LLP are not comparable to the consolidated statements of the Predecessor due to the effects of the consummation of the First Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of Delphi Corporation and Certain Affiliates, Debtors and Debtors-In Possession (As Modified) and the change in the basis of presentation. This lack of comparability could limit interest and investment in our securities, including the ordinary shares.

Our operating results are exposed to variability as a result of the currently designed Long-Term Incentive Program for our key employees.

The recognition of compensation costs on a U.S. GAAP basis resulting from the execution of our Value Creation Plan, our Long-Term Incentive Program for key employees, is based on a variable formula that is likely to result in fluctuations impacting operating results. No assurance can be given that such impacts will not have a material impact on our profitability and consolidated financial position.

Risks Related to This Offering

There is no existing market for our ordinary shares, and our ordinary shares may trade at a discount from its initial offering price.

Prior to this offering, there has not been a public market for our ordinary shares and we cannot predict the extent of investor interest in us. The initial public offering price for our ordinary shares will be determined by negotiations between us and the representatives of the underwriters and may not be indicative of prices that will prevail in the open market following this offering. Consequently, you may not be able to sell ordinary shares at prices equal to or greater than the price you paid in this offering.

An active and liquid trading market for our ordinary shares may not develop.

Prior to this offering, our ordinary shares were not traded on any market. An active and liquid trading market for our ordinary shares may not develop or be maintained after this offering. Liquid and active trading markets usually result in less price volatility and more efficiency in carrying out investors purchase and sale orders. The market price of our ordinary shares could vary significantly as a result of a number of factors, some of which are beyond our control. In the event of a drop in the market price of our ordinary shares, you could lose a substantial part or all of your investment in our ordinary shares. The initial public offering price will be negotiated between us and the representatives of the underwriters and may not be indicative of the market price of our ordinary shares after this offering. Consequently, you may not be able to sell our ordinary shares at prices equal to or greater than the price paid by you in the offering.

The market price and trading volume of our ordinary shares may be volatile, which could result in rapid and substantial losses for our shareholders.

The market price of our ordinary shares may be highly volatile and could be subject to wide fluctuations. In addition, the trading volume of our ordinary shares may fluctuate and cause significant price variations to occur. Some of the factors that could negatively affect the price of our ordinary shares, or result in fluctuations in the price or trading volume of our ordinary shares, include:

variations in our quarterly operating results;

failure to meet the market s earnings expectations;

publication of research reports about us or the automotive parts industry, or the failure of securities analysts to cover our ordinary shares after this offering;

departures of key personnel;

adverse market reaction to any indebtedness we may incur or securities we may issue in the future;

changes in market valuations of similar companies;

changes or proposed changes in laws or regulations, or differing interpretations thereof, affecting our business, or enforcement of these laws and regulations, or announcements relating to these matters;

litigation and governmental investigations; and

general market and economic conditions. *Provisions of our Articles of Association could delay or prevent a takeover of us by a third party.*

Our Articles of Association could delay, defer or prevent a third party from acquiring us, despite any possible benefit to our shareholders, or otherwise adversely affect the price of our ordinary shares. For example, our amended Articles of Association will:

permit our Board of Directors to issue one or more series of preferred shares with rights and preferences designated by our board;

impose advance notice requirements for shareholder proposals and nominations of directors to be considered at shareholder meetings;

limit the ability of shareholders to remove directors without cause; and

require that all vacancies on our Board of Directors be filled by our directors.

These provisions may discourage potential takeover attempts, discourage bids for our ordinary shares at a premium over the market price or adversely affect the market price of, and the voting and other rights of the holders of, our ordinary shares. These provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for you and other shareholders to elect directors other than the candidates nominated by our Board of Directors. See Description of Share Capital for additional information on the anti-takeover measures that may be applicable to us.

Reports published by securities or industry analysts, including projections in those reports that exceed our actual results, could adversely affect our share price and trading volume.

We currently expect securities research analysts, including those affiliated with our underwriters, to establish and publish their own quarterly projections regarding our operating results. These projections may vary widely from one another and may not accurately predict the results we actually achieve. Our share price may decline if we fail to meet securities research analysts projections. Similarly, if one or more of the analysts who covers us downgrades our shares or publishes inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our share price could decline. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of us or fails to publish reports on us regularly, our share price or trading volume could decline. Additionally, while we expect securities research analyst coverage, if no securities or industry analysts commence coverage of us, the trading price of our shares and the trading volume could decline.

Future sales of ordinary shares by existing shareholders could depress the market price of our ordinary shares.

After this offering, we will have 328,244,510 ordinary shares outstanding. This includes the 24,078,827 ordinary shares the selling shareholders are selling in this offering, which can be freely resold in the public market immediately after this offering unless purchased by any of our affiliates. We expect that the remaining 304,165,683 ordinary shares, representing approximately 93% of our total outstanding ordinary shares following this offering, will become available for resale in the public market as set forth under the heading Shares Eligible for Future Sale. All of our directors and executive officers, and the holders of all of our outstanding ordinary

shares, are subject to lock-up agreements for a period of 180 days following the date of this prospectus; provided that 30% of such ordinary shares (other than shares owned by our directors and officers) will be released from lock-up restrictions on the 90th day following the date of this prospectus. The lock-up agreements are subject to extension in the case of an earnings release or material news or a material event relating to us. Goldman, Sachs & Co. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC may, in their sole discretion and without notice, release all or any portion of the ordinary shares subject to lock-up agreements. As restrictions on resale end, the market price of our ordinary shares could drop significantly if the holders of these shares sell them or are perceived by the market as intending to sell them. We will be required to file a shelf registration statement upon expiration of these lock-up periods to permit the resale of such shares. These factors could also make it more difficult for us to raise additional funds through future offerings of our ordinary shares or other securities.

The availability of ordinary shares for sale in the future could reduce the market price of our ordinary shares.

In the future, we may issue additional securities to raise capital. We may also acquire interests in other companies by using a combination of cash and our ordinary shares or just our ordinary shares. We may also issue securities convertible into our ordinary shares. Any of these events may dilute your ownership interest in our Company and have an adverse impact on the price of our ordinary shares. In addition, sales of a substantial amount of our ordinary shares in the public market, or the perception that these sales may occur, could reduce the market price of our ordinary shares. This could also impair our ability to raise additional capital through the sale of our securities.

You will suffer immediate and substantial dilution and may experience additional dilution in the future.

The initial public offering price per share of our ordinary shares will be substantially higher than the pro forma net tangible book value per share of our ordinary shares immediately after this offering. As a result, you will pay a price per share that substantially exceeds the book value of our assets after subtracting our liabilities. See Dilution.

We will incur increased costs as a result of being a publicly traded corporation.

We have no history operating as a publicly traded corporation. As a publicly traded corporation, we will incur additional legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company. This increase will be due to the increased accounting support services, filing annual and quarterly reports with the SEC, increased audit fees, investor relations, directors fees, directors and officers insurance, legal fees, stock exchange listing fees and registrar and transfer agent fees, which we expect to incur after the completion of this offering. In addition, we expect that complying with the rules and regulations implemented by the SEC and the NYSE will increase our legal and financial compliance costs and make activities more time-consuming and costly. In addition, we will incur additional costs associated with our publicly traded corporation reporting requirements.

The rights of shareholders of Jersey corporations differ in some respects from those of shareholders of U.S. corporations.

We are incorporated under the laws of Jersey. The rights of holders of ordinary shares are governed by Jersey law, including the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, as amended, and by our Articles of Association. These rights differ in some respects from the rights of shareholders in corporations incorporated in the United States. See Description of Share Capital Comparison of United States and Jersey Corporate Law.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus, as well as other presentations or statements made by us may contain forward-looking statements that reflect, when made, our current views with respect to current events and financial performance. Such forward-looking statements are subject to many risks, uncertainties and factors relating to our operations and business environment, which may cause our actual results to be materially different from any future results, express or implied, by such forward-looking statements. All statements that address future operating, financial or business performance or our strategies or expectations are forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify these statements by forward-looking words such as may, might, will, should, expects, plans, anticipates, believes, estimates, predicts, projects, potential, outlook comparable terminology. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from these forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those discussed under the heading Risk Factors in this prospectus, such as the following:

global economic conditions, including conditions affecting the credit market and the cyclical nature of automotive sales and production;

the potential disruptions in the supply of and changes in the competitive environment for raw material integral to our products;

our ability to maintain contracts that are critical to our operations;

our ability to attract, motivate and/or retain key executives; and

our ability to attract and retain customers.

New risks and uncertainties arise from time to time, and it is impossible for us to predict these events or how they may affect us. It should be remembered that the price of the ordinary shares and any income from them can go down as well as up. We disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events and/or otherwise, except to the extent required by law.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The selling shareholders are selling all of the ordinary shares in this offering and we will not receive any proceeds from the sale of such shares.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Delphi Automotive PLC has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its share capital. We currently anticipate that we will retain all available funds for use in the operation and expansion of our business, and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

In October 2011, the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP approved the payment of a distribution

of approximately \$95 million on December 5, 2011, principally in respect of taxes, to members who hold membership interests as of the close of business on October 31, 2011.

CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth as of September 30, 2011 the cash and capitalization of:

Delphi Automotive LLP, on an actual basis; and

us, on a pro forma as adjusted basis to reflect the transaction by which Delphi Automotive LLP becomes our wholly-owned subsidiary and the payment by us of commissions to the underwriters for the ordinary shares sold by the selling shareholders in this offering and estimated expenses.

This table should be read in conjunction with in Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Information , Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the financial statements of Delphi Automotive PLC and Delphi Automotive LLP, including the accompanying notes thereto, appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

	Septeml Delphi Automotive LLP	Aut	11 Delphi comotive PLC Forma As
	Actual	A	ljusted
Cash and cash equivalents(1)(2)	(in r \$ 1,386	nillions) \$	1,347
Restricted cash	10	Ψ	10
Debt:			
Accounts receivable factoring	\$ 70	\$	70
Senior credit facility	1,031		1,031
5.875% senior notes due 2019	500		500
6.125% senior notes due 2021	500		500
Capital leases and other debt(3)	72		72
Less: current portion	122		122
Total long-term debt	2,051		2,051
Total debt	\$ 2,173	\$	2,173
Pre-IPO owners equity:(4)			
Membership interests	\$ 1,706	\$	
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:			
Employee benefit plans	59		
Other	(129)		
Total accumulated other comprehensive income	(70)		
Total owners equity before noncontrolling interest	1,636		
Noncontrolling interests	462		
Total pre-IPO owners equity(4)	\$ 2,098	\$	

	Septem	ber 30, 20	11
	Delphi Automotive LLP	E Aut	Oelphi omotive PLC
	Actual (in 1		Forma As ljusted
Post-IPO shareholders equity:	, ,	/	
Preferred shares, \$0.01 par value per share, 50,000,000 shares authorized, 0 issued and outstanding	\$	\$	
Ordinary shares, \$0.01 par value per share, 1,200,000,000 shares authorized, 328,244,510 issued and outstanding(5)			3
Additional paid-in capital(5)			1,710
Retained deficit(6)			(45)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:			. ,
Employee benefit plans			59
Other			(129)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income			(70)
1			
Total shareholders equity before noncontrolling interest			1,598
Noncontrolling interests			462
<i>C</i>			
Total post-IPO shareholders equity	\$	\$	2,060
Total capitalization	\$ 4,271	\$	4,233

- (1) Does not reflect the payment by Delphi Automotive LLP of \$95 million in distributions to holders of record on October 31, 2011, which is payable on December 5, 2011, or repurchases of Class B membership interests in the amount of \$68 million for trades not settled prior to September 30, 2011 and \$39 million for trades that occurred after September 30, 2011.
- (2) Reflects the \$33 million of commissions payable by us to the underwriters in connection with the sale of ordinary shares by the selling shareholders in this offering, together with estimated offering expenses and certain IPO-related bonuses. We will not receive any proceeds from this offering. See Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Information.
- (3) Capital leases and other debt is comprised of \$52 million of short-term debt and \$20 million of long-term debt.
- (4) Does not reflect \$39 million of repurchases of Class B membership interests that occurred after September 30, 2011.
- (5) Reflects the establishment of post-IPO shareholders equity of Delphi Automotive PLC from the existing membership interests in Delphi Automotive LLP of \$1,706 million as a result of the transaction pursuant to which Delphi Automotive PLC becomes the owner of Delphi Automotive LLP and the vesting of the remaining Class E-1 membership interests of \$8 million, less \$1 million paid to retire a portion of the membership interests of certain members in lieu of their participation in this offering based on the terms and conditions of the Fourth LLP Agreement.
- (6) Reflects \$33 million of commissions to the underwriters in connection with the sale of ordinary shares by the selling shareholders, \$4 million of estimated expenses related to this offering, and \$8 million related to the accelerated vesting of Class E-1 membership interests.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information (the Pro Forma Financial Information) sets forth selected historical consolidated financial information for Delphi Automotive LLP and its consolidated subsidiaries. The historical data provided as of September 30, 2011, for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and for the year ended December 31, 2010 are derived from Delphi Automotive LLP s unaudited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 31, 2010.

The Pro Forma Financial Information is provided for informational and illustrative purposes only. These tables should be read in conjunction with Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and the consolidated financial statements and related notes in the unaudited consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes in the year ended December 31, 2010, included elsewhere in this prospectus.

The Pro Forma Financial Information gives effect to the transactions specified in Debt Adjustments below as if they had occurred on January 1, 2010 for the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the nine months ended September 30, 2011, and gives effect to the IPO Adjustments as if they had occurred on September 30, 2011 for the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements and certain assumptions underlying these adjustments are described in the accompanying notes, which should be read in conjunction with the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information.

The Pro Forma Financial Information does not purport to project our future financial position or operating results as of any future date or for any future period. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information is also not necessarily indicative of what our actual results of operations or financial position would have been had the transactions occurred on January 1, 2010 or September 30, 2011, as the case may be.

Pro Forma Adjustments

The Debt Adjustments column in the Pro Forma Financial Information includes the effects of the following transactions, which have been completed prior to this offering:

the extinguishment on March 31, 2011 of our outstanding \$41 million in senior unsecured five-year notes (the Old Notes) issued in connection with our acquisition of certain assets of the Predecessor on the Acquisition Date at an aggregate purchase price of approximately \$57 million;

the impact of the original credit agreement executed on March 31, 2011 among Delphi Automotive LLP, Delphi Holdings, S.a.r.l., Delphi Corporation, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as administrative agent, and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC as sole bookrunner and sole lead arranger, with respect to \$3.0 billion in senior secured credit facilities (the Credit Facilities), of which \$2.5 billion in term loans were used to redeem all outstanding Class A and Class C membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP, and the amendments and modifications to the credit agreement on May 17, 2011 and August 1, 2011 in connection with the syndication thereof and an increase to the revolving credit facility, respectively (the Credit Agreement). The modifications of the Credit Agreement increased the amount of the Tranche A Term Loan from \$250 million to \$258 million, increased the commitments under the revolving credit facility from \$500 million to \$1.3 billion, reduced the amount of the Tranche B Term Loan from \$2.25 billion to \$950 million, and adjusted the interest rate options for all commitments (see Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources); and

the issuance on May 17, 2011 of \$500 million in senior unsecured notes due 2019 and \$500 million in senior unsecured notes due 2021 (collectively, the Senior Notes) which, together with cash on hand, were used to repay amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement.

The IPO Adjustments column in the Pro Forma Financial Information includes the effects of the following transactions in connection with this offering:

Delphi Automotive PLC s acquisition of all outstanding membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP from its existing equity holders in exchange for 328,244,510 ordinary shares immediately prior to the closing of this offering;

the accelerated vesting of the Class E-1 membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP that will occur as a result of this offering; and

the underwriters commissions to be paid by Delphi Automotive PLC (as the selling shareholders will not pay any underwriting discount on certain of the shares sold by them).

For additional information regarding the foregoing pro forma adjustments, see the notes to the Pro Forma Financial Information.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

		Ni	ne months	ended S	eptember	30, 2011		
		Delphi Autor			•	Delphi Aut		
		Debt				IPO		Forma,
	Historical	Adjustme (dollars a			Forma ns. excent	Adjustments t per share data)	as A	djusted
Net sales	\$ 12,141	\$			2,141	\$	\$	12,141
Operating expenses:								
Cost of sales	10,165			1	10,165			10,165
Selling, general and administrative	667				667			667
Amortization	56				56			56
Restructuring	20				20			20
Total operating expenses	10,908]	10,908			10,908
Operating income	1,233				1,233			1,233
Interest expense	(84)		(26)(a)		(110)			(110)
Loss on extinguishment of debt	(14)		(20)(a)		(110)			(110)
Other income, net	52				52			52
Income before income tax benefit	1,187		(26)		1,161			1,161
Income tax (expense) benefit	(276)		9(b)		(267)			(267)
Net income	911	((17)		894			894
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest	56				56			56
Net income attributable to Delphi	\$ 855	\$	(17)	\$	838	\$	\$	838
Weighted average ordinary shares								
outstanding						328(c)		328
Net in some (lass) non skans som ilsklade								
Net income (loss) per share available to shareholders:								
Basic and Diluted						\$ 2.55(c)	\$	2.55
Duote und Difuted						$\psi 2.55(0)$	Ψ	2.55

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

						ember 31,			DV C
			Delphi A	utomotive LL	Р		Delphi Auto		e PLC Forma,
				Debt			IPO	110	as
	Hi	istorical		ustments		o Forma	Adjustments	A	djusted
				rs and shares i			per share data)		
Net sales	\$	13,817	\$		\$	13,817	\$	\$	13,817
Operating expenses:									
Cost of sales		11,768				11,768			11,768
Selling, general and administrative		815				815			815
Amortization		70				70			70
Restructuring		224				224			224
Total operating expenses		12,877				12,877			12,877
Operating income		940				940			940
Interest expense		(30)		(116)(a)		(146)			(146)
Other income, net		51				51			51
Income before income tax benefit		961		(116)		845			845
Income tax (expense) benefit		(258)		41(b)		(217)			(217)
Net income	\$	703	\$	(75)	\$	628	\$	\$	628
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest		72				72			72
Net income attributable to Delphi	\$	631	\$	(75)	\$	556	\$	\$	556
	Ψ	0.51	Ψ	(13)	Ψ	550	Ψ	Ψ	550
Weighted eveness and new shares outstanding							228(a)		270
Weighted average ordinary shares outstanding							328(c)		328
Net income (loss) per share available to shareholders:									
Basic and Diluted							\$ 1.69(c)	\$	1.69

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

Debt Adjustments

(a) The interest expense adjustments from the Credit Agreement and the issuance of the Senior Notes resulted in a net increase of \$26 million and \$116 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the year ended December 31, 2010, respectively, and consists of the following (in millions):

	month Septer	ine 1s ended 1ber 30, 011	 ended er 31, 2010
Senior Notes (i)	\$	45	\$ 60
Credit Agreement (ii)		31	41
Issuance cost and original issue discount (OID) amortization (iii)		14	18
Elimination of interest expense and accretion on extinguished Old Notes (iv)		(1)	(3)
Elimination of historical interest expense (including the amortization of debt issuance costs and OID) incurred pursuant to the modified Credit Agreement and Senior Notes			
(v)		(63)	
Total adjustment	\$	26	\$ 116

- (i) Reflects the issuance of the Senior Notes. Interest expense is based on the outstanding balance of \$500 million of 5.875% senior notes due 2019 and \$500 million of 6.125% senior notes due 2021.
- (ii) Reflects the issuance of \$250 million of Tranche A Term Loan and \$2.25 billion of Tranche B Term Loan as entered into on March 31, 2011. In conjunction with the modified Credit Agreement on May 17, 2011, \$1.3 billion of the Tranche B Term Loan was repaid and the Tranche A Term Loan was increased by \$8 million. Subsequently, on August 1, 2011, the Credit Agreement was further amended to increase the amount of commitments under the revolver to \$1.3 billion. The \$1.3 billion revolving credit facility is undrawn.
 Based on Delphi s current elections pursuant to the terms of the modified Credit Agreement, the assumed interest rates were 3.00% per annum (adjusted LIBOR plus 2.75%) and 3.50% per annum (a LIBOR floor of 1.00% plus 2.50%) on the Tranche A Term Loan and the Tranche B Term Loan, respectively. On September 22, 2011, the adjusted LIBOR for the Tranche A Term Loan was 0.25% (0.23456% one-month LIBOR rounded to 0.25% pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement). See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources. Delphi may elect to change the selected interest rate over the term of the Credit Facilities in accordance with the provisions of the Credit Agreement. The applicable interest rates listed above for the revolving facility and the Tranche A Term Loan may increase or decrease from time to time by 0.25% based upon changes to Delphi s corporate credit ratings. Accordingly, the interest rate will fluctuate during the term of the Credit Agreement based on changes in the Alternate Base Rate, LIBOR or future changes in Delphi s corporate credit ratings.
- (iii) Reflects amortization to interest expense of \$87 million in debt issuance costs and \$3 million of original issue discount pursuant to the Credit Agreement executed on March 31, 2011 and as subsequently modified on May 17, 2011 and August 1, 2011, as well as \$20 million of debt issuance costs related to the Senior Notes. Deferred debt issuance costs and OID are recognized as additional interest expense over the life of the respective debt commitment(s) utilizing the effective interest method. The following table summarizes the adjustments to interest expense (in millions):

Additional Interest Expense from Debt Issuance Costs and OID Amortization

					Amo	rtization	
			Debt	Nine mor	ths ended		
	Iss	uance	Maturity	Septen	ıber 30,	Year	ended
	C	Costs	(in months)	20	11	Decembe	er 31, 2010
Revolving credit facility	\$	31	60	\$	5	\$	6
Tranche A Term Loan		7	60		1		2
Tranche B Term Loan		49	72		6		8
8-Year Senior Notes		10	96		1		1
10-Year Senior Notes		10	120		1		1
Tranche A Term Loan OID		1	60				
Tranche B Term Loan OID		2	72				
Total	\$	110		\$	14	\$	18

(iv) Reflects the elimination of interest expense and accretion of the fair value premium previously recognized related to the \$41 million senior unsecured five-year Old Notes. These Old Notes were issued in connection with the acquisition of certain assets of the Predecessor and had an Acquisition Date fair value of \$49 million. The Old Notes paid 12% interest and were scheduled to mature on October 6, 2014. In addition, the \$8 million fair value premium was being accreted as a credit to interest expense over the five year life of the Old Notes. The following table summarizes the adjustments to interest expense (in millions):

Elimination of Interest Expense and Accretion Related to Old Notes

	Nine months endedValueSeptember 30, 2011				ended • 31, 2010
Eliminate Interest Expense	* 44	-	(4)		(-)
12% Old Notes	\$ 41	\$	(1)	\$	(5)
Eliminate Accretion of Fair Value Premium					
Fair Value Adjustment	8				2
Total		\$	(1)	\$	(3)

(v) Reflects the elimination of interest expense (including the amortization of debt issuance costs and OID) related to the modified Credit Agreement and Senior Notes included in the historical amounts for the nine months ended September 30, 2011. The following table summarizes the adjustments to interest expense (in millions):

Elimination of Interest Expense

	Interest Expense	Amo	rtization	Т	otal
Revolving credit facility (1)	\$	\$	3	\$	3
Tranche A Term Loan (2)	4		1		5
Tranche B Term Loan (3)	27		4		31
8-year Senior Notes (4)	11		1		12
10-year Senior Notes (5)	11		1		12
	\$ 53	\$	10	\$	63

- (1) Interest related to the revolving facility was not significant during the period. Reflects amortization related to \$31 million in debt issuance costs over the 60 month facility.
- (2) Reflects interest related to outstanding loan balances of \$250 million from March 31 through May 16, \$258 million from May 17 through June 21, \$237 million from June 22 through June 28 and \$222 million from June 29 through September 30. The average interest rate over the period was 3.4%. Reflects amortization related to \$7 million in debt issuance costs and \$1 million of OID over the 60 month term.
- (3) Reflects interest related to outstanding loan balances of \$2.25 billion from March 31 through May 16, \$950 million from May 17 through June 21, \$871 million from June 22 through June 28 and \$812 million from June 29 through September 30. The average interest rate over the period was 4.4%. Reflects amortization related to \$49 million in debt issuance costs and \$2 million of OID over the 72 month loan term.

- (4) Reflects interest related to outstanding loan balance of \$500 million from May 17 through September 30 at 5.875%. Amortization related to \$10 million in debt issuance costs over the 96 month term was not significant during the period.
- (5) Reflects interest related to outstanding loan balance of \$500 million from May 17 through September 30 at 6.125%. Amortization related to \$10 million in debt issuance costs over the 120 month term was not significant during the period.

(b) Income tax benefit related to the Pro Forma Adjustments for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and the year ended December 31, 2010 is \$9 million and \$41 million, respectively, based on applying the U.S. statutory tax rate of 35% to the Pro Forma Adjustments.

IPO Adjustments

(c) Reflects issuance of 328,244,510 ordinary shares in exchange for Delphi Automotive LLP membership interests immediately prior to the completion of this offering.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Unaudited)

	Delphi Automotive LLP		, 2011 Automotive PLC		
	Historical	IPO Adjustments (in millions)	Pro For	ma	
ASSETS		(III IIIIII0II3)			
Current assets:					
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 1,386	\$ (33)(d)	\$ 1	1,347	
·		(1)(e)			
		(2)(f)			
		(3)(g)			
Restricted cash	10			10	
Accounts receivable	2,644			2,644	
Inventories	1,146		1	1,146	
Other current assets	621	(2)(f)		619	
Total current assets	5,807	(41)	5	5,766	
Long-term assets:					
Property, net	2,185		2	2,185	
Investments in affiliates	259			259	
Intangible assets, net	623			623	
Other long-term assets	444			444	
Total long-term assets	3,511		3	3,511	
Total assets	\$ 9,318	\$ (41)	\$ 9	9,277	
LIABILITIES AND OWNERS EQUITY					
Current liabilities:					
Short-term debt	\$ 122	\$	\$	122	
Accounts payable	2,385			2,385	
Accrued liabilities	1,374	(3)(g)	1	1,371	
Total current liabilities Long-term liabilities:	3,881	(3)	3	3,878	
Other long-term debt	2,051		2	2,051	
Pension and other postretirement benefit obligations	683			683	
Other long-term liabilities	605			605	
Total long-term liabilities	3,339		3	3,339	
Total liabilities	7,220	(3)	7	7,217	
Dre IDO environe equity					
Pre-IPO owners equity	\$ 1,706	(1.704)(a)	¢		
Membership interests Accumulated other comprehensive loss:	\$ 1,706	\$ (1,706)(a)	\$		
Employee benefit plans	59	(59)			
Other	(129)	129			
	(127)	12/			

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Total accumulated other comprehensive income	(70)	70	
Total owners equity before noncontrolling interest	1.636	(1,636)	
Noncontrolling interests	462	(462)	
Total Pre-IPO owners equity	2,098	(2,098)	
Post-IPO owners equity			
Preferred shares, \$0.01 par value per share, 50,000,000 shares authorized, 0 issued and outstanding	\$	\$	\$
Ordinary shares, \$0.01 par value per share, 1,200,000,000 shares authorized, 328,244,510 issued and outstanding		3(b)	3
Additional paid-in capital		8(c)	1,710
		1,703(b)	
		(1)(e)	
Retained earnings (deficit)		(8)(c)	(45)
		(33)(d)	
		(4)(f)	
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:			
Employee benefit plans		59	59
Other		(129)	(129)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income		(70)	(70)
Total shareholders equity before noncontrolling interest		1,598	1,598
Noncontrolling interests		462	462
gg			
Total Post-IPO shareholders equity	\$	\$ 2,060	\$ 2,060
Total liabilities and shareholders equity	\$ 9,318	\$ (41)	\$ 9,277

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

IPO Adjustments

(a) Represents elimination of pre-IPO members equity to reflect transaction pursuant to which Delphi Automotive PLC becomes the owner of Delphi Automotive LLP.

(b) Represents establishment of shareholders equity as a result of the transaction pursuant to which Delphi Automotive PLC becomes the owner of Delphi Automotive LLP.

(c) Represents accelerated vesting of the Class E-1 membership interests in connection with this offering. The unvested membership interests will fully vest in the event of a completed initial public offering if the resulting total equity valuation of the Company (based on the average closing price of our shares during the 15-day period beginning on the 30th day after the closing of this offering), plus the value of prior distributions made under the Limited Liability Partnership Agreement of Delphi Automotive LLP (as amended and restated, the LLP Agreement) to holders of membership interests (as well as the \$4.4 billion paid to repurchase Class A and C membership interests, any Class B membership interest repurchased, any additional distributions to Class B and E-1 membership interest holders and any amounts distributed or paid to holders of Class E-1 membership interests with respect to or to repurchase their Class E-1 membership interests), is at least \$6 billion.

The fair value of the Class E-1 membership interests was estimated to be \$19 million at the June 2010 grant date. The compensation expense related to the Class E-1 membership interests is recognized over the requisite service period on a straight-line basis with the amount of compensation cost recognized at any date equaling the portion of the grant-date value of the award that is vested at that date. Absent accelerated vesting, the Class E-1 membership interests are subject to continued service through the vesting dates as follows:

20% on November 1, 2010
40% on November 1, 2011
40% on November 1, 2012

The grant date fair value of \$19 million is recognized as compensation expense over the vesting schedule as follows:

	Vesting Period	# of Months in Vesting Period	Aw	nitial ard in Illions		Vesting Rate		-	ost in illions
November 1, 2010		4	\$	19.0	х	20%	=	\$	3.8
November 1, 2011		12	\$	19.0	х	40%	=	\$	7.6
November 1, 2012		12	\$	19.0	х	40%	=	\$	7.6

Based on the vesting schedule through September 30, 2011, approximately \$10.8 million of compensation expense has been recognized, which represents the first 12 months of vesting (\$3.8 million as of November 1, 2010 plus \$7 million for the period from November 1, 2010 through September 30, 2011 (eleven months of the vesting period ending November 1, 2011). Accordingly, at September 30, 2011, there was \$8 million

(d) Represents \$33 million of underwriters commissions to be paid by Delphi Automotive PLC (as the selling shareholders will not pay any underwriting discount on certain of the shares sold by them).

(e) Represents \$1 million paid in cash to retire a portion of the membership interests of certain members in lieu of their participation in this offering based on the terms and conditions of the Fourth LLP Agreement.

of unrecognized compensation expense.

100%

\$

19.0

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

(f) Represents estimated expenses of \$4 million related to this offering. As of September 30, 2011 approximately \$2 million of this total estimate has been paid.

(g) Represents \$3 million of IPO incentive awards payable to all current members of the Board of Managers upon the completion of this offering.

DILUTION

Our net tangible book value as of September 30, 2011 was \$1,475,000,000 or \$4.49 per ordinary share. Net tangible book value per share is determined by dividing our tangible net worth (which is equal to our total tangible assets of \$8,695,000,000 (which excludes \$623,000,000 of intangible assets) less total liabilities of \$7,220,000,000, calculated assuming we have acquired Delphi Automotive LLP), by the aggregate number of ordinary shares outstanding immediately prior to the offering but after giving effect to the issuance of our shares to existing holders of Delphi Automotive LLP membership interests. After giving effect to the sale of the ordinary shares in this offering by the selling shareholders, at the initial public offering price set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, our pro forma net tangible book value at September 30, 2011 would have been \$1,437,000,000 or \$4.38 per share. This represents an immediate decrease in pro forma net tangible book value to existing shareholders of \$0.11 per share and an immediate dilution to new investors of \$17.62 per share. The following table illustrates this per share dilution:

Initial public offering price	\$ 22.00
Net tangible book value per share as of September 30, 2011	4.49
Decrease in net tangible book value per share attributable to new investors(1)	(0.11)
Pro forma net tangible book value per share after offering	4.38
Dilution per share to new investors	\$ 17.62

(1) Decrease attributable to payment by us of commissions to the underwriters in respect of ordinary shares sold by the selling shareholders as well as estimated offering expenses.

Dilution is determined by subtracting pro forma net tangible book value per share after the offering from the initial public offering price per share.

The following table sets forth, on a pro forma basis, as of September 30, 2011, the number of ordinary shares purchased from us, the total consideration paid, or to be paid, and the average price per share paid, or to be paid, by existing shareholders and by the new investors, at the initial public offering price set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, before deducting underwriting commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us:

	Shares Purc	hased	Total Conside	Average Price		
	Number	Percent	Amount	Percent	Per Share	
Existing shareholders(1)	304,165,683	92.7%	\$ 203,101,424	27.7%	0.67	
New investors	24,078,827	7.3	529,734,194	72.3	22.00	
Total	328,244,510	100%	\$ 732,835,618	100%		

(1) Reflects the cash consideration paid by the initial equityholders of Delphi Automotive LLP in connection with its formation in 2009 (other than holders whose equity was repurchased in March 2011).

Sales by the selling shareholders in this offering will reduce the number of shares held by existing shareholders to 300,553,859 shares, or approximately 91.6% of shares outstanding, if the underwriters option is exercised in full and will increase the number of shares to be purchased by new investors to 27,690,651 shares, or approximately 8.4% of shares outstanding, if the underwriters option is exercised in full of the total ordinary shares outstanding after the offering.

The foregoing tables assume no exercise of the underwriters option to purchase additional shares and no issuance of any shares pursuant to the Value Creation Plan described under Executive Compensation. Based on the initial public offering price set forth on the front cover of this prospectus and assuming that value is maintained on December 31, 2012, 8,589,445 shares would be issuable under the Value Creation Plan, assuming settlement in shares. At September 30, 2011, no options to purchase ordinary shares were outstanding. To the extent shares are issued under the Value Creation Plan, there will be further dilution to new investors.

SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

Delphi Automotive PLC was formed on May 19, 2011, has nominal assets and no liabilities and will conduct no operations prior to the completion of this offering. Accordingly, the following presents historical financial information for Delphi Automotive LLP, which will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi Automotive PLC immediately prior to completion of this offering.

The following selected consolidated financial data of the Successor and the Predecessor have been derived from the audited and unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Successor and the Predecessor and should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified by reference to, Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this prospectus.

	Successor Nine months Period							Predecessor(1)									
	(ended September 30,			from August 19 Year ended to					iod from uary 1 to					oer 3	1,	
		2011 (dollars a	nd s	2010 shares in 1	December 2010		1, December 31, 2009 pt per share		October 6, 2009			2008		2007		2006	
		`			ata)	, 1	•		(dollars in millions, except per share data)								
Statements of operations data:																	
Net sales	\$	12,141	\$	10,165	\$	13,817	\$	3,421	\$	8,334	\$	16,808	\$	19,526	\$	19,329	
Depreciation and amortization		356		311		421		139		540		822		871		883	
Operating income (loss)		1,233		827		940		(10)		(1,118)		(1,425)		(1,557)		(4,040)	
Interest expense		(84)		(22)		(30)		(8)				(434)		(764)		(423)	
Reorganization items, net						- 0 -				10,210		5,147		(163)		(92)	
Income (loss) from continuing operations		911		612		703		(3)		9,391		3,163		(1,855)		(4,598)	
Net income (loss)		911		612		703		(3)		9,347		3,066		(2,997)		(5,427)	
Net income attributable to noncontrolling												• •					
interests		56		56		72		15		29		29		68		37	
Net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor		855		556		631		(18)		9,318		3,037		(3,065)		(5,464)	
Net income (loss) per membership interests unit and per share data: (actual)																	
Class A net income (loss) per membership																	
interests unit	\$	43.50	\$	55.58	\$	65.35	\$	(1.80)									
Class B net income (loss) per membership																	
interests unit		2,119.04		1,019.02		1,156.98		(33.00)									
Class C net income (loss) per membership								, í									
interests unit		253.78		972.58		1,064.88		(31.50)									
Class E-1 net income per membership																	
interests unit		125.31															
Income (loss) per share from continuing																	
operations attributable to Predecessor									\$	16.58	\$	5.55	\$	(3.41)	\$	(8.25)	
Loss per share from discontinued																	
operations attributable to Predecessor										(0.08)		(0.17)		(2.04)		(1.49)	
Income per share from cumulative effect of																	
accounting change attributable to Predecessor																0.01	
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share attributable to Predecessor									\$	16.50	\$	5.38	\$	(5.45)	\$	(9.73)	
Per share data: (pro forma)(2)																	
Income (loss) from continuing operations																	
attributable to Successor	\$	838			\$	556											

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Income (loss) per share attributable to			
Successor			
Basic and diluted	2.55	1.69	
Weighted average shares outstanding	328	328	

		S	uccesso	or	Predecessor(1)							
	ended Septe	Nine months ended September 30,			t Decem 20	om 1st 19 0 ber 31, 09	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 (dollars in	Year e 2008 millions, e	ber 31, 2006 are data)			
Other financial data:												
Capital expenditures	\$ 454	\$ 281	\$	500	\$	88	\$ 321	\$ 771	\$ 577	\$ 560		
EBITDA(3)	1,589	1,138		1,361		129	(514)	(211)	(384)	(3,214)		
Adjusted EBITDA(3)	1,609	1,291		1,633		313	(229)	269	731	(114)		
EBITDA margin(4)	13.1%	11.2%		9.9%		3.8%	(6.2%)	(1.3%)	(2.0%)	(16.6%)		
Adjusted EBITDA margin(4)	13.3%	12.7%		11.8%		9.1%	(2.7%)	1.6%	3.7%	(0.6%)		
Net cash provided by (used in) operating										. ,		
activities	909	855		1,142		159	(257)	455	(98)	9		
Net cash provided by (used in) investing				,			. ,		~ /			
activities	175	(148)		(911)		885	(1,052)	(958)	(530)	(554)		
Net cash provided by (used in) financing		. ,		. /				. /				
activities	(2,908)	(117)		(126)		2,062	315	465	(58)	(122)		

	As of September 30 2011		Successor As of 30, December 31, 2010			As of December 31, 2009		As of December 31 2008		edecessor(1) As of cember 31, 2007	,	As of ember 31, 2006	
			(dolla	rs in millio	ons)		(dollars in millions)						
Balance sheet and employment data:													
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	1,386	\$	3,219	\$	3,107	\$	959	\$	1,036	\$	1,608	
Total assets	\$	9,318	\$	11,082	\$	10,307	\$	10,306	\$	13,667	\$	15,392	
Total debt	\$	2,173	\$	289	\$	396	\$	4,229	\$	3,554	\$	3,340	
Working capital(5)	\$	1,405	\$	1,059	\$	1,217	\$	1,838	\$	2,772	\$	3,446	
Liabilities subject to compromise	\$		\$		\$		\$	14,583	\$	16,197	\$	17,416	
Stockholders deficit		N/A		N/A		N/A	\$	(14,266)	\$	(13,284)	\$	(12,055)	
Owners equity (deficit)	\$	2,098	\$	6,099	\$	5,366		N/A		N/A		N/A	
Global employees(6)	1	02,000		99,700		104,800		146,600		169,500		171,400	

- (1) The Predecessor adopted the accounting guidance in FASB ASC 852, *Reorganizations*, effective October 8, 2005 and has segregated in the financial statements for all reporting periods subsequent to such date and through the consummation of the transactions pursuant to the Modified Plan (as defined in Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein), transactions and events that were directly associated with the reorganization from the ongoing operations of the business. Our consolidated financial statements are not comparable to the consolidated financial statements of the Predecessor due to the effects of the consummation of the Modified Plan and the change in the basis of presentation. For more information, please refer to Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
- (2) Reflects issuance of 328,244,510 ordinary shares in exchange for Delphi Automotive LLP membership interests immediately prior to the completion of this offering.
- (3) Our management utilizes EBITDA to evaluate performance. EBITDA was used as a performance indicator for the nine months ended September 30, 2011.

Through December 31, 2010, our management relied on Adjusted EBITDA as a key performance measure. Our management believed that Adjusted EBITDA was a meaningful measure of performance and it was used by management and the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP to analyze Company and stand-alone segment operating performance and for planning and forecasting purposes. Effective January 1, 2011, our management began utilizing EBITDA as a key performance measure because our restructuring was substantially completed in 2010. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered substitutes for results prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and should not be

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

considered alternatives to net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor, which is the most directly comparable financial measure to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA that is in accordance with U.S. GAAP. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, as determined and measured by us, should also not be compared to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

In the nine months ended September 30, 2011, we reached a final customer commercial settlement that resulted in an unusual warranty expense of \$76 million. This amount adversely affected EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA in such period.

The reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to EBITDA includes other transformation and rationalization costs related to 1) the implementation of information technology systems to support finance, manufacturing and product development initiatives, 2) certain plant consolidations and closures costs and 3) consolidation of many staff administrative functions into a global business service group. The reconciliation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor follows:

		Successor							Predecessor(1)								
							Period from Lugust 19 ecember 31,	Jan Oc	iod from uary 1 to tober 6,								
		2011	2	010	2010			2009		2009		2008	2007		2006		
						millions)					· ·		n millions)				
Adjusted EBITDA	\$	1,609	1	1,291	\$	1,633	\$	313	\$	(229)	\$	269	\$ 731	\$	(114)		
Transformation and rationalization charges:																	
Employee termination benefits and other exit costs		(20)		(124)		(224)		(126)		(235)		(326)	(301)		(242)		
Other transformation and rationalization		, í						, í									
costs				(29)		(48)		(58)		(50)		(154)	(814)		(2,858)		
EBITDA	\$	1,589	\$ 1	1,138	\$	1,361	\$	129	\$	(514)	\$	(211)	\$ (384)	\$	(3,214)		
Depreciation and amortization		(356)		(311)		(421)		(139)		(540)		(822)	(871)		(883)		
Goodwill impairment charges		(223)		(===)		()		()		(2.10)		(325)	(0.2)		(000)		
Discontinued operations										(64)		(67)	(302)		57		
												, í	. ,				
Operating income (loss)	\$	1,233	\$	827	\$	940	\$	(10)	\$	(1,118)	\$ (1,425)	\$ (1,557)	\$	(4,040)		
Interest expense		(84)		(22)		(30)		(8)				(434)	(764)		(423)		
Other income (expense), net		13		7		34		(17)		24		9	47		39		
Reorganization items										10,210		5,147	(163)		(92)		
C													. ,		. ,		
Income from continuing operations before																	
income taxes and equity income		1,162		812		944		(35)		9,116		3,297	(2,437)		(4,516)		
Income tax (expense) benefit		(276)		(209)		(258)		27		311		(163)	547		(115)		
Equity income (loss), net of tax		25		9		17		5		(36)		29	35		33		
Loss from discontinued operations, net of																	
tax										(44)		(97)	(1,142)		(835)		
Net income (loss)	\$	911	\$	612	\$	703	\$	(3)	\$	9,347	\$	3,066	\$ (2,997)	\$	(5,433)		
Net income attributable to noncontrolling										•		•	60				
interest		56		56		72		15		29		29	68		34		
Cumulative effect of accounting change,															2		
net of tax															3		
Net income attributable to	٠	077	¢		¢	(01	٠	(10)	ф	0.210	¢	2.027	¢ (2.045)	¢	(F 4 (1)		
Successor/Predecessor	\$	855	\$	556	\$	631	\$	(18)	\$	9,318	\$	3,037	\$ (3,065)	\$	(5,464)		

(4) EBITDA margin is defined as EBITDA as a percentage of revenues. Adjusted EBITDA margin is defined as Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of revenues.

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

- (5) Working capital is calculated herein as accounts receivable plus inventories less accounts payable.
- (6) Excludes temporary and contract workers. As of September 30, 2011, we employed approximately 40,000 temporary and contract workers.

MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following management s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations (MD&A) is intended to help you understand our business operations and financial condition.

Overview

We are a leading global vehicle components manufacturer and provide electrical and electronic, powertrain, safety and thermal technology solutions to the global automotive and commercial vehicle markets. We are one of the largest vehicle component manufacturers and our customers include the 25 largest automotive OEMs in the world.

Within the MD&A, for the periods from August 19, 2009 to December 31, 2009, the year ended December 31, 2010 and the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, references to Delphi, the Company, the Successor, we, us or our refer to Delphi Automotive LLP and subsidiaries. For the year ended December 31, 2008 and for the period from January 1, 2009 to October 6, 2009, references to the Predecessor refer to the former Delphi Corporation.

On August 19, 2009, Delphi Automotive LLP, a limited liability partnership organized under the laws of England and Wales, was formed for the purpose of acquiring certain assets and subsidiaries of the former Delphi Corporation, our Predecessor, which, along with certain of its U.S. subsidiaries, had filed voluntary petitions for bankruptcy in October 2005. On October 6, 2009, Delphi Automotive LLP acquired the major portion of the business of the Predecessor, other than the global steering business, the U.S. manufacturing facilities in which the hourly employees were represented by the UAW and certain non-productive U.S. assets, and Delphi Automotive LLP issued membership interests to a group of investors consisting of lenders to the Predecessor, GM and the PBGC. For additional information see Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Business to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein.

Our improved total net sales during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the same periods of 2010 reflect the impacts of increased OEM production volumes as well as the level of our content per unit, and, to a lesser extent, the impacts of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. Although global OEM production volumes increased 4% and 3%, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 versus 2010, excluding production decreases from Japan and Japanese OEM production in North America of almost 18% resulting from the Japan earthquake and tsunami, global OEM production volumes increased 6% and 8%, respectively, for the three and nine month periods of 2011 as compared to 2010. As further described below, we did not experience any significant adverse impacts resulting from the Japan earthquake and tsunami, particularly given that the Japanese OEMs are not among our principal customers. To the extent that the Japanese OEMs grow faster than others as they make up for lost production volumes continue to indicate a stabilization of the global economy. However, current OEM production volumes in North America and Western Europe continue to be substantially less than OEM production volumes prior to the disruptions in the economic and credit markets experienced in 2008 and 2009. As a result of the significant restructuring actions implemented by the Predecessor and continued by us in 2010, our reduced cost structure is enabling us to translate the total net sales growth achieved in the first nine months of 2011 into strong gross margin and improved operating earnings. While we continue to operate in a cyclical industry that is impacted by movements in the macro economy, our strong balance sheet coupled with our reduced cost structure position us to capitalize on further strengthening of the global economy and continued improvements in OEM production volumes.

Significant issues affected the Predecessor s financial performance in 2008 and 2009, including a depressed global vehicle production environment for OEMs, pricing pressures and increasingly volatile commodity prices. In addition, the Predecessor was adversely impacted by U.S. labor legacy liabilities, which included

noncompetitive wage and benefit levels and restrictive collectively-bargained labor agreement provisions which historically have inhibited the Predecessor s responsiveness to market conditions, including exiting non-strategic, non-profitable operations or flexing the size of the unionized workforce when volume decreases. Although the 2006 UAW and International Union of Electronic, Electrical, Salaried, Machine and Furniture Workers-Communication Workers of America (IUE-CWA) U.S. employee workforce transition programs and the U.S. labor settlement agreements entered into in 2007, together with the effectiveness of the Amended GSA and the Amended MRA (both as defined and further discussed in Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein), allowed the Predecessor to begin reducing its legacy labor liabilities, transitioning its workforce to more competitive wage and benefit levels and exiting non-core product lines, these benefits were more than offset by the reductions in vehicle production. Also, during 2008 and 2009, the Predecessor s operational challenges intensified as a result of the continued downturn in general economic conditions, including reduced consumer spending and confidence, high oil prices and the credit market crisis, all of which resulted in global vehicle manufacturers reducing production and taking other restructuring actions.

We benefited from the restructuring initiatives implemented throughout the last several years and in particular, in 2009 from the restructuring of the business that took place through the acquisition of the Predecessor's global steering business and the UAW manufacturing facilities by GM, together with its subsidiaries and affiliates, in the U.S. as of the Acquisition Date, as defined and further discussed below. In addition, we benefited from the increase in OEM production volumes in the fourth quarter of 2009. Our results of operations are the result of the improvement in the cost structure and the operating leverage we can now employ with improvements in OEM production volumes versus the Predecessor. While production volume levels did improve in 2010 as compared to the production volume levels experienced in 2009, we may continue to face challenges, with production volumes globally still significantly lower than 2007 due to the lingering effects from the disruptions in the economy and credit markets in 2008 and 2009 and volatile commodity prices. Additionally, as a result of the Acquisition (as defined below), beginning in 2010, we incurred and expect to incur incremental, annual non-cash amortization charges of approximately \$70 million related to the recognition of acquired intangible assets.

We typically experience fluctuations in revenue due to changes in OEM production schedules, vehicle sales mix and the net of new and lost business (which we refer to collectively as volume), increased prices attributable to escalation clauses in our supply contracts for recovery of increased commodity costs (which we refer to as commodity pass-through), fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates (which we refer to as FX), contractual reductions of the sales price to the OEM (which we refer to as contractual price reductions) and engineering changes. Changes in sales mix can have either favorable or unfavorable impact on revenue. Such changes can be the result of shifts in regional growth, shifts in OEM sales demand, as well as shifts in consumer demand related to vehicle segment purchases and content penetration. For instance, a shift in sales demand favoring a particular OEM s vehicle model for which we do not have a supply contract may negatively impact our revenue. A shift in regional sales demand toward certain markets could favorably impact the sales of those of our customers that have a large market share in those regions, which in turn would be expected to have a favorable impact on our revenue.

We typically experience (as described below) fluctuations in operating income due to:

Volume, net of contractual price reductions changes in volume offset by contractual price reductions (which typically range from 1% to 3% of net sales);

Operational performance changes to costs for materials and commodities or manufacturing variances; and

Other including restructuring costs and any remaining variances not included in Volume, net of contractual price reductions or Operational performance.

We expect commodity cost volatility, particularly related to copper, aluminum and petroleum-based resin products, to have a continual impact on future earnings and/or operating cash flows. As such, we continually seek to mitigate our material-related cost exposures using a number of approaches, including combining purchase requirements with customers and/or other suppliers, using alternate suppliers or product designs, negotiating commodity cost contract escalation clauses into our vehicle manufacturer supply contracts, and hedging.

Trends, Uncertainties and Opportunities

Japan earthquake and tsunami. Our operations in Japan, which include primarily leased office space, suffered minor damage and interruption as a result of the earthquake and tsunami on March 11, 2011. Although we have no production facilities in Japan, we and our suppliers do obtain material and components from suppliers located in Japan. By the end of the third quarter of 2011, our suppliers as well as the Japanese OEMs that were affected by the earthquake and tsunami in Japan had returned to normal or near normal production levels. During the periods of disruption, we were able to obtain key components from alternate suppliers, and did not experience any material adverse impacts as a result of the earthquake and tsunami.

Rate of economic recovery. Our business is directly related to automotive sales and automotive vehicle production by our customers. Automotive sales depend on a number of factors, including economic conditions. The economy is recovering slowly from a recession that began in late 2007 and became increasingly severe with the global credit crisis in 2008 and 2009. The weaker economic conditions led to a substantial industry-wide decline in vehicle sales in 2008 and 2009. However, global automotive vehicle production increased over 20% from 2009 to 2010 and is expected to increase by an additional 3 to 4% in 2011. Any future economic declines that result in a significant reduction in automotive sales and production by our customers would have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Additionally, volatility in oil and gasoline prices negatively impacts consumer confidence and automotive sales, and the mix of future sales (from trucks and sport utility vehicles toward smaller, fuel-efficient passenger cars). While our diversified customer and geographic revenue base have well positioned us to withstand the impact of industry downturns and benefit from industry upturns, shifts to vehicles with less content would adversely impact our profitability.

Emerging markets growth. Rising income levels in the emerging markets of China, Brazil, India and Russia are resulting in stronger growth rates in these markets. Our strong global presence and presence in these markets have positioned us to experience above-market growth rates. We continue to expand our established presence in emerging markets, positioning us to benefit from the expected growth opportunities in these regions. We will accomplish this by capitalizing on our long-standing relationships with the global OEMs and further enhancing our positions with the emerging market OEMs to continue expanding our worldwide leadership. We will continue to build upon our extensive geographic reach to capitalize on the fast-growing automotive markets, particularly China, Brazil, India and Russia. We believe that our presence in low cost countries positions us to realize incremental margin improvements as the global balance of automotive production shifts towards the emerging markets.

We have a strong presence in China, where we have operated for nearly 20 years. All of our business segments have operations and sales in China. As a result, we have well-established relationships with all of the major OEMs in China. We generated approximately \$1.8 billion in revenue from China in 2010. With only 21 of our 33 offered products currently locally manufactured, we believe we have the opportunity to expand additional product lines into China, and as a result, we see further growth potential.

Market driven products. Our product offerings satisfy the OEMs need to meet increasingly stringent government regulations and fulfill consumer preferences for products that address the mega trends of Safe, Green and Connected, leading to increased content per vehicle, greater profitability and higher margins. With these offerings, we are well-positioned to capitalize on demand for increased safety, fuel efficiency, emissions control and connectivity to the global information network. There has been a substantial increase in vehicle content and electrification requiring a complex and reliable electrical architecture and systems to operate, such as hybrid power electronics, electrical vehicle monitoring, lane departure warning systems, integrated electronic displays, navigation systems and consumer electronics. Our ability to design a reliable electrical architecture that optimizes power

distribution and/or consumption is key to satisfying the OEMs need to reduce emissions while continuing to meet the demands of consumers. Additionally, our Powertrain Systems and Thermal Systems segments are also focused on addressing the demand for increased fuel efficiency and emission control by controlling fuel consumption and heat dissipation, which are principal factors influencing fuel efficiency and emissions.

Global capabilities. Many OEMs are adopting global vehicle platforms to increase standardization, reduce per unit cost and increase capital efficiency and profitability. As a result, OEMs are selecting suppliers that have the capability to manufacture products on a worldwide basis as well as the flexibility to adapt to regional variations. Suppliers with global scale and strong design, engineering and manufacturing capabilities, are best positioned to benefit from this trend. Our global footprint enables us to serve the global OEMs on a worldwide basis along with gaining market share with the emerging market OEMs. This regional model has largely migrated to service the North American market out of Mexico, the South American market out of Brazil, the European market out of Eastern Europe and North Africa and the Asia Pacific market out of China.

Product development. The automotive component supply industry is highly competitive, both domestically and internationally. Our ability to anticipate changes in technology and regulatory standards and to successfully develop and introduce new and enhanced products on a timely basis will be a significant factor in our ability to remain competitive. To compete effectively in the automotive supply industry, we must be able to launch new products to meet our customers demands in a timely manner. Our innovative technologies and robust global engineering and development capabilities have well positioned us to meet the increasingly stringent vehicle manufacturer demands.

OEMs are increasingly looking to their suppliers to simplify vehicle design and assembly processes to reduce costs. As a result, suppliers that sell vehicle components directly to manufacturers (Tier I suppliers) have assumed many of the design, engineering, research and development and assembly functions traditionally performed by vehicle manufacturers. Suppliers that can provide fully-engineered solutions, systems and pre-assembled combinations of component parts are positioned to leverage the trend toward system sourcing.

Engineering, design & development. Our history and culture of innovation have enabled us to develop significant intellectual property and design and development expertise to provide advanced technology solutions that meet the demands of our customers. We have a team of more than 16,000 scientists, engineers and technicians focused on developing leading product solutions for our key markets, located at 15 major technical centers in Brazil, China, France, Germany, India, Luxembourg, Mexico, Poland, South Korea, the United Kingdom and the United States. We invest approximately \$1 billion annually in engineering to maintain our portfolio of innovative products, and currently own approximately 6,000 patents. We also encourage open innovation and collaborate extensively with peers in the industry, government agencies and academic institutions. Our technology competencies are recognized by both customers and government agencies, who have co-invested approximately \$300 million of additional funds annually in new product development, increasing our total spend accordingly, accelerating the pace of innovation and reducing the risk associated with successful commercialization of technological breakthroughs.

In the past, suppliers often incurred the initial cost of engineering, designing and developing automotive component parts, and recovered their investments over time by including a cost recovery component in the price of each part based on expected volumes. Recently, we and many other suppliers have negotiated for cost recovery payments independent of volumes. This trend reduces our economic risk.

Pricing. Cost-cutting initiatives adopted by our customers result in increased downward pressure on pricing. Our customer supply agreements generally require step-downs in component pricing over the periods of production and OEMs have historically possessed significant leverage over their outside suppliers because the automotive component supply industry is fragmented and serves a limited number of automotive OEMs. Our profitability depends in part on our ability to generate sufficient production cost savings in the future to offset price reductions.



In 2010, we largely completed our restructuring activities, resulting in a lower fixed cost base, improved manufacturing footprint and reduced overhead. We dramatically reduced our U.S. and Western European footprints, realigned our selling, general and administrative cost structure and increased the variable nature of our employee base. As a result, 91% of our hourly workforce is located in low cost countries. Furthermore, we have substantial operational flexibility by leveraging a large workforce of temporary workers, which represented approximately 30% of the hourly workforce as of September 30, 2011. We are focused on maintaining a low fixed cost base to minimize our net income before depreciation and amortization (including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment), interest expense, other income (expense), net, income tax expense and equity income, net of tax (EBITDA) breakeven, which we estimate to be approximately 30% below the current production volumes, assuming constant product mix and based on 2010 results. We believe that our lean cost structure will allow us to remain profitable at all points of the traditional vehicle industry production cycle.

Efficient use of capital. The global vehicle components industry is generally capital intensive and a portion of a supplier s capital equipment is frequently utilized for specific customer programs. Lead times for procurement of capital equipment are long and typically exceed start of production by one to two years. Substantial advantages exist for suppliers that can leverage their prior investments in capital equipment or amortize the investment over higher volume global customer programs.

Industry consolidation. Consolidation among worldwide suppliers is expected to continue as suppliers seek to achieve operating synergies and value stream efficiencies, acquire complementary technologies, and build stronger customer relationships as OEMs continue to expand globally. We believe companies with strong balance sheets and financial discipline are in the best position to take advantage of the industry consolidation trend. We have a strong balance sheet with gross debt of approximately \$2.2 billion and substantial liquidity of approximately \$2.7 billion of cash and cash equivalents and available financing under our Revolving Credit Facility (as defined in Liquidity and Capital Resources below) as of September 30, 2011, and no significant U.S. defined benefit or OPEB liabilities. We intend to maintain strong financial discipline targeting industry-leading earnings growth, cash flow generation and return on invested capital and to maintain sufficient liquidity to sustain our financial flexibility throughout the industry cycle.

Disposition of the Predecessor and Acquisition Accounting

On October 6, 2009 (the Acquisition Date), the Predecessor (i) consummated the transactions contemplated by the Modified Plan (as defined in Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein) and (ii) exited chapter 11 as DPH Holdings Corp. and its subsidiaries and affiliates (DPHH), except that two of the Predecessor s debtor subsidiaries became subsidiaries of Delphi Automotive LLP. A summary of significant terms of the Modified Plan follows:

We acquired the businesses (other than the global steering business and the manufacturing facilities in the U.S. at which the hourly employees are represented by the UAW of the Predecessor pursuant to the master disposition agreement (including all schedules and exhibits thereto, the MDA), and received \$1,833 million from GM, of which \$1,689 million was received on the Acquisition Date and \$144 million was received during the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009, and \$209 million, net from certain of the debtor-in-possession (DIP) lenders to the Predecessor (collectively, the Acquisition).

GM acquired substantially all of the Predecessor s global steering business and the manufacturing facilities in the U.S. at which the hourly employees were represented by the UAW.

The Predecessor s debtor-in-possession financing was settled.

The Predecessor s liabilities subject to compromise were extinguished.

If cumulative distributions to the members of Delphi Automotive LLP under certain provisions of our limited liability partnership agreement exceed \$7.2 billion, we, as disbursing agent on behalf of DPHH, are required to pay to the holders of allowed general unsecured claims against the Predecessor, \$32.50 for every \$67.50 in excess of \$7.2 billion distributed to the members, up to a maximum of \$300 million.

The Predecessor s equity holders did not receive recoveries on their claims.

As a result of the Acquisition, we acquired the major portion of the business of the Predecessor and this business constituted the entirety of the operations of the Successor. Accordingly, as required under the applicable accounting guidance, the financial information set forth herein reflects the consolidated results of operations of the Successor for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the period from its incorporation on August 19, 2009 to December 31, 2009 and of the Predecessor for the period from January 1, 2009 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008. Delphi Automotive LLP had no material or substantive transactions from its organization on August 19, 2009 to the Acquisition Date.

In 2009, the Predecessor recognized a gain of approximately \$10.2 billion for reorganization items as a result of the process of reorganizing the Debtors (as defined and further discussed in Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein) under chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. This gain reflects the extinguishment of liabilities subject to compromise, OPEB settlement and the sale/ disposition of the Predecessor, offset by the PBGC termination of the U.S. pension plans and professional fees directly related to the reorganization.

We have recorded the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed from the Predecessor at estimated fair values in accordance with the guidance in FASB ASC 820, *Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures*. The fair values were estimated based on valuations performed by an independent valuation specialist utilizing three generally accepted business valuation approaches. For additional information see Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein.

In connection with the Acquisition, we did not acquire all of the assets or assume all of the liabilities of the Predecessor. As noted above, the assets we acquired and the liabilities we assumed from the Predecessor were generally recorded at fair value, resulting in a change from the Predecessor s basis. Accordingly, our consolidated financial statements are not comparable to the consolidated financial statements of the Predecessor due to the effects of the consummation of the Modified Plan. For these reasons, we do not generally present financial information on a combined basis for the Predecessor period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009 (Full Year 2009), except as noted below. We have compared consolidated net sales and EBITDA of the Successor for the year ended December 31, 2010 to the total net sales and net income before depreciation and amortization (including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment), interest expense, other income (expense), net, income tax expense, equity income, net of tax, transformation and rationalization charges related to plant consolidations, plant wind-downs and discontinued operations (Adjusted EBITDA) for the Full Year 2009, and the Full Year 2009 net sales and EBITDA to net sales and EBITDA of the Predecessor for the year ended December 31, 2008. We believe these comparisons are most meaningful and useful in providing a thorough understanding of the financial statements. Where applicable, Operations Not Acquired is included in the tables below explaining the variance attributable to the acquisition by GM on October 6, 2009 of the manufacturing facilities in the U.S. at which the hourly employees were represented by the UAW.

Consolidated Results of Operations

Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011 versus Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2010

Consolidated Results of Operations

The results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

		Th	ree month	s ended Sep	,			Nine months ended September 30, Favorable/							
		111		2010		Favorable			2011		2010			Favorable/ unfavorable) \$ 1,976 (1,607) 369 (63) (4) 104 406 (62) 6 350 (67) 283 16 299	
	2	2011		2010	`	nfavorab	le)		2011		2010		(ur	llavorable)	
			(doll	ars in millio	ns)					(dol	lars in mil				
Net sales	\$	3,931		\$ 3,309		\$ 622		\$	12,141		\$ 10,16		\$,	
Cost of sales		3,294		2,807		(487)		10,165		8,55	8		(1,607)	
Gross margin		637	16.2%	502	15.2%	135			1,976	16.3%	1,60	7 15.	8%	369	
Selling, general and															
administrative		222		207		(15)		667		60	4		(63)	
Amortization		19		21		2			56		5	2		(4)	
Restructuring		3		68		65			20		12	4		104	
Operating income		393		206		187			1,233		82	7		406	
Interest expense		(37)		(6)		(31)		(84)		(2	2)		(62)	
Other income, net		14		5		9			13			7		6	
Income before income taxes															
and equity income		370		205		165			1,162		81	2		350	
Income tax expense		(87)		(62)		(25)		(276)		(20	9)		(67)	
Income before equity income		283		143		140			886		60				
Equity income, net of tax		2		1		1			25			9		16	
Net income		285		144		141			911		61	2		299	
Net income attributable to															
noncontrolling interests		19		17		(2)		56		5	6			
Net income attributable to															
Delphi	\$	266		\$ 127		\$ 139		\$	855		\$ 55	6	\$	299	

Total Net Sales

Below is a summary of our total net sales for the three months ended September 30, 2011 versus September 30, 2010.

	Th	iree moi	nths e	ended Ser	otembe	r 30,					Varia	nce due	e to:			
				-				me, net of								
	20	011		2010		orable/ vorable)	р	ractual orice uctions]	FX	pa	modity ass- ough	0	ther	Т	fotal
			(in	millions)							(in	million	5)			
Total net sales	\$	3,931	\$	3,309	\$	622	\$	404	\$	163	\$	64	\$	(9)	\$	622

Total net sales for the three months ended September 30, 2011 increased 19% compared to the three months ended September 30, 2010. The increase in total net sales resulted primarily from increased volume as a result of improved OEM production schedules in 2011 as well as the

level of our content per unit, and to a lesser extent, the impacts of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations primarily related to the Euro.

Below is a summary of our total net sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 versus September 30, 2010.

	Nine mor	nths e	ended Sept	ember	30,			Varia	nce due t	0:	
						Volume, net of					
	2011		2010		vorable/ avorable)	contractual price reductions	FX	р	modity ass- ough	Other	Total
		(in	millions)					(in r	nillions)		
Total net sales	\$ 12,141	\$	10,165	\$	1,976	\$ 1,480	\$ 435	\$	199	\$ (138)	\$ 1,976

Total net sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 increased 19% compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2010. The increase in total net sales resulted primarily from increased volume as a result of improved OEM production schedules in 2011 as well as the level of our content per unit, and to a lesser extent, the impacts of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations primarily related to the Euro. Offsetting this increase was a decrease, included in other above, of \$119 million related to 2010 sales of divested business (primarily occupant protection systems business, which was sold March 31, 2010).

Operating Results

The information below summarizes the operating results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales is primarily comprised of material, labor, manufacturing overhead, freight, fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, product engineering, design and development expenses, depreciation and amortization, warranty costs and other operating expenses. Gross margin is revenue less cost of sales and gross margin percentage is gross margin as a percent of net sales. Cost of sales increased \$487 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2010, as summarized below.

	Three n 2011	onths ended Second	eptember 30, Favorable/ (unfavorable)	Volume ¹	Variance Operational performance	e due to: Other	Total
		(dollars in milli	ions)		(in mi	llions)	
Cost of sales	\$ 3,294	\$ 2,807	\$ (487)	\$ (308)	\$ 51	\$ (230)	\$ (487)
Gross margin	\$ 637	\$ 502	\$ 135	\$ 96	\$ 51	\$ (12)	\$ 135
Percentage of net sales	16.2%	15.2%					

¹ Presented net of contractual price reductions for gross margin variance.

The increase in cost of sales was driven by increases in volume and the following items in other above:

\$64 million of increased pass-through commodity costs, which were offset in sales through contract escalation clauses with our customers;

Increased depreciation of fixed assets, including tooling, of \$20 million; and

Approximately \$130 million due to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. These increases were partially offset by improved operational performance.

Cost of sales increased \$1,607 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2010, as summarized below.

	Nine m	onths ended Sep	otember 30,		Variance	due to:	
	2011	2010	Favorable/ (unfavorable)	Volume ¹	Operational performance	Other	Total
		(dollars in millio	ons)		(in milli	ons)	
Cost of sales	\$ 10,165	\$ 8,558	\$ (1,607)	\$ (1,070)	\$ 100	\$ (637)	\$ (1,607)
Gross margin	\$ 1,976	\$ 1,607	\$ 369	\$ 410	\$ 100	\$ (141)	\$ 369
Percentage of net sales	16.3%	15.8%					

¹ Presented net of contractual price reductions for gross margin variance.

The increase in cost of sales was driven by increases in volume and the following items in other above:

\$76 million due to increased warranty expense in 2011 as a result of the March settlement related to certain components supplied by our Powertrain segment;

\$199 million of increased pass-through commodity costs, which were offset in sales through contract escalation clauses with our customers;

Increased depreciation of fixed assets, including tooling, of \$40 million; and

Approximately \$370 million due to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. These increases were partially offset by improved operational performance as well as \$95 million related to divested businesses (primarily the occupant protection systems business on March 31, 2010).

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

		Three	months	ended Sep), rable/		Nine m	onths er	nded Sept	ember 30, Favor	
	2	011	2	2010		orable)	2	2011	2	010	(unfavor	
			(dolla	rs in millio	ns)				(dollars	in millio	ns)	
Selling, general and administrative												
expense	\$	222	\$	207	\$	(15)	\$	667	\$	604	\$	(63)
Percentage of net sales		5.6		6.3%				5.5%		5.9		

Selling, general and administrative expense (SG&A) includes administrative expenses, information technology costs and incentive compensation related costs, and declined as a percent of sales during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to 2010 due to maintaining administrative and information technology cost increases at or lower than the increasing rate of net sales. Increases in SG&A were largely attributable to foreign exchange effects and increased accruals for incentive compensation.

Amortization

		Three	months	ended Se	ptember 3	30,		Nine	months e	nded Sep	tember 30	,
	20	11	20)10		rable/ orable)	20	011	20	010	Favor (unfavo	
			(in	millions)				(in	millions)		
Amortization	\$	19	\$	21	\$	2	\$	56	\$	52	\$	(4)
Amontization armonas rafles	Amortization expanse reflects the new each charge related to definite lived interprible assets, primarily recognized as part of the Acquisition											

Amortization expense reflects the non-cash charge related to definite-lived intangible assets, primarily recognized as part of the Acquisition.

Restructuring

Three	months ended Se	eptember 30,	Nine 1	nonths ended Se	eptember 30,
		Favorable/			Favorable/
2011	2010	(unfavorable)	2011	2010	(unfavorable)

			(dolla	ars in millio	ns)				(dolla	ars in millio	ns)	
Restructuring	\$	3	\$	68	\$	65	\$	20	\$	124	\$	104
Percentage of net sales		0.1%		2.1%				0.2%		1.2%		
mi i · · · ·	• •	1 1'	•	1.0	1 .*	1	1 . 1		1	· .· .	c	

The decrease in restructuring expense is due to a decline in workforce reductions and programs related to the rationalization of manufacturing and engineering processes, including plant closures, in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010, as we had largely completed our significant restructuring programs by the end of 2010.

Refer to Note 7. Restructuring to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information.

Interest Expense

	T	hree n	nonths e	nded Se	ptember	30,		Nine	nonths e	nded Sep	otember 30),
	201	1	201	10		rable/ orable)	2	Favorabl 2011 2010 (unfavorab				
			(in r	nillions))				(in	millions)		
Interest expense	\$ 3	37	\$ 6 \$ (31)				\$	84	\$	22	\$	(62)

The increase in interest expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010 is due to changes in debt balances, primarily related to the borrowings under the Credit Agreement and issuance of the Senior Notes, in conjunction with the redemption of the Class A and Class C membership interests. Refer to Note 8. Debt to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information.

Other Income, Net

	Th	ree months o	ended Se	eptember 3	0,	Nine r	nonths ende	ed Septemb	er 30,	
				Favo	rable/		Favorable			
	2011	20	10	(unfav	orable)	2011	2010	(ur	1favorable)	
		(in	millions	;)		(in mil	lions)			
Other income, net	\$ 14	\$	5	\$	9	\$13	\$ 7	\$	6	

The increase in other income for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2010 was primarily due to an \$8 million loss on extinguishment of debt and a \$9 million impairment of investments in available-for-sale securities recognized in the three months ended September 30, 2010, partially offset by a decrease in net foreign exchange income on intercompany loans of \$8 million in the three months ended September 30, 2011.

The increase in other income for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2010 was primarily due to an increase in interest income of \$6 million and an increase in net foreign exchange income on intercompany loans of \$8 million, partially offset by an increase in losses on extinguishment of debt of \$6 million.

Refer to Note 14. Other (expense) income, net to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information.

Income Taxes

	Three	nonths ended S	September 30),	Nine n	onths ended Sep	otember 30,	,
	2011	2010	Favora (unfavo		2011	2010	Favor (unfavo	
		(in million	is)			(in millions))	
Income tax expense	\$ 87	\$ 62 \$ (25)			\$ 276	\$ 209	\$	(67)

Our tax rate in both periods is affected by tax rates in the U.S. and other jurisdictions, the relative amount of income we earn in such jurisdictions and the relative amount of losses for which no tax benefit was recognized due to a valuation allowance. Income tax expense in the nine months ended September 30, 2011 was also impacted unfavorably by a \$10 million withholding tax expense related to the redemption of all the outstanding Class A and Class C membership interests.

Equity Income

	Thre	e months	s ended Se	ptember	30,	Nine	months	ended Se	eptember 30),
	2011	20	10		rable/ orable)	2011	20	10	Favor (unfavo	
		(i)	n millions)			(iı	n millions	5)	
Equity income, net of tax	\$2	\$	1	\$	1	\$ 25	\$	9	\$	16

Equity income reflects our interest in the results of ongoing operations of entities accounted for as equity-method investments. Equity income increased during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2010 partially due to the recognition of \$8 million of gain on the sale of our 49.5% interest in Daesung Electric, Co., Ltd as well as increased equity income, principally from our Mexican joint ventures.

Results of Operations by Segment

We operate our core business along the following operating segments, which are grouped on the basis of similar product, market and operating factors:

Electronics and Safety, which includes component and systems integration expertise in audio and infotainment, body controls and security systems, displays, mechatronics, safety electronics and electric and hybrid electric vehicle power electronics, as well as advanced development of software.

Powertrain Systems, which includes extensive systems integration expertise in gasoline, diesel and fuel handling and full end-to-end systems including fuel injection, combustion, electronics controls, exhaust handling, test and validation capabilities, diesel and automotive aftermarket, and original equipment service.

Electrical/Electronic Architecture, which includes complete electrical architecture and component products.

Thermal Systems, which includes heating, ventilating and air conditioning systems, components for multiple transportation and other adjacent markets, and powertrain cooling and related technologies.

Eliminations and Other, which includes i) the elimination of inter-segment transactions, and ii) certain other expenses and income of a non-operating or strategic nature.

Through December 31, 2010, we evaluated performance based on stand-alone segment Adjusted EBITDA and accounted for inter-segment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, at current market prices. Our management believed that Adjusted EBITDA was a meaningful measure of performance and it was used by management to analyze Company and stand-alone segment operating performance. Management also used Adjusted EBITDA for planning and forecasting purposes. Effective January 1, 2011, our management began utilizing segment EBITDA as a key performance measure because its restructuring was substantially completed by the end of 2010. Segment EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered substitutes for results prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and should not be considered alternatives to net income attributable to Delphi, which is the most directly comparable financial measure to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA that is in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Segment EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, as determined and measured by us, should also not be compared to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

The reconciliation of EBITDA to net income attributable to Delphi for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 is as follows:

	8	tronics and afety		ertrain stems	Elec	etrical/ etronic itecture (in mil	Sys	ermal stems	Eliminations and Other	Г	fotal
For the three months ended											
September 30, 2011:		01	¢	1/7	<i>•</i>		^	25	<i>ф</i>	•	516
EBITDA	\$	81	\$	167	\$	233	\$	35	\$	\$	516
Depreciation and amortization		(26)		(51)		(33)		(13)			(123)
	<i>.</i>		.		•	• • • •	.			.	
Operating income	\$	55	\$	116	\$	200	\$	22	\$	\$	393
Interest expense											(37)
Other income, net											14
Income before income taxes and equity income											370
Income tax expense											(87)
Equity income											2
Net income										\$	285
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest											19
Net income attributable to Delphi										\$	266

For the nine months ended September 30, 2011:	E	Electronics and Safety	and Powertrain	Electrical/ Electronic Architecture (in milli	Thermal Systems ons)	Eliminations and Other	1	Fotal
EBITDA \$ 279 \$ 487 \$ 690 \$ 133 \$ \$ 1,589		\$ 279	279 \$ 487	\$ 690	\$ 133	\$	\$	1,589
Depreciation and amortization (79) (144) (97) (36) (356)	on and amortization	(79)	(79) (144)	(97)	(36)			(356)
Operating income \$ 200 \$ 343 \$ 593 \$ 97 \$ 1,233	income	\$ 200	200 \$ 343	\$ 593	\$97	\$		1,233
Interest expense (84)	pense							(84)
Other income, net 13								
Income before income taxes and equity income 1,162	ore income taxes and equity income							1,162
Income tax expense (276)	expense							(276)
Equity income 25	ome							25
Net income \$ 911	3						\$	911
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 56	e attributable to noncontrolling interests							56
Net income attributable to Delphi\$ 855	e attributable to Delphi						\$	855

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010, the reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to EBITDA includes other restructuring costs related to 1) the implementation of projects aimed at reducing the cost and improving the functionality of information technology systems to support finance, manufacturing and product development initiatives, 2) certain plant consolidations and closures costs, 3) continued

consolidation of many staff administrative activities, and 4) employee benefit plan settlements in Mexico.

The reconciliation of EBITDA to net income attributable to Delphi for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010 is as follows:

	8	tronics ind ifety	 ertrain stems	Elec	trical/ tronic itecture (in mill	Sys	ermal stems	Elimin and (Т	otal
For the three months ended September 30, 2010:											
Adjusted EBITDA	\$	70	\$ 112	\$	176	\$	33	\$		\$	391
Restructuring charges:											
Employee termination benefits and other exit											
costs		(4)	(21)		(43)						(68)
Other restructuring costs		(3)	(4)		(4)		(1)				(12)
EBITDA	\$	63	\$ 87	\$	129	\$	32	\$			311
Depreciation and amortization		(31)	(42)		(23)		(11)		2		(105)
Operating income	\$	32	\$ 45	\$	106	\$	21	\$	2	\$	206
Interest expense											(6)
Other income, net											5
Income before income taxes and equity income											205
Income tax expense											(62)
Equity income											1
Net income										\$	144
Net income attributable to noncontrolling											
interest											17

Net income attributable to Delphi

	etronics and afety	vertrain stems	Ele	ctrical/ ctronic itecture (in mill	Sy	ermal stems	nations Other	,	Гotal
For the nine months ended September 30, 2010:									
Adjusted EBITDA	\$ 217	\$ 357	\$	579	\$	138	\$	\$	1,291
Restructuring charges:									
Employee termination benefits and other exit									
costs	(17)	(34)		(68)		(5)			(124)
Other restructuring costs	(10)	(8)		(9)		(2)			(29)
EBITDA	\$ 190	\$ 315	\$	502	\$	131	\$	\$	1,138
Depreciation and amortization	(76)	(126)		(77)		(31)	(1)		(311)
Operating income (loss)	\$ 114	\$ 189	\$	425	\$	100	\$ (1)	\$	827
Interest expense									(22)
Other income, net									7

\$ 127

Income before income taxes and equity income	812
Income tax expense	(209)
Equity income	9
Net income	\$ 612
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests	56
Net income attributable to Delphi	\$ 556

Net sales, gross margin as a percentage of net sales and EBITDA by segment for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Net Sales by Segment

	Three mo	nths	ended Sep	tembe	r 30,		me, net itractua	•	Variano	ce due to	:			
	2011		2010		orable/ vorable)	p	rice uctions	FX		modity hrough	Ot	her	Т	otal
		(in	millions)					(in n	nillions)				
Electronics and Safety	\$ 719	\$	646	\$	73	\$	49	\$ 29	\$		\$	(5)	\$	73
Powertrain Systems	1,183		978		205		152	54				(1)		205
Electrical/Electronic Architecture	1,658		1,350		308		185	64		60		(1)		308
Thermal Systems	431		392		39		14	21		4				39
Eliminations and Other	(60)		(57)		(3)		4	(5)				(2)		(3)
Total	\$ 3,931	\$	3,309	\$	622	\$	404	\$ 163	\$	64	\$	(9)	\$	622

		Nine mo	nths e	ended Sep	tembe	er 30,					Varian	ce due to	:			
	:	2011		2010		vorable/ avorable)	of cor p	ime, net ntractual price uctions	l	FX	pass-t	modity hrough	C	Other	Т	fotal
			(in	millions)						(in r	nillions	;)				
Electronics and Safety	\$	2,245	\$	2,040	\$	205	\$	242	\$	71	\$		\$	(108)	\$	205
Powertrain Systems		3,729		2,964		765		628		149				(12)		765
Electrical/Electronic Architecture		5,012		4,138		874		509		173		191		1		874
Thermal Systems		1,353		1,183		170		106		56		8				170
Eliminations and Other		(198)		(160)		(38)		(5)		(14)				(19)		(38)
Total	\$	12,141	\$	10,165	\$	1,976	\$	1,480	\$	435	\$	199	\$	(138)	\$	1,976

Included in Other above are decreased sales of approximately \$5 million and \$119 million related to divestitures that occurred during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010, respectively. Gross Margin Percentage by Segment

		onths ended nber 30,	Nine mon Septem	ths ended ber 30,
	2011	2010	2011	2010
Electronics and Safety	14.2%	13.0%	15.1%	12.5%
Powertrain Systems	17.3%	15.2%	16.3%	15.7%
Electrical/Electronic Architecture	17.1%	16.8%	17.2%	17.5%
Thermal Systems	10.7%	10.9%	12.2%	13.7%
Eliminations and Other	0.0%	-3.6%	0.0%	-1.3%
Total	16.2%	15.2%	16.3%	15.8%

EBITDA by Segment

	2	Three n 011	20	ended Sej)10 millions)	Fa (unf	er 30, vorable/ avorable)	of cont pi	ne, net tractua ice ctions	l Opera perfoi	riance du ational mance in millioi	O	ther	Total
Electronics and Safety	\$	81	\$	63	\$	18	\$	5	\$	11	\$	2	\$ 18
Powertrain Systems		167		87		80		46		33		1	80
Electrical/Electronic Architecture		233		129		104		47		1		56	104
Thermal Systems		35		32		3		(2)		6		(1)	3
Eliminations and Other													
Total	\$	516	\$	311	\$	205	\$	96	\$	51	\$	58	\$ 205

As noted in the table above, EBITDA for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2010 was impacted by volume and contractual price reductions and operational performance improvements, as well as reduced restructuring included in Other in the table above of \$65 million in 2011 related to reduced employee termination benefits and other exit costs.

EBITDA by Segment

	Nine m	onths	ended Sep		30, orable/	of con	me, net tractual rice	l	riance due rational	e to:	
	2011	2	2010	(unfa	vorable)	redu	ictions	perfo	rmance	Other	Total
		(in	millions)					(in millions	5)	
Electronics and Safety	\$ 279	\$	190	\$	89	\$	53	\$	46	\$ (10)	\$ 89
Powertrain Systems	487		315		172		220		30	(78)	172
Electrical/Electronic Architecture	690		502		188		129		22	37	188
Thermal Systems	133		131		2		8		2	(8)	2
Eliminations and Other											
Total	\$ 1,589	\$	1,138	\$	451	\$	410	\$	100	\$ (59)	\$ 451

As noted in the table above, EBITDA for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2010 was impacted by volume and contractual price reductions and operational performance improvements, as well as the following items included in Other in the table above:

\$76 million due to increased warranty expense in 2011 as a result of the March settlement related to certain components supplied by our Powertrain segment. Refer to Note 10. Commitments and Contingencies to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included herein for further information;

\$51 million due to increased accruals for incentive compensation in 2011 related to our executive Long-Term Incentive Plan; and

Offset by reduced restructuring of \$104 million in 2011 related to reduced employee termination benefits and other exit costs.

Consolidated Results of Operations

2010 versus 2009

The results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 (Successor Period of 2009) and January 1 to October 6, 2009 (Predecessor Period of 2009) were as follows:

	D	Year ende ecember 31,		Period	l from Aug cember 31,			Predecesson d from Janua October 6, 20	ary 1 to
			(dollars in	million	s)		(de	ollars in milli	ons)
Net sales	\$	13,817		\$	3,421		\$	8,334	,
Cost of sales		11,768			3,047			8,480	
Gross margin		2,049	14.8%		374	10.9%		(146)	(1.8)%
Selling, general and administrative		815			242			734	
Amortization		70			16			3	
Restructuring		224			126			235	
Operating income (loss)		940			(10)			(1,118)	
Interest expense		(30)			(8)				
Other income (expense), net		34			(17)			24	
Reorganization items								10,210	
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income									
taxes and equity income (loss)		944			(35)			9,116	
Income tax (expense) benefit		(258)			27			311	
Income (loss) from continuing operations before equity income (loss)		686			(8)			9.427	
Equity income (loss), net of tax		17			5			(36)	
Equity income (loss), net of tax		17			5			(30)	
Income (loss) from continuing operations		703			(3)			9,391	
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax								(44)	
Net income (loss)		703			(3)			9,347	
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest		72			15			29	
Net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor	\$	631		\$	(18)		\$	9,318	

Total Net Sales

Total net sales for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to Full Year 2009 were as follows:

Successor	Predecessor		Variance due to:		
Year Period ended from December 31, August 2010 19 to	Period from 2010 January 1 versus to full year October 6, 2009 2009 favorable/ (unfavorable)	OperationsVolume, net not of acquired contractual price reductions	FX Commodity pass- through	Other	Total

		December 31, 2009													
	(in mi	illions)	i) (in millions)						(in n	nillion	is)				
Total net sales	\$ 13,817	\$ 3,421	\$ 8,334 \$	2,062	\$ (639)	\$	2,725	\$	(91)	\$	145	\$	(78)	\$	2,062
Total net sales in 20	10 increased 1	8% compared	to Full Year 2	009 net sale	s. Excluding	g the	sales in	npac	ts of th	e Op	eration	s No	t Acqu	uired	, sales
increased 24% in 20 schedules throughout		ise in total net	sales resulted	primarily fro	om increased	d vo	lume as	a res	ult of 1	ebou	nding (DEM	1 produ	ıctio	'n

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales is primarily comprised of material, labor, manufacturing overhead, freight, fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, product engineering, design and development expenses, depreciation and amortization, warranty costs and other operating expenses.

	Su Year ended December 31, 2010	ended August 19 to			Predecessor Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009		
	(dollar:	(dollars in millions)					
Cost of sales	\$ 11,768	\$	3,047	\$	8,480		
Gross margin	\$ 2,049	\$	374	\$	(146)		
Percentage of net sales	14.8%		10.9%		(1.8)%		
0							

Successor

Cost of sales in the year ended 2010 was impacted by higher volume offset by favorable operational performance and our reduced cost structure due to previous restructuring actions. Additionally, cost of sales was impacted by the following items:

Warranty costs of \$142 million;

Depreciation of fixed assets, including tooling, of \$323 million; and

Pension and OPEB costs of \$71 million.

Cost of sales in the Successor Period of 2009 was impacted by higher volume offset by favorable operational performance and our reduced cost structure due to previous restructuring actions. Additionally, cost of sales was impacted by the following items:

Warranty costs of \$24 million;

Non-recurring \$34 million non-cash charge as a result of the sale of inventory acquired from the Predecessor, which was required to be recorded at fair value as a result of the Acquisition;

Depreciation of fixed assets, including tooling, of \$115 million; and

Pension and OPEB costs of \$23 million.

Predecessor

Cost of sales in the Predecessor Period of 2009 was impacted by the relatively fixed cost nature of the Predecessor s operations that inhibited the Predecessor s ability to adjust its cost structure appropriately to the reduced volumes resulting from the economic and credit crises of 2008 and 2009 that adversely impacted OEM production levels. Additionally, cost of sales was impacted by the following items:

Warranty costs of \$114 million;

Depreciation of fixed assets, including tooling, and including impairments, of \$502 million; and

Pension and OPEB costs of \$134 million.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

	Year ended December 31, 2010	Successor Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009	Predecessor Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009
	(dolla	(dollars in millions)	
Selling, general and administrative expense	\$ 815	\$ 242	\$ 734
Percentage of net sales	5.9%	7.1%	8.8%

Successor

SG&A continues to decline as a percent of sales in the year ended December 31, 2010 and the Successor Period of 2009 as compared to the Predecessor Period of 2009 as a result of the positive effects of cost savings initiatives.

Predecessor

During the Predecessor Period of 2009, the impact of cost saving and restructuring initiatives had not yet been fully realized. In addition, reduced volumes during 2009 resulted in SG&A being a larger percentage of net sales due to the fixed nature of certain SG&A costs.

Amortization

	Su	Successor			r
	Year	Peri	iod from	Period from	n
	ended	ended August 19 to December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009		January 1 t	to
	December 31, 2010			October 6, 20	
	(in	millions)		(in millions	5)
Amortization	\$ 70	\$	16	\$	3
C					

Successor

Amortization for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the Successor Period of 2009 is a result of the recognition at fair value of approximately \$766 million of intangible assets that we acquired as a part of the Acquisition.

Predecessor

During the Predecessor Period of 2009, amortization was insignificant.

Refer to Note 8. Intangible Assets and Goodwill to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information.

Restructuring

		Successor			cessor
	Year	Perio	od from	Period	l from
	ended	August 19 to 0 December 31, 2009			ry 1 to
	December 31, 2010			October	: 6, 2009
	(doll	lars in millions))	(dollars in	n millions)
Restructuring	\$ 224	\$	126	\$	235
Percentage of net sales	1.6%		3.7%		2.8%

Successor

During the year ended December 31, 2010, we continued our restructuring actions to align our manufacturing operations with current OEM production levels as well as continuing to relocate our manufacturing and engineering processes to lower cost locations. As such, we recognized employee termination and other related exit costs in conjunction with workforce reduction programs primarily in Europe of \$174 million and \$78 million during the year ended December 31, 2010 and the Successor Period of 2009, respectively. Similar actions to appropriately align North American manufacturing operations were also undertaken, resulting in \$28 million and \$34 million of charges during the year ended December 31, 2010, respectively.

Predecessor

As part of the Predecessor s continuing restructuring activities in 2009 and in response to the depressed OEM production volumes of 2009, the Predecessor undertook significant restructuring actions. As a result, during the Predecessor Period of 2009, restructuring included approximately \$69 million to realign manufacturing operations within North America to lower cost markets and reduce the workforce in line with the realigned manufacturing operations. Additionally, approximately \$99 million of employee termination benefits and other exit costs were incurred in Europe, South America and Asia. The Predecessor also incurred \$58 million for employee termination benefits resulting from the separation of certain salaried employees in North America.

Refer to Note 11. Restructuring to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information.

Interest Expense

	Si	Successor				
	Year ended December 31, 2010	August 19 to		d August 19 to		Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009
	(in	(in millions)				
Interest expense	\$ (30)	\$	(8)	\$		
Successor						

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the Successor Period of 2009 reflects the financing costs relating to our outstanding indebtedness subsequent to the Acquisition, including the \$41 million in the Old Notes issued as part of the Acquisition as well as receivable factoring programs.

Predecessor

Interest expense for the Predecessor Period of 2009 includes the amortization of financing costs related to outstanding debtor-in-possession financing during the period and interest on debtor-in-possession financing, offset by the reversal of \$415 million of accrued postpetition interest on prepetition debt and allowed unsecured claims, as more fully described in Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein.

Other Income, Net

	S	Successor			
	Year		iod from	Period from	
	ended	ended August 19 to		January 1 to	
	December 31, 2010	· 31, 2010 December 31, 2009		October 6, 2009	
	(in	(in millions)			
Other income (expense), net	\$ 34	\$	(17)	\$ 24	

Successor

Other income, net during 2010 included \$29 million of interest income, partially offset by a \$9 million impairment of an investment in available-for-sale securities and an \$8 million loss on the early extinguishment of debt that was revalued to fair value as part of acquisition accounting. Additionally, other income, net includes insurance and other recoveries and income from royalties.

During the Successor Period of 2009, other expense, net included \$5 million of interest income, offset by \$19 million of transactions costs related to the Acquisition.

Predecessor

Other income, net for the Predecessor Period of 2009 included \$10 million of interest income.

Reorganization Items

	Per Jan Octo	edecessor iod from uary 1 to ber 6, 2009 millions)
Reorganization items, net	\$	10,210

Predecessor

The following table details the components of bankruptcy-related reorganization items (refer to Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information):

	(Incon Per Jan Octol	edecessor ne)/expense iod from uary 1 to ber 6, 2009 millions)
Sale / disposition of the Predecessor	\$	(794)
Extinguishment of liabilities subject to compromise		(11,159)
PBGC termination of U.S. pension plans		2,818
Salaried OPEB settlement		(1,168)
Professional fees directly related to reorganization		68
Other		25
Total reorganization items	\$	(10,210)

i otal reorganization ne

Income Taxes

	Su	Predecessor		
	Year	Period from	Period from	
	ended December 31, 2010	August 19 to December 31, 2009	January 1 to October 6, 2009	
	(in	(in millions)		
Income tax (expense) benefit	\$ (258)	\$ 27	\$ 311	

Our and the Predecessor s tax rate in all periods is affected by the tax rates in the U.S. and non-U.S. jurisdictions, the relative amount of income we earn in such jurisdictions and the relative amount of losses for which no tax benefit was recognized due to a valuation allowance.

Successor

The annual effective tax rate in the year ended December 31, 2010 was impacted by a \$2 million benefit related to tax contingencies for favorable tax settlements in various jurisdictions, a \$21 million benefit related to valuation allowance changes in various countries outside the U.S., a \$29 million benefit for U.S. primarily related to research and development credit, and a \$15 million benefit due to changes in estimate related to tax law changes in Mexico.

During the Successor period of 2009, our tax rate was affected by the tax rates in non-U.S. jurisdictions, the relative amount of income we earn in such jurisdictions and the relative amount of losses for which no tax benefit would be recognized due to a valuation allowance.

Predecessor

The annual effective tax rate and the income tax benefit for the Predecessor Period of 2009 were favorably impacted by the recognition of \$306 million and \$52 million of tax benefits in continuing operations due to the elimination of the disproportionate tax effects in accumulated other comprehensive income related to the salaried pension and OPEB obligations, respectively, which were settled during the same period. Refer to Note 16. Income Taxes to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein.

Equity Income (Loss), Net of Tax

		Successor			ecessor
	Year ended December 31, 2010	Period Augus December (in millions)	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 (in millions)		
Equity income (loss), net of tax	\$ 17	\$	5	\$	(36)
Successor					

During both the year ended 2010 and the Successor Period of 2009, equity income reflects our interest in the results of ongoing operations of entities accounted for as equity-method investments, principally from our South Korean and Mexican joint ventures.

Predecessor

Equity income (loss), net of tax in the Predecessor Period of 2009 includes a \$23 million impairment charge related to an investment in a non-consolidated affiliate, as well as the overall negative economic impact resulting from the industry downturn during 2009.

Loss from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax

	Predecessor
	Period from
	January 1 to
	October 6, 2009
	(in millions)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax	\$ (44)

Predecessor

The loss from discontinued operations for the Predecessor Period of 2009 includes the losses related to the operations and assets held for sale of the halfshaft and steering system products (the Steering Business) and the Automotive Holdings Group (AHG), which included various non-core product lines and plant sites that did not fit our or the Predecessor s strategic framework.

Results of Operations by Segment

The reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to EBITDA includes other transformation and rationalization costs related to 1) the implementation of information technology systems to support finance, manufacturing and product development initiatives, 2) certain plant consolidations and closures costs and 3) consolidation of many staff administrative functions into a global business service group. The reconciliation of EBITDA to net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor follows:

	Electronics and Powertrain			Successor Electrical/ Electronic Thermal				Elimi a	_		
	Safety	Sy	stems	Architecture (in millio		•	stems	Other		То	otal
2010:					(III IIII)	ions)					
Adjusted EBITDA	\$ 293	\$	423	\$	758	\$	165	\$	(6)	\$ 1	,633
Transformation and rationalization charges:											
Employee termination benefits and other exit costs	(29)		(49)		(94)		(52)			((224)
Other transformation and rationalization costs	(17)		(13)		(14)		(4)				(48)
EBITDA	\$ 247	\$	361	\$	650	\$	109	\$	(6)	1	,361
Depreciation and amortization	(100)		(170)		(108)		(42)		(1)	((421)
Depreciation and anortization	(100)		(170)		(100)		(42)		(1)		(421)
	¢ 147	¢	101	¢	540	¢	(7	¢	(7)		0.40
Operating income (loss)	\$ 147	\$	191	\$	542	\$	67	\$	(7)		940
Interest expense											(30)
Other income, net											34
Income from continuing operations before income											
taxes and equity income											944
Income tax expense										((258)
Equity income, net of tax											17
Net income										\$	703
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest											72
Net income attributable to Successor										\$	631

	Successor									
	Electronics	D			trical/				nations	
	and Safety		ertrain		tronic itecture		ermal		1d her	Total
	Sarcty	ety Systems		AICH	Architecture Systems (in millions)			Other		Total
August 19 December 31, 2009:										
Adjusted EBITDA	\$ 56	\$	79	\$	155	\$	21	\$	2	\$ 313
Transformation and rationalization charges:										
Employee termination benefits and other exit costs	(20)		(50)		(50)		(5)		(1)	(126)
Other transformation and rationalization costs	(19)		(20)		(11)		(8)			(58)
EBITDA	\$ 17	\$	9	\$	94	\$	8	\$	1	129
	ψ 17	Ψ		Ψ		φ	0	Ψ		12)
	(20)		(50)		(21)		(17)			(120)
Depreciation and amortization	(39)		(52)		(31)		(17)			(139)
Operating (loss) income	\$ (22)	\$	(43)	\$	63	\$	(9)	\$	1	(10)

Interest expense	(8)
Other expense, net	(17)
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes	
and equity income	(35)
Income tax benefit	27
Equity income, net of tax	5
Net loss	\$ (3)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest	15
Net loss attributable to Successor	\$ (18)
	φ (10)

	Electronics	Predecessor pnics Electrical/									
	and Safety	Powertrain Ele		Electronic Thermal Architecture Systems (in millions)			Eliminations and Other		ſ	otal	
January 1 October 6, 2009:											
Adjusted EBITDA	\$ (214)	\$	(9)	\$	(18)	\$	17	\$	(5)	\$	(229)
Transformation and rationalization charges:											
Employee termination benefits and other exit costs	(91)		(45)		(99)		(11)		11		(235)
Other transformation and rationalization costs	(14)		(17)		(15)		(2)		(2)		(50)
EBITDA	\$ (319)	\$	(71)	\$	(132)	\$	4	\$	4		(514)
	+ (+ ->)	Ŧ	(, -)	-	()	-	-	Ŧ			(== -)
Depreciation and amortization	(177)		(163)		(147)		(53)				(540)
Discontinued operations	(177)		(103)		(147)		(55)		(64)		(64)
Discontinued operations									(04)		(04)
Operating loss	\$ (496)	\$	(234)	\$	(279)	\$	(49)	\$	(60)		(1,118)
Other income, net											24
Reorganization items										1	0,210
Income from continuing operations before income taxes											
and equity loss											9,116
Income tax benefit											311
Equity loss, net of tax											(36)
Loss from discontinued operations,											(50)
net of tax											(44)
											()
Net income										¢	9,347
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest										ф	29
The meone automatic to noncontrolling interest											29
Net income attributable to Predecessor										\$	9,318

Net sales and gross margin as a percentage of net sales for the year ended December 31, 2010 and periods from August 19 to December 31 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 by segment are as follows:

Net Sales by Segment

	Succ	Successor Predecessor			Variance due to:							
	Year ended December 31, 2010	Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009 llions)	,		not	price	Commodity pass- through (in millio	FX	Other	Total		
Electronics and Safety	\$ 2,721	\$ 761	\$ 1.801	\$ 159	\$ (96)	\$ 294	s (III IIIIII)	\$ (38)	\$ (1)	\$ 159		
Powertrain Systems	4,086	\$ 701 957	2,667	462	(384)	\$ 294 879	ψ	(36)	3	462		
Electrical/ Electronic Architecture	5,620	1,325	2,970	1,325	(304)	1,215	135	(26)	1	1,325		
Thermal Systems	1,603	365	1,008	230	(172)	384	10	8		230		
Eliminations and Other	(213)	13	(112)	(114)	13	(47)		1	(81)	(114)		
Total	\$ 13,817	\$ 3,421	\$ 8,334	\$ 2,062	\$ (639)	\$ 2,725	\$ 145	\$ (91)	\$ (78)	\$ 2,062		

Eliminations and Other includes \$75 million of keep site facilitation reimbursements recognized by the Predecessor during the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 as a result of the Amended MRA, which became effective in September 2008 (refer to Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for more information.)

Foreign exchange fluctuations are primarily related to the Euro.

Gross Margin Percentage by Segment

	Su	ccessor	Predecessor
	Year ended December 31, 2010	Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009
Electronics and Safety	12.8%	7.9%	(12.9)%
Powertrain Systems	13.8%	10.1%	2.6%
Electrical/Electronic Architecture	16.8%	14.5%	1.4%
Thermal Systems	12.4%	5.5%	3.2%
Eliminations and Other	1.4%	38.5%	49.1%
Total	14.8%	10.9%	(1.8)%

EBITDA by Segment

	Suc	cessor Period	Prec	decessor 2010					
	Year	from August 19	Period from January 1	n versus full year	١	olume, net of			
	ended	to	to	2009	c	contractual			
		December 31,	October 6,		Operations	price	Operational		
	2010 (in m	2009 nillions)	2009 (i	(unfavorable) n millions)	not acquired	reductions	performance (in millions)	Other	Total
Electronics and Safety	\$ 247	\$ 17	\$ (319)	\$ 549	\$ (10)	\$ 118	\$ 211	\$ 230	\$ 549
Powertrain Systems	361	9	(71)	423	23	283	70	47	423
Electrical/ Electronic									
Architecture	650	94	(132)	688		358	161	169	688
Thermal Systems	109	8	4	97	14	75	41	(33)	97
Eliminations and Other	(6)	1	4	(11)	(99)			88	(11)
Total	\$ 1,361	\$ 129	\$ (514)	\$ 1,746	\$ (72)	\$ 834	\$ 483	\$ 501	\$ 1,746

As noted in the table above, 2010 EBITDA as compared to Full Year 2009 EBITDA was impacted by Operations Not Acquired by the Successor, volume and contractual price reductions, and operational performance improvements, which include favorable manufacturing and engineering performance offset by unfavorable material and freight economics, as well as the following items included in Other in the table above:

\$137 million of decreased costs associated with restructuring activities resulting in employee termination benefit cost reductions, including \$82 million, \$46 million and \$55 million in the Electronics and Safety, Powertrain Systems and Electrical/Electronic Architecture, respectively, offset by increased costs of \$36 million and \$10 million in the Thermal Systems and Eliminations and Other segments, respectively.

Favorable foreign currency exchange impact of \$29 million primarily due to the Euro, Brazilian Real, Polish Zloty and British pound, including \$24 million, \$4 million and \$10 million in the Electronics and Safety, Powertrain Systems and Electrical/Electronic Architecture segments, respectively, which were partially offset by \$9 million of unfavorable foreign currency exchange in the Thermal Systems segment.

\$150 million of decreases in pension and OPEB, offset by favorable EBITDA from discontinued operations of \$64 million in the Eliminations and Other segment.

Approximately \$60 million of decreased SG&A as a result of the positive effects of cost savings initiatives.

Consolidated Results of Operations

2009 versus 2008

The results of operations for the Successor Period of 2009 from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and the Predecessor Period of 2009 from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008 were as follows:

	Successor					Predece	ssor	
	Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009			Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 (dollars in 1			Year ended December 31, 2008 millions)	
	(dollars in millions)							
Net sales		3,421		\$	8,334	(1) 11 11	\$ 16,808	
Cost of sales		3,047			8,480		16,157	
Gross margin		374	10.9%		(146)	(1.8)%	651	3.9%
Selling, general and administrative		242			734		1,420	
Amortization		16			3		5	
Goodwill impairment							325	
Restructuring		126			235		326	
Operating loss		(10)			(1,118)		(1,425)	
Interest expense		(8)					(434)	
Other (expense) income, net		(17)			24		9	
Reorganization items					10,210		5,147	
(Loss) income from continuing operations before income taxes								
and equity income (loss)		(35)			9,116		3,297	
Income tax benefit (expense)		27			311		(163)	
(Loss) income from continuing operations before equity income								
(loss)		(8)			9,427		3,134	
Equity income (loss), net of tax		5			(36)		29	
(Loss) income from continuing operations		(3)			9,391		3,163	
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax		(0)			(44)		(97)	
Net (loss) income		(3)			9,347		3,066	
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest		15			29		29	
Net (loss) income attributable to Successor/Predecessor	\$	(18)		\$	9,318		\$ 3,037	

In 2008 and 2009, production volumes globally were significantly lower due to economic and credit market impacts. Consequently, during 2008 and 2009, the Predecessor's operational challenges intensified as a result of the continued downturn in general economic conditions, including reduced consumer spending and confidence, high oil prices, particularly during 2008, and the credit market crisis, all of which resulted in the reduction of global vehicle production and in restructuring actions by manufacturers. We refer to the trends and conditions described in this paragraph as recent consumer trends and market conditions.

Total Net Sales

Total net sales for Full Year 2009 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2008 were as follows:

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

	Successor Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009 (in	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009	Predecesson Year ended December 31, 2008	Fu V fav	ıll year 2009 Yersus 2008 Yorable/ avorable)	•	erations not quired	col	Volume and ntractual price ductions	V	ariance of	Con P	to: umodity pass- rough	0	ther	Total
	(III millions)		(in millions))							(in milli	ons))			
Total net sales	\$ 3,421	\$ 8,334	\$ 16,808	\$	(5,053)	\$	(160)	\$	(4,017)	\$	(685)	\$	(183)	\$	(8)	\$ (5,053)

Total Full Year 2009 net sales decreased 30% compared to 2008 net sales. Excluding the sales impact of the Operations not Acquired, sales decreased 29% in the Full Year 2009 period. The decrease in total net sales resulted primarily from decreased volume and contractual price reductions as a result of recent consumer trends and market conditions. In addition, Full Year 2009 net sales were impacted by unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates, decreased commodity pass-through costs and the net sales related to Operations not Acquired by us.

Operating Results

The information below summarizes the operating results for the Successor Period of 2009, the Predecessor Period of 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales is primarily comprised of material, labor, manufacturing overhead, freight, fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, product engineering, design and development expenses, depreciation and amortization, warranty costs and other operating expenses.

	Successor Period from	Predecessor			
	August 19 to December 31, 2009	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009		ar ended iber 31, 2008	
	(dollars in millions)	(dollar	s in millions)		
Cost of sales	\$ 3,047	\$ 8,480	\$	16,157	
Gross margin	\$ 374	\$ (146)	\$	651	
Percentage of net sales	10.9%	(1.8)%		3.9%	
Successor					

Cost of sales in the Successor Period of 2009 was impacted by increases in volume, offset by improved operational performance and our reduced cost structure due to previous restructuring actions. Additionally, cost of sales was impacted by the following items:

Warranty costs of \$24 million;

Non-recurring \$34 million non-cash charge as a result of the sale of inventory acquired from the Predecessor, which was required to be recorded at fair value as a result of the Acquisition;

Depreciation of fixed assets, including tooling, of \$115 million; and

Pension and OPEB costs of \$23 million.

Predecessor

Cost of sales in the Predecessor Period of 2009 was impacted by the relatively fixed cost nature of the Predecessor s operations that inhibited the Predecessor s ability to adjust its cost structure appropriately to the reduced volumes resulting from the economic and credit crises of 2008 and 2009 that adversely impacted OEM production levels. Additionally, cost of sales was impacted by the following items:

Warranty costs of \$114 million;

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Depreciation of fixed assets, including tooling, and impairments, of \$502 million; and

Pension and OPEB costs of \$134 million.

Cost of sales in the year ended December 31, 2008 was driven by volumes associated with recent consumer trends and market conditions. Additionally, cost of sales was impacted by the following items:

Warranty costs of \$100 million, offset by the forgiveness of \$112 million due under the warranty settlement agreement with GM;

Upon effectiveness of the Amended MRA (as defined and further discussed in Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein), the Predecessor recorded a reduction to operating expenses of \$189 million;

Employee workforce transition program costs of \$69 million;

Depreciation of fixed assets, including tooling, and impairments, of \$760 million; and

Pension and OPEB costs of \$618 million. Selling, General and Administrative Expense

	Successor		Predecessor		
	Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009		Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009	Year ended December 31, 2	
	(dollars i	n millions)	(dollar	ns)	
Selling, general and administrative expense	\$	242	\$ 734	\$	1,420
Percentage of net sales		7.1%	8.8%		8.4%
Successor					

SG&A declined as a percent of sales during the Successor Period of 2009 as a result of the positive effects of cost savings initiatives.

Predecessor

During the Predecessor Period of 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, the impact of cost saving and restructuring initiatives had not yet been realized. In addition, reduced volumes during 2009 resulted in SG&A being a larger percentage of net sales due to the fixed nature of certain SG&A costs.

Amortization

	Successor	Predecessor			
	Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009		ended r 31, 2008	
	(in millions)	(ii	n millions)		
Amortization	\$ 16	\$ 3	\$	5	
Successor					

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

During the Successor Period of 2009, amortization is a result of the recognition at fair value of approximately \$766 million of intangible assets that we acquired as part of the Acquisition.

Predecessor

During the Predecessor Period of 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, amortization was insignificant.

Refer to Note 8. Intangible Assets and Goodwill to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information.

Goodwill Impairment

	Successor	Р	redecessor	ecessor	
	Period from	Period from			
	August 19 to	January 1 to	Year ended December 31, 2008		
	December 31, 2009	October 6, 2009			
	(in millions)	(i	n millions)	
Goodwill impairment	\$	\$	\$	325	

Predecessor

Goodwill impairment of \$325 million was recorded in 2008, of which approximately \$168 million related to our Electrical/Electronic Architecture segment and approximately \$157 million related to our Electronics and Safety segment. The goodwill impairment was the result of a reduction in the estimated fair value of these segments due to consumer trends and market conditions experienced in 2008. Refer to Note 8. Intangible Assets and Goodwill to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein.

Restructuring

	Successor	Pi	Predecessor			
	Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009		ar ended ber 31, 2008		
	(dollars in millions)	(dolla	(dollars in millions)			
Restructuring	\$ 126	\$ 235	\$	326		
Percentage of net sales	3.7%	2.8%		1.9%		
Successor						

During the Successor Period of 2009, we continued our restructuring actions to align our manufacturing operations with current OEM production levels as well as continuing to rationalize our manufacturing and engineering processes to lower cost locations. As such, we recognized employee termination and other related exit costs in conjunction with workforce reduction programs primarily in Europe of \$78 million. Similar actions to appropriately align North American manufacturing operations were also undertaken, resulting in \$34 million of charges.

Predecessor

As part of the Predecessor s continuing restructuring activities in 2009 and in response to the depressed OEM production volumes of 2009, the Predecessor undertook significant restructuring actions. As a result, during the Predecessor Period of 2009, restructuring included approximately \$69 million to realign manufacturing operations within North America to lower cost markets and reduce the workforce in line with the realigned manufacturing operations. Additionally, approximately \$99 million of employee termination benefits and other exit costs were incurred in Europe, South America and Asia. The Predecessor also incurred \$58 million for employee termination benefits resulting from the separation of certain salaried employees in North America.

Restructuring during the year ended December 31, 2008, included approximately \$104 million to realign manufacturing operations within North America to lower cost markets and reduce the workforce in line with the realigned manufacturing operations. During 2008, the Predecessor identified certain salaried employees in North America for involuntary separation and recorded \$131 million in employee termination benefits. Additionally approximately \$39 million of employee termination benefits and other exit costs were incurred in Europe, South America and Asia. The Predecessor also incurred \$22 million of contract termination costs.

Refer to Note 11. Restructuring to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information.

Interest Expense

	Successor Period from	P Period from	Predecessor Year ended December 31, 2008	
	August 19 to December 31, 2009	January 1 to October 6, 2009		
	(in millions)	(i	n millions)	
Interest expense	\$ (8)	\$	\$	(434)
Successor				

Successor

During the Successor Period of 2009, interest expense reflects the financing cost relating to our significantly lower outstanding indebtedness subsequent to the Acquisition, including the Old Notes issued as part of the Acquisition as well as receivable factoring programs.

Predecessor

Interest expense for the Predecessor Period of 2009 includes financing costs related to outstanding debtor-in-possession financing during the period, offset by the reversal of \$415 million of accrued postpetition interest on prepetition debt and allowed unsecured claims, as more fully described in Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein.

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2008 primarily relates to interest on outstanding debtor-in-possession financing.

Other Income, Net

	Successor		Pr	edecessor	cessor	
	Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009		Period from			
			3 • • • 3 • • •		Year ended ember 31, 2008	
	(in mi	illions)	(in	millions)		
Other income (expense), net	\$	(17)	\$ 24	\$	9	

Successor

During the Successor Period of 2009, other expense, net included \$5 million of interest income, offset by \$19 million of transactions costs related to the Acquisition.

Predecessor

Other income, net for the Predecessor Period of 2009 included \$10 million of interest income.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Predecessor recognized a \$49 million loss on extinguishment of debt associated with the recognition of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the outstanding

debtor-in-possession financing during the period and a \$32 million gain from the sale of an investment accounted for under the cost method that had been previously fully impaired, partially offset by \$16 million of expense related to an allowance recorded against a note receivable.

Reorganization Items

	Pred	ecessor	
	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009		ar ended ber 31, 2008
	(in m	illions)	
Reorganization items, net	\$ 10,210	\$	5,147
Predecessor			

The following table details the components of bankruptcy-related reorganization items (refer to Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information):

	(Incor	edecessor ne)/Expense		
	January 1 to October 6, 2009	•		
Sale / disposition of the Predecessor	\$ (794)	\$		
Extinguishment of liabilities subject to compromise	(11,159)			
GM Amended GSA settlement			(5,332)	
PBGC termination of U.S. pension plans	2,818			
Salaried OPEB settlement	(1,168)			
Professional fees directly related to reorganization	68		107	
Write off of previously capitalized EPCA fees and expenses			79	
Other	25		(1)	
Total reorganization items	\$ (10,210)	\$	(5,147)	

Income Taxes

	Succ Perioc Augus December	from t 19 to	Pro Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009		r ended er 31, 2008
	(in mi	llions)	(in	millions)	
Income tax benefit (expense)	\$	27	\$ 311	\$	(163)

Our and the Predecessor s tax rate in all periods is affected by the tax rates in the U.S. and non-U.S. jurisdictions, the relative amount of income earned in such jurisdictions and the relative amount of losses for which no tax benefit was recognized due to a valuation allowance.

Successor

During the Successor Period of 2009, our tax rate was affected by the tax rates in non-U.S. jurisdictions, the relative amount of income we earn in such jurisdictions and the relative amount of losses for which no tax benefit would be recognized due to a valuation allowance.

Predecessor

The annual effective tax rate for the Predecessor Period of 2009 was favorably impacted by the recognition of \$306 million and \$52 million of tax benefits in continuing operations due to the elimination of the disproportionate tax effects in accumulated other comprehensive income related to the salaried pension and OPEB obligations, respectively, which were settled during the same period.

Although the Predecessor recorded a net reorganization gain of \$5.3 billion in 2008 related to the effectiveness of the Amended GSA (as defined and further discussed in Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein) which created approximately \$1.2 billion of taxable income, it did not generate any U.S. tax expense due to the impact of a related change to the U.S. deferred tax assets for which a full valuation allowance is recorded. The Predecessor maintained a full valuation allowance for its deferred tax assets in certain non-U.S. jurisdictions as it is more likely than not that the benefits will not be recognized.

Equity Income (Loss), Net of Tax

	Successor	Pr	edecessor
	Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009	Year ended December 31, 2008
	(in millions)		
Equity income (loss)	\$ 5	\$ (36)	\$ 29
Successor			

During the Successor Period of 2009, equity income reflects our interest in the results of ongoing operations of entities accounted for as equity-method investments, principally from our South Korean and Mexican joint ventures.

Predecessor

The Predecessor Period of 2009 includes a \$23 million impairment charge related to an investment in a non-consolidated affiliate, as well as the overall negative economic impact resulting from the industry downturn during 2009.

The year ended December 31, 2008, includes equity income and reflects our interest in the results of ongoing operations of entities accounted for as equity-method investments, principally from our South Korean and Mexican joint ventures.

Loss from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax

	Р	redecessor	
	Period from		
	January 1 to		ended
	October 6, 2009		er 31, 2008
	(i	n millions)	
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax	\$ (44)	\$	(97)
Predecessor			

The loss from discontinued operations reflected in the Predecessor Period of 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, includes the losses related to the operations and assets held for sale of the Steering Business and AHG, which includes various non-core product lines and plant sites that did not fit the Predecessor s strategic framework.

Results of Operations by Segment

The reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to EBITDA includes other transformation and rationalization costs related to 1) the implementation of information technology systems to support finance, manufacturing and product development initiatives, 2) certain plant consolidations and closures costs and 3) consolidation of many staff administrative functions into a global business service group. The reconciliation of EBITDA to net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor follows:

	Electronics	essor		Elimi	Eliminations						
	and Safety		ertrain stems	Elec	ctrical/ ctronic itecture (in mil	Thermal Systems nillions)				Т	otal
August 19 December 31, 2009:											
Adjusted EBITDA	\$ 56	\$	79	\$	155	\$	21	\$	2	\$	313
Transformation and rationalization charges:											
Employee termination benefits and other exit costs	(20)		(50)		(50)		(5)		(1)		(126)
Other transformation and rationalization costs	(19)		(20)		(11)		(8)				(58)
EBITDA	\$ 17	\$	9	\$	94	\$	8	\$	1		129
Depreciation and amortization	(39)		(52)		(31)		(17)				(139)
1			. ,								
Operating (loss) income	\$ (22)	\$	(43)	\$	63	\$	(9)	\$	1		(10)
operating (1000) income	Ф ()	Ŷ	(10)	Ŷ	00	Ŷ	(-)	Ŷ	-		(10)
Interest expense											(8)
Other expense, net											(17)
Stiler expense, lier											(1)
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes											
and equity income											(35)
Income tax benefit											27
Equity income, net of tax											5
Equity medile, net of tax											5
Net loss										\$	(3)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest										φ	15
The meane autoutable to noncontrolling litterest											15
										¢	(10)
Net loss attributable to Successor										\$	(18)

		Predecessor											
	Electronics and Safety	Electrical/ Powertrain Electronic Systems Architecture (in m			Sy	ermal stems	Eliminations and Other		1	fotal			
January 1 October 6, 2009:					(,							
Adjusted EBITDA	\$ (214)	\$	(9)	\$	(18)	\$	17	\$	(5)	\$	(229)		
Transformation and rationalization charges:													
Employee termination benefits and other exit costs	(91)		(45)		(99)		(11)		11		(235)		
Other transformation and rationalization costs	(14)		(17)		(15)		(2)		(2)		(50)		
EBITDA	\$ (319)	\$	(71)	\$	(132)	\$	4	\$	4		(514)		
Depreciation and amortization	(177)		(163)		(147)		(53)				(540)		
Discontinued operations									(64)		(64)		

Operating loss	\$ (496)	\$ (234)	\$ (279)	\$ (49)	\$ (60)	(1,118)
Other income, net						24
Reorganization items						10,210
Income from continuing operations before income taxes						
and equity loss						9,116
Income tax benefit						311
Equity loss, net of tax						(36)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax						(44)
Net income						\$ 9,347
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest						29
Net income attributable to Predecessor						\$ 9,318

	Electronics			Flo	Predeo ctrical/	cessor	r			
	and Safety	Powertrain Systems		Ele	ctronic nitecture	Thermal Systems nillions)		ninations 1 Other	Т	otal
2008:										
Adjusted EBITDA	\$	\$	251	\$	195	\$	76	\$ (253)	\$	269
Transformation and rationalization charges:										
U.S. employee workforce transition program charges								(69)		(69)
GM settlement MRA	42		94		15		88	(50)		189
Employee termination benefits and other exit costs	(150)		(69)		(82)		(25)			(326)
Loss on divestitures	(13)		(14)							(27)
Other transformation and rationalization costs	(78)		(44)		(63)		(14)	(48)		(247)
EBITDA	\$ (199)	\$	218	\$	65	\$	125	\$ (420)		(211)
Depreciation and amortization	(261)		(269)		(205)		(87)			(822)
Goodwill impairment	(157)		(20))		(168)		(07)			(325)
Discontinued operations	(107)				(100)			(67)		(67)
Operating (loss) income	\$ (617)	\$	(51)	\$	(308)	\$	38	\$ (487)	(1,425)
Interest expense										(434)
Other income, net										9
Reorganization items									:	5,147
Income from continuing operations before income taxes										
and equity income										3,297
Income tax expense										(163)
Equity income, net of tax										29
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax										(97)
Net income									\$ 1	3,066
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest										29
Net income attributable to Predecessor									\$ 3	3,037

Net sales and gross margin as a percentage of net sales for the periods from August 19 to December 31 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008 by segment are as follows:

Net Sales by Segment

	Successor		Predecess	or	Variance due to:											
	Period	Period														
	from	from		Full year												
	August 19	January 1		2009 versus		Volume, net	Commodity									
	to	to	Year ended	2008	Operation	sf contractua										
	December	October	December	favorable/	not	price	pass-									
	31, 2009	6, 2009	31, 2008	(unfavorable)	acquired	reductions	through	FX	Other	Total						
	(in															
	millions)		(in million	is)			(in mi	illions)								
Electronics and Safety	\$ 761	\$ 1,801	\$ 4,048	\$ (1,486)	\$ (67)	\$ (1,263)	\$\$	6 (155)	\$ (1)	\$ (1,486)						
Powertrain Systems	957	2,667	5,368	(1,744)	(186)	(1,224)		(328)	(6)	(1,744)						
	1,325	2,970	5,649	(1,354)		(1,043)	(160)	(152)	1	(1,354)						

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Electrical/ Electronic										
Architecture										
Thermal Systems	365	1,008	2,121	(748)	(110)	(558)	(23)	(58)	1	(748)
Eliminations and Other	13	(112)	(378)	279	203	71		8	(3)	279
Total	\$ 3,421	\$ 8,334	\$ 16,808	\$ (5,053)	\$ (160)	\$ (4,017)	\$ (183) \$	(685) \$	(8) \$	(5,053)

Eliminations and Other includes \$75 million of keep site facilitation reimbursements recognized by the Predecessor during the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 as a result of the Amended MRA, which became effective in September 2008 (refer to Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for more information.)

Foreign exchange fluctuations are primarily related to the Mexican Peso, Euro, Chinese Renminbi, Turkish Lira and Brazilian Real. Gross Margin Percentage by Segment

	Successor	Prede	cessor
	Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009	Year ended December 31, 2008
Electronics and Safety	7.9%	(12.9%)	0.7%
Powertrain Systems	10.1%	2.6%	9.1%
Electrical/Electronic Architecture	14.5%	1.4%	6.4%
Thermal Systems	5.5%	3.2%	9.7%
Eliminations and Other	38.5%	49.1%	114.3%
Total EBITDA by Segment	10.9%	(1.8)%	3.9%

	Pe	cessor riod ·om		Pr	edecess	or						Vari	iance due	to:			
		gust	Period from														
		19	January 1			Full y	year 2009			Vol	ume, net						
		to ember	to October	Vea	r ended		ersus 2008	Oner	ations	s cor	of tractual						
		31,	6,	Dee	cember	fav	orable/	'n	ot		price	-	rational			_	
		009 (in	2009	31	, 2008	(unfa	avorable)	Acq	uired	ree	luctions	perf	ormance	C	Other]	fotal
		lions)		(ir	n millior	ns)						(iı	n millions)			
Electronics and Safety	\$	17	\$ (319)	\$	(199)	\$	(103)	\$	2	\$	(485)	\$	363	\$	17	\$	(103)
Powertrain Systems		9	(71)		218		(280)		17		(503)		338		(132)		(280)
Electrical/Electronic																	
Architecture		94	(132)		65		(103)				(418)		294		21		(103)
Thermal Systems		8	4		125		(113)		3		(173)		138		(81)		(113)
Eliminations and Other		1	4		(420)		425		137		(321)		260		349		425
Total	\$	129	\$ (514)	\$	(211)	\$	(174)	\$	159	\$	(1,900)	\$	1,393	\$	174	\$	(174)

As noted in the table above, Full Year 2009 EBITDA as compared to 2008 EBITDA was impacted by divestitures, volume, contractual price reductions, and operational performance improvements, which include favorable manufacturing and engineering performance offset by unfavorable material and freight economics, as well as the following items included in Other in the table above:

Increased warranty costs, primarily due to the forgiveness of \$112 million due under the warranty settlement agreement with GM during 2008 and the absence of \$28 million in warranty recovery in the Thermal Systems segment from an affiliated supplier recognized in 2008 related to previously incurred warranty costs.

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

\$35 million of increased costs associated with restructuring activities resulting in employee termination benefit cost reductions, including \$26 million and \$67 million in the Powertrain Systems and Electrical/Electronic Architecture segments, respectively, offset by decreased costs of \$39 million, \$9 million and \$10 million in the Electronics and Safety, Thermal Systems and Eliminations and Other segments, respectively.

Unfavorable foreign currency exchange impact of \$174 million including \$66 million, \$78 million, \$22 million and \$8 million in the Electronics and Safety, Powertrain Systems, Electrical/Electronic Architecture and Thermal Systems segments, respectively.

Approximately \$200 million of decreases in pension and OPEB in the Eliminations and Other segment.

\$240 million of decreased SG&A as a result of the positive effects of cost savings initiatives. Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview of Capital Structure

As of September 30, 2011, we had cash and cash equivalents of \$1.4 billion and net debt (defined as outstanding debt less cash and cash equivalents) of \$787 million. We also have access to additional liquidity pursuant to the terms of the \$1.3 billion Revolving Credit Facility as described below. Based on this, we believe we possess sufficient liquidity to fund our operations and capital investments in 2012 and beyond.

On March 31, 2011, we redeemed all outstanding Class A and Class C membership interests for \$3,791 million and \$594 million, respectively. In conjunction with the redemption transaction, we incurred transaction-related fees and expenses totaling approximately \$180 million, including amounts paid to certain membership interest holders. In addition, we obtained necessary consents to the redemption of the Class A and Class C membership interests and modified and eliminated specific rights provided to these membership interest holders under the Second LLP Agreement. Subsequent to the redemption transaction on March 31, 2011, our membership interest equity was comprised of a single voting class of membership interests, the Class B membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP. In addition to this class of voting membership interests, non-voting Class E-1 membership interests were held by the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP.

On July 12, 2011, the Third LLP Agreement was amended and restated by the Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Liability Partnership Agreement of Delphi Automotive LLP (the Fourth LLP Agreement). The Fourth LLP Agreement was undertaken to further position us for this offering. Refer to Initial Public Offering Considerations below and Note 12. Membership Interests to the unaudited consolidated financial statements for additional information.

In August 2011, the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP approved a repurchase program of Class B membership interests. As of September 30, 2011, 7,705 Class B membership interests were repurchased for a cumulative cost of approximately \$140 million at an average price per membership interests unit of \$18,261. This was recorded as a reduction to the carrying value of the Class B membership interests. Of the approximately \$140 million, approximately \$72 million was settled during the three months ended September 30, 2011, and the remaining approximately \$68 million is recorded as an accrued liability as of September 30, 2011 and was settled in October 2011. Subsequent to September 30, 2011, an additional 2,300 Class B membership interests were repurchased at a cumulative cost of approximately \$39 million at an average price of \$16,709 per membership interests unit.

Credit Agreement

Tranche A Term Loan) and a \$950 million senior secured 6-year term B loan (the Tranche B Term Loan). During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, \$36.5 million and \$137.5 million of the Tranche A Term Loan and Tranche B Term Loan,

respectively, were repaid under the Credit Agreement. In conjunction with the repayments, approximately \$8 million of debt issuance costs were extinguished. The Revolving Credit Facility was undrawn at September 30, 2011. As of September 30, 2011, we had approximately \$11 million in letters of credit issued under the Credit Agreement. Letters of credit issued under the Credit Agreement reduce availability under the Revolving Credit Facility. Further, in October 2011, the Credit Agreement was amended to be consistent with our use of a U.K. Channel Islands company as part of our anticipated corporate structure following this offering. Such amendment did not modify any of the financial terms or conditions under the Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement carries an interest rate, at Delphi Corporation s option, of either (a) the Administrative Agent s Alternate Base Rate (ABR as defined in the Credit Agreement) plus (i) with respect to the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche A Term Loan, 1.75% per annum or (ii) with respect to the Tranche B Term Loan, 1.50% per annum, or (b) the London Interbank Offered Rate (the Adjusted LIBO Rate as defined in the Credit Agreement) (LIBOR) plus (i) with respect to the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche A Term Loan, 2.75% per annum or (ii) with respect to the Tranche B Term Loan, 2.50% per annum. The Tranche B Term Loan includes a LIBOR floor of 1.00%.

The interest rate period with respect to the LIBOR interest rate option can be set at one-, two-, three-, or six-months as selected by us in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement (or other period as may be agreed by the applicable lenders), but payable no less than quarterly. Delphi Corporation may elect to change the selected interest rate over the term of the Credit Facilities in accordance with the provisions of the Credit Agreement. The applicable interest rates listed above for the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche A Term Loan may increase or decrease from time to time by 0.25% based upon changes to our corporate credit ratings. Accordingly, the interest rate will fluctuate during the term of the Credit Agreement based on changes in the ABR, LIBOR or future changes in our corporate credit ratings. Upon completion of this offering, the applicable interest rates for the Tranche A Term Loan and revolving facility will be reduced by 25 basis points. The Credit Agreement also requires that Delphi Corporation pay certain commitment fees on the unused portion of the Revolving Credit Facility and certain letter of credit issuance and fronting fees.

Delphi Corporation is obligated to make quarterly principal payments throughout the terms of the Tranche A and Tranche B Term Loans according to the amortization schedule in the Credit Agreement. In conjunction with the repayments during the nine months ended September 30, 2011, all quarterly principal payment obligations prior to maturity have been satisfied for the Tranche B Term Loan and quarterly principal payments have been satisfied through June 30, 2013 for the Tranche A Term Loan and partially satisfied through September 30, 2013. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement are prepayable at our option without premium or penalty, provided that any prepayment of the Tranche B Term Loan is accompanied by a pro rata payment of the Tranche A Term Loan (based on the respective amounts then outstanding). Delphi Corporation may request that all or a portion of the Term Loans be converted to extend the scheduled maturity date(s) with respect to all or a portion of any principal amount of such Term Loans under certain conditions. The Credit Agreement also contains certain mandatory prepayment provisions in the event we generate excess cash flow (as defined in the Credit Agreement) or we receive net cash proceeds from any asset sale or casualty event. No mandatory prepayments have been made through September 30, 2011.

As of September 30, 2011, Delphi Corporation selected the one-month LIBOR interest rate option, as detailed in the table below, and the amounts outstanding, net of the discount (in millions) and rates effective as of September 30, 2011 were:

	LIBOR plus	a Septe	rowings is of mber 30, 1011	Rates effective as of September 30, 2011
Revolving Credit Facility	2.75%	\$		%
Tranche A Term Loan	2.75%	\$	220	3.00%
Tranche B Term Loan	2.50%	\$	811	3.50%*

* Includes a LIBOR floor of 1.00%.

The Credit Agreement contains certain covenants that limit, among other things, our (and our subsidiaries) ability to incur additional indebtedness or liens, to dispose of assets, to make certain investments, to prepay certain indebtedness and to pay dividends, or to make other distributions or redemptions/repurchases, in respect of our equity interests. In addition, the Credit Agreement requires that we maintain a consolidated leverage ratio (the ratio of Consolidated Total Indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA, each as defined in the Credit Agreement) of less than 2.75 to 1.0. The Credit Agreement also contains events of default customary for financings of this type. We were in compliance with the Credit Agreement covenants as of September 30, 2011.

The Tranche A Term Loan and the Tranche B Term Loan were each issued under the original Credit Agreement at a 0.5% discount and we paid approximately \$86 million of debt issuance costs in connection with the Credit Facilities. The discount and debt issuance costs are being amortized over the life of the facility. The amended and modified Credit Agreement reduced the discount related to the Tranche B Term Loan to 0.25%.

All obligations under the Credit Agreement are borrowed by Delphi Corporation, a wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary of Delphi Automotive LLP, and jointly and severally guaranteed by its direct and indirect parent companies and by certain of Delphi Automotive LLP s existing and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions set forth in the Credit Agreement. All obligations under the Credit Agreement, including the guarantees of those obligations, are secured by certain assets of Delphi Corporation and the guarantors, including substantially all of the assets of Delphi Automotive LLP, and its domestic subsidiaries, and certain assets of Delphi Corporation s direct and indirect parent companies.

Senior Notes

On May 17, 2011, Delphi Corporation, a wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary of Delphi Automotive LLP, issued \$500 million of 5.875% senior notes due 2019 and \$500 million of 6.125% senior notes due 2021 (the Senior Notes) in a transaction exempt from registration under Rule 144A and Regulation S of the Securities Act. The Senior Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by Delphi Automotive LLP and certain of its existing and future subsidiaries. Interest is payable semi-annually on May 15 and November 15 of each year, beginning on November 15, 2011. Interest accrues from May 17, 2011. We paid approximately \$23 million of additional debt issuance costs in connection with the Senior Notes. The net proceeds of approximately \$1.0 billion as well as cash on hand were used to pay down amounts outstanding under the Tranche B Term Loan of the Credit Agreement.

The indenture governing the Senior Notes limits, among other things, our (and our subsidiaries) ability to incur additional indebtedness or liens, dispose of assets, make certain restricted payments or investments, enter into transactions with affiliates or merge with or into other entities.

Acquisition Financing

In connection with the Acquisition, (i) Delphi Automotive LLP issued \$41 million in senior unsecured five-year notes (the Old Notes) pursuant to a Note Purchase Agreement (the NPA) with an Acquisition Date fair value of \$49 million and (ii) entered into a senior secured delayed draw term loan facility (the DDTL) with a syndicate of lenders. The Old Notes paid 12% interest and were scheduled to mature on October 6, 2014. The DDTL permitted borrowings of up to \$890 million, consisting of a U.S. tranche of up to \$267 million in borrowings and a foreign tranche of up to \$623 million in borrowings. There was no commitment fee associated with the DDTL, but, if drawn, we were required to pay interest at the rate of LIBOR plus 6.0% per annum, with a minimum LIBOR amount of 2.0% per annum. The DDTL had a term of 5 years. A majority of the holders of the Old Notes and the lenders under the DDTL were related parties as holders of the Class A and Class B membership interests. See Relationships and Related Party Transactions.

In connection with the redemption of the Class A and Class C membership interests on March 31, 2011 and execution of the Credit Agreement, each of the DDTL and the NPA was terminated (including the termination,

discharge and release of all security and guarantees granted in connection with the DDTL and the NPA) and we paid approximately \$57 million to redeem the Old Notes in full. In connection with the termination of the Old Notes, we incurred early termination penalties and recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of approximately \$9 million in the first quarter of 2011.

Other Financing and Liquidity

Accounts receivable factoring We maintain various accounts receivable factoring facilities in Europe that are accounted for as short-term debt. These uncommitted factoring facilities are available through various financial institutions. As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, \$70 million and \$112 million, respectively, was outstanding under these accounts receivable factoring facilities.

Capital leases and other As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, approximately \$72 million and \$130 million, respectively, of other debt issued by certain international subsidiaries was outstanding, primarily related to bank lines in Asia Pacific and capital lease obligations.

DOE grant As part of the American Recovery & Reinvestment Act of 2009, we and the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) finalized a grant agreement through which the DOE will reimburse us for 50% of project costs up to total reimbursements of \$89 million associated with the development and manufacturing of power electronics related to electric and hybrid electric vehicles. The project period for this grant is January 2010 through December 2012. As of September 30, 2011, we have received from the DOE related project cost reimbursements of \$49 million. During the fourth quarter of 2011 and the full year of 2012, we expect to receive related project cost reimbursements from the DOE of approximately \$14 million and \$26 million, respectively.

Warranty settlement On April 30, 2011, Delphi paid 90 million (approximately \$133 million at April 30, 2011 exchange rates) under the terms of a March 2011 warranty settlement. Delphi is also required to make a 60 million (approximately \$81 million at September 30, 2011 exchange rates) payment on April 30, 2012 related to this settlement.

Distributions under the Fourth LLP Agreement Under the terms of the Fourth LLP Agreement, if the Board of Managers determines that there is available cash (as defined in the Fourth LLP Agreement), the Class B and E-1 members will receive a distribution for taxes and pursuant to the cumulative distribution provisions of available cash to enable the members to pay projected tax liabilities attributable to tax book profits and losses by us that are attributable to their membership interests. Any tax distributions will be treated as an advance of amounts otherwise distributable to the members. In October 2011, the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP approved the payment of a distribution of approximately \$95 million on December 5, 2011, principally in respect of taxes, to members who hold membership interests as of the close of business on October 31, 2011.

Contractual Commitments

The following table summarizes our expected cash outflows resulting from financial contracts and commitments as of December 31, 2010. We have not included information on our recurring purchases of materials for use in our manufacturing operations. These amounts are generally consistent from year to year, closely reflect our levels of production, and are not long-term in nature. The amounts below exclude as of December 31, 2010, the gross liability for uncertain tax positions of \$82 million related to the items below. The amounts below also exclude estimated interest costs, which are approximately \$20 million for 2011, primarily related to debt and capital lease obligations. Additionally, the principal maturities of debt exclude accretion of approximately \$6 million related to the Old Notes. We do not expect a significant payment related to these obligations to be made within the next twelve months. We are not able to provide a reasonably reliable estimate of the timing of future payments relating to the non-current portion of obligations associated with uncertain tax positions. For more information, refer to Note 16. Income Taxes to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein.

	Payments due by Period											
	Total		Total 201		2011 2012 & 20 (in millio			& 2015	Ther	eafter		
Debt and capital lease obligations	\$	283	\$	218	\$	13	\$	48	\$	4		
Operating lease obligations		301		80		119		78		24		
Contractual commitments for capital expenditures		116		116								
Other contractual purchase commitments, including information technology		129		81		44		4				
Total	\$	829	\$	495	\$	176	\$	130	\$	28		

We also have significant obligations to make payments to management under our Value Creation Plan that are not reflected in the table above. See Note 22. Share-Based Compensation to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information.

Capital Expenditures

Supplier selection in the auto industry is generally finalized several years prior to the start of production of the vehicle. Therefore, current capital expenditures are based on customer commitments entered into previously, generally several years ago when the customer contract was awarded. As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately \$116 million in outstanding cancelable and non-cancelable capital commitments. Capital expenditures by operating segment and geographic region for the periods presented were:

	Successor Period from			Predecessor				
	eı Decei	Year nded nber 31, 2010	Aug Decer	ust 19 to nber 31, 009	Janu Oct	od from ary 1 to ober 6, 2009	Decei	r ended mber 31, 2008
		(in n	nillions)			(in n	nillions)	
Electronics and Safety	\$	59	\$	14	\$	58	\$	166
Powertrain Systems		186		41		167		310
Electrical/Electronic Architecture		202		21		60		179
Thermal Systems		35		8		29		98
Eliminations and Other		18		4		7		18
Continuing operations capital expenditures		500		88		321		771
Discontinued operations						99		187
Total capital expenditures	\$	500	\$	88	\$	420	\$	958
North America	\$	140	\$	21	\$	91	\$	278
Europe, Middle East & Africa		236		51		187		329
Asia Pacific		87		6		28		123
South America		37		10		15		41
Continuing operations capital expenditures		500		88		321		771
Discontinued operations						99		187
Total capital expenditures	\$	500	\$	88	\$	420	\$	958

Cash Flows

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Intra-month cash flow cycles vary by region, but in general we are users of cash through the first half of a typical month and we generate cash during the latter half of a typical month. Due to this cycle of cash flows, we may utilize short-term financing, including our Revolving Credit Facility, to manage our intra-month working capital needs. Our cash balance typically peaks at month end.

Cash in the U.S. is managed centrally through a U.S. cash pooling arrangement. During 2010, Delphi began the process of establishing a pan-European cash pool. As of September 30, 2011, most European countries were participating in the European cash pool. Additional European countries are scheduled to join the European cash pool in the coming quarter. Delphi anticipates that the pan-European cash pool will become fully operational by the end of 2011. Outside the U.S. and those countries participating in the pan-European cash pool, cash may be managed through a country cash pool, a self-managed cash flow arrangement or a combination of the two depending on Delphi s presence in the respective country.

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities totaled \$909 million and \$855 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The \$54 million increase primarily reflects higher earnings resulting from increased volumes, partially offset by higher working capital requirements. Cash flow from operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 consisted of net earnings of \$911 million increased by \$356 million for non-cash charges for depreciation and amortization, partially offset by \$428 million related to changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of restructuring and pension and other postretirement contributions. Cash flow from operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 consisted of net earnings of \$612 million increased by \$311 million for non-cash charges for depreciation and amortization, partially offset by \$418 million for non-cash charges for depreciation and other postretirement contributions. Cash flow from operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 consisted of net earnings of \$612 million increased by \$311 million for non-cash charges for depreciation and amortization, partially offset by \$84 million related to changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of restructuring and pension and other postretirement contributions.

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled \$1,142 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, which resulted primarily from improved operating earnings resulting from increased sales growth and improved operational performance resulting from previous restructuring activities. These improvements resulted in the significant cash flow generated from operations, which consisted of net earnings of \$703 million increased by \$421 million for non-cash charges for depreciation and amortization, partially offset by \$9 million related to changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of restructuring and pension and other postretirement contributions.

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled \$159 million for the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009, which resulted primarily from the improvements in OEM production volumes during the fourth quarter of 2009, resulting in near break-even net earnings increased by \$139 million for non-cash charges for depreciation and amortization. Net cash used in operating activities totaled \$257 million for the Predecessor period from January 1 to October 6, 2009, which primarily reflected the decreased OEM production volumes during this period.

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled \$455 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, reflecting the net cash received from GM totaling \$1.1 billion as a result of the effectiveness of the Amended GSA and the Amended MRA as further described in Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein. Offsetting this cash received, cash flow from operating activities was negatively impacted by operating challenges due to lower North American production volumes, related pricing pressures stemming from increasingly competitive markets and the overall slowdown in the global economy. Cash flow from operating activities was further reduced for the year ended December 31, 2008 by contributions to our U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans of \$383 million and OPEB payments of \$216 million, cash paid to employees in conjunction with the U.S. employee workforce transition programs of \$219 million, payments of \$442 million of interest and \$78 million of incentive compensation to executives and U.S. salaried employees, and payments of \$104 million of reorganization related costs.

Investing Activities. Net cash provided by investing activities totaled \$175 million and net cash used in investing activities totaled \$148 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The increase is primarily due to the net change of \$550 million related to maturities/purchases of time deposits, partially offset by a \$173 million increase in capital expenditures and a \$45 million decrease in proceeds from divestitures.

Net cash used in investing activities totaled \$911 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, which resulted primarily from capital expenditures of \$500 million, or approximately 3.6% of net sales. We continually focus on selectively expending capital to support new business as well as to maximize cost efficiencies. Net cash used was also impacted by the purchase of \$550 million of time deposits, net of time deposit maturities during the year. Partially offsetting these items were net proceeds of \$93 million received from divestitures and sales of property, principally the sale of the occupant protection systems business in Asia.

Net cash provided by investing activities totaled \$885 million for the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009, which resulted primarily from \$862 million acquired from the Predecessor as a result of the Acquisition. In addition, cash used for capital expenditures of \$88 million for the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009 were offset by \$74 million in proceeds from the sale of the brakes and suspensions and occupant protection systems businesses and a \$28 million decrease in restricted cash. Net cash used in investing activities totaled \$1,052 million for the Predecessor period from January 1 to October 6, 2009, which resulted primarily from \$862 million acquired by the Successor as a result of the Acquisition. Additionally, cash used for capital expenditures of \$321 million for the Predecessor period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 was offset by decreases in restricted cash of \$142 million.

Cash flows used in investing activities totaled \$958 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. The principal use of cash in 2008 reflected capital expenditures related to ongoing operations and an increase in restricted cash related to the U.S. employee workforce transition programs of approximately \$230 million. The increase in restricted cash during the year ended December 31, 2008 primarily related to a total of the \$323 million of cash collateral required under the debtor-in-possession credit facility, including \$123 million related to outstanding letters of credit at December 31, 2008, offset by attrition payments. Offsetting the cash flows used in investing activities were proceeds from divestitures.

Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing activities totaled \$2,908 million and \$117 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Net cash used in financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 was driven by the redemption of the Class A and Class C membership interests for \$4,566 million and the repurchase of Class B membership interests for \$72 million, offset by the proceeds received, net of repayments, from the issuance of debt to partially fund the redemption transaction and the repayment of the Old Notes, of \$1,865 million.

Net cash used in financing activities totaled \$126 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, which resulted from \$99 million of net repayments under debt agreements and \$27 million of dividend payments to minority shareholders of consolidated affiliates.

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled \$2,062 million for the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009, which resulted from the \$2,042 million of cash received associated with the issuance of Class A and Class B membership interests in us. Net cash provided by financing activities totaled \$315 million for the Predecessor period from January 1 to October 6, 2009. During this period the Predecessor received \$850 million under GM liquidity support agreements and repaid \$488 million under the amended and restated debtor-in-possession facility and short-term debt agreements.

Net cash provided by financing activities was \$465 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 and primarily reflected increased borrowings under the amended and restated debtor-in-possession credit facility.

Initial Public Offering Considerations

Under certain conditions with respect to an initial public offering or a change in control, as defined in the Board of Managers 2010 Class E-1 Interest Incentive Plan, any interests that have not yet vested may immediately vest. All unvested Class E-1 membership interests will fully vest in the event of a completed initial public offering if the resulting total equity valuation of the Company (based on the average closing price of our

ordinary shares during the 15-day period beginning on the 30th day after the closing of the offering), plus the value of prior distributions made under the LLP Agreement to holders of membership interests (as well as \$4.4 billion paid to repurchase Class A and Class C membership interests (see Note 1. Description of Business to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included herein), any Class B membership interest repurchases, any additional distributions to Class B and Class E-1 membership interest holders and any amounts distributed or paid to holders of Class E-1 membership interests with respect to or to repurchase their Class E-1 membership interests), is at least \$6 billion. Based on the initial public offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus, we expect this value to exceed \$6 billion.

Approximately \$8 million of compensation expense will be recognized through the remainder of the vesting period. This amount would be recognized immediately if the criteria for immediate vesting are met.

The Fourth LLP Agreement was undertaken to further position us for a potential initial public offering, including, among other provisions, the creation of drag-along rights that require, if holders of a majority of Class B membership interests request, that all Class B membership interest holders sell a portion of their holdings in an initial public offering, with Delphi paying for the cost of the underwriting spread.

Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits

Prior to the PBGC termination of the U.S. pension plans, the Predecessor sponsored pension plans covering employees in the U.S., which generally provided benefits of stated amounts for each year of service, as well as supplemental benefits for employees who qualified for retirement before normal retirement age. Certain employees also participated in non-qualified pension plans covering executives, which are based on targeted wage replacement percentages and are unfunded. The Predecessor froze the salaried plan, the Supplemental Executive Retirement Program, the ASEC Manufacturing Retirement Program, the Delphi Mechatronics Retirement Program and the PHI Non-Bargaining Retirement Plan (collectively, the Pension Plans) effective September 30, 2008. Additionally, the Predecessor reached agreement with its labor unions resulting in a freeze of traditional benefit accruals under the Delphi hourly-rate employees pension plan effective as of November 30, 2008.

The PBGC terminated the Pension Plans on July 31, 2009. Accordingly, the Predecessor recognized a pension curtailment and settlement loss of \$2.8 billion included in reorganization items in the consolidated statements of operations for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2009. This loss included the reversal of \$5.2 billion of liabilities subject to compromise related to the Pension Plans offset by the recognition of \$5.0 billion of related unamortized losses previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and the recognition of a \$3.0 billion allowed general unsecured non-priority claim granted to the PBGC.

On February 4, 2009, the Predecessor filed a motion with the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the Court) seeking the authority to cease providing retiree OPEB benefits in retirement to salaried employees, retirees, and surviving spouses after March 31, 2009. On February 24, 2009, the Court provisionally approved the Predecessor s motion to terminate such benefits effective March 31, 2009 based on the Court s finding that the Predecessor had met its evidentiary burdens, subject to the appointment of a retirees committee (the Retirees Committee) to review whether it believes that any of the affected programs involved vested benefits (as opposed to at will or discretionary, unvested benefits). On March 11, 2009, the Court issued a final order approving the Predecessor s motion to terminate salaried OPEB benefits. The Court approved a settlement agreement (the Settlement), between the Predecessor and the Retirees Committee and the Delphi Salaried Retirees Association (the Association) settling any and all rights for the parties to appeal the Court s March 11, 2009 final order authorizing the Predecessor to terminate salaried OPEB benefits. Pursuant to the Settlement, the Predecessor agreed to provide the Retirees Committee with consideration of \$9 million to resolve pending litigation. The Predecessor recognized a salaried OPEB curtailment and settlement gain of \$1,168 million included in reorganization items in the consolidated statement of operations for the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009. This settlement gain reflects the reversal of existing liabilities of \$1,173 million

(\$1,181 million net of \$8 million to pay salaried OPEB claims incurred but not reported as of March 31, 2009) and the recognition of previously unamortized net gains included in accumulated other comprehensive income of \$4 million. The reorganization gain also reflects the impact of the \$9 million consideration to be provided for the Settlement described above.

Certain of our non-U.S. subsidiaries sponsor defined benefit pension plans, which generally provide benefits based on negotiated amounts for each year of service. Our primary non-U.S. plans are located in France, Germany, Luxembourg, Mexico, Portugal and the United Kingdom (UK). The UK and certain Mexican plans are funded. In addition, we have defined benefit plans in South Korea, Turkey and Italy for which amounts are payable to employees immediately upon separation. The obligations for these plans are recorded based on the vested obligation. We anticipate making required pension contributions of approximately \$103 million in 2011.

Refer to Note 14. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for further information on (1) historical benefit costs of the pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans, (2) the principal assumptions used to determine the pension and other postretirement expense and the actuarial value of the projected benefit obligation for the U.S. and non-U.S. pension plan and postretirement plans, (3) a sensitivity analysis of potential changes to pension obligations and expense that would result from changes in key assumptions and (4) funding obligations.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to the requirements of U.S. federal, state and local, and non-U.S., environmental and safety and health laws and regulations. These include laws regulating air emissions, water discharge, hazardous materials and waste management. We have an environmental management structure designed to facilitate and support our compliance with these requirements globally. Although it is our intent to comply with all such requirements and regulations, we cannot provide assurance that we are at all times in compliance. Environmental requirements are complex, change frequently and have tended to become more stringent over time. Accordingly, we cannot assure that environmental requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that our eventual environmental remediation costs and liabilities will not be material.

Certain environmental laws assess liability on current or previous owners or operators of real property for the cost of removal or remediation of hazardous substances. In addition to clean-up actions brought by U.S. federal, state, local and non-U.S. agencies, plaintiffs could raise personal injury or other private claims due to the presence of hazardous substances on or from a property. We are currently in the process of investigating and cleaning up some of our current or former sites. In addition, there may be soil or groundwater contamination at several of our properties resulting from historical, ongoing or nearby activities.

As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the undiscounted reserve for environmental investigation and remediation was approximately \$23 million (of which \$4 million was recorded in accrued liabilities and \$19 million was recorded in other long-term liabilities) and \$23 million (of which \$5 million was recorded in accrued liabilities and \$18 million was recorded in other long-term liabilities), respectively. We cannot ensure that environmental requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that our eventual environmental remediation costs and liabilities will not exceed the amount of our current reserves. In the event that such liabilities were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded, our results of operations could be materially affected.

Legal Proceedings

For a description of our legal proceedings, see Business Legal Proceedings.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not engage in any off-balance sheet financial arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Significant Accounting Policies and Critical Accounting Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein. Certain of our accounting policies require the application of significant judgment by management in selecting the appropriate assumptions for calculating financial estimates. By their nature, these judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. These judgments are based on our historical experience, terms of existing contracts, our evaluation of trends in the industry, information provided by our customers and information available from other outside sources, as appropriate.

We consider an accounting estimate to be critical if:

It requires us to make assumptions about matters that were uncertain at the time we were making the estimate, and

Changes in the estimate or different estimates that we could have selected would have had a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

Acquisition Accounting

Upon the Acquisition the recorded amounts for the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed from the Predecessor were adjusted to reflect estimated fair values in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 805, Business Combinations. The fair values were estimated in accordance with the guidance in FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, and were based on three generally accepted business valuation approaches: the income, market, and cost approaches. Generally, the income and market approaches were used and weighted by the independent valuation specialists as appropriate.

The discounted cash flow (DCF) method is a form of the income approach commonly used to value business interests. The DCF method was based on Company-prepared projections which included a variety of estimates and assumptions. While we consider such estimates and assumptions reasonable, they are inherently subject to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control and, therefore, may not be realized. Changes in these estimates and assumptions may have a significant effect on the determination of the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the Acquisition. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the estimates, assumptions, and values reflected in the valuations will be realized, and actual results could vary materially.

Other estimates used in determining fair value include, but are not limited to, future cash flows or income related to intangibles, market rate assumptions, actuarial assumptions for benefit plans and appropriate discount rates. Our estimates of fair value are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but that are inherently uncertain. Acquisition accounting along with the consummation of the Modified Plan and the disposition of the Predecessor has had a material effect on the financial statements. Refer to Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information.

Warranty Obligations

Estimating warranty obligations requires us to forecast the resolution of existing claims and expected future claims on products sold. We base our estimate on historical trends of units sold and payment amounts, combined

with our current understanding of the status of existing claims and discussions with our customers. The key factors which impact our estimates are (1) the stated or implied warranty period; (2) OEM source; (3) OEM policy decisions regarding warranty claims; and (4) OEMs seeking to hold suppliers responsible for product warranties. These estimates are re-evaluated on an ongoing basis. Actual warranty obligations could differ from the amounts estimated requiring adjustments to existing reserves in future periods. Due to the uncertainty and potential volatility of the factors contributing to developing these estimates, changes in our assumptions could materially affect our results of operations.

Environmental Matters

Environmental remediation liabilities are recognized when a loss is probable and can be reasonably estimated. Such liabilities generally are not subject to insurance coverage. The cost of each environmental remediation is estimated by engineering, financial, and legal specialists based on current law and considers the estimated cost of investigation and remediation required and the likelihood that, where applicable, other responsible parties will be able to fulfill their legal obligations and commitments. The process of estimating environmental remediation liabilities is complex and dependent primarily on the nature and extent of historical information and physical data relating to a contaminated site, the complexity of the site, the uncertainty as to what remediation and technology will be required, and the outcome of discussions with regulatory agencies and, if applicable, other responsible parties. In future periods, new laws or regulations, advances in remediation technologies and additional information about the ultimate remediation methodology to be used could significantly change estimates by Delphi. Refer to Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional details. We cannot ensure that environmental requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that our eventual environmental costs and liabilities will not exceed the amount of current reserves. In the event that such liabilities were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded, our results of operations could be materially affected.

Restructuring

Accruals have been recorded in conjunction with our restructuring actions. These accruals include estimates primarily related to employee termination costs, contract termination costs and other related exit costs in conjunction with workforce reduction and programs related to the rationalization of manufacturing and engineering processes. Actual costs may vary from these estimates. These accruals are reviewed on a quarterly basis and changes to restructuring actions are appropriately recognized when identified.

Pensions

We use actuarial estimated and related actuarial methods to calculate our obligation and expense. We are required to select certain actuarial assumptions, which are determined based on current market conditions, historical information and consultation with and input from our actuaries and asset managers. Refer to Note 14. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional details. The key factors which impact our estimates are (1) discount rates; (2) asset return assumptions; and (3) actuarial assumptions such as retirement age and mortality which are determined as of the current year measurement date. We review our actuarial assumptions on an annual basis and make modifications to the assumptions based on current rates and trends when appropriate. Experience gains and losses, as well as the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and plan provisions are amortized over the average future service period of employees.

The principal assumptions used to determine the pension and other postretirement expense and the actuarial value of the projected benefit obligation for the U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans and postretirement plans were:

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31:

		Pension Benefits				Other Postretirement Benefits		
	U.S. P	U.S. Plans		Non-U.S. Plans				
	2010	2009	2010	2009	2010	2009		
Weighted-average discount rate	4.10%	5.00%	5.69%	6.00%	4.52%	5.26%		
Weighted-average rate of increase in								
compensation levels	N/A	N/A	3.88%	3.90%	4.50%	4.50%		
Assumptions used to determine net expense	for years ended De	cember 31:						

Pension Benefits U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans **Other Postretirement Benefits** 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008 6.41% 5.97% 6.22% 5.99% 5.20% 6.12% Weighted-average discount rate 5.00% 6.16% 6.35% Weighted-average rate of increase in 4.45% 3.95% 4.50% 4.50% compensation levels N/A N/A 3 89% 4.16% 4.50% Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets N/A 8.25% 8.75% 7.14% 7.81% 8.28% N/A N/A N/A

We select discount rates by analyzing the results of matching each plan s projected benefit obligations with a portfolio of high-quality fixed income investments rated AA- or higher by Standard and Poor s.

In 2010, we no longer had any U.S. pension assets; therefore no U.S. asset rate of return calculation was necessary for 2010. The primary funded non-U.S. plans are in the United Kingdom and Mexico. For the determination of 2010 expense, we assumed a long-term asset rate of return of approximately 6.75% and 10.0% for the United Kingdom and Mexico, respectively. We evaluated input from local actuaries and asset managers, including consideration of recent fund performance and historical returns, in developing the long-term rate of return assumptions. The assumptions for the United Kingdom and Mexico are primarily conservative long-term, prospective rates.

Our pension expense for 2011 is determined at the December 31, 2010 measurement date. For purposes of analysis, the following table highlights the sensitivity of our pension obligations and expense to changes in key assumptions:

Change in Assumption	Impact on Pension Expense	Impact on PBO
25 basis point (bp) decrease in discount rate	+ \$2 million	+ \$63 million
25 bp increase in discount rate	- \$3 million	- \$59 million
25 bp decrease in long-term return on assets	+ \$2 million	
25 bp increase in long-term return on assets	- \$2 million	

The above sensitivities reflect the effect of changing one assumption at a time. It should be noted that economic factors and conditions often affect multiple assumptions simultaneously and the effects of changes in key assumptions are not necessarily linear. The above sensitivities also assume no changes to the design of the pension plans and no major restructuring programs.

Based on information provided by our actuaries and asset managers, we believe that the assumptions used are reasonable; however, changes in these assumptions could impact our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Refer to Note 14. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information.

Accounts Receivable Allowance

Establishing valuation allowances for doubtful accounts requires the use of estimates and judgment in regard to the risk exposure and ultimate realization. The allowance for doubtful accounts is established based upon analysis of trade receivables for known collectability issues, including bankruptcies, and aging of receivables at the end of each period. Changes to our assumptions could materially affect our recorded allowance.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets, Intangible Assets and Investments in Affiliates and Expected Useful Lives

We periodically review the recoverability of our long-lived and indefinite-lived assets based on projections of anticipated future cash flows, including future profitability assessments of various manufacturing sites when events and circumstances warrant such a review. We estimate cash flows and fair value using internal budgets based on recent sales data, independent automotive production volume estimates and customer commitments and review of appraisals. The key factors which impact our estimates are (1) future production estimates; (2) customer preferences and decisions; (3) product pricing; (4) manufacturing and material cost estimates; and (5) product life / business retention. Any differences in actual results from the estimates could result in fair values different from the estimated fair values, which could materially impact our future results of operations and financial condition. We believe that the projections of anticipated future cash flows and fair value assumptions are reasonable; however, changes in assumptions underlying these estimates could affect our valuations.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in, first-out basis, or market, including direct material costs and direct and indirect manufacturing costs. Refer to Note 4. Inventories to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein. Obsolete inventory is identified based on analysis of inventory for known obsolescence issues, and, as of December 31, 2010, the market value of inventory on hand in excess of one year s supply is generally fully-reserved.

From time to time, payments may be received from suppliers. These payments from suppliers are recognized as a reduction of the cost of the material acquired during the period to which the payments relate. In some instances, supplier rebates are received in conjunction with or concurrent with the negotiation of future purchase agreements and these amounts are amortized over the prospective agreement period.

Income Taxes

We estimate whether recoverability of our deferred tax assets is more likely than not. We use historical and projected future operating results, based upon approved business plans, including a review of the eligible carryforward period, tax planning opportunities and other relevant considerations. The key factors that impact our estimates are (1) variances in future projected profitability, including by taxable entity; (2) tax attributes; and (3) tax planning alternatives. The valuation of deferred tax assets requires judgment and accounting for the deferred tax effect of events that have been recorded in the financial statements or in the tax returns and our future projected profitability represents our best estimate of those future events. Changes in our estimates, due to unanticipated events or otherwise, could have a material effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Additionally, the calculation of our tax expense/benefits and liabilities includes uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations in a multitude of jurisdictions across our global operations. We recognize tax expense/benefits and liabilities based on our estimate of whether and to what extent additional taxes will be due. We adjust these liabilities based on changing facts and circumstances; however, due to the complexity of some of the uncertainties and the impact of the settlement of any tax audits, the ultimate resolutions may be materially different from our estimated liabilities. Refer to Note 16. Income Taxes to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information.

Delphi Automotive LLP filed an informational 2009 U.S. federal partnership tax return on September 15, 2010. In light of the Notice, the IRS is currently reviewing whether Section 7874 applies to Delphi Automotive LLP s acquisition of the automotive supply and other businesses of the Predecessor. While we believe, based on the advice of counsel, that it is more likely than not that neither we, nor Delphi Automotive LLP are a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and therefore have not reserved any amounts on our financial statements in respect of this issue, no assurance can be given that the IRS will not contend that Delphi Automotive LLP, and therefore we, should each be treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, or that, if we were to challenge any such contention by the IRS, that a court would not agree with the IRS.

If we were treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we would be subject to U.S. federal income tax on our worldwide taxable income, including some or all of the distributions from our subsidiaries as well as some of the undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries that constitute controlled foreign corporations. This could have a material adverse impact on our future tax liability related to these distributions and earnings. Future cash distributions made by us to non-U.S. shareholders could be subject to U.S. income tax withholding at a rate of 30%, unless reduced or eliminated by a tax treaty. In addition, we could be liable for additional U.S. federal income taxes on such distributions and earnings, and for the failure by Delphi Automotive LLP to withhold U.S. income taxes on distributions to its non-U.S. members, for periods beginning on or after, the Acquisition Date, which liability could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

Fair Value Measurement of Derivative Instruments

In determining the fair value of our derivatives, we utilize valuation techniques as prescribed by FASB ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, and also prioritize the use of observable inputs. The availability of observable inputs varies amongst derivatives and depends on the type of derivative and how actively traded the derivative is. For many of our derivatives, the valuation does not require significant management judgment as the valuation inputs are readily observable in the market. For other derivatives, however, valuation inputs are not as readily observable in the market, and significant management judgment may be required.

All derivative instruments are required to be reported on the balance sheet at fair value unless the transactions qualify and are designated as normal purchases or sales. Changes in fair value are reported currently through earnings unless they meet hedge accounting criteria. Our derivative exposures are with counterparties with long-term investment grade credit ratings. We estimate the fair value of our derivative contracts using an income approach based on valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single, discounted amount. Estimates of the fair value of foreign currency and commodity derivative instruments are determined using exchange traded prices and rates. We also consider the risk of non-performance in the estimation of fair value, and include an adjustment for non-performance risk in the measure of fair value of derivative instruments. The non-performance risk adjustment reflects the full CDS applied to the net commodity and foreign currency exposures by counterparty. When we are in a net derivative asset position, the counterparty CDS rates are applied to the net derivative asset position. When we are in a net derivative position, estimates of peer companies CDS rates are applied to the net derivative liability position.

In certain instances where market data is not available, we use management judgment to develop assumptions that are used to determine fair value. This could include situations of market illiquidity for a particular currency or commodity or where observable market data may be limited. In those situations, we generally survey investment banks and/or brokers and utilize the surveyed prices and rates in estimating fair value.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, we were in a net derivative asset position of \$76 million and \$4 million, respectively, and there were no adjustments recorded for nonperformance risk as exposures were to counterparties with investment grade credit ratings. Refer to Note 18. Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Derivatives and Hedging Activities to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for more information.

Share-Based Compensation

We expense the estimated fair value of the Value Creation Plan (as defined and further discussed in Note 22. Share-Based Compensation to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein), a long-term incentive plan for key employees. Estimating the fair value for share-based payments requires us to make assumptions regarding the nature of the payout of the award as well as our enterprise value. Any differences in actual results from management s estimates could result in fair values different from estimated fair values, which could materially impact our future results of operations and financial condition. The following highlights the sensitivity to changes in our enterprise value:

	Impact on 2011
Change in Estimate of Enterprise Value	Operating Expense
+ 10%	+ \$12 million
- 10%	- \$12 million
The fair market value of the Class E-1 Interests (as defined and further discussed in Note 22. Share-Based Compensation	to the audited
consolidated financial statements included herein) was estimated based on a contemporaneous valuation performed by an in	dependent valuation
specialist, utilizing generally accepted valuation approaches. Under certain conditions with respect to an initial public offeri	ng or a change in
control, as defined in the Board of Managers 2010 Class E-1 Interest Incentive Plan, any interests that have not yet vested n	nay immediately
become vested. Approximately \$8 million of compensation expense will be recognized through the remainder of the vesting	g period. This amount

Refer to Note 22. Share-Based Compensation to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information.

would be recognized immediately as a charge to compensation expense if the criteria for immediate vesting are met.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included herein for a complete description of recent accounting standards which we have not yet been required to implement which may be applicable to our operations. Additionally the significant accounting standards that have been adopted during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 are described.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risks from changes in currency exchange rates and certain commodity prices. In order to manage these risks, we operate a centralized risk management program that consists of entering into a variety of derivative contracts with the intent of mitigating our risk to fluctuations in currency exchange rates and commodity prices. We do not enter into derivative transactions for speculative or trading purposes.

A discussion of our accounting policies for derivative instruments is included in Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein and further disclosure is provided in Note 18. Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Derivatives and Hedging Activities to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein. We maintain risk management control systems to monitor exchange and commodity risks and related hedge positions. Positions are monitored using a variety of analytical techniques including market value and sensitivity analysis. The following analyses are based on sensitivity tests, which assume instantaneous, parallel shifts in currency exchange rates and commodity prices. For options and instruments with non-linear returns, appropriate models are utilized to determine the impact of shifts in rates and prices. Currently, we do not have any options or instruments with non-linear returns.

We have currency exposures related to buying, selling and financing in currencies other than the local currencies in which we operate. Historically, we have reduced our exposure through financial instruments

(hedges) that provide offsets or limits to our exposures, which are opposite to the underlying transactions. We also face an inherent business risk of exposure to commodity prices risks, and have historically offset our exposure, particularly to changes in the price of various non-ferrous metals used in our manufacturing operations, through fixed price purchase agreements, commodity swaps and option contracts. We continue to manage our exposures to changes in currency rates and commodity prices using these derivative instruments.

There have been no material changes to our exposures to market risk since December 31, 2010, except related to interest rate risk.

Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Currency exposures may impact future earnings and/or operating cash flows. In some instances, we choose to reduce our exposures through financial instruments (hedges) that provide offsets or limits to our exposures. Currently our most significant currency exposures relate to the Mexican Peso, Euro, Chinese Yuan (Renminbi), Turkish Lira and Great Britain Pound. As of December 31, 2010 the net fair value asset of all financial instruments (hedges and underlying transactions) with exposure to currency risk was approximately \$794 million and the net fair value asset at December 31, 2009 was \$566 million. The potential loss or gain in fair value for such financial instruments from a hypothetical 10% adverse or favorable change in quoted currency exchange rates would be approximately \$137 million and \$87 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The impact of a 10% change in rates on fair value differs from a 10% change in the net fair value asset due to the existence of hedges. The model assumes a parallel shift in currency exchange rates; however, currency exchange rates rarely move in the same direction. The assumption that currency exchange rates change in a parallel fashion may overstate the impact of changing currency exchange rates on assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar.

Commodity Price Risk

Commodity swaps/average rate forward contracts are executed to offset a portion of our exposure to the potential change in prices mainly for various non-ferrous metals used in the manufacturing of automotive components. The net fair value of our contracts was an asset of approximately \$48 million and an asset of approximately \$5 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. If the price of the commodities that are being hedged by our commodity swaps/average rate forward contracts changed adversely or favorably by 10%, the fair value of our commodity swaps/average rate forward contracts would decrease or increase by \$24 million and \$11 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The changes in the net fair value liability differ from 10% of those balances due to the relative differences between the underlying commodity prices and the prices in place in our commodity swaps/average rate forward contracts. These amounts exclude the offsetting impact of the price risk inherent in the physical purchase of the underlying commodities.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk associated with changes in interest rates relates primarily to our debt obligations. As of September 30, 2011, we had approximately \$1.0 billion of floating rate debt principally related to the Credit Agreement. The Credit Agreement carries an interest rate, at our option, of either (a) the ABR plus (i) with respect to the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche A Term Loan, 1.75% per annum or (ii) with respect to the Tranche B Term Loan, 1.50% per annum, or (b) LIBOR plus (i) with respect to the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche A Term Loan, 2.75% per annum or (ii) with respect to the Tranche B Term Loan, 2.50% per annum. The Tranche B Term Loan includes a LIBOR floor of 1.00%. The interest rate period with respect to the LIBOR interest rate option can be set at one-, two-, three-, or six-months as selected by us in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement (or other period as may be agreed by the applicable lenders), but payable no less than quarterly. We may elect to change the selected interest rate over the term of the Credit Facilities in accordance with the provisions of the Credit Agreement. The applicable interest rates listed above for the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche A Term Loan may increase or decrease from time to time by

0.25% based on changes to our corporate credit ratings. Accordingly, the interest rate will fluctuate during the term of the Credit Agreement based on changes in the Alternate Base Rate, LIBOR or future changes in our corporate credit ratings.

The table below indicates interest rate sensitivity on interest expense to floating rate debt based on amounts outstanding as of September 30, 2011.

	Tranche A	Tranche B		
	Term Loan	Term Loan		
	(impact to a	(impact to annual interest		
Change in Rate	expense in	expense in millions)		
25 bps decrease	- \$1	- \$2*		
25 bps increase	+ \$1	+ \$2		

* LIBOR floor of 1.00% prohibits a 25 basis point reduction at current LIBOR levels.

BUSINESS

Our Company

We are a leading global vehicle components manufacturer and provide electrical and electronic, powertrain, safety and thermal technology solutions to the global automotive and commercial vehicle markets. We are one of the largest vehicle component manufacturers, and our customers include the 25 largest automotive OEMs in the world. We operate 110 manufacturing facilities and 15 major technical centers utilizing a regional service model that enables us to efficiently and effectively serve our global customers from low cost countries. We have a presence in 30 countries and have over 16,000 scientists, engineers and technicians focused on developing market relevant product solutions for our customers. In line with the growth in the emerging markets, we have been increasing our focus on these markets, in particular in China, where we have a major manufacturing base and strong customer relationships.

We believe we are well-positioned for growth from increasing global vehicle production volumes, increased demand for our Safe, Green and Connected products which are being added to vehicle content, and new business wins with existing and new customers. In order to transform its business portfolio and rationalize its cost structure, the former Delphi Corporation and certain of its U.S. subsidiaries filed for Chapter 11 protection in October 2005. As a result of the actions taken by the Predecessor and Delphi Automotive LLP s continuing efforts following its acquisition of the majority of the Predecessor s businesses in October 2009, we have substantially reduced our costs, aligned our product offerings with the faster-growing industry mega trends and re-aligned our manufacturing footprint into an efficient regional service model, allowing us to increase our profit margins.

We believe the automotive industry is being shaped by increasing government regulations for vehicle safety, fuel efficiency and emissions control, as well as rapidly increasing consumer demand for connectivity. These industry mega trends, which we refer to as Safe, Green and Connected, are driving higher growth in products that address these trends than growth in the automotive industry overall. We have reorganized our business into four diversified segments, which enable us to develop solutions and manufacture highly-engineered products that enable our customers to respond to these mega trends:

Electrical / Electronic Architecture This segment provides complete design of the vehicle s electrical architecture, including connectors, wiring assemblies and harnesses, electrical centers and hybrid power distribution systems. Our products provide the critical electrical and electronics backbone that supports increased vehicle content and electrification, reduced emissions and higher fuel economy through weight savings.

Powertrain Systems This segment provides systems integration of full end-to-end gasoline and diesel engine management systems including fuel handling, fuel injection, combustion, electronic controls and test and validation capabilities. We design solutions to optimize powertrain power and performance while helping our customers meet new emissions and fuel economy regulations.

Electronics and Safety This segment provides critical components, systems and advanced software for passenger safety, security, comfort and infotainment, as well as vehicle operation, including body controls, reception systems, audio/video/navigation systems, hybrid vehicle power electronics, displays and mechatronics. Our products integrate and optimize electronic content, which improves fuel economy, reduces emissions, increases safety and provides occupant infotainment and connectivity.

Thermal Systems This segment provides powertrain cooling and heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) systems, such as compressors, systems and controls, and heat exchangers for the vehicle markets. Our products improve the efficiency by which the powertrain and cabin temperatures are managed, which are critical factors in achieving increased fuel economy and reduced emissions.

Our business is diversified across end-markets, regions, customers, vehicle platforms and products. Our customer base includes the 25 largest automotive OEMs in the world, and, in 2010, 24% of our net sales came from emerging markets (Asia Pacific and South America). Our six largest platforms in 2010 were with six different OEMs. In addition, in 2010 our products were found in 17 of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in the United States, in all of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in Europe and in 13 of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in China. We have further diversified our business by increasing our sales in the commercial vehicle market, which is typically on a different business cycle than the light vehicle market and has grown to 8% of our 2010 net sales. In addition, approximately 8% of our 2010 net sales were to the aftermarket, which meets the ongoing need for replacement parts required for vehicle servicing.

(1) Includes aftermarket sales, which comprised 8% of our 2010 revenue.

(2) General Motors North America (GMNA) and General Motors International Operations (GMIO) are segments of General Motors Company (GM) and together represent 21% of our 2010 revenue.

We have substantially restructured and transformed our business to achieve a lean cost structure and global footprint to compete profitably in our industry. Since 2005, we have reduced our product lines from 119 to 33, exited 11 businesses, closed over 70 sites, and decreased our global headcount, including temporary employees, by approximately 23%. As a result of our transformation, 91% of our hourly workforce is now located in low cost countries. In addition, approximately 30% of our hourly workforce is composed of temporary employees, making it easier for us to flex our workforce as volumes change. We no longer have any employees represented by the UAW. In addition, we do not have any significant U.S. defined benefit pension or OPEB obligations.

We have established a worldwide design and manufacturing footprint with a regional service model that enables us to efficiently and effectively serve our global customers from low cost countries. This regional model is structured primarily to service the North American market from Mexico, the South American market from Brazil, the European market from Eastern Europe and North Africa, and the Asia Pacific market from China. Our global scale and regional service model enables us to engineer globally and execute regionally to serve the largest OEMs, which are seeking suppliers that can serve them on a worldwide basis. Our footprint also enables us to adapt to the regional design variations the global OEMs require and serve the emerging market OEMs.

Together, our cost reductions and re-alignment of our manufacturing footprint have substantially increased our profit margins and operational flexibility. Our business model is now designed to be profitable at all points in the normal automotive business cycle. For example, in 2010, we would have maintained positive EBITDA even if volumes were approximately 30% below actual industry production volumes (or global production of 55 million vehicles rather than 78 million vehicles), assuming constant pricing and product and regional mix and based on our fixed cost structure in 2010 of approximately \$3.2 billion and our variable costs which approximated two-thirds of sales in 2010; actual pricing, product and regional mix would likely differ in any future downturn. Our business model also has operating leverage, from which we believe we will benefit as our production volumes increase due to forecasted industry growth, content growth, and new business wins. We do

not believe we will need to add substantial manufacturing capacity over the next several years to support this growth. We have had significant success winning new business with existing and new customers on both global platforms and on regional specific platforms. In 2010, we won business that we estimate will represent \$20 billion of gross anticipated revenues based on expected volumes and assumed pricing. In the first nine months of 2011, this trend accelerated, with another \$19.1 billion in new business awards, based on expected volumes and assumed pricing. Actual results could vary if these assumptions prove incorrect. See Risk Factors Risks Related to Business Environment and Economic Conditions Continued pricing pressures, OEM cost reduction initiatives and the ability of OEMs to re-source or cancel vehicle programs may result in lower than anticipated margins, or losses, which may have a significant negative impact on our business. We believe our operating leverage will enable us to generate increased profitability and higher margins from these new business wins.

Our Industry

The automotive parts industry provides components, systems, subsystems and modules to OEMs for the manufacture of new vehicles, as well as to the aftermarket for use as replacement parts for current production and older vehicles. Overall, we expect long-term growth of vehicle sales and production in the OEM market. Recently, the industry has seen increased customer sales and production schedules, and an improved sales mix with greater content. However, current OEM production volumes in North America and Western Europe remain substantially lower than OEM production volumes prior to the disruptions the economic and credit markets experienced in 2008 and 2009. Demand for automotive parts in the OEM market is generally a function of the number of new vehicles produced, which is primarily driven by macro-economic factors such as credit availability, interest rates, fuel prices, consumer confidence, employment and other trends. Although OEM demand is tied to actual vehicle production, participants in the automotive parts industry also have the opportunity to grow through increasing product content per vehicle by further penetrating business with existing customers and in existing markets, gaining new customers and increasing their presence in global markets. We believe that as a company with a global presence and advanced technology, engineering, manufacturing and customer support capabilities, we are well-positioned to take advantage of these opportunities.

We believe that continuously increasing demands of society have created the emergence of three mega trends that will serve as the basis for the next wave of market-driven technology advancement. Our challenge is to continue developing leading edge technology focused on addressing these mega trends, and apply that technology toward products with sustainable margins that enable our customers, both OEMs and others, to produce distinctive market-leading products. We have identified a core portfolio of products that draw on our technical strengths and align with these mega trends where we believe we can provide differentiation to our automotive, commercial vehicle and aftermarket customers. For more information on our core product portfolio refer to Products below.

Safe. The first mega-trend, Safe, represents technologies aimed not just at protecting vehicle occupants when a crash occurs, but those that actually proactively reduce the risk of a crash occurring. OEMs continue to focus on improving occupant and pedestrian safety in order to meet increasingly stringent regulatory requirements in various markets. As a result, suppliers are competing intensely to develop and market new and alternative technologies, such as lane departure warning systems and collision avoidance technologies.

Green. The second mega-trend, Green, represents technologies designed to help reduce emissions, increase fuel economy and minimize the environmental impact of vehicles. OEMs continue to focus on improving fuel efficiency and reducing emissions in order to meet increasingly stringent regulatory requirements in various markets. As a result, suppliers are developing innovations that result in significant improvements in fuel economy, emissions and performance from gasoline and diesel internal combustion engines. At the same time, suppliers are also developing and marketing new and alternative technologies that support hybrid vehicles, electric vehicles and fuel cell products to improve fuel economy and emissions. Green is a key mega-trend today because of the convergence of several issues: climate change, higher oil prices, increased concern about oil dependence and recent and pending legislation in the U.S. and overseas regarding fuel economy and carbon dioxide emissions.

Connected. The third mega-trend, Connected, represents technologies designed to seamlessly integrate the highly complex electronic world in which automotive consumers live into the cars that they drive, so that time in a vehicle is more productive and enjoyable. The technology content of vehicles continues to increase as consumers demand greater safety, personalization, entertainment, productivity and convenience while driving. Advanced technologies offering mobile voice and data communication such as those used in our mobile electronics products coupled with global positioning systems and in-vehicle entertainment continue to be key products in the transportation industry.

We expect these mega trends to create growth and opportunity for us. We are well-positioned to provide solutions and products to OEMs to expand the electronic and technological content of their vehicles. We believe electronics integration, which generally refers to products that combine integrated circuits, software algorithms, sensor technologies and mechanical components within the vehicle will allow OEMs to achieve substantial reductions in weight and mechanical complexity, resulting in easier assembly, enhanced fuel economy, improved emissions control and better vehicle performance.

Market Opportunities

Recovery of Developed Markets and Continued Emerging Markets Growth

According to J.D. Power & Associates, global vehicle production is forecast to grow at a CAGR of 6.5% from 2010 to 2015. In the near term, the mature markets, including North America and Western Europe, are expected to grow at 3.3% from 2010 to 2015 for an increase of approximately 6.8 million units, while the emerging markets are forecast to grow at 9.6% during the same period, for an increase of approximately 20.7 million units. We expect that nearly half of our total future growth will be generated from emerging markets, especially China, which now represents a larger market for automotive components than either the United States or Japan. As a consequence of this shift in demand, many automotive manufacturing and supply companies have located operations in China and have entered into strategic partnerships and supply arrangements designed to support increased production. The total market and the relative growth in the emerging markets are shown in the illustrations below.

Source: J.D. Power & Associates

Note: Vehicles in thousands. Mature markets refers to Australia, Japan, South Korea, North America (including Mexico) and Western Europe. Emerging markets refers to the rest of the world.

Demand for Increased Safety

OEMs continue to focus on improving occupant and pedestrian safety in order to meet increasingly stringent regulatory requirements in various markets, such as the recent proposal by the U.S. National Highway Traffic Safety Administration to mandate rear view cameras in all vehicles by 2014. As a result, suppliers are focused on developing technologies aimed at protecting vehicle occupants when a crash occurs, as well as those that proactively mitigate the risk of a crash occurring. Examples of new and alternative technologies are lane departure warning systems and collision avoidance technologies, which incorporate sophisticated electronics and advanced software. According to The Freedonia Group, the value of safety and security electronics content globally is expected to grow (based on increasing production and increased content per vehicle) in excess of 13% CAGR from 2009 to 2014, a trend which favors suppliers with the ability to fulfill demand for these important components and systems.

Trend of Increased Fuel Efficiency and Reduced Emissions

OEMs also continue to focus on improving fuel efficiency and reducing emissions in order to meet increasingly stringent regulatory requirements in various markets. On a worldwide basis, the relevant authorities in the European Union, the United States, China, India, Japan, Brazil, South Korea and Argentina have already instituted regulations requiring further reductions in emissions and/or increased fuel economy through 2014. In many cases, the same authorities have initiated legislation that would further tighten the standards through 2020 and beyond. Based on proposed European legislation, we believe OEMs may be required to reduce fleet average CO_2 emissions for passenger cars by nearly 40% from 140 grams/kilometer, or approximately 39 miles/gallon, in 2008 to 85 grams/kilometer, or over 60 miles/gallon, by 2020. Based on the current regulatory environment, we believe that OEMs in other parts of the world, including the U.S. and China, will be subject to even greater reductions in CO_2 emissions from their current levels over the next ten years. These standards will require meaningful innovation as OEMs and suppliers are forced to find ways to improve thermal management, engine management, electrical power consumption, vehicle weight and integration of alternative powertrains (e.g., electric/hybrid engines). According to The Freedonia Group, the value (i.e., the absolute dollar amount of demand, which may grow based on vehicle sales, more content per vehicle and higher prices for content) of powertrain and emissions electronics systems content globally, including fuel injection systems and engine management systems, is expected to grow (based on increasing production and increased content per vehicle) in excess of 11% CAGR from 2009 to 2014. We expect that as the market for these products expands, we will have the opportunity to obtain proportional growth in prices and margins in these areas, subject to competitive market dynamics.

Trend Towards Connectivity

The technology content of vehicles continues to increase as consumers demand greater safety, personalization, infotainment, productivity and convenience while driving. The automotive industry is focused on developing technologies designed to seamlessly integrate the highly complex electronic world in which automotive consumers live in the cars they drive, so that time in a vehicle is more productive and enjoyable. Advanced technologies offering mobile voice and data communication, while minimizing driver distraction, such as those used in our mobile electronics products coupled with global positioning systems and in-vehicle infotainment will continue to grow in importance. These and other related products are leading to higher electronic content per vehicle. According to The Freedonia Group, the value of OEM-installed infotainment systems globally, including communication and navigation equipment, backup monitors and heads up displays, entertainment systems, and other comfort and convenience systems are expected to increase (based on increasing production and increased content per vehicle) at CAGRs of approximately 20%, 28%, 10%, and 14%, respectively, from 2009 to 2014.

Standardization of Sourcing by OEMs

Many OEMs are adopting global vehicle platforms to increase standardization, reduce per unit cost and increase capital efficiency and profitability. As a result, OEMs are selecting suppliers that have the capability to manufacture products on a worldwide basis as well as the flexibility to adapt to regional variations. Suppliers with global scale and strong design, engineering and manufacturing capabilities, are best positioned to benefit from this trend. OEMs are also increasingly looking to their suppliers to simplify vehicle design and assembly processes to reduce costs. As a result, suppliers that sell vehicle components directly to manufacturers (Tier I suppliers) have assumed many of the design, engineering, research and development and assembly functions traditionally performed by vehicle manufacturers. Suppliers that can provide fully-engineered solutions, systems and pre-assembled combinations of component parts are positioned to leverage the trend toward system sourcing.

Shorter Product Development Cycles

As a result of government regulations and customer preferences, OEMs are requiring suppliers to respond faster with new designs and product innovations. While these trends are more prevalent in mature markets, the emerging markets are advancing rapidly towards the regulatory standards and consumer preferences of the more mature markets. Suppliers with strong technologies, robust global engineering and development capabilities will be best positioned to meet the OEM demands for rapid innovation.

Our Competitive Strengths

Global Market Leader

We are one of the world s largest vehicle component manufacturers. We estimate that we hold the #1 or #2 position in product categories representing over 70% of our 2010 net sales, including electrical/electronic distribution systems, automotive connection systems, diesel engine management systems, and infotainment & driver interface. In addition, in 2010 our products were found in 17 of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in the United States, in all of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in Europe and in 13 of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in China.

Product Portfolio Tied to the Key Industry Mega Trends

Our product offerings satisfy the OEMs need to meet increasingly stringent government regulations and fulfill consumer preferences for products that address the mega trends of Safe, Green and Connected, leading to increased content per vehicle, greater profitability and higher margins. With these offerings, we are well-positioned to capitalize on demand for increased safety, fuel efficiency, emissions control and connectivity to the global information network. There has been a substantial increase in vehicle content and electrification requiring a complex and reliable electrical architecture and systems to operate, such as hybrid power electronics, electrical vehicle monitoring, lane departure warning systems, integrated electronic displays, navigation systems and consumer electronics. Our ability to design a reliable electrical architecture that optimizes power distribution and/or consumption is key to satisfying the OEMs need to reduce emissions while continuing to meet the demands of consumers. Additionally, our Powertrain Systems and Thermal Systems segments are also focused on addressing the demand for increased fuel efficiency and emission control by controlling fuel consumption and heat dissipation, which are principal factors influencing fuel efficiency and emissions.

Global and Diverse Customer Base

Our customer base includes the 25 largest automotive OEMs in the world. Our long-standing relationships with both the leading global OEMs and regional OEMs position us to benefit from the cyclical recovery in North America and Europe and secular growth in emerging markets. Our six largest platforms in 2010 were with six different OEMs. Our top five customers are Daimler AG (Daimler), Ford Motor Company (Ford), General

Motors Company (GM), PSA Peugeot Citroën (Peugeot) and Volkswagen Group (VW), collectively representing 49% of our 2010 revenue, with our largest customer representing only 21% of our 2010 revenue. We have further diversified our business by increasing our sales in the commercial vehicle market, which is typically on a different business cycle than the light vehicle market and represented 8% of our 2010 net sales. In addition, approximately 8% of our 2010 net sales were to the aftermarket.

We have substantially expanded our presence in emerging markets to enable us to capture the rapid growth principally in China, Brazil, India and Russia. Our presence in these countries will, for example, enable us to continue growing our market share among the regional automotive OEMs in these countries, including AVTOVAZ, Brilliance China, Changan, Chery, China FAW, Geely, Mahindra & Mahindra, Tata Motors and Ulyanovsk.

Global Manufacturing Footprint and Regional Service Model

We have a global manufacturing footprint and regional service model that enable us to efficiently and effectively operate from primarily low cost countries. We operate 110 manufacturing facilities and 15 major technical centers with a presence in 30 countries throughout the world. We have located these technical and manufacturing facilities in close proximity to our customers, enabling us to rapidly meet customer support requirements and satisfy regional variations in global vehicle platforms, while minimizing supply chain costs. Our global footprint enables us to serve the global OEMs on a worldwide basis along with gaining market share with the emerging market OEMs. This regional model has largely migrated to service the North American market out of Mexico, the South American market out of Brazil, the European market out of Eastern Europe and North Africa and the Asia Pacific market out of China.

Leading Supplier in the China Automotive Market

We have a strong presence in China, where we have operated for nearly 20 years. All of our business segments have operations and sales in China, where we employ approximately 23,000 people (including temporary workers), including approximately 2,800 scientists, engineers and technicians. Our strong engineering capabilities allow us to provide full product design and system integration to OEMs in China. As a result, we are a supplier to every major automotive OEM in China, with whom we have well-established relationships, including: Brilliance China, Changan, Chery, China FAW, Geely, Shanghai General Motors and Shanghai Volkswagen. The Delphi brand is recognized by OEMs in China as a leading supplier, and we estimate that we hold the #1 or #2 position in product categories representing over 75% of our 2010 China revenues. We conduct our business through fully consolidated, wholly-owned subsidiaries and joint ventures over which we have management control. Our local partners in the joint ventures are not our competitors. This legal entity structure gives us control over our strategy and operational activities in the region. We generated approximately \$1.8 billion in revenue from China in 2010. In support of our growing revenue, we anticipate our facilities in China will expand their operations with the addition of four new manufacturing sites over the next two years. With only 21 of our 33 offered products currently locally manufactured, we believe we have the opportunity to expand additional product lines into China, and as a result, we see further growth potential.

Lean and Flexible Cost Structure

We have a world-class, lean manufacturing system that allows us to provide customers with quality products and just-in-time delivery at competitive costs. In 2010, we largely completed our restructuring activities, resulting in a lower fixed cost base, improved manufacturing footprint and reduced overhead. We dramatically reduced our U.S. and Western European footprints, realigned our selling, general and administrative cost structure and increased the variable nature of our employee base. As a result, 91% of our hourly workforce is located in low cost countries. Furthermore, we have substantial operational flexibility by leveraging a large workforce of temporary workers, which represented approximately 30% of the hourly workforce as of September 30, 2011. We are focused on maintaining a low fixed cost base to minimize our EBITDA breakeven,

which we estimate to be approximately 30% below the current production volumes, assuming constant product mix and based on 2010 results. We believe that our lean cost structure will allow us to remain profitable at all points of the traditional vehicle industry production cycle.

World-Class Engineering Capabilities

Our history and culture of innovation have enabled us to develop significant intellectual property and design and development expertise to provide advanced technology solutions that meet the demands of our customers. We have a team of more than 16,000 scientists, engineers and technicians focused on developing leading product solutions for our key markets, located at 15 major technical centers in Brazil, China, France, Germany, India, Luxembourg, Mexico, Poland, South Korea, the United Kingdom and the United States. We invest approximately \$1 billion annually in engineering to maintain our portfolio of innovative products, and currently own approximately 6,000 patents. We also encourage open innovation and collaborate extensively with peers in the industry, government agencies and academic institutions. Our technology

competencies are recognized by both customers and government agencies, who have co-invested approximately \$300 million of additional funds annually in new product development, increasing our total spend accordingly, accelerating the pace of innovation and reducing the risk associated with successful commercialization of technological breakthroughs. One example of co-investment is that we received an \$89 million grant from the U.S. Department of Energy for reimbursement for up to 50% of the project costs associated with the development and manufacturing of power electronics related to electric and hybrid electric vehicles.

Our heritage includes the first factory installed radio, and we were a developer and designer of digital satellite radios, non-CFC refrigerant systems, high efficiency heat & mass exchangers, halogen free cables, dual mode electronically scanning radar, gas direct injection, power electronics & high voltage architectures for hybrid electric vehicles and electric vehicles. We have been recognized for our long history of innovation as a winner of the prestigious Automotive News PACE Award. The Automotive News PACE awards honor superior innovation, technological advancement and business performance in the automotive industry and is judged by an independent panel of industry experts. Over the past two years we have been a winner three times and over the 17-year history of the PACE awards, we have received more awards than any other automotive supplier. In 2010, we launched approximately 800 new product programs around the globe. Our future pipeline has promise in collision mitigation with auto braking, electric cam phasing, software defined radio, 2-step continuous variable valvetrain, ammonia and particulate sensors, high power density inverter switches for hybrid electric vehicles and other Safe, Green and Connected solutions.

Significant Operating Leverage Leading to Higher Margins

Our business model has generated strong margins. We believe our operating leverage will enable us to generate increased profitability from higher OEM production volumes, increased content per vehicle and new business wins, and our profitability has been increasing with these trends. We generated gross margins of 16.3% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to 14.8% for the year ended December 31, 2010, and EBITDA margins of 13.1% as compared to 9.9% for the year ended December 31, 2010. Segment EBITDA margins were approximately 10% or greater in each of our operating segments for the nine months ended September 30, 2011.

Strong Cash Flow Generation and Balance Sheet

Our margins have also translated to strong cash flow generation. In 2010, we generated \$781 million in cash flow before financing (which is defined as cash flows from operating activities and cash flows from investing activities (excluding investments in time deposits)). Furthermore, we have a strong balance sheet with gross debt of \$2.2 billion and substantial liquidity of \$2.7 billion as of September 30, 2011, and no significant U.S. defined benefit or OPEB liabilities. We intend to maintain strong financial discipline targeting industry-leading earnings growth, cash flow generation and return on invested capital and to maintain sufficient liquidity to sustain our financial flexibility throughout the industry cycle.

Experienced Management Team

Our management team has significant experience, a deep understanding of the vehicle components industry and a firm focus on sustaining our leadership and financial strength. This team has been responsible for implementing the key operational restructuring initiatives that have positioned us for sustainable leadership in our industry with a strong and competitive financial profile. Key accomplishments since 2005 have included:

Aligning our portfolio with the mega trends Safe, Green, and Connected by reducing our business units from 27 to 10 and our product lines from 119 to 33;

Diversifying our geographic, product and customer mix, resulting in only 33% of our 2010 net sales generated in the North American market and 21% from our largest customer;

Reducing our cost structure by repositioning 91% of our hourly workforce in low cost countries; reducing our manufacturing space by 64%, or 43 million square feet; and reducing total headcount by approximately 23%;

Sustaining our commitment to innovation by investing approximately \$1 billion annually in engineering; and

Generating a record level of business bookings, including \$20 billion in 2010 and \$19.1 billion in the first nine months of 2011. **Our Strategy**

Our strategy is to develop and manufacture innovative market-relevant products for a diverse base of customers around the globe and leverage our lean and flexible cost structure to achieve strong earnings growth and returns on invested capital. Through our culture of innovation and world class engineering capabilities we will continue to employ our rigorous, forward-looking product development process to deliver new technologies that provide solutions to OEMs.

Leverage Our Engineering and Technological Prowess

We will continue to leverage our strong product portfolio tied to the industry skey mega trends with our global footprint to increase our revenues. We remain committed to sustaining our substantial annual investment in research and development to maintain and enhance our leadership in each of our product lines. We expect to introduce new products and customized solutions that enable OEMs to meet the increasing fuel economy and emissions regulations as well as consumer demand for increased connectivity and active safety features. We will continue to focus on identifying the next market trends that we believe will position us to capture new growth.

Capitalize on Our Scale, Global Footprint and Established Position in Emerging Markets

We intend to generate sustained growth by capitalizing on the breadth and scale of our operating capabilities, our global footprint that provides us the important proximity to our customers manufacturing facilities and allows us to serve them in every region of the world in which they operate, and our established presence in high growth emerging markets.

We are one of only a few vehicle component manufacturers with the resources and scale of operations to provide our customers with complete end-to-end systems solutions. From the development and design of innovative new products, to world class engineering, manufacturing and supply-chain management capabilities, we have significant resources that we use to help our customers meet the changing demands of the market. We have engineering and production capabilities in every major auto-producing market in the world, including North

America, South America, Europe and Asia. As a result, we are able to capitalize on the global standardization of vehicle platforms by the largest OEMs, while adapting our products for regional variations and regional OEMs.

We continue to expand our significant presence in emerging markets, positioning us to benefit from the expected growth opportunities in these regions. We will accomplish this by capitalizing on our long-standing relationships with the global OEMs and further enhancing our positions with the emerging market OEMs, thereby continuing to expand our worldwide leadership. We will continue to build upon our extensive geographic reach to capitalize on the fast-growing automotive markets, particularly in China, Brazil, India and Russia. We believe that our presence in low cost countries positions us to realize incremental margin improvements as the global balance of automotive production shifts towards the emerging markets.

Leverage Our Lean and Flexible Cost Structure to Deliver Profitability and Cash Flow

We recognize the importance of maintaining a lean and flexible cost structure in order to deliver stable earnings and cash flow in a cyclical industry. We intend to focus on maximizing manufacturing output to meet increasing production requirements with minimal additions to our fixed-cost base. We will continue to utilize a meaningful amount of temporary workers to ensure we have the appropriate operational flexibility to scale our operations so that we maintain our profitability as industry production levels increase or contract.

Target the Right Business with the Right Customers

We are strategic in pursuing new business and customers. We conduct in-depth analysis of market share and product trends by region in order to prioritize research, development and engineering spend for the customers that we believe will be successful. We collaborate with these customers in our 15 major technical centers around the world to help develop innovative product solutions for their needs. As more OEMs design vehicles for global platforms, where the same vehicle architecture is shared among different regions, we are well suited to provide global design and engineering support while manufacturing these products for a specific regional market. In addition we are disciplined in our pursuit of new business to ensure that we earn appropriate returns on capital. We have a rigorous internal approval process that requires senior executive review and approval to ensure consistency with our strategic and financial goals.

Pursue Selected Acquisitions and Strategic Alliances

Acquisitions and strategic alliances represent an important element of our business strategy and we believe we have the financial flexibility to pursue these opportunities with our current capital structure and liquidity profile. We believe that there are opportunities to grow through acquisitions, given the trend by OEMs to source globally and from a smaller number of suppliers, and that strategic alliances will allow us to pursue new opportunities faster and with less risk and investment. We intend to pursue selected transactions that leverage our technology capabilities, enhance our customer base, geographic penetration and scale to complement our current businesses. These complementary opportunities will provide us with access to new technologies, expand our presence in existing markets and enable us to establish a presence in adjacent markets.

Our History and Structure

In October 2005, the former Delphi Corporation and certain of its U.S. subsidiaries (the Debtors) filed voluntary petitions for reorganization relief under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (the Bankruptcy Code) in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the Bankruptcy Court). Collectively, the Debtors October 2005 filings are herein referred to as the Chapter 11 Filings. On July 30, 2009, the Bankruptcy Court approved modifications to the First Amended Joint Plan Of Reorganization Of Delphi Corporation And Certain Affiliates, Debtors And Debtors-In-Possession (As Modified) (the Modified Plan), which incorporated the MDA among the Predecessor, GM Component Holdings LLC, Motors Liquidation Company (Old GM), GM and DIP Holdco 3, LLC, for the sale and

purchase of substantially all of the Predecessor s businesses, and completed the emergence of the Predecessor from Chapter 11 in accordance with the Modified Plan. Through the Acquisition Date, the Debtors operated their businesses as debtors-in-possession under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code and orders of the Bankruptcy Court. The Predecessor s non-U.S. subsidiaries were not included in the Chapter 11 Filings, continued their business operations without supervision from the Bankruptcy Court and were not subject to the requirements of the Bankruptcy Code.

On August 19, 2009, Delphi Automotive LLP, a limited liability partnership organized under the laws of England and Wales, was formed for the purpose of acquiring certain assets and subsidiaries of the Predecessor, as discussed below. At this time, three firms, GM and affiliates of Silver Point Capital and Elliott Management, agreed to take a controlling stake in Delphi Automotive LLP. These three equity holders had jointly established a plan to fund the restructuring of the business. As a part of this plan, these equityholders established a board of proven senior executives to assist the management team in the continued restructuring and repositioning of the business.

On the Acquisition Date, the Predecessor (i) consummated the transactions contemplated by the Modified Plan and (ii) exited Chapter 11 as DPH Holdings Corp. and its subsidiaries and affiliates (DPHH), except that two of the Predecessor s debtor subsidiaries became subsidiaries of Delphi Automotive LLP. A summary of significant terms of the Modified Plan follows:

We acquired the businesses (other than the global steering business and the manufacturing facilities in the U.S. at which the hourly employees are represented by the UAW) of the Predecessor pursuant to the MDA, and received \$1,833 million from GM (of which \$1,689 million was received on the Acquisition Date and \$144 million was received during the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009), and \$209 million, net from certain of the DIP lenders to the Predecessor (collectively, the Acquisition).

GM acquired substantially all of the Predecessor s global steering business and the manufacturing facilities in the U.S. at which the hourly employees were represented by the UAW.

The Predecessor s debtor-in-possession financing was settled.

The Predecessor s liabilities subject to compromise were extinguished.

If cumulative distributions to the members of Delphi Automotive LLP under certain provisions of our limited liability partnership agreement exceed \$7.2 billion, we, as disbursing agent on behalf of DPHH, are required to pay to the holders of allowed general unsecured claims against the Predecessor, \$32.50 for every \$67.50 in excess of \$7.2 billion distributed to the members, up to a maximum of \$300 million.

The Predecessor s equity holders did not receive recoveries on their claims. As a result of the Acquisition, we acquired the major portion of the business of the Predecessor and this business constituted the entirety of the operations of the Successor. We also issued membership interests to a group of investors consisting of lenders to the Predecessor, GM and the PBGC.

On May 19, 2011, Delphi Automotive PLC, a Jersey public limited company, was formed. Delphi Automotive PLC has nominal assets and no liabilities and has conducted no operations prior to completion of this offering. Immediately prior to the closing of this offering, it will acquire all of the outstanding membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP from its existing equity holders in exchange for ordinary shares and, as a result, Delphi Automotive LLP will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi Automotive PLC.

Products

Our organizational structure and management reporting support the management of these core product lines.

Electrical/Electronic Architecture. This segment offers complete Electrical/Electronic Architectures for our customer-specific needs that help reduce production cost, weight and mass, and improve reliability and ease of assembly.

High quality connectors are engineered primarily for use in the automotive and related markets, but also have applications in the aerospace, military and telematics sectors.

Electrical centers provide centralized electrical power and signal distribution and all of the associated circuit protection and switching devices, thereby optimizing the overall vehicle electrical system.

Distribution systems are integrated into one optimized vehicle electrical system that can utilize smaller cable and gauge sizes and ultra-thin wall insulation (which product line makes up approximately 35% of our total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010).

Powertrain Systems. This segment offers high quality products for complete engine management systems (EMS) and other products to help optimize performance, emissions and fuel economy.

The gasoline EMS portfolio features fuel injection and air/fuel control, valvetrain, ignition, sensors and actuators, transmission control products, and powertrain electronic control modules with software, algorithms and calibration.

The diesel EMS product line offers high quality common rail system technologies.

The Powertrain Systems segment also supplies integrated fuel handling systems for gasoline, diesel, flexfuel and biofuel configurations, and innovative evaporative emissions systems that are recognized as industry-leading technologies. We also include diesel and automotive aftermarket and original equipment service in the Powertrain Systems segment.

Electronics and Safety. This segment offers a wide range of electronic and safety equipment in the areas of controls, security, entertainment, communications, safety systems and power electronics.

Electronic controls products primarily consist of body computers and security systems.

Infotainment and driver interface portfolio primarily consists of receivers, advanced reception systems, digital receivers, satellite audio receivers, navigation systems, displays and mechatronics.

Safety electronics primarily includes occupant detection systems, collision warning systems, advanced cruise control technologies and collision sensing.

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Electric and hybrid electric vehicle power electronics comprises power modules, inverters and converters and battery packs. *Thermal Systems*. This segment offers energy efficient thermal system and component solutions for the automotive market and continues to develop applications for the non-automotive market. Our Automotive Thermal Products are designed to meet customers needs for powertrain thermal management and cabin thermal comfort (climate control).

Main powertrain cooling products include condenser, radiator, fan module and charge air cooling heat exchangers assemblies.

Climate control portfolio includes HVAC modules, with evaporator and heater core components, compressors and controls. Competition

Although the overall number of our top competitors has decreased due to ongoing industry consolidation, the automotive parts industry remains extremely competitive. OEMs rigorously evaluate suppliers on the basis of product quality, price competitiveness, reliability and timeliness of delivery, product design capability, technical expertise and development capability, new product innovation, financial viability, application of lean principles, operational flexibility, customer service and overall management. In addition, our customers generally require that we demonstrate improved efficiencies, through cost reductions and/or price improvement, on a year-over-year basis.

Our competitors in each of our operating segments are as follows:

Segment Electrical/Electronic Architecture	Competitors FCI SA
	Lear Corporation
	Leoni AG
	Molex Inc.
	TE Connectivity, Ltd. (formerly Tyco International, Ltd.)
	Sumitomo Corporation
Powertrain Systems	Yazaki Corporation BorgWarner Inc.
	Bosch Group
	Continental AG
	Denso Corporation

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Hitachi, Ltd. Magneti Marelli S.p.A. Aisin Seiki Co., Ltd. Electronics and Safety Autoliv AB Bosch Group Continental AG Denso Corporation Harman International Industries Panasonic Corporation Thermal Systems Denso Corporation MAHLE Behr Industry Sanden Corporation Valeo Inc. Visteon Corporation

Customers

We sell our products and services to the major global OEMs in every region of the world. We also sell our products to the worldwide aftermarket for replacement parts, including the aftermarket operations of our OEM customers and to other distributors and retailers. The following table provides the percentage of net sales to our largest customers for the year ended December 31, 2010:

	% of our
Customer	revenue
General Motors Company	21%
Ford Motor Company	9%
Volkswagen Group	8%
Daimler AG	6%
PSA Peugeot Citroën	5%
Renault S.A.	4%
Shanghai General Motors Company Limited	4%
Fiat Group Automobiles S.p.A.	3%
Hyundai Kia Automotive Group	3%
Toyota Motor Corporation	3%
GM, including its subsidiaries and affiliates, is our largest customer, representing 21% of our revenue for the year ending Decem	ber 31, 2010.

Supply Relationships with Our Customers

We typically supply products to our OEM customers through purchase orders, which are generally governed by general terms and conditions established by each OEM. Although the terms and conditions vary from customer to customer, they typically contemplate a relationship under which our customers place orders for their requirements of specific components supplied for particular vehicles. These relationships typically extend over the life of the related vehicle. Prices are negotiated with respect to each purchase order, which may be subject to adjustments under certain circumstances, such as cost reductions achieved by us and generally decrease over the term of the supply relationship. In most instances our OEM customers agree to purchase their requirements for specific products but are not required to purchase any minimum amount of products from us. The terms and conditions typically provide that we are subject to a warranty on the products supplied; in most cases, the duration of such warranty is coterminous with the warranty offered by the OEM to the end-user of the vehicle. We may also be subject to share in all or a part of recall costs if the OEM recalls its vehicles for defects attributable to our products.

Individual purchase orders are terminable for cause or non-performance and, in most cases, upon our insolvency and certain change of control events. In addition, many of our OEM customers have the option to terminate for convenience, which permits our customers to impose pressure on pricing during the life of the vehicle program, and have the ability to issue purchase contracts for less than the duration of the vehicle program, which potentially reduces our profit margins and increases the risk of our losing future sales under those purchase contracts. Additionally, our largest customer, GM, expressly reserves a right to terminate for competitiveness on certain of our long-term supply contracts. We manufacture and ship based on customer release schedules, normally provided on a weekly basis, which can vary due to cyclical automobile production or dealer inventory levels. For a further description of our commercial agreements with GM, please see Relationships and Related Party Transactions.

Although customer programs typically extend to future periods, and although there is an expectation that we will supply certain levels of OEM production during such future periods, customer agreements including applicable terms and conditions do not necessarily constitute firm orders. Firm orders are generally limited to

specific and authorized customer purchase order releases placed with our manufacturing and distribution centers for actual production and order fulfillment. Firm orders are typically fulfilled as promptly as possible from the conversion of available raw materials, sub-components and work-in-process inventory for OEM orders and from current on-hand finished goods inventory for aftermarket orders. The dollar amount of such purchase order releases on hand and not processed at any point in time is not believed to be significant based upon the timeframe involved.

Our Global Operations

Information concerning principal geographic areas for our continuing operations is set forth below. Net sales data reflects the manufacturing location for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008. Net property data is as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

				Succ	essor					F	Predecessor		
		Year Decembe	ended r 31, 2	010	Αu	Perioo Igust 19 to 20		ıber 31,	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009		Year o December		
	N	et sales	pro	Net perty(1)	N	et sales	pro	Net perty(1)	Net sales	N	let sales	pro	Net operty(1)
				(in mi	llions)					(in millions)		
United States	\$	4,529	\$	417	\$	1,083	\$	430	\$ 3,107	\$	6,994	\$	1,144
Other North America		76		134		16		109	24		63		252
Europe, Middle East & Africa													
(2)		5,892		1,045		1,448		1,047	3,330		6,950		1,388
Asia Pacific		2,177		325		590		272	1,223		1,747		386
South America		1,143		146		284		102	650		1,054		129
Total	\$	13,817	\$	2,067	\$	3,421	\$	1,960	\$ 8,334	\$	16,808	\$	3,299

(1) Net property data represents property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation.

(2) Includes our country of domicile, Jersey, and the country of our principal executive offices, the United Kingdom. We had no sales in Jersey in any period. We had net sales of \$690 million, \$159 million, \$394 million and \$1,047 million in the United Kingdom for the year ended December 31, 2010, the period from August 19 to December 31, 2009, the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008 respectively. We had net property in the United Kingdom of \$137 million, \$141 million and \$171 million as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. **Research, Development and Intellectual Property**

We maintain technical engineering centers in major regions of the world to develop and provide advanced products, processes and manufacturing support for all of our manufacturing sites, and to provide our customers with local engineering capabilities and design development on a global basis. As of September 30, 2011, we employed over 16,000 engineers, scientists and technicians around the world. Expenditures for research and development activities, which consists of engineering, were approximately \$1.0 billion, \$0.3 billion, \$1.0 billion and \$1.9 billion for the year ended December 31, 2010, the period from August 19 to December 31, 2009, the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively. Each year we share some engineering expenses with OEMs and government agencies. While this amount varies from year-to-year, it is generally in the range of 20% to 25% of engineering expenses.

We believe that our engineering and technical expertise, together with our emphasis on continuing research and development, allow us to use the latest technologies, materials and processes to solve problems for our customers and to bring new, innovative products to market. We believe that continued engineering activities are critical to maintaining our pipeline of technologically advanced products. Given our strong financial discipline, we seek to effectively manage fixed costs and efficiently rationalize capital spending by critically evaluating the profit potential of new and existing customer programs, including investment in innovation and technology. We

maintain our engineering activities around our focused product portfolio and allocate our capital and resources to those products with distinctive technologies. We expect expenditures for engineering activities to be approximately \$1.0 billion for the year ended December 31, 2011.

We maintain a large portfolio of patents in the operation of our business. While no individual patent or group of patents, taken alone, is considered material to our business, taken in the aggregate, these patents provide meaningful protection for our products and technical innovations. Similarly, while our trademarks (particularly those protecting the Delphi brand) are important to identify our position in the industry, we do not believe that any of these are individually material to our business. We are actively pursuing marketing opportunities to commercialize and license our technology to both automotive and non-automotive industries and we have selectively taken licenses from others to support our business interests. These activities foster optimization of our use of intellectual property rights.

Materials

We procure our raw materials from a variety of suppliers around the world. Generally, we seek to obtain materials in the region in which our products are manufactured in order to minimize transportation and other costs. The most significant raw materials we use to manufacture our products include aluminum, copper and resins. As of September 30, 2011, we have not experienced any significant shortages of raw materials and normally do not carry inventories of such raw materials in excess of those reasonably required to meet our production and shipping schedules.

Commodity cost volatility, most notably related to copper, aluminum, petroleum-based resin products and fuel is a challenge for us and our industry. We are continually seeking to manage these and other material-related cost pressures using a combination of strategies, including working with our suppliers to mitigate costs, seeking alternative product designs and material specifications, combining our purchase requirements with our customers and/or suppliers, changing suppliers, hedging of certain commodities and other means. In the case of copper, which primarily affects our Electrical/Electronic Architecture segment, and aluminum, which primarily affects our Thermal segment, contract escalation clauses have enabled us to pass on some of the price increases to our customers and thereby partially offset the impact of increased commodity costs on operating income for the related products. However, other than in the case of copper and aluminum, our overall success in passing commodity cost increases to our customers has been limited. We will continue and increase our efforts to pass market-driven commodity cost increases to our customers in an effort to mitigate all or some of the adverse earnings impacts, including by seeking to renegotiate terms as contracts with our customers expire.

Seasonality

Our business is moderately seasonal, as our primary North American customers historically halt operations for approximately two weeks in July and approximately one week in December. Our European customers generally reduce production during the months of July and August and for one week in December. In addition, automotive production is traditionally reduced in the months of July, August and September due to the launch of parts production for new vehicle models. Accordingly, our results reflect this seasonality.

Employees

As of September 30, 2011, we employed approximately 102,000 people (5,000 in the U.S., and 97,000 outside of the U.S.): 23,000 salaried employees and 79,000 hourly employees. In addition, we maintain an alternative workforce of 40,000 contract and temporary workers. Our represented employees are represented worldwide by numerous unions and works councils, including the IUE-CWA, the United Steel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial and Service Workers International Union and its Local Union 87L (together, the USW), and Confederacion De Trabajadores Mexicanos. In the U.S., our employees are represented by only the IUE-CWA and the USW, with

which we have competitive wage and benefit packages. We no longer have any employees represented by the UAW.

Environmental Compliance

We are subject to the requirements of U.S. federal, state and local, and non-U.S., environmental and safety and health laws and regulations. These include laws regulating air emissions, water discharge, hazardous materials and waste management. We have an environmental management structure designed to facilitate and support our compliance with these requirements globally. Although it is our intent to comply with all such requirements and regulations, we cannot provide assurance that we are at all times in compliance. Environmental requirements are complex, change frequently and have tended to become more stringent over time. Accordingly, we cannot assure that environmental requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that our eventual environmental costs and liabilities will not be material.

Certain environmental laws assess liability on current or previous owners or operators of real property for the cost of removal or remediation of hazardous substances. In addition to clean-up actions brought by U.S. federal, state, local and non-U.S. agencies, plaintiffs could raise personal injury or other private claims due to the presence of hazardous substances on or from a property. We are currently in the process of investigating and cleaning up some of our current or former sites. In addition, there may be soil or groundwater contamination at several of our properties resulting from historical, ongoing or nearby activities.

At September 30, 2011, December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the reserve for environmental investigation and remediation was approximately \$23 million, \$23 million and \$21 million, respectively, of which \$7 million, \$8 million and \$5 million, respectively, related to sites within the U.S. We cannot ensure that environmental requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that our eventual environmental remediation costs and liabilities will not exceed the amount of our current reserves. In the event that such liabilities were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded, our results of operations could be materially affected.

Properties

As of September 30, 2011, we owned or leased 110 manufacturing locations and 15 major technical centers located with a presence in 30 countries. A manufacturing location may include multiple plants and may be wholly or partially owned or leased. We also have many smaller manufacturing locations, sales offices, warehouses, engineering centers, joint ventures and other investments strategically located throughout the world. The following table shows the regional distribution of our manufacturing locations by the operating segment that uses such facilities:

		Europe, Middle East			
	North America	& Africa	Asia Pacific	South America	Total
Electronics and Safety	America 3	10	2	America 1	16
Powertrain Systems	4	10	5	2	21
Electrical/Electronic Architecture	25	17	11	6	59
Thermal Systems	5	4	4	1	14
Total	37	41	22	10	110

In addition to these manufacturing locations, we had 15 major technical centers: five in North America; five in Europe, Middle East and Africa; four in Asia Pacific; and one in South America.

Of our 110 manufacturing locations and 15 major technical centers, which include facilities owned or leased by our consolidated subsidiaries, 70 are primarily owned and 55 are primarily leased.

Our world headquarters for operations is located in Troy, Michigan. We also maintain regional headquarters in Sao Paulo, Brazil; Shanghai, China; and Bascharage, Luxembourg.

We frequently review our real estate portfolio and develop footprint strategies to support our customers global plans, while at the same time supporting our technical needs and controlling operating expenses. We believe our evolving portfolio will meet current and anticipated future needs.

Legal Proceedings

We are from time to time subject to various legal actions and claims incidental to our business, including those arising out of alleged defects, breach of contracts, product warranties, intellectual property matters, and employment-related matters. It is our opinion that the outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. With respect to warranty matters, although we cannot ensure that the future costs of warranty claims by customers will not be material, we believe our established reserves are adequate to cover potential warranty settlements. However, the final amounts required to resolve these matters could differ materially from our recorded estimates.

European Union Antitrust Investigation

We have received requests for information from antitrust authorities at the European Commission seeking information about alleged conduct by us in connection with an investigation of automotive parts suppliers concerning possible violations of antitrust laws related to the supply of wire harnesses to vehicle manufacturers. We are cooperating fully with the European authorities. Investigations of this nature often continue for several years and may result in fines imposed by the European authorities. Any fine could result in a material adverse impact on our operating results and cash flows. However, at this time, we are unable to estimate the financial impact that may ultimately result from this investigation. As a result, no accrual for this matter has been recorded as of September 30, 2011.

Class Action Antitrust Litigation

A number of class action complaints have been filed in various U.S. federal district courts alleging that several wire harness manufacturers, including us, have violated U.S. antitrust laws. These complaints allege that consumers overpaid for their vehicles as a result of the alleged conduct of the wire harness manufacturers. At this time, we believe that the allegations contained in the complaints are without merit with regard to us and we intend to vigorously defend against the allegations set forth in the complaints. As a result, no accruals for these matters have been recorded as of September 30, 2011.

GM Warranty Settlement Agreement

In 2007, the Predecessor reached a tentative agreement with Old GM to resolve certain known warranty matters and the Court authorized the Predecessor to enter into a Warranty, Settlement, and Release Agreement (the Warranty Settlement Agreement) with Old GM resolving these warranty matters. Under the terms of the Warranty Settlement Agreement, the Predecessor agreed to pay Old GM up to an estimated \$199 million, comprised of approximately \$127 million to be paid in cash over time as noted below, and up to approximately \$72 million to be paid in the form of delivery of replacement product.

In conjunction with overall negotiations regarding potential amendments to the plan of reorganization to enable the Predecessor to emerge from chapter 11, including discussions regarding support assisting the Predecessor in remaining compliant with the global operating Adjusted EBITDA covenants in its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility, Old GM agreed, on July 31, 2008, to forgive certain of the cash amounts due under the Warranty Settlement Agreement. As a result, the Predecessor recorded the extinguishment of this liability as a reduction of warranty expense in 2008, of which \$56 million was included in cost of sales, which had a corresponding favorable impact on operating income, and \$56 million was included in discontinued operations. We assumed the Warranty Settlement agreement in connection with the Acquisition. The remaining exposure is not significant as of September 30, 2011.

Other Warranty Matters

In 2009, we received information regarding potential warranty claims related to certain components supplied by our Powertrain segment. In March 2011, we reached a settlement with our customer related to this matter. During the three months ended March 31, 2011, we recognized an unusual warranty expense in cost of sales of approximately \$76 million as a result of the settlement agreement. In April 2011, Delphi made a payment of 90 million approximately (\$133 million at April 30, 2011 exchange rates) related to this matter.

We have recognized our best estimate for our total aggregate warranty reserves across all of our operating segments as of September 30, 2011. The estimated reasonably possible amounts to ultimately resolve all matters is not materially different from the recorded reserves.

Brazil Matters

We conduct significant business operations in Brazil that are subject to the Brazilian federal labor, social security, environmental, tax and customs laws, as well as a variety of state and local laws. While we believe we comply with such laws, they are complex, subject to varying interpretations, and we are often engaged in litigation with government agencies regarding the application of these laws to particular circumstances. In addition, we are also a party to commercial and labor litigation with private parties. As of September 30, 2011, related claims totaling approximately \$230 million (using September 30, 2011 foreign currency rates) have been asserted against us. As of September 30, 2011, we maintain accruals for these asserted claims of approximately \$40 million (using September 30, 2011 foreign currency rates). The amounts accrued represent claims that are deemed probable of loss and are reasonably estimable based on our analyses and assessment of the asserted claims and prior experience with similar matters. While we believe our accruals are adequate, the final amounts required to resolve these matters could differ materially from our recorded estimates and our results of operations could be materially affected.

Romania Value Added Tax (VAT) Assessment

During the first quarter of 2010, as a result of a tax audit for years 2006 2008, we received a tax assessment from the Romanian tax authorities in the amount of approximately \$42 million based on the taxing authority s assessment that we underpaid our VAT (mostly on export sales) by approximately \$24 million and owe accrued interest and penalties of \$18 million. We filed an appeal contesting the assessment and in October 2010, the Romanian tax authorities substantially reduced the amount of the assessment and decided to re-audit us. As of September 30, 2011, we maintain a reserve for this contingency that is substantially less than the amount of the initial assessment. While we believe our reserve is adequate, the final amounts required to resolve this initial assessment could differ materially from our recorded estimate.

¹¹⁹

MANAGEMENT

Board of Directors

The name, age (as of October 31, 2011) and other positions with us, if any, of each person who is a member of our Board of Directors are listed below. Each member of our Board of Directors was a member of Delphi Automotive LLP s Board of Managers immediately prior to this offering, and information below as to each member s tenure on our board reflects their tenure on Delphi Automotive LLP s board. Each director s address for the purposes of any communication is the address of our principal executive offices, which are located at Courtney Road, Hoath Way, Gillingham, Kent ME8 0RU, United Kingdom.

Name	Age	Position
John A. Krol	75	Chairman
Gary L. Cowger	64	Director
Nicholas M. Donofrio	66	Director
Mark P. Frissora	56	Director
Rajiv L. Gupta	65	Director
J. Randall MacDonald	63	Director
Sean O. Mahoney	49	Director
Michael McNamara	54	Director
Rodney O Neal	58	Director; Chief Executive Officer
		and President
Thomas W. Sidlik	61	Director
Bernd Wiedemann	68	Director
Lawrence A. Zimmerman	68	Director

The members of the Board of Directors were selected as members of the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP based on a defined set of skills and backgrounds that were identified as critical for the Company at the time. The skills and experiences identified were automotive and non-automotive backgrounds, and strong operational, strategic, financial, technical, human capital management, and corporate governance experience.

Set forth below is a brief description of the business experience of each of the members of the Board of Directors.

John A. Krol has been Chairman since 2009. He is the former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company. Following four years of service in the U.S. Navy, he joined Du Pont as a chemist and, following sales, marketing, manufacturing, and senior business management positions, was appointed Vice Chairman of the company in 1992, CEO in 1995, then Chairman and CEO, retiring in December 1998. Subsequently, he has served on numerous corporate boards, including J.P. Morgan, MeadWestvaco, Milliken Company, and advisory boards of Bechtel Corporation and Teijin Ltd. Mr. Krol received a B.S. and M.S. degree in chemistry from Tufts University. Mr. Krol s wide-ranging leadership experience, including as Chairman and CEO of a global public company and numerous board and chairman assignments, brings to the Board of Directors extensive expertise in corporate governance, as well as significant operational and strategic expertise, financial management, and strategic development.

Other Directorships: Tyco International Ltd., ACE, Ltd. and Chairman of Pacolet-Milliken Enterprises, Inc.

Gary L. Cowger has been a Director since November 2009. He retired as Group Vice President of Global Manufacturing and Labor Relations for General Motors in December 2009, a position which he held since April 2005. Mr. Cowger began his career with GM in 1965 and held a range of senior leadership positions in business and operations in several countries, including President of GM North America, Chairman and Managing

Director, Opel, AG, and President of GM de Mexico. In 2006, he was elected to the National Academy of Engineering and currently serves as Co-Chair of the Martin Luther King Memorial Foundation s executive Leadership Cabinet. He is Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Kettering University and on the Board of Trustees of the Center for Creative Studies. Through his extensive experience in the automotive industry across global markets, Mr. Cowger provides industry and operational expertise and strengthens the Board of Directors global perspective.

Nicholas M. Donofrio has been a Director since December 2009. He retired as Executive Vice President, Innovation & Technology at International Business Machines Corporation in October 2008. Mr. Donofrio began his career at IBM in 1964, and worked at the company for more than 40 years in various positions of increasing responsibility, including Division Director; Divisional Vice President for Advanced Workstations; General Manager, Large Scale Computing Division; and Senior Vice President, Technology & Manufacturing. Mr. Donofrio earned a B.S. from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute and holds a Master s degree from Syracuse University. Mr. Donofrio brings to the Board of Directors executive management skills and significant technological expertise.

Other Directorships: Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. and Bank of New York Mellon Corporation

Mark P. Frissora has been a Director since December 2009. He is Chairman and CEO of Hertz Global Holdings, Inc. Prior to joining Hertz in 2006, Mr. Frissora served as Chairman and CEO of Tenneco, Inc. from 2000. Mr. Frissora previously served for five years as a Vice President at Aeroquip-Vickers Corporation. From 1987 to 1991, he held various management positions at Philips N.V., including Director of Marketing and Director of Sales. Prior to Philips, he worked for ten years at General Electric Co. in brand management, marketing and sales. Mr. Frissora holds a B.A. degree from The Ohio State University and has completed advanced studies at both the University of Pennsylvania s Wharton School and the Thunderbird International School of Management. Mr. Frissora contributes expertise in automotive operations, product development, marketing and sales. As the Chairman and CEO of a global public company, Mr. Frissora also contributes leadership and strategic and financial management skills.

Other Directorships: Walgreen Co., Hertz Global Holdings and NCR Corporation (2002-2009)

Rajiv L. Gupta has been a Director since November 2009. He is former Chairman and CEO of Rohm and Haas Company, which position he held from October 1999 to March 2009. Mr. Gupta began his career at Rohm and Haas in 1971 and served in a broad range of global operations and financial leadership roles. Mr. Gupta received a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from the Indian Institute of Technology, a M.S. in Operations Research from Cornell University and an MBA in Finance from Drexel University. Mr. Gupta seducational and professional experience, including as Chairman and CEO of a global public company and other board assignments, enable him to contribute his expertise in corporate leadership, strategic analysis, operations, and executive compensation matters.

Other Directorships: Hewlett Packard, Tyco International Ltd. and The Vanguard Group, Inc.

J. Randall MacDonald has been a Director since November 2009. He is Senior Vice President, Human Resources at IBM. From 1983 to 2000, prior to joining IBM, Mr. MacDonald held a variety of senior positions at GTE, including Executive Vice President, Human Resources and Administration. He also has held senior leadership assignments at Ingersoll-Rand Company, Inc. and Sterling Drug. Mr. MacDonald is a former board member of Covance, Inc., a global drug services company. He earned both undergraduate and graduate degrees from St. Francis University. Through Mr. MacDonald s many years of senior leadership in the field, he is able to provide expertise in global human resources management and leadership assessment and development.

Sean O. Mahoney has been a Director since November 2009. He is a private investor with over two decades of experience in investment banking and finance. Mr. Mahoney spent 17 years in investment banking at Goldman, Sachs & Co., where he was a partner and head of the Financial Sponsors Group, followed by four

years at Deutsche Bank Securities, where he served as Vice Chairman, Global Banking. During his banking career, Mr. Mahoney acted as an advisor to companies across a broad range of industries and product areas. He earned his undergraduate degree from the University of Chicago and his graduate degree from Oxford University, where he was a Rhodes Scholar. Through his experience in investment banking and finance, Mr. Mahoney provides the Board of Directors with expertise in financial and business strategy, capital markets, financing, and mergers and acquisitions.

Michael McNamara has been a Director since November 2009. He is CEO of Flextronics International Ltd. Mr. McNamara has served as Flextronics s CEO since 2006, and previously was the company s Chief Operating Officer. Prior to joining Flextronics, he was President and CEO of Relevant Industries, which was acquired by Flextronics in 1994. Mr. McNamara holds a B.S. degree from the University of Cincinnati and an MBA from Santa Clara University. As a result of his experience as the CEO of a global technology manufacturer, Mr. McNamara provides leadership experience as well as expertise in the electronics industry and global supply chain management.

Other Directorships: Flextronics International Ltd. and MEMC Electronic Materials, Inc.

Rodney O Neal has been a Director as of May 2011. Mr. O Neal also serves as our President and Chief Executive Officer, and became President and Chief Executive Officer of Delphi Automotive LLP effective October 6, 2009. Mr. O Neal was President and Chief Executive Officer of Old Delphi from January 2007. He was President and Chief Operating Officer of Old Delphi from January 1, 2005. Prior to that position, Mr. O Neal served as President of Old Delphi s former Dynamics, Propulsion and Thermal sector from January 2003 and as Executive Vice President and President of Old Delphi s former Safety, Thermal and Electrical Architecture sector from January 2000. Previously, he had been Vice President and President of Delphi Interior Systems since November 1998 and General Manager of the former Delphi Interior & Lighting Systems since May 1997. Mr. O Neal earned a B.S. from Kettering University and a Master s Degree from Stanford University. Through his 40 years of experience at Delphi and its predecessor companies, Mr. O Neal brings extensive management and industry expertise and a comprehensive understanding of Delphi s business and operations.

Other Directorships: Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company and Sprint Nextel Corporation.

Thomas W. Sidlik has been a Director since December 2009. In 2007, he retired from the DaimlerChrysler AG Board of Management in Germany after a 34 year career in the automotive industry. He previously served as Chairman and CEO of Chrysler Financial Corporation, Chairman of the Michigan Minority Business Development Council, and Vice-Chairman of the National Minority Supplier Development Council in New York. He serves on the Board of Eastern Michigan University, where he has been Vice-Chairman and Chairman of the Board. He received a B.S. from New York University and an MBA from the University of Chicago. Mr. Sidlik s experience on the board of a global automaker provides the Board of Directors with significant industry, management, and strategic expertise, as well as his comprehensive understanding of the issues of diversity in the corporate environment.

Bernd Wiedemann has been a Director since April 2010. He is Senior Advisor at IAV GmbH, a leading provider of engineering services to the automotive industry based in Germany. Mr. Wiedemann joined IAV after retiring from Volkswagen AG and is former Chief Executive Officer, Volkswagen Commercial Vehicles and Truck Division in Wolfsburg, Germany. A 37-year employee of Volkswagen, Mr. Wiedemann held senior executive positions including Executive Vice President, Volkswagen, South America (1994-1995); Executive Vice President, Autolatina (1992-1994) and Director, Passenger Car and Commercial Vehicle Development (1989-1992). Mr. Wiedemann received a Master s degree from the Hannover Technical University, a doctorate from Brandenburg Technical University and is a professor at the Berlin Institute of Technology. Mr. Wiedemann s extensive engineering expertise and his global OEM management experience enable him to provide engineering, product development, industry, and leadership expertise to the Board of Directors.

Lawrence A. Zimmerman has been a Director since November 2009. He is the former Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of Xerox Corporation, a position he held from June 2002 until April 2011. He joined Xerox as CFO in 2002 after retiring from IBM. A 31-year employee of IBM, Mr. Zimmerman held senior executive positions including Vice President of Finance for IBM s Europe, Middle East and Africa operations, and Corporate Controller. Mr. Zimmerman received a B.S. in finance from New York University in 1965 and an MBA from Adelphi University in 1967. Mr. Zimmerman brings to the Board of Directors significant experience leading the finance organization of a large global company, and contributes financial, risk management, and strategy expertise.

Other Directorships: Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. and Brunswick Corporation.

Executive Officers

The name, age (as of October 31, 2011), current positions and a description of the business experience of each of our executive officers are listed below. There are no family relationships among the executive officers or between any executive officer and a director. Our executive officers are elected annually by the Board of Directors and hold office until their successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation or removal. Each of our executive officers is also an executive officer of Delphi Automotive LLP.

Name	Age	Position(s)
Rodney O Neal	58	Chief Executive Officer & President; Director
Kevin P. Clark	49	Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Kevin M. Butler	56	Vice President, Human Resource Management and Global Business Services
James A. Bertrand	54	Vice President & President, Thermal Systems
Lùcia V. Moretti	46	Vice President & President, Delphi Product & Service Solutions
Jeffrey J. Owens	56	Vice President & President, Electronics and Safety
Steven Kiefer	48	Vice President & President, Powertrain Systems
David M. Sherbin	52	Vice President, General Counsel, Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
James A. Spencer	58	Vice President & President, Electrical/Electronic Architecture & President,
		Latin America

Mr. O Neal see Board of Directors above.

Mr. Clark was named vice president and chief financial officer of Delphi Automotive LLP, effective July 2010. Previously, Mr. Clark was most recently a founding partner of Liberty Lane Partners, LLC, a private-equity investment firm focused on building and improving middle-market companies. Prior to that, Mr. Clark served as the chief financial officer of Fisher Scientific International Inc., a manufacturer, distributor and service provider to the global healthcare market. Mr. Clark served as Fisher-Scientific s chief financial officer from the company s initial public offering in 2001 through the completion of its merger with Thermo Electron Corporation in 2006. Prior to becoming chief financial officer, Mr. Clark served as Fisher-Scientific s component of the served as Fisher-Scientific s companies.

Mr. Butler was named vice president, human resource management and global business services of Delphi Automotive LLP, effective November 2009. Previously, Mr. Butler became vice president, human resources management and an officer of Old Delphi in 2000. Prior to that, Mr. Butler was general director of human resources at Delphi Delco Electronics Systems since 1997.

Mr. Bertrand was named vice president of Delphi Automotive LLP and president of Delphi Thermal Systems, effective October 6, 2009. Prior to that, Mr. Bertrand was vice president of Old Delphi and president of

Delphi Automotive Holdings Group Division since January 2003. Prior to that, Mr. Bertrand served a dual role beginning in January 2003 as president of Delphi Automotive Holdings Group Division and president of Old Delphi s former Safety & Interior Systems Division, to which he was named president in January 2000. Mr. Bertrand has been a vice president of Delphi since 1998.

Ms. Moretti was named vice president of Delphi Automotive LLP and president of Delphi Product and Service Solutions (DPSS), effective August 1, 2011. Ms. Moretti was most recently director of the Global Independent Aftermarket PBU at DPSS, a position she has held since her appointment in September 2010. Earlier, she has held a variety of assignments at Delphi, including director of Aftermarket for South America, director of global marketing for DPSS and managing director for DPSS Europe. Ms. Moretti began her career at Delphi in the former Energy and Engine Management (now Powertrain) Division in São Paulo, Brazil in 1998 and has worked in the aftermarket business since 2000.

Mr. Owens was named vice president of Delphi Automotive LLP and president of Delphi Electronics & Safety Division, effective October 6, 2009. Previously Mr. Owens was vice president of Old Delphi and president of Delphi Electronics & Safety Division effective September 2001. He also served as president for Delphi Asia Pacific from 2006 to 2009. Previously, Mr. Owens served as general director of Business Line Management, effective October 2000.

Mr. Kiefer was named vice president of Delphi Automotive LLP and president of Delphi Powertrain Systems effective July 2011. Previously, Mr. Kiefer served as general director of engineering and executive director for the HVAC product line within Delphi Thermal Systems since 2009, and prior to that, as managing director Europe for Delphi Thermal Systems since 2005. Earlier, Mr. Kiefer served as chief engineer and business line executive in Delphi s Engine and Energy Management (now Powertrain) Division in Luxembourg and in the Asia Pacific and North America regions. Before joining Delphi, Mr. Kiefer was an engineer for General Motors North American Car Group, serving in a variety of positions.

Mr. Sherbin was named vice president, general counsel, secretary and chief compliance officer for Delphi Automotive LLP, effective October 6, 2009. Previously, Mr. Sherbin was vice president, general counsel for Old Delphi effective October 2005. He was appointed chief compliance officer in January 2006. Previously, Mr. Sherbin was vice president, general counsel and secretary for Pulte Homes, Inc., a national homebuilder, from January 2005 through September 2005. Mr. Sherbin joined Federal-Mogul Corporation, a global automotive supplier in 1997 and was named vice president, general counsel, secretary and chief compliance officer in 2003.

Mr. Spencer was named vice president of Delphi Automotive LLP and president of Delphi Electrical/Electronic Architecture Division effective October 6, 2009. Previously, Mr. Spencer was President of Delphi Asia Pacific from 1999-2000. Mr. Spencer was vice president of Old Delphi and president of Delphi Electrical/Electronic Architecture Division, formerly Packard Electric Systems Division, since 1999. He also has served as president for Delphi Latin America effective July 2006.

Board Composition

As of the date of this prospectus, our Board of Directors consists of the 12 directors named above. Our amended Articles of Association provides that our Board of Directors must consist of a minimum of 2 directors. The exact number of members on our Board of Directors will be determined from time to time by resolution of a majority of our full Board of Directors. Delphi Automotive PLC will hold a significant number of board meetings in the U.K., such that the Company should be regarded as managed and controlled in the U.K. for tax purposes.

Each of the members of the Board of Directors, other than Mr. O Neal and Mr. Sidlik, qualifies as independent under the rules of the NYSE. Each of Messrs. Zimmerman, Donofrio, Frissora and Wiedemann satisfies the standards of independence required for audit committee members pursuant to Section 10A-3 of the Exchange Act.

Board Committees

Our Board of Directors currently has five main committees, each as described below.

The Audit Committee currently consists of Messrs. Zimmerman (Chair), Donofrio, Frissora and Wiedemann, each of whom is independent. Each of these managers is financially literate, and the Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Zimmerman meets the qualifications of the audit committee financial expert as defined under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Audit Committee is responsible for oversight of the adequacy of our internal accounting and financial controls and the accounting principles and auditing practices and procedures to be employed in preparation and review of our financial statements. The Audit Committee is also responsible for the engagement of independent public auditors and the review of the scope of the audit to be undertaken by such auditors.

The Finance Committee currently consists of Messrs. Zimmerman (Chair), Donofrio, Frissora, Sidlik and Wiedemann. The Finance Committee is responsible for oversight of corporate finance matters, including capital structure, financing transactions, acquisitions and divestitures, share repurchase and dividend programs, employee retirement plans, interest rate policies, commodity and currency hedging, annual business plan development and such other topics as the Board may deem appropriate.

The Compensation and Human Resources Committee (the Compensation Committee) currently consists of Messrs. Gupta (Chair), Krol, MacDonald, Mahoney and McNamara, each of whom is independent. The Compensation Committee reviews and, as it deems appropriate, recommends to the Board of Directors policies, practices and procedures relating to the compensation of the CEO and other officers and the establishment and administration of executive benefit plans.

The Nominating and Governance Committee currently consists of Messrs. Krol (Chair), Cowger, Frissora, and Wiedemann, each of whom is independent. The Nominating and Governance Committee reviews and, as it deems appropriate, recommends to the Board of Directors policies and procedures relating to manager and board committee nominations and corporate governance policies.

The Innovation and Technology Committee currently consists of Messrs. Donofrio (Chair), Cowger, Sidlik and Wiedemann. The Innovation and Technology Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in its oversight responsibilities relating to research and development, technological innovation and strategy.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Executive Summary

Delphi s compensation program is aligned with the Company s performance and constantly strives to reflect best practices. We have created a pay-for-performance program that aligns executive and shareholder interests by reinforcing the long-term growth, value creation and sustainability of Delphi. The structure is designed to encourage a high degree of execution, collaboration and teamwork and rewards individuals for the achievement of goals that ultimately create shareholder value. The objective of the compensation program is thus to attract, motivate and retain a talented management team that will continue providing unique solutions in a competitive marketplace and deliver value for all shareholders.

The Compensation Committee, in consultation with management and the Compensation Committee s independent outside advisors, oversees our executive compensation program, which is comprised of base salary, annual incentive compensation and long-term incentive compensation. The Company operates with the objective of creating long-term value for shareholders by delivering real-world automotive innovations that provide our customers with solutions to address rapidly changing market needs.

The following analysis contains a discussion of our executive compensation program and our analysis of the compensation decisions affecting our named executive officers (NEOs) during the year ended December 31, 2010 and going forward as a public company. For clarity, the following definitions are provided:

Board of Managers: The Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP. Each member of the Board of Managers is a member of our Board of Directors.

Officers: The Company s top 13 executives who were elected to their position by the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP. They represent the top strategy-making and operational executives in the Company and include the NEOs.

Executives: The Company s top approximately 300 leaders (including officers) who are covered by the Company s executive compensation programs.

Salaried employees: Generally refer to the approximately 4,000 supervisory, technical and support employees in the United States. *Background of Our 2010 Compensation Practices* What was the Environment for Compensation Decisions?

At the time Delphi Automotive LLP was formed on October 6, 2009, it was majority-owned by the debtor-in-possession lenders that financed its four-year bankruptcy. The formation of Delphi Automotive LLP took place in the middle of an unprecedented global financial crisis and plummeting consumer demand that threatened the global automotive market. The uncertainty regarding the future of some of our largest global customers, many of whom were weathering significant financial challenges themselves, including bankruptcy, raised serious questions as to whether key players in the automotive industry, including component suppliers, would survive.

Against this backdrop, our owners faced immediate challenges, the most prominent of which was to ensure that our workforce, particularly our management team, would continue to be engaged and motivated to overcome significant challenges and be ready to take advantage of opportunities when the market recovered. In early October 2009, our owners presented offer letters to approximately 4,500 U.S. employees (including executives and officers) offering them positions in the new company. Aiming to establish a solid foundation for our

compensation practices, these offer letters reflected Delphi Automotive LLP s compensation philosophy, which focused on creating value and a culture that rewarded high performance, through the following themes:

The compensation framework as applied to salaried employees across all groups should be generally consistent, although the actual pay received by each employee will vary depending on the size, scope and complexity of his or her position, as well as on individual performance.

Executive compensation should include a long-term component that aligns the interests of the executives with our owners and promotes retention of executives who perform well.

Executives should have a meaningful portion of their pay at risk (*i.e.*, not guaranteed unless certain performance goals are achieved) in order to align employee compensation with company performance.

In order to adapt our executive compensation structure to conform to this philosophy and to stay competitive during the global financial crisis, the following changes to our executive compensation practices were made, which were outlined in the offer letters:

Officers base salaries were reduced.

Perquisites for executives were eliminated.

Executive annual incentive targets were raised to partially offset the elimination of perquisites and base pay reductions, resulting in increased annual at-risk pay.

Benefits for eligible participants under the Supplemental Executive Retirement Program (the SERP) were substantially reduced, and certain eligible officers and executives were required to choose between receiving a severance payment or reduced SERP benefits in the event of a company-initiated termination.

Compensation Philosophy and Strategy How do we pay executives?

General Philosophy. Investors expect a company s executives to manage the company in a way that increases shareholder value over time, whether the company is public or private. In order to achieve success and meet the expectations of our investors, it is important that we ensure our compensation programs encourage executives to make sound decisions that drive long-term value creation.

Our Compensation Committee has defined the following key objectives of our compensation programs for executives as follows:

Promote Delphi s overall business strategy and objectives, particularly as it relates to long-term value creation;

Pay for performance by linking total compensation to defined performance goals;

Attract and retain key executives by providing competitive total compensation opportunities; and

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Align executive and investor interests by focusing executive behavior on driving long-term value creation.

Our compensation practices are aligned from the entry-level salaried employee to the executives, including the NEOs, though differences exist where appropriate for the business and in line with competitive practice. Accordingly, most of the philosophy and practices described for NEOs will apply generally to all executives and in some cases to all salaried employees.

Pay for Performance. Effectively aligning the goals of executive compensation with the interests of investors requires adopting compensation programs that motivate leadership to drive company performance to sustainable top quartile performance. Reinforcing the link between compensation and company performance was particularly important at the time of the formation of Delphi Automotive LLP, given the uncertainty in the automotive sector (specifically the automotive supply industry) and global financial markets in 2009. To that end, the Compensation Committee established short- and long-term incentive plans with targets focused on rewarding individuals for strong company performance. In addition, because we believe that individuals should be rewarded based on the results of their contributions, we also consider individual performance levels in awarding incentive compensation.

Long-Term Incentives and the Role of Equity. Another early focus of the Compensation Committee was to design a long-term incentive plan that focused on aligning our executives interests with the value-creation objectives of our investors. Ultimately, the Compensation Committee developed a plan with a one-time performance-based grant spanning a 39-month performance period (*i.e.*, not an annual long-term incentive program), enabling our executives to share in the success of the Company based on the overall improvement in total company value during this period. The Compensation Committee further decided that awards for officers would settle in equity interests or shares.

Peer Group Analysis. Benchmarking is an integral aspect of our compensation system. To attract and retain our key executives, our goal is to provide compensation opportunities at competitive market rates. A key element of this process is selecting a relevant peer group against which we compare our elements of pay. Delphi s 2010 peer group was made up of companies whose aggregate profile was comparable to Delphi in terms of size, industry, competition for executive talent and achievement of strong financial performance. The Compensation Committee determines the composition of our peer group on a yearly basis, taking into consideration the peer group recommended by its independent compensation consultant. Our intent is to create a compensation structure that targets the median of our selected peer companies, but also allows total compensation to exceed the median when company performance and individual experience, responsibilities and performance warrant.

Our 2010 peer group was comprised of the following companies:

ArvinMeritor	Federal-Mogul	PACCAR
BorgWarner	Genuine Parts Company	Parker Hannifin
Corning Incorporated	Goodyear	Precision Castparts
Cummins	ITT Corporation	Tenneco
Dana Holding Corporation	Johnson Controls	Textron
Danaher Corporation	Lear	TRW Automotive Holdings
Dover	Navistar International	Visteon

Total direct compensation for officers in 2010 was between the 50th 7th percentiles of the peer group, and in 2011, market movement shifted the position to between the 50th 6th percentiles. We target compensation for officers in the 50th percentile range. The Compensation Committee sets annual incentive financial performance metrics at stretch levels to drive high-level performance. We intend to monitor our compensation structure in relation to our peer group annually to ensure that target total direct compensation for our officers is appropriate considering our peer companies in terms of both size and overall company performance.

Role of the Committee and Use of Outside Consultants. The Compensation Committee is responsible for overseeing executive compensation and other human resources matters. Since November 2009, the Compensation Committee has retained Radford, an Aon Hewitt Consulting Company, to advise the committee on executive compensation matters. The scope of Radford s work includes market assessment, data review and analysis. Radford reports directly to the Chairman of the Compensation Committee and takes direction solely from the Compensation Committee. Radford is invited to and attends Compensation Committee meetings that address matters relating to the services it provides to the committee. Radford does not perform any other work

for Delphi. In 2010, fees paid for services provided by Radford totaled \$98,000. Aon Hewitt Consulting, Radford s parent company, provides risk management and insurance services for Delphi, and the amounts paid for these services in 2010 were approximately \$1.6 million.

Philosophy and Strategy Post-Offering. The Compensation Committee will continue applying the compensation philosophy and strategy described above to its design and oversight of executive compensation programs following this offering. To that end, we have reserved 22,977,116 shares of equity for future long-term compensation to align the interests of management and shareholders. Future long-term incentive awards may be delivered in a variety of forms such as restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock options and performance shares. The future plan will have competitive and market-appropriate holding requirements.

Overview of Executive Compensation What are the Elements of Pay?

With the objectives outlined in Compensation Philosophy and Strategy General Philosophy in mind, we regularly undertake comprehensive review of our overall long-term business plan to identify the key strategic initiatives that should be linked to compensation. From there, we derive the annual short-term and long-term compensation performance metrics that will reward executives based on the actual performance of the Company. We also assess and review the level of risk in our compensation programs to ensure that they do not encourage inappropriate risk-taking.

Elements of Executive Compensation. In line with the philosophy described above, compensation of our executives, including the NEOs as displayed in the Summary Compensation Table below, is comprised of the following elements:

Base salary;

An annual incentive award;

A one-time long-term incentive award; and

Other compensation, which consists primarily of qualified and non-qualified defined contribution plans.

The following chart outlines these elements of compensation and indicates how they relate to the key objectives of our compensation programs for executives:

Element	Key Features	Relationship to Objectives
Direct Compensation		
Base Salary	Commensurate with responsibilities, experience and performance	Attract and retain key executives
	Reviewed on a periodic basis for competitiveness and individual performance	
	Targeted at the market median	
Annual Incentive	Compensation Committee approves a target incentive pool for each performance period based on selected	Pay for performance
Plan	financial and/or operational metrics	Align executive and investor interests
	Each executive is granted a fixed award opportunity varying by level of responsibility	
	Actual payouts are determined by actual performance (at both the corporate and, where applicable, division level), then adjusted to reflect individual performance based on pre-established individual objectives	
Long-Term Incentive	Target award granted commensurate with responsibilities, experience and performance	Pay for performance
Plan (i.e.,	Participants were granted a one-time award for a	Align executive and investor interests
Management Value	39-month performance period	Attract and retain key executives
Creation Plan	Awards vest at the end of the performance period, with award values based on our company value as of December	Focus on long-term value creation
(Value Creation	31, 2012	
Plan))	Following the closing of the offering, officers awards will settle at the completion of the performance period in Delphi equity and other executives awards will settle in cash	
	We have adopted an equity compensation plan for future	

long-term incentive compensation

Element	Key Features	Relationship to Objectives
Other Compensation		
Salaried Retirement		Attract and retain key executives
Savings Program,		
Salaried Retirement	Qualified defined contribution plan available to all salaried	
Equalization Savings	employees, including executives	
Program and	Non-qualified defined contribution plan available to eligible employees, including executives, who exceed statutory limits	
Supplemental	under our qualified defined contribution plan	
Executive Retirement	Defined benefit plan that was frozen as of September 2008 and provides reduced benefits to certain eligible executives who participated in the defined benefit plan that predates the formation	
Program	of Delphi Automotive LLP	
1	x. Our annual incentive and long-term incentive awards are considered at-risk	1 2 1

awards are not guaranteed any payment unless they achieve specified performance goals at corporate, division and individual levels. These annual and long-term incentive awards, along with base salary, make up our executives total direct compensation. Delphi strives to ensure that a majority of each executive s total direct compensation is comprised of at-risk pay.

Mr. O Neal s annualized at-risk pay makes up 86% of his total direct compensation, which includes the 60% of his total direct compensation that is tied to long-term incentives; correspondingly, his base salary makes up 14% of his total direct compensation. Our remaining NEOs total direct compensation, on average, is comprised of 76% at-risk pay and 24% base salary, with long-term incentives constituting 49% of total direct compensation. The large proportion of at-risk pay, combined with a focus on long-term incentive awards, aligns the NEOs interests with the interests of Delphi s investors.

The mix of compensation for our CEO and other NEOs are shown below:

2010 Target Compensation Structure. Our executives direct compensation is made up of three elements: base salary, an annual incentive award and a long-term incentive award. For 2010, the Compensation Committee approved the following annualized total direct compensation for the NEOs who were officers as of December 31, 2010:

2010 Total Direct Compensation

Long-Term

			Incentive				
			Annual Incentive Target Award T		Та	Plan arget Award	
Name	Division	Base Salary		(1)		(2)	Total
Rodney O Neal	Corporate	\$ 1,211,100	\$	2,195,000	\$	5,076,923	\$ 8,483,023
Kevin P. Clark (3)	Corporate	800,000		800,000		2,538,462	4,138,462
James A. Bertrand	Thermal Systems	573,600		660,500		1,038,462	2,272,562
Ronald M. Pirtle	Powertrain Systems	603,000		687,000		1,000,000	2,290,000
James A. Spencer	Electronics/Electrical						
	Architecture	560,100		659,000		1,076,923	2,296,023

(1) All annual incentive awards have been granted under our Annual Incentive Plan.

- (2) All long-term incentive awards have been granted under our Value Creation Plan. The awards are a one-time grant covering a 39-month performance period from October 2009 to December 2012. As of December 31, 2010, no portion of the awards had vested. Each award will cliff vest on the earlier of December 31, 2012 or a qualifying termination after a change in control and will settle in Delphi equity, which may be subject to an ownership or holding commitment. The awards are not subject to accelerated vesting in the event of a completed initial public offering. The amounts in the table represent annualized target values for 2010.
- (3) Mr. Clark s base salary and annual incentive target are annualized for the full year. Mr. Clark s actual salary and annual incentive target (as reported in the Summary Compensation Table and the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table) were prorated based on his hire date in July 2010.

Officer Annual Compensation Determination. Individual base salaries and annual incentive targets for the officers are established based on the scope and size of each officer s responsibilities. At the beginning of each year we also define the key strategic objectives each officer is expected to achieve during that year, which are evaluated and approved by the Compensation Committee.

Base Salary. Base salary is intended to be commensurate with each executive s responsibilities, experience and performance. For newly hired officers, the Compensation Committee conducts a market review of the position in terms of its size and scope of responsibility and also takes into account the individual s compensation at his previous employer. Salaries for officers were established in the offer letter process previously discussed in Background of Our 2010 Compensation Practices. The net adjustments were an overall reduction in base salary of 19% for Mr. O Neal and an average of 9% for all other NEOs, except Mr. Clark. Mr. Clark s base salary was established when he was recruited by Delphi.

Annual Incentive Plan. Our Annual Incentive Plan is designed to motivate executives to drive company earnings, cash flow before financing and growth by measuring the executives performance against the current year business plan at the corporate and relevant division levels. The Compensation Committee, working with management, sets the annual incentive performance objectives and payout levels based on Delphi s annual company business objectives, which are then reviewed and approved by the Board of Managers. For 2010 each NEO s award payout was determined as follows:

Corporate performance metrics, weighted 100% for Messrs. O Neal and Clark, and 25% for Messrs. Bertrand, Pirtle and Spencer

Division performance metrics, weighted 75% for Messrs. Bertrand, Pirtle and Spencer

Individual performance metrics, which allow for payment adjustments (within the total fund pool) reflective of each NEO s performance against his individual goals

For 2010, both corporate and division performance objectives were based on three metrics: EBITDAR, cash flow before financing and growth. The Compensation Committee selected the following weightings in 2010 for both corporate and division performance metrics:

Weighting of Performance Metrics

EBITDAR (1)	70%
Cash flow before financing (2)	20%
Growth (3)	10%

- (1) EBITDAR was an appropriate measurement of our underlying earnings for 2010 and a good indication of our performance. As Delphi was still implementing material elements of its post-formation reorganization, restructuring charges were included in the 2010 annual incentive plan but was not included in 2011, at which time we replaced EBITDAR with EBITDA.
- (2) Cash flow before financing measures the amount of cash generated by our operations, excluding financing activities.
- (3) The growth metric is based on our future business booked in the current fiscal year. In general, in order to achieve the target performance level, a specified percentage of our planned future sales for the next two calendar years must be booked by the end of the measurement period, in this case the end of fiscal year 2010.

Similar to the process for determining base salary, the Compensation Committee establishes the annual incentive target for each officer based on his or her position and the size and scope of his or her responsibilities.

The EBITDAR and cash flow before financing metrics and the award payout levels related to those metrics are measured on a performance matrix, with threshold, target and maximum financial performance requirements and payout levels set by the Compensation Committee. Performance below the minimum threshold results in no payout, and performance above the maximum level is capped at a maximum payout, which ranges from 150% to 200% of the target award.

The growth metric is treated differently from the EBITDAR and cash flow before financing metrics, as it includes only a target level without threshold or maximum performance levels. If the growth metric is achieved, the target award level for that metric is paid. If the growth metric is not achieved, the growth portion of the award will not be paid.

The threshold, target and maximum payout levels for the NEOs in 2010 are shown below.

	Payout as a	Payout as a Percentage of the 2010 Target Award				
		Cash Flow Before				
Performance Level	EBITDAR	Financing	Growth			
Threshold performance	50%	50%	0%			
Target performance	100%	100%	100%			
Maximum performance	200%	200%	100%			

Once the combined payout is determined based on the three financial metrics at corporate and/or division level, the Compensation Committee, in conjunction with the CEO, assesses each officer s performance based on the attainment of individual performance objectives. The CEO does not participate in the assessment of his own performance.

Consistent with Section 162(m) of the Code, annual incentive compensation awards for officers may not be increased based on individual performance but may be decreased if performance goals are not met. Annual incentive compensation for employees other than officers may be decreased or increased based on assessment of individual performance. The pool for annual incentive compensation cannot be increased, and, as a result, any increase to an individual s award must be offset by a decrease in other individuals awards so that the aggregate award payouts do not exceed the generated fund dollars.

The table below shows the 2010 performance targets set for the corporate and division levels relevant to the NEOs who were officers as of December 31, 2010:

Division	2010 EBITDAR Target (in	2010 Cash Flow Befo Financing Target	ore 2010 Growth Target (2011/2012 Bookings)
	millions)	(in millions)	
Corporate	\$ 822	\$ 0	99% /91%
Electronics/Electrical Architecture	\$ 317	\$ 146	98% /91%
Thermal Systems	\$ 72	\$ 11	100% /94%
Powertrain Systems	\$ 246	\$ 18	100% /91%

The 2010 performance of all divisions exceeded target levels. As a result, award percentages based on corporate and division level metrics ranged from 189% to 200%. After first considering the Company s strong performance, as discussed above, the Compensation Committee then evaluated each officer s individual performance objectives to determine if any payout adjustments were warranted. These objectives related to specific customer relationships, improved cost structure initiatives (*e.g.*, material cost), health and safety metrics as well as achieving specific financial improvement (*e.g.*, margin expansion). Each NEO achieved his individual objectives. Adjustments to individual payouts of NEOs who are current officers, as listed below, were reflective of individual and divisional performance factors.

The Compensation Committee approved the following 2010 annual incentive awards for the NEOs who were officers as of December 31, 2010:

	Annual	Incentive Plan	
Name	Actual 2	010 Payment (1)	% of Target Incentive
Rodney O Neal	\$	4,390,000	200%
Kevin P. Clark (2)	\$	800,000	200%
James A. Bertrand	\$	1,321,000	200%
Ronald M. Pirtle	\$	1,236,600	180%
James A. Spencer	\$	1,318,000	200%

(1) These award amounts are reported in the Summary Compensation Table.

(2) Mr. Clark received a prorated target award based on his hire date in July 2010.

Long-Term Incentive Plan. In 2009, the Compensation Committee designed the Management Value Creation Plan (the Value Creation Plan) in order to link a significant portion of executive compensation to company value. Because targets are based upon equity interests, executives had a major component of their compensation structure aligned with the interests of the private company s owners. Under the Value Creation Plan, an equity-based long-term incentive plan, participants were granted a one-time award for a 39-month performance period commencing in October 2009 and ending in December 2012, with vesting generally occurring on a cliff basis at the end of the performance period and award values based on our company value as of December 31, 2012.

If Delphi is a public company at the end of the performance period, our officers will receive their Value Creation Plan awards in ordinary shares, thus maintaining alignment with the shareholders. The Compensation Committee retains the discretion to settle some or all of the awards in cash.

In general, actual payouts under the Value Creation Plan are based on three factors:

Target award amount (target value);

Delphi s company value as of December 31, 2012 (company value), which will be determined using a formula based on the average market price of the Company, including any qualified distributions, if we are a public company as of that date, or an independent valuation if we are not a public company; and

Target value divided by the total Value Creation Plan target fund of \$135,000,000 (target value percentage). Each individual participant s target value is based on a market review of long-term incentive targets conducted by Radford. The Compensation Committee, with input from the CEO regarding the other executives, determined each executive s target value based on his or her level of responsibility and the country or region in which he is located. Each year, the Compensation Committee also evaluates participants performance and may grant special awards in recognition of outstanding performance.

A company value of \$2.5 billion must be achieved to receive a minimum award payment; above this level, the payout is determined primarily as a percentage of the target award. The target award will be paid if the company value, which is deemed to include distributions to holders of all membership interests, the approximately \$4.4 billion paid to repurchase Class A and Class C membership interests and any Class B membership interest repurchases, reaches \$8.25 billion; and an amount more than the target award will be paid if the company value exceeds \$8.25 billion.

The company value will be based on the average market price of the Company between our first day of trading on a public exchange and the end of the performance period (*i.e.*, December 31, 2012) as well as any cash-qualifying distributions. The Value Creation Plan provides for an independent valuation if we are not a publicly-traded company at the end of the performance period.

Upon a qualifying termination after a change in control, officers Value Creation Plan awards will vest earlier than December 31, 2012 and will settle in Delphi equity. Other executives awards will cliff vest upon the earlier of December 31, 2012 or a change in control and will settle in cash.

The Value Creation Plan amounts shown in the 2010 Total Direct Compensation Target table in this Compensation Discussion and Analysis reflect the target values. In comparison, the values shown in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table below are based on the Value Creation Plan grant date recognized in our financial reports in accordance with relevant accounting rules using the grant date of September 15, 2010, the date by which participants had to sign agreements in order to be eligible to participate in the program. The values reported in the Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End table below are based on our 2010 company value as evaluated formally by a third-party appraiser as of December 31, 2010. Such award values may therefore vary in the relevant tables.

In order to participate in the Value Creation Plan, each eligible executive was required to sign a confidentiality and non-interference agreement, which includes both non-compete and non-solicitation covenants, and a participation agreement. The confidentiality and non-interference agreement is discussed under Other Considerations below.

Other Compensation. As described above in Background of our 2010 Compensation Practices, perquisites for executives were eliminated at the time of the formation of Delphi Automotive LLP. Other than base salary, the annual incentive plan and the Value Creation Plan, the only other formal compensation programs available to our executives are the programs described below.

Salaried Retirement Savings Program (SRSP). Along with other eligible Delphi salaried employees, our executives are eligible to participate in our broad-based defined contribution plan, the SRSP, which is a qualified plan under Section 401(k) of the Code. All contributions are subject to any contribution limits imposed by the Code.

Salaried Retirement Equalization Savings Program (SRESP). Under the SRESP, eligible employees, including our executives and officers, receive Delphi contributions in excess of the limits imposed upon the SRSP by the Internal Revenue Code. No guaranteed or above-market rates are earned; the investment options available are a subset of those available to all employees under the SRSP. Additional details regarding benefits and payouts under this plan are provided in Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation below.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Program (SERP). The Predecessor's SERP was frozen (for purposes of credited service and compensation calculations) in September 2008, as described further under Pension Benefits below. A modified, reduced-benefit version of the plan was approved by the bankruptcy court for retention purposes as part of the formation of Delphi Automotive LLP. As a result, a specified group of executives with executive appointment dates predating September 2008 remain eligible for reduced supplemental benefits through the modified version of the plan. This plan is unfunded. Additional details regarding accruals and payouts under this plan are provided in Pension Benefits below.

Compensation for Mr. Sheehan and Mr. Stipp. Mr. Sheehan was our CFO until he ceased employment with Delphi on March 1, 2010. As a result of his departure, Mr. Sheehan received a severance payment of \$1,680,000 paid semi-monthly through August 2011, which is discussed in detail in the Summary Compensation Table below. He forfeited his annual incentive award and was not eligible to receive an award under the Value Creation Plan.

Mr. Stipp was our Acting CFO from March 1, 2010 to June 30, 2010. His compensation includes a one-time payment of \$42,000 and his annual incentive target reflects an increase of \$80,000, all as additional compensation for his service as Acting CFO. Corporate performance weighed 100% in Mr. Stipp s annual incentive award. Because he was considered a non-officer executive at the beginning and end of 2010, his maximum annual incentive payout before individual performance adjustment was 150% of the target award and he was eligible for, and received, an upward adjustment in his annual incentive award. In addition, because he is not an officer, his Value Creation Plan award will settle in cash rather than equity.

2011 Departure of Mr. Pirtle. Mr. Pirtle ceased being an executive officer of Delphi on July 1, 2011 and will retire from Delphi on January 1, 2012. Because his retirement takes place after the end of 2010, it does not affect his 2010 compensation.

Risk Analysis

We conducted an internal audit of risks arising from our base pay, annual incentive plan, Value Creation Plan and other material incentive programs in effect at Delphi during 2010. This assessment included a review of the Compensation Committee s minutes, interviews of senior Delphi Human Resources personnel, interviews of selected Delphi financial personnel, reviews of internal control audits and compliance-related activities and examination of documents supporting base pay and our material incentive compensation programs. Our review was designed to identify the controls over compensation practices at Delphi and to determine whether our compensation policies and practices for all employees create risks that are likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company. Based on this evaluation and the procedures performed, we concluded that our compensation programs do not create risks that are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on Delphi. Among the elements evaluated were the following:

Independent oversight by the Compensation Committee

Discrete segregation of duties between the review of financial results and the determination of final payouts to individuals

Inclusion of clawback language in the event of a material financial misstatement

Other Considerations

Clawback. As a matter of policy and applicable plan language, if our financial statements are materially misstated, then the Compensation Committee has the right to review the circumstances and determine if any participants should forfeit future awards or repay prior payouts. If the misstatement is due to fraud, then the participants responsible for the fraud will forfeit their rights to any future awards and must repay any excess amounts they received from prior awards due to the fraudulent behavior. As necessary, this policy will be revised to comply with the requirements for clawbacks under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act.

Restrictive Covenants. As noted above in Overview of Executive Compensation Long-Term Incentive Plan, all executives, including the NEOs, were required to sign confidentiality and non-interference agreements as a requirement for participation in the Value Creation Plan. The non-interference agreements include non-compete and non-solicitation covenants and prevent executives from:

Working for a competitor or otherwise directly or indirectly engaging in competition with us for 12 months after leaving the Company;

Soliciting or hiring employees for 24 months after leaving Delphi; and

Soliciting customers for 24 months after leaving Delphi.

If the terms of the confidentiality and non-interference agreement are violated, the Company has the right to cancel or rescind any final Value Creation Plan award within the bounds of applicable law.

No Tax Gross-Ups. We do not provide any tax gross-ups as part of our executive compensation plans or elements. Certain expatriate policy provisions, applicable to all salaried employees allow for gross-ups as reimbursement for additional taxes incurred due to expatriate status. During 2010, Mr. Pirtle was an expatriate employee and was eligible for tax gross-ups in connection with an international assignment.

Summary Compensation Table

The table below sets forth specified information regarding the compensation for 2010 of the Chief Executive Officer (Rodney O Neal), the individuals who served as the Chief Financial Officer during 2010 (Kevin P. Clark, Keith D. Stipp and John D. Sheehan) and the next three most highly compensated executive officers (James A. Bertrand, Ronald M. Pirtle and James A. Spencer). We refer to these individuals as named executive officers (NEOs).

2010 Summary Compensation Table

Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Stock Awards (\$)(6)	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation (\$)(7)	Change in Pension Value and Non-qualified Deferred Compensation Earnings (\$)(8)	All Other Compensation (\$)(9)	Total (\$)
Rodney O Neal		• • • •						
	2010	¢1 011 100		¢14 470 150	¢4 200 000	¢1.000.0 2 0	¢(1.005	¢01 104 500
President & Chief Executive Officer Kevin P. Clark (1)	2010	\$1,211,100		\$14,472,150	\$4,390,000	\$1,000,028	\$61,225	\$21,134,503
Chief Financial Officer	2010	\$378,974	\$2,500,000	\$7,236,075	\$800,000		\$210	\$10,915,259
James A. Bertrand								
Vice President and President,	2010	\$572 (00(5)		#2 0 < 0 212	¢1.001.000(5)	\$540,750	¢ 42 0 45	\$5,440,517
Delphi Thermal Systems Ronald M. Pirtle (2)	2010	\$573,600(5)		\$2,960,213	\$1,321,000(5)	\$549,759	\$43,945	\$5,448,517
Former Vice President and President, Delphi Powertrain Systems and President, Delphi Europe, Middle East & Africa	2010	\$603,000		\$2,850,575	\$1,236,600	\$518,027	\$240,684	\$5,448,886
James A. Spencer Vice President and President, Delphi Packard Electrical & Electronic Architecture and								
President, Delphi Latin America	2010	\$560,100		\$3,069,850	\$1,318,000	\$452,537	\$29,929	\$5,430,416
Keith D. Stipp (3)								
Treasurer and Former Acting Chief Financial Officer	2010	\$400,000	\$42,000	\$1,253,000	\$525,000	\$35,416	\$25,006	\$2,280,422
John D. Sheehan (4)	2010	φ τ 00,000	φτ2,000	φ1,233,000	ψ525,000	φ55,+10	φ25,000	<i>φ</i> 2,200, 1 22

(1) Mr. Clark joined Delphi in July 2010 as our CFO. His engagement letter included a signing bonus of \$2,500,000 to recognize compensation he was required to forgo by joining Delphi, which is reported in the Bonus column. He is not eligible to participate in the SERP because he has not met the minimum employment requirements, and he elected not to participate in the SRESP in 2010.

(2) Mr. Pirtle ceased being an executive officer of Delphi on July 1, 2011 and will retire from Delphi on January 1, 2012. Because his retirement takes place after the end of 2010, it does not affect his 2010 compensation.

- (3) Mr. Stipp was appointed Acting CFO upon the departure of Mr. Sheehan. He held that position from March 1, 2010 through June 30, 2010, when Mr. Clark joined Delphi. Because of Mr. Stipp s increased responsibilities, he received a supplemental one-time payment of \$42,000, reflected in the Bonus column. In addition, due to his increase in responsibilities, he received an \$80,000 target increase to his annual incentive target award, from \$250,000 to \$330,000. Mr. Stipp s current position as Treasurer makes him eligible for a cash award rather than an equity award under the Value Creation Plan.
- (4) Mr. Sheehan ceased employment with Delphi on March 1, 2010. He was granted a severance payment of \$1,680,000 paid semi-monthly through August 2011. The actual payments received by Mr. Sheehan through December 31, 2010 totaled \$840,000. Due to his departure, Mr. Sheehan forfeited his award under the annual incentive plan and did not receive an award under the Value Creation Plan.

- (5) Base salary and annual incentive awards are eligible for deferral under the SRESP. Mr. Bertrand was the only NEO who deferred a portion of his compensation through this program in 2010. His total base salary and annual incentive award, including the deferred portions, are presented in this Summary Compensation Table. His contributions to the SRESP are displayed in the 2010 Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation table below.
- (6) Under the Value Creation Plan, Delphi made a one-time grant of awards covering a 39-month performance period from October 2009 through December 2012 (in other words, not annual long-term incentive awards). As of December 31, 2010, no portion of these awards had vested. The awards generally will cliff vest on the earlier of December 31, 2012 or a qualifying termination after a change in control and settle in Delphi equity, which may be subject to an ownership or holding commitment. The awards are not subject to accelerated vesting in the event of this offering or any other initial public offering. As noted in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table below, there is no maximum award under the Value Creation Plan. These awards are discussed in Compensation Discussion and Analysis Long-Term Incentive Plan above. The award values reflected in the Stock Awards column for Messrs. O Neal, Clark, Bertrand, Pirtle, Spencer and Stipp are the grant date fair value of their respective Value Creation Plan awards determined in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. These values reflect a discount to account for the illiquidity of Delphi equity due to our status as a non-public company. The grant date for accounting purposes was set at September 15, 2010, the last date on which each NEO could sign the confidentiality and non-interference agreement as required by the Value Creation Plan. For assumptions used in determining the fair value of these awards, see Note 22. Share-Based Compensation to the consolidated financial statements included herein.
- (7) The Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column reflects payments made under our 2010 annual incentive plan.
- (8) Except for Mr. Clark, all of our active NEOs were eligible to participate in the SERP during 2010. The Change in Pension Value and Non-qualified Deferred Compensation Earnings column reflects the year-over-year change of our estimated liability on our balance sheet. Although the SERP is a frozen program (see Pension Benefits below for a discussion of the frozen plan) with fixed measurement parameters, the year-over-year balances change because the NEO s age and the interest rates used to estimate the award value change each year. The numbers reported here show the impact of the year-over-year changed assumptions. There were no above-market or preferential earnings in respect of any non-qualified deferral compensation.
- (9) Amounts reported in the All Other Compensation reflect the following:

Name	Delphi Contributions (a)	Expatriate Payments (b)	Separation Payments (c)	Life Insurance (d)	Total
Rodney O Neal	\$59,419			\$1,806	\$61,225
Kevin P. Clark				\$210	\$210
James A. Bertrand	\$42,979			\$966	\$43,945
Ronald M. Pirtle	\$29,607	\$209,271		\$1,806	\$240,684
James A. Spencer	\$28,123			\$1,806	\$29,929
Keith D. Stipp	\$24,040			\$966	\$25,006
John D. Sheehan	\$10,537		\$840,000	\$242	\$850,778

- (a) This column reflects Delphi s contributions to both the qualified SRSP and the non-qualified SRESP. For all participants in the SRSP, Delphi provides a contribution of 4% of base salary and annual incentive award. Beginning in March 2010, we also provided a matching contribution equal to 50% of the participant s contributions to the program, up to a maximum of 7% of the participant s base salary and annual incentive award. Additional details regarding the SRESP are provided in connection with the 2010 Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation table below.
- (b) During 2010, Mr. Pirtle was on an expatriate assignment in Luxembourg. As such, he received expatriate benefits that are typical of payments made to any employee on an expatriate assignment. The payments reported in this column include the following: \$93,931 housing expenses; \$35,821 cost of living adjustment; \$36,220 tax equalization payments; \$20,991 additional payment to reimburse Mr. Pirtle for expatriate-related income tax incurred by him; \$17,708 for relocation costs; \$3,850 for company vehicle; and \$750 for tax preparation

services.

- (c) Mr. Sheehan s severance benefit is described in the Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control section below. Only 50% of his entire severance benefit was paid out as of the end of 2010. The remainder is payable in 2011, subject to his compliance with certain restrictive covenants, including confidentiality, non-compete and non-solicitation covenants.
- (d) This column reflects the amount imputed to each NEO s income for premium payments made to his life insurance policy.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The table below sets forth the threshold, target and maximum award payouts for plan-based awards that were granted to the NEOs in 2010.

2010 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

		Compensation Committee		Non-E	qui	iture Payo ty Incentiv ards (5)(6)	e Plan	Ε	quity Ince		ure Payout ve Plan Av	vards	(7)	F	rant Date air Value of Stock
Name	Grant Date (4)	Approval Date (4)	Ir	reshold (\$)	Т	arget (\$)	Maximum (\$)	Ir	reshold (\$)	Т	arget (\$)		imum)(8)		Awards (\$)(9)
Rodney O Neal	1/1/2010 9/15/2010	6/22/2010	\$ 1	,097,500	\$	2,195,000	\$ 4,390,000	\$ 2	,310,000	\$:	1,550,000		N/A	\$ 1	4,472,150
Kevin P. Clark (1)	7/1/2010 9/15/2010	7/1/2010	\$	200,000	\$	400,000	\$ 800,000	\$ 1	,155,000	\$	5,775,000		N/A	\$	7,236,075
James A. Bertrand	1/1/2010 9/15/2010	6/22/2010	\$	330,250	\$	660,500	\$ 1,321,000	\$	472,500	\$	2,362,500		N/A	\$	2,960,213
Ronald M. Pirtle	1/1/2010 9/15/2010	6/22/2010	\$	343,500	\$	687,000	\$ 1,374,000	\$	455,000	\$	2,275,000		N/A	\$	2,850,575
James A. Spencer	1/1/2010 9/15/2010	6/22/2010	\$	329,500	\$	659,000	\$ 1,318,000	\$	490.000	\$	2,450.000		N/A	\$	3,069,850
Keith D. Stipp (2)	1/1/2010 9/15/2010	6/22/2010	\$	165,000	\$	330,000	\$ 495,000	\$	200,000		1,000,000		N/A	\$	
John D. Sheehan (3)	1/1/2010		\$	290,000	\$	580,000	\$ 1,160,000	ĺ	,		,,			ĺ	,,

- (1) Mr. Clark was granted a target annual incentive award and a target Value Creation Plan award in accordance with the terms of his offer letter. The target annual incentive award value reflected in the table was adjusted for his July 2010 hire date.
- (2) For his three months as Acting CFO, Mr. Stipp s target annual incentive award was increased by \$80,000 from \$250,000 to \$330,000. He is eligible to receive a cash award rather than an equity award under the Value Creation Plan.
- (3) Mr. Sheehan ceased employment with Delphi on March 1, 2010 and, as a result, forfeited his annual incentive award. He was not eligible to receive an award under the Value Creation Plan.
- (4) September 15, 2010 is the Value Creation Plan grant date recognized in our financial reports. The Compensation Committee approved final Value Creation Plan awards on June 22, 2010 and set the initial performance measurement date as of October 6, 2009, upon the formation of Delphi Automotive LLP. Please see footnote (9) below.
- (5) 2010 annual incentive awards were paid out on January 30, 2011. Actual amounts paid were as follows: Mr. O Neal, \$4,390,000; Mr. Clark, \$800,000; Mr. Bertrand, \$1,321,000; Mr. Pirtle, \$1,236,600; Mr. Spencer, \$1,318,000; and Mr. Stipp, \$525,000. Mr. Sheehan forfeited his award upon his departure.
- (6) The threshold, target and maximum values under our annual incentive plan are measured based on the attainment of corporate and division performance metrics. The annual incentive plan also includes an individual assessment. While most NEOs are subject only to downward adjustment of annual incentive awards for individual performance, Mr. Stipp is eligible for an increase in his award and received such an increase in his 2010 annual incentive payout from 150% to 159% of his target award.

- (7) These equity incentive plan awards refer to our Value Creation Plan awards. Please see footnote (9) below.
- (8) There is no maximum payout under the Value Creation Plan.
- (9) This column reflects the grant date fair value of the target awards under the Value Creation Plan determined in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. These values reflect a discount to account for the illiquidity of Delphi equity due to our status as a non-public company. For assumptions used in determining the fair value of these awards, see Note 22. Share-Based Compensation to the consolidated financial statements included herein. Under the Value Creation Plan, Delphi made one-time grant of awards covering a 39-month performance period from October 2009 through December 2012 (in other words, not annual long-term incentive awards). As of December 31, 2010, no portion of these awards had vested. The awards generally will cliff vest on the earlier of December 31, 2012 or a qualifying termination after a change in control and settle in Delphi equity, which may be subject to an ownership or holding commitment. The awards are not subject to accelerated vesting in the event of the completion of this offering or any other initial public offering. These awards are discussed in Compensation Discussion and Analysis Long-Term Incentive Plan above.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The values displayed in the table below represent the estimated award value of each NEO s Value Creation Plan target award as of December 31, 2010. They are based on a year-end company value analysis performed by a third-party appraiser.

2010 Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Name	Stock Awards Equity Incentive J Awards: Market or Payo Value of Unearn Shares, Units o Other Rights Th Have Not Veste (\$)(3)
Rodney O Neal	\$ 21,332,
Kevin P. Clark	\$ 10,666,
James A. Bertrand	\$ 4,363,
Ronald M. Pirtle	\$ 4,201,
James A. Spencer	\$ 4,525,
Keith D. Stipp (1)	
John D. Sheehan (2)	

(1) Mr. Stipp is not eligible to receive an equity award under the Value Creation Plan, but instead is eligible for a cash award.

(2) Mr. Sheehan ceased employment with Delphi on March 1, 2010, prior to the grant of Value Creation Plan awards.

(3) Under the Value Creation Plan, Delphi made one-time grant of awards covering a 39-month performance period from October 2009 through December 2012 (in other words, not annual long-term incentive awards). As of December 31, 2010, no portion of these awards had vested. The awards generally will cliff vest on the earlier of December 31, 2012 or a qualifying termination after a change in control and settle in Delphi equity, which may be subject to an ownership or holding commitment. The awards are not subject to accelerated vesting in the event of a completed initial public offering. These awards are discussed in Compensation Discussion and Analysis Long-Term Incentive Plan above. Value Creation Plan awards are denominated in dollars rather than in shares. The values in this table reflect a discount to account for the illiquidity of Delphi equity due to our status as a non-public company.

Pension Benefits

Certain executives, including the NEOs, are eligible to receive benefits under the SERP. The SERP was approved by the bankruptcy court for retention purposes as part of the formation of Delphi Automotive LLP.

The SERP is a modified and reduced-benefit form of the Predecessor s supplemental executive defined benefit plan, which was frozen on September 30, 2008. As a result of the freeze, no new benefits have accrued and no new participants have been allowed to join the plan after this date, although a reduced portion of benefits continue to be available to executives who were eligible participants prior to the freeze date. This plan is a non-qualified and unfunded defined benefit plan that supplemented the benefits of an underlying qualified defined benefit pension plan. This qualified plan was assumed by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (the PBGC) in July 2009.

Eligibility

To qualify for participation in the SERP, eligible executives, including the NEOs, must meet both of the following requirements:

The executive was appointed to an executive position in the Predecessor as of September 30, 2008; and

The executive was employed by us on October 6, 2009, upon the formation of Delphi Automotive LLP. To receive benefits under the SERP:

The executive must remain continuously employed by us until the earlier of separation, death or disability; and

At the time of termination of employment, death or disability, the executive must:

Have at least 10 years of service (unless the executive is involuntarily separated other than for cause, in which case the requirement is 5 years of service); and

Be at least 55 years of age (unless the executive is involuntarily separated other than for cause or dies in which events the eligible executive or the surviving spouse will begin receiving payment of benefits when the executive attains or would have attained age 55).

In addition, any participant, including a NEO, is only eligible for the SERP upon a voluntary termination if one of the two following requirements is met:

The participant has at least 10 years of service and is 60 years old as of the voluntary termination date; or

The participant has been employed by the Company for at least two years dating from October 6, 2009. Of the NEOs, Messrs. O Neal, Pirtle and Spencer meet the age and service requirements and are eligible to receive SERP benefits as of November 2011.

SERP Calculation Methods and Assumptions

The formulas of the SERP provide for a benefit that is based on eligible pay multiplied by eligible years of credited service. This benefit is then reduced by several factors, including the following:

An unreduced age 62 benefit calculated under the Predecessor s qualified pension plan (the SRP)

Social Security benefits

Participant s departure from the Company prior to age 62

SERP benefits are reduced by the above factors regardless of whether the participant actually receives these benefits. For example, participants who would otherwise receive a pension benefit under the SRP will actually receive their benefit from the PBGC at a substantially reduced level; however, the higher SRP amount will be used to calculate a reduction of the participant s SERP benefits.

Under the SERP, a participant receives the higher of one of two formulas.

1) Regular formula

	2% of					Pro-rated
	2% of		Total years		Frozen	Maximum
(monthly	Х	of credited)	Predecessor qualified	primary Social
	-		service		plan benefit	Security
	base salary					benefit

2) Alternative formula

					Frozen	Maximum
(V		``	Predecessor	primary Social
(1.5% of	Х	Total years of credited)	qualified	Security
	average total direct compensation		service		plan benefit	benefit

In the regular formula, average monthly base salary is calculated based on the participant s monthly base salary for the highest-paid 48 months between January 1, 1999 and December 31, 2006. His or her total years of credited service are counted as of December 31, 2006.

The alternative formula bases the benefit on average total direct compensation, which is the average monthly base salary, as defined in the regular formula, plus an average of the highest four years of annual incentive awards earned during the period through and inclusive of 2006.

In both formulas, service is credited as of December 31, 2006, and under the alternative formula is capped at 35 years. Under both formulas, the benefit is further reduced by an additional 10%. The benefit will be paid out in the form of a five-year annuity.

Valuation Method and Assumptions

The actuarial present value of accumulated benefits for the SERP shown in the 2010 Pension Benefit table below is based on benefits accrued as of September 30, 2008, the last day on which benefits were accumulated under the Predecessor s qualified plan. The amounts reflect the method and assumptions used in calculating our pension liability under U.S. GAAP as of that date, except that each participant is assumed to remain actively employed until the earliest he or she is eligible for unreduced benefits. The material assumptions used in the calculation were:

Discount rate: 4.1%, which is developed by RATE:Link, a globally consistent model for markets classified as having deep AA corporate bond markets.

Applicable Mortality Table based on Internal Revenue Service Revenue Ruling 2001-62. All of the figures shown are estimates only; actual benefit amounts will be based on the age, interest rates, mortality rates and other circumstances in effect upon the actual termination of employment or death of the participant.

The table below sets forth information regarding benefits provided to and years of service credited to eligible NEOs under the SERP.

2010 Pension Benefits

		Present Value				
Name	Plan Name	Number of Years of Credited Service (3)	of Accumulated Benefit	Payments During Last Fiscal Year		
Rodney O Neal	SERP	34.5	\$ 7,463,734			
Kevin P. Clark (1)						
James A. Bertrand	SERP	27.6	\$ 3,522,656			
Ronald M. Pirtle	SERP	32.9	\$ 3,866,304			
James A. Spencer	SERP	30.3	\$ 3,577,424			
Keith M. Stipp	SERP	22.6	\$ 191,823			
John D. Sheehan (2)						

(1) Mr. Clark joined Delphi in July 2010, after the SERP was frozen and is therefore ineligible for benefits under the program.

- (2) Mr. Sheehan ceased employment with Delphi on March 1, 2010. As discussed in further detail in the Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control section below, prior to his departure, he had the option to choose whether to receive payments upon termination of employment in accordance with the SERP or under our severance plan. Because Mr. Sheehan elected to receive benefits under the severance plan, he forfeited his SERP benefits.
- (3) Number of years of credited service includes service with the Predecessor. Unless he is age 60 or older, each NEO is also subject to a two-year employment requirement, commencing in October 2009, in order to be eligible for the SERP.

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation

The SRESP is a non-qualified deferred compensation program available to a limited number of employees, including the NEOs. Under the SRESP, participants receive Delphi contributions in excess of the limits imposed upon the SRSP, our 401(k) plan, by the Internal Revenue Code.

Plan Benefits

Employees who were eligible for SRESP deferrals in 2010, including the NEOs, were permitted to defer additional income above \$245,000, which is the maximum income deferral level imposed upon the SRSP by the Internal Revenue Code in 2010, into a SRESP deferral account. They also received the following benefits:

All SRESP-eligible employees receive a Delphi contribution of 4% of their base salary and annual incentive award. This contribution occurs even if the individual does not elect to make deferrals into the SRESP.

Eligible employees who made deferral contributions under the SRESP received an additional Delphi matching contribution of 50% on the individual s voluntary deferrals up to 7% of the base salary and annual incentive award over the qualified plan limit, which constitutes a maximum contribution by Delphi of 3.5% of each eligible employee s base salary. The Delphi employee matching contribution commenced in March 2010.

Investment Options

Participants in the SRESP may select investment options for their deferred amounts. The investment options consist of a cross-section of the funds that are also available to participants in the SRSP and do not offer any guaranteed or above-market returns.

Deferral Election Process

The SRESP deferral election process is conducted prior to the year in which eligible income is earned. For the 2010 plan, deferral elections were required to be made by December 2009. During this process, eligible employees were allowed to make deferral elections related to their 2010 base salary and any annual incentive award based on 2010 performance that would be scheduled to be paid in 2011 (but no later than March 15, 2011).

Distributions

Eligible employees must also elect a distribution date for their deferred amounts. A base salary deferral must remain deferred for a minimum of one year, and any annual incentive deferral must remain deferred for a minimum of two years.

Vesting

All employee deferrals and Delphi contributions are immediately vested.

The values displayed in the table below include contributions to the NEOs SRESP accounts by the NEOs and by Delphi in 2010, as well as the aggregate balances of these accounts at the end of 2010.

2010 Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation

Name	Executive Contributions in Last FY (\$)	Registrant Contributions in Last FY (\$)(4)	Aggregate Earnings in Last FY (\$)	Aggregate Withdrawals/ Distributions (\$) (5)	Aggregate Balance at Last FYE (\$)
Rodney O Neal		\$ 49,619	\$ 4,332	\$ (31,340)	\$ 53,616
Kevin P. Clark (1)					
James A. Bertrand (2)	\$ 28,795	\$ 30,840	\$ 44	\$ (14,538)	\$ 59,552
Ronald M. Pirtle		\$ 17,755	\$ 1,072	\$ (20,161)	\$ 18,482
James A. Spencer		\$ 15,899	\$ 2,573		\$ 22,269
Keith M. Stipp		\$ 8,835	\$ 2,275		\$ 19,175
John D. Sheehan (3)			\$ 151	\$ (11,820)	

- (1) Mr. Clark elected not to participate in the 2010 program. He was not eligible to receive any Delphi contributions or matching contributions until February 2011.
- (2) Mr. Bertrand elected to defer a portion of his salary and annual incentive award as permitted under the SRESP. His total salary and annual incentive award, including these deferred amounts, are reported in the Summary Compensation Table.
- (3) Mr. Sheehan ceased employment with Delphi on March 1, 2010. He had elected to receive payment of his previously-deferred compensation in January 2010 and had no remaining funds in his SRESP account at the time of his departure.
- (4) Our contributions to the NEOs SRESP accounts, along with contributions to the qualified SRSP, were disclosed in the All Other Compensation column in the Summary Compensation Table.
- (5) As with Mr. Sheehan s withdrawals, the withdrawals of Messrs. O Neal, Bertrand and Pirtle were made in accordance with the deferral election process described above.

Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control

Employment Arrangements

As part of the formation of Delphi Automotive LLP, each NEO was required to sign a new offer letter with the Company. Messrs. O Neal, Bertrand, Pirtle, Spencer, Stipp and Sheehan each received and signed an offer letter upon beginning their employment in October 2009. These offer letters described compensation and benefits provided to the NEOs under the annual incentive plan, the Value Creation Plan and other arrangements.

Mr. Clark received an offer letter upon commencement of his employment in July 2010. In addition to describing terms and conditions of employment consistent with those included in the other NEOs offer letters, Mr. Clark s offer letter also includes severance provisions, which provide for 18 months of base pay plus 1.5 times annual bonus target in the event he is terminated by the Company without cause.

We have no individual change in control agreements with any of the NEOs, as all change in control agreements were eliminated upon the formation of Delphi Automotive LLP in October 2009. The only change in control provisions are those provided in the annual incentive plan and the Value Creation Plan, as described below.

Each eligible participating executive signed a Value Creation Plan participation agreement and non-interference and confidentiality agreement, described above in Compensation and Discussion and Analysis. The non-interference agreement includes both non-compete and non-solicitation covenants.

Annual Incentive Plan

In the event of a change in control, each executive s annual incentive target award will be prorated for the time period between the plan start date and the effective change in control date. A payment will also be calculated for that time period based on actual performance and compared to the prorated target, with the executive receiving the larger of the two values. Payment of the award will be made by March 15th of the calendar year following the year in which a change in control occurs.

A change in control under the annual incentive plan occurs if any of the following events occurs:

A change in ownership or control of Delphi resulting in any person or group other than Delphi or a Delphi employee benefit plan acquiring securities of Delphi possessing more than 50% of the total combined voting power of Delphi s equity securities outstanding after such acquisition;

The majority of the board as of the date of the initial public offering is replaced by persons whose election was not approved by a majority of the incumbent board; or

The sale of all or substantially all of the assets of Delphi, in one or a series of related transactions, to any person or group other than Delphi.

An initial public offering is not considered a change in control under the annual incentive plan.

If involuntarily terminated without cause, as defined under the Value Creation Plan and described below, each executive, including the NEOs, will also be eligible for a prorated portion of his or her annual incentive award. The period used to determine the prorated award will be the beginning of the performance period to the individual s termination date.

Management Value Creation Plan

If involuntarily terminated without cause, each executive, including the NEOs, will receive a prorated portion of his or her Value Creation Plan award using the NEO s termination date as the last date of the performance measurement period, with the proration occurring on an annual basis for a termination on or before December 31, 2011 and on a monthly basis for a termination after December 31, 2011. Any pro-rated portion will be paid at the time all other executives are paid.

Cause is defined in the Value Creation Plan as:

Conviction or indictment for a felony, or for any other crime that has or could be reasonably expected to have an adverse impact on performance of duties to Delphi or on the business or reputation of Delphi;

Conduct in connection with employment or service that is not taken in good faith and has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in material injury to the business or reputation of Delphi;

Willful violation of Delphi s material policies; or

Willful neglect in the performance of duties for Delphi, or willful or repeated failure or refusal to perform these duties. Upon a change in control, each executive is eligible to receive his or her proportionate share of the Value Creation Plan award based on the proceeds we receive through the change in control plus any accrued

distributions as defined in the Value Creation Plan. The Value Creation Plan defines a change in control to include the same events described above for the change in control definition in the annual incentive plan. An initial public offering is not considered a change in control under the Value Creation Plan, and the awards are not subject to accelerated vesting in the event of a completed initial public offering.

The officers, including the NEOs, will receive their awards due to a change in control only if they incur a qualifying termination following the change in control. Under the Value Creation Plan, a qualifying termination after a change in control includes any termination either by Delphi without cause (as defined above) or by an officer as a result of any of the following:

A material diminution in base salary;

A material diminution in authority, duties or responsibilities from those in effect immediately prior to the change in control;

Relocation of the NEO s principal place of employment more than 50 miles from its location immediately prior to the change in control; or

Any other action or inaction that is a material breach by Delphi of the agreement under which the NEO provides services to us. *Severance and SERP Payments*

At the time of the formation of Delphi Automotive LLP, certain executives, including the NEOs, were required to choose between receiving consideration under our severance plan, the Separation Allowance Plan, or the SERP in the event that the executive was involuntarily terminated. This irrevocable election prevents an executive from receiving both severance and the non-qualified defined benefit retirement benefits in the event of an involuntary termination.

As such, if the executive is involuntarily terminated from Delphi, he or she will receive either a severance payment under the Separation Allowance Plan or a SERP payment, but not both. Because he is ineligible for the SERP, Mr. Clark would only be eligible to receive a severance payment under the Separation Allowance Plan should he be involuntarily terminated. The table below reflects the choices made by each NEO:

Name Selection Rodney O Neal SERP Kevin P. Clark Separation Allowance Plan James A. Bertrand SERP Ronald M. Pirtle SERP James A. Spencer SERP Keith D. Stipp Separation Allowance Plan John D. Sheehan Separation Allowance Plan The table below describes the payments and benefits to which each NEO would have been entitled had his employment terminated on December 31, 2010 under various scenarios, including an involuntary termination of employment after a change in control of Delphi.

Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control

Name	Termination Scenario	ual Incentive Plan (1)	Value Creation Plan (2)	Separation Allowance Plan (3)
Rodney O Neal	Voluntary termination	\$ 4,390,000	Γ Iali (2)	(3)
	Termination for cause Involuntary termination without cause (4) After a change of control, involuntary termination without cause or voluntary	\$ 4,390,000	\$ 5,333,213	
	termination without cause of voluntary termination for good reason Voluntary termination after age 55 with at	\$ 4,390,000	\$21,332,850	
	least 10 years of service (6)	\$ 4,390,000	\$ 5,333,213	
	Death (7)	\$ 4,390,000	\$ 5,333,213	
	Disability (8)	\$ 4,390,000	\$ 5,333,213	
Kevin P. Clark	Voluntary termination Termination for cause	\$ 800,000		
	Involuntary termination without cause (4) After a change of control, involuntary termination without cause or voluntary	\$ 800,000	\$ 2,666,606	\$ 2,400,000
	termination for good reason Voluntary termination after age 55 with at	\$ 800,000	\$10,666,425	
	least 10 years of service (6)	\$ 800,000		
	Death (7)	\$ 800,000	\$ 2,666,606	
	Disability (8)	\$ 800,000	\$ 2,666,606	
James A. Bertrand	Voluntary termination Termination for cause	\$ 1,321,000		
	Involuntary termination without cause (4)(5) After a change of control, involuntary termination without cause or voluntary	\$ 1,321,000	\$ 1,090,884	
	termination for good reason Voluntary termination after age 55 with at	\$ 1,321,000	\$ 4,363,538	
	least 10 years of service (6)	\$ 1,321,000		
	Death (7)	\$ 1,321,000	\$ 1,090,884	
	Disability (8)	\$ 1,321,000	\$ 1,090,884	
Ronald M. Pirtle	Voluntary termination Termination for cause	\$ 1,236,600		
	Involuntary termination without cause (4) After a change of control, involuntary termination without cause or voluntary	\$ 1,236,600	\$ 1,050,481	
	termination for good reason Voluntary termination after age 55 with at	\$ 1,236,600	\$ 4,201,925	
	least 10 years of service (6)(9)	\$ 1,236,600	\$ 1,050,481	
	Death (7)	\$ 1,236,600	\$ 1,050,481	
	Disability (8)	\$ 1,236,600	\$ 1,050,481	

							eparation llowance
		Ann	ual Incentive	Val	lue Creation		Plan
Name	Termination Scenario		Plan (1)		Plan (2)		(3)
James A. Spencer	Voluntary termination	\$	1,318,000				
	Termination for cause						
	Involuntary termination without cause (4)	\$	1,318,000	\$	1,131,288		
	After a change of control, involuntary termination						
	without cause or voluntary termination for good						
	reason	\$	1,318,000	\$	4,525,150		
	Voluntary termination after age 55 with at least 10						
	years of service (6)	\$	1,318,000	\$	1,131,288		
	Death (7)	\$	1,318,000	\$	1,131,288		
	Disability (8)	\$	1,318,000	\$	1,131,288		
Keith D. Stipp	Voluntary termination	\$	525,000				
Rollin D. Supp	Termination for cause	Ψ	525,000				
	Involuntary termination without cause (4)	\$	525,000	\$	461,750	\$	650,000
	After a change of control, involuntary termination	Ψ	525,000	Ψ	101,750	Ψ	050,000
	without cause or voluntary termination for good						
	reason	\$	525,000	\$	1,847,000		
	Voluntary termination after age 55 with at least 10		,		,,		
	years of service (6)	\$	525,000				
	Death (7)	\$	525,000	\$	461,750		
	Disability (8)	\$	525,000	\$	461,750		
	• • •		.,		,		
John D. Sheehan (10)	Involuntary termination without cause					\$	1,680,000

- (1) In all scenarios except a voluntary termination, the NEO is entitled to a prorated award. If the NEO voluntarily terminates employment, he must have worked on the last business day of the year in order to receive his annual incentive award; if not, it is forfeited in its entirety. For each NEO, annual incentive award payments are subject to individual performance assessment and will be paid after the completion of the performance period.
- (2) Each NEO would be eligible to receive 25% of his Value Creation Plan award upon an involuntary separation, death or disability. Messrs. O Neal, Pirtle and Spencer are over age 55 and have 10 years or more of service with the Company, and are therefore eligible to receive 25% of their Value Creation Plan awards upon voluntary departure. The values shown above are derived from the Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table.
- (3) Only Mr. Clark and Mr. Stipp have elected to receive payments under the Separation Allowance Plan. Mr. Clark s Separation Allowance Plan payment is equal to 18 months of base salary, plus 1.5 times the value of his annual incentive plan target award. Mr. Stipp s Separation Allowance Plan payment is equal to 12 months salary plus the value of his annual incentive plan target award.
- (4) For involuntary termination without cause, receipt of benefits under the SERP or Separation Allowance Plan is dependent on the selection made by the NEO in his offer letter. For NEOs who elected to receive benefits through the SERP, the payment values are the same as those included in the Pension Benefits Table. Mr. Clark is ineligible for the SERP (and, therefore, by default elected the Separation Allowance Plan), and Mr. Stipp elected to receive benefits through the Separation Allowance Plan rather than the SERP.
- (5) If involuntarily terminated without cause, Mr. Bertrand would be eligible for his SERP benefits but would not begin receiving payments until he reaches age 55.
- (6) Messrs. O Neal, Pirtle and Spencer are the only NEOs who would be eligible for benefits upon voluntary departure after attaining age 55 and with 10 years or more of service with the Company, although none of them were eligible for SERP benefits upon a voluntary departure on December 31, 2010 (as discussed in Pension Benefits above).

- (7) In the event of death, an eligible NEO s spouse is entitled to immediate payment through the SERP. Amounts are derived from the amounts shown in the Pension Benefits Table. In addition, any outstanding balance under the SRESP will be paid within 60 days of the NEO s death to his beneficiary or estate.
- (8) In the event of termination from Delphi due to disability, Messrs. O Neal, Pirtle and Spencer would receive the same benefit as a voluntary departure after attaining age 55 and with at least 10 years of service. Both Mr. Bertrand and Mr. Stipp would be eligible to receive benefits through the SERP. However, each would need to wait until he reaches age 55 to begin receiving payments.
- (9) Mr. Pirtle ceased being an executive officer of Delphi on July 1, 2011 and will retire from Delphi on January 1, 2012. Upon his retirement, 50% of his award under the Value Creation Plan will vest because he will depart after age 55 with more than 10 years of service, but the vested portion of the award will not be paid out until after December 31, 2012.
- (10) Mr. Sheehan ceased employment with Delphi on March 1, 2010. As a result, he forfeited his entire annual incentive award. Because Mr. Sheehan departed before the grant date of Value Creation Plan awards, he did not receive a Value Creation Plan award. He received payments through the Separation Allowance Plan per his election and was therefore

ineligible for SERP payments. Mr. Sheehan received 50% of his payments in 2010 and will receive the remainder in 2011 subject to his compliance with certain restrictive covenants, including confidentiality, non-compete and non-solicitation covenants.
In addition to the specific payments and benefits described above, the NEOs also would have been entitled to receive any benefits due under the terms of the SERP, described in further detail under Pension Benefits, as well as under the SRESP, described in further detail in connection with the 2010 Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation table above. As required by Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code, all NEOs who have elected to participate in the SRESP must wait six months to receive a payment under the plan by reason of termination of employment. Payments for departure on December 31, 2010 would be made within 60 days after July 1, 2011. Mr. Clark did not participate in the SRESP in 2010 and was not eligible to receive any Delphi contributions. All amounts are estimates only, and actual amounts will vary depending upon the facts and circumstances applicable at the time of the triggering event.

Long Term Incentive Plan

We have adopted the Delphi Automotive PLC Long Term Incentive Plan. The plan permits us to grant an array of equity-based and cash incentive awards to our employees (including our named executive officers), non-employee directors and other service providers. The following is a summary of the plan.

Plan Term. The plan expires after ten years, unless prior to that date the maximum number of our ordinary shares available for issuance under the plan has been issued or our Board of Directors terminates the plan.

Authorized Shares. Subject to adjustment as described below, 22,977,116 of our ordinary shares are available for awards to be granted under the plan, which represents 7% of our total outstanding ordinary shares. If an award expires or is canceled or forfeited, then the shares covered by such award again will be available for issuance under the plan. Shares tendered or withheld in payment of an exercise price or for withholding taxes also again will be available for issuance under the plan. Shares underlying replacement awards, which are awards granted in assumption of or substitution for outstanding awards previously granted by another company that we acquire or with which we combine, will not reduce the number of shares available for issuance under the plan.

Administration. The Compensation Committee administers the plan for all participants except for non-employee directors and has authority to select individuals to whom awards are granted and determine the types of awards and number of shares covered and the terms and conditions of awards, including the applicable vesting schedule, performance conditions and whether the award will be settled in cash or shares. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee administers the plan with respect to non-employee directors.

Eligibility. Our employees, non-employee directors, consultants, advisors and other service providers are eligible to receive awards under the plan.

Types of Awards. The plan provides for grants of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance awards and other share-based awards.

Performance Awards. Performance awards, which may be denominated in cash or shares, will be earned upon the satisfaction of performance conditions specified by the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee has authority to specify that any other award granted under the plan will constitute a performance award by conditioning the exercisability or settlement of the award upon the satisfaction of performance conditions. The performance conditions with respect to awards that are intended to qualify as performance-based compensation for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code will be limited to overhead costs, general and administration expense, market price of a share, market price appreciation of share value, cash flow, reserve value, net asset value, firm value, economic value added, earnings, earnings per share, total shareholder return, net income, operating income, cash from

operations, revenue growth, margin, pre-tax income, EBIT (earnings before interest and taxes), EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization), net capital employed, return on assets, stockholder return, reserve replacement, return on equity, return on capital, production, assets, asset turnover, inventory turnover, unit volume, sales, sales growth, capacity utilization, market share, increase in customer base, environmental health and safety, diversity, quality, or strategic business criteria consisting of one or more objectives based on meeting specified goals relating to acquisitions or divestitures. These performance criteria may be measured on an absolute (*e.g.*, plan or budget) or relative basis. Relative performance may be measured against a group of peer companies, a financial market index or other acceptable objective and quantifiable indices. No performance award that is denominated in cash may exceed a maximum of \$12 million in any calendar year.

Restricted Stock Units. Restricted stock units represent a contractual right to receive the value of an ordinary share at a future date, subject to specified vesting and other restrictions.

Restricted Stock. Restricted stock is an award of ordinary shares that are subject to restrictions on transfer and a substantial risk of forfeiture.

Stock Options. A stock option is a contractual right to acquire shares at a future date at a specified exercise price. The per share exercise price of a stock option will be determined by the Compensation Committee but, except in the case of a replacement award, may not be less than the closing price of an ordinary share on the grant date. The Compensation Committee will determine the date after which each stock option may be exercised and the expiration date of each option. However, no stock option will be exercisable more than ten years from the grant date. Stock options that are intended to qualify as incentive stock options must meet the requirements of Section 422 of the Code.

Stock Appreciation Rights. A stock appreciation right is a contractual right to receive, in cash or shares, an amount equal to the appreciation of one ordinary share from the grant date. Any stock appreciation right will be granted subject to the same terms and conditions as apply to stock options, as described above.

Other Share-based Awards. The Compensation Committee is authorized to grant other share-based awards, which may be denominated in ordinary shares or factors that may influence the value of our shares, including convertible or exchangeable debt securities, other rights convertible or exchangeable into shares, acquisition rights for shares, awards with value and payment contingent upon our performance or business units or any other factors that the Compensation Committee specifies.

Participant Limits. Subject to adjustment as described below, no participant is able to receive under the plan in any calendar year performance awards, restricted stock units, restricted stock and other share-based awards (to the extent such awards are denominated in shares and intended to qualify as performance-based compensation for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code) that relate to more than 2 million shares and stock options and stock appreciation rights that relate to more than 2 million shares.

Non-Employee Director Awards. Our non-employee directors are eligible to receive awards under the plan. These awards are discussed in detail under Director Compensation.

Adjustments. If the Compensation Committee determines that an adjustment is appropriate, it will adjust equitably the terms of any outstanding awards and the number of ordinary shares issuable under the plan to reflect any change in the ordinary shares resulting from a dividend or other distribution, recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock split, reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, repurchase or exchange of our ordinary shares or other securities, issuance of warrants or other rights to acquire our ordinary shares or other securities, issuance of our ordinary shares pursuant to the anti-dilution provisions of our securities, or any other similar corporate transaction or event affecting our ordinary shares.

Termination of Service and Change in Control. The Compensation Committee will determine the effect of a termination of employment or service on outstanding awards, including whether the awards will vest, become exercisable, settle or be forfeited. The Compensation Committee may set forth in the applicable award agreement the treatment of an award upon a change in control. In addition, in the case of certain awards, upon a change in control, a merger or consolidation involving us, or any other event with respect to which it deems it appropriate, except as otherwise provided in the applicable award agreement, the Compensation Committee will have the discretion to cancel the award and either accelerate the award and, as applicable, provide the holder at least ten days to exercise the award or cash out the award for its intrinsic value, or replace the award with a substitute award that preserves the intrinsic value of, and has terms and conditions not less favorable to the participant than, the original award.

The plan generally defines a change in control to mean:

a transaction or series of related transactions within a 12-month period whereby any person or group of persons acquires or maintains more than 30% of the combined voting power of our outstanding securities, or more than 50% of the combined voting power of our outstanding securities if immediately prior to such transaction(s), our three largest owners immediately following this offering together possess more than 30% of the combined voting power of our outstanding securities and have not at any time on or since the date the plan becomes effective possessed 30% or less of the combined voting power of our outstanding securities;

the replacement of the majority of directors during any 12-month period (other than by directors approved by a majority of the remaining directors);

the consummation of our merger or consolidation with another entity (unless our voting securities outstanding immediately prior to such transaction continue to represent at least 50% of the combined voting power and total fair market value of our securities or those of the surviving entity outstanding immediately after such transaction); or

the transfer within a 12-month period of all or substantially all of the assets of us and our subsidiaries. *Amendment and Termination.* Our Board of Directors may amend, alter, suspend, discontinue or terminate the plan, subject to approval of our shareholders if required by the rules of the exchange on which our shares are principally traded. The Compensation Committee may amend, alter, suspend, discontinue or terminate any outstanding award. However, no such board or committee action that would materially adversely affect the rights of a holder of an outstanding award may be taken without the holder s consent.

Annual Incentive Plan

We intend to continue to offer annual incentive compensation awards under the Delphi LLC Annual Incentive Plan or a successor plan. The plan allows employees of Delphi and certain subsidiaries and affiliates to receive annual cash awards. No employee may receive more than \$7.5 million in any year under the plan.

Each employee s award is determined by an assessment of the employee s performance against goals established by the Compensation Committee. The goals may be based upon or relate to one or more of the following business criteria: return on assets, return on net assets, asset turnover, return on equity, return on capital, firm value, market price appreciation of Delphi ordinary shares, economic value added, total stockholder return, net income, pre-tax income, earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT), EBITDA, earnings per share, operating profit margin, net income margin, sales margin, cash flow, market share, inventory turnover, sales growth, capacity utilization, increase in customer base, environmental health and safety, diversity, and/or quality. The business criteria may be expressed in absolute terms or on a relative basis. When establishing performance

goals, the Compensation Committee may exclude any or all extraordinary items as determined under U.S. GAAP, including the charges or costs associated with restructurings of Delphi, discontinued operations, other unusual or non-recurring items and the cumulative effects of accounting changes. The Compensation Committee may adjust the performance levels and goals for any performance period, except that, in the case of awards intended to qualify as performance-based compensation for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code, the Compensation Committee may not make such adjustments in a manner that would increase the amount of the resulting annual incentive award. Nevertheless, the Compensation Committee may make appropriate adjustments as it deems equitable in recognition of unusual or non-recurring events affecting Delphi, changes in applicable tax laws or accounting principles or such other factors as the Compensation Committee may determine to preserve the plan s incentive features.

Director Compensation

The formation of Delphi Automotive LLP took place in the middle of an unprecedented global financial crisis and plummeting consumer demand that threatened the global automotive market. The uncertainty regarding the future of some of our largest global customers, many of whom were weathering significant financial challenges themselves, including bankruptcy, raised serious questions as to whether key players in the automotive industry, including component suppliers, would survive. In the face of this environment, the owners were tasked with assembling a Board of Managers suitable for and capable of overseeing and guiding the management team of the new enterprise.

Rather than filling the board with representatives from the various owner constituencies, as many privately-held companies do, the owners decided to create a board comprised of proven senior executives who had experience managing world-class companies across a variety of industries. With the exception of the CEO, the Board of Managers is composed entirely of non-employee directors, each of whom was recruited by the owner representatives to join the Board of Managers after the formation of Delphi Automotive LLP. Meaningful equity interests were determined to be necessary to attract high caliber board members, with objectives aligned with owners interests. This was deemed particularly important in light of the highly dynamic and risky industry environment that existed at the time of the formation of Delphi Automotive LLP. Following this offering, board compensation will be established in line with competitive compensation practices. Each member of the Board of Managers is a member of our Board of Directors.

The Board of Managers compensation is comprised of the following elements:

Annual retainer;

Special IPO incentive opportunity; and

One-time, three-year equity award.

Mr. O Neal is compensated as an officer of the Company and does not receive additional compensation for his service as a board member.

Each member of the Board of Managers is a member of at least one committee and some members participate in two committees, in the same manner as discussed in Management Board Committees in respect of Delphi Automotive PLC. The Board of Managers as a whole and each committee have met on a frequent basis. In 2010, the Board of Managers held 18 in-person or telephonic meetings. Each of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee met between five and nine times during 2010. Additionally, members have participated in numerous special issue-specific meetings, as required. Attendance at all board and committee meetings exceeded 95%.

Annual Retainer

We pay annual retainers to members of the Board of Managers on a quarterly basis, at the end of each quarter. The Chairman of the Board of Managers receives an annual retainer of \$200,000. Chairmen of the Audit and Compensation Committees receive annual retainers of \$150,000. The Innovation and Technology Committee was formed in 2011 and its chairman began receiving an annual retainer of \$125,000 beginning April 2011. All other members of the Board of Managers receive annual retainers of \$100,000. There are no additional fees for attending in-person or telephonic board or committee meetings. Compensation for members who have joined the Board of Managers or assume additional responsibilities during the year are prorated beginning with the effective date of the new responsibilities.

Special IPO Incentive Opportunity

To incentivize engagement and performance which results in a successful initial public offering, all members of the Board of Managers are eligible to receive a \$275,000 award payable following completion of an initial public offering. The cash incentive is to be paid if our implied company value, at the time of the initial public offering, is greater than \$6 billion. The implied company value represents the sum of all distributions to holders of all membership interests, the approximately \$4.4 billion paid to repurchase Class A and Class C membership interests, any Class B membership interest repurchases, any additional distributions to Class B and Class E-1 membership holders and any amounts distributed or paid to holders of Class E-1 membership interests with respect to or to repurchase their Class E-1 membership interests, plus the fair market value of our ordinary shares issued in connection with the offering. Based on the initial public offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus, the implied company value exceeds \$6 billion, resulting in the payout of these awards. The amount will be paid within 60 days of the closing of this offering.

Equity Award

Members of the Board of Managers were granted ownership interests under the Board of Managers 2010 Class E-1 Interest Incentive Plan to align their interests with those of our investors, thereby reinforcing value creation. As described above, another key purpose of the plan was to attract and retain experienced and highly qualified members of the Board of Managers.

Under the plan, Delphi made a one-time grant in June 2010 of membership interests that vest over a three-year period beginning in November 2009. Like the Value Creation Plan (i.e., the management long-term incentive program), the directors plan is a multi-year plan and not an annual long-term incentive program. The vesting schedule for directors ownership interests is as follows:

November 1, 2010: 20%

November 1, 2011: 40%

November 1, 2012: 40%

All unvested membership interests will fully vest in the event of a completed initial public offering if the resulting total equity valuation of the Company (based on the average closing price of Delphi shares during the 15-day period beginning on the 30th day after the closing of the offering), plus the value of prior distributions made under the LLP agreement effective in that period to holders of membership interests (as well as \$4,385,400,000 paid to repurchase Class A and Class C membership interests, any Class B membership interest repurchases, any additional distributions to Class B and Class E-1 membership holders and any amounts distributed or paid to holders of Class E-1 membership interests), is at least \$6 billion. Based on the initial public offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus, we expect this value to exceed \$6 billion.

Membership interests acquired under the plan generally may not be transferred prior to an initial public offering or a sale of the Company, and ordinary shares acquired through the offering may also be subject to transfer restrictions for up to 180 days after the offering (or a longer period if a similar lock-up is imposed on other holders of Delphi securities).

Each member of the Board of Managers received the same equity award in 2010, with the exception of the Chairman of the Board of Managers, who received a larger award due to his additional responsibilities. The 2010 individual cash retainer fees and equity awards are noted in the table below.

2010 Director Compensation

Name	Fees Earned or Paid in Cash (\$)	Stock Awards (\$) (3)(4)	Total (\$)
Gary L. Cowger	\$ 100,000	\$ 1,582,860	\$ 1,682,860
Nicholas M. Donofrio(1)	\$ 100,000	\$ 1,582,860	\$ 1,682,860
Mark P. Frissora	\$ 100,000	\$ 1,582,860	\$ 1,682,860
Rajiv L. Gupta	\$ 150,000	\$ 1,582,860	\$ 1,732,860
John A. Krol	\$ 200,000	\$ 3,165,720	\$ 3,365,720
J. Randall MacDonald	\$ 100,000	\$ 1,582,860	\$ 1,682,860
Sean O. Mahoney	\$ 100,000	\$ 1,582,860	\$ 1,682,860
Michael McNamara	\$ 100,000	\$ 1,582,860	\$ 1,682,860
Thomas W. Sidlik	\$ 100,000	\$ 1,582,860	\$ 1,682,860
Bernd Wiedemann (2)	\$75,000	\$ 1,582,860	\$ 1,657,860
Lawrence A. Zimmerman	\$ 150,000	\$ 1,582,860	\$ 1,732,860

(1) Mr. Donofrio became chairman of the Innovation and Technology Committee effective April 1, 2011. His annual retainer will increase to \$125,000, with a prorated amount paid in the remainder of 2011.

- (2) Dr. Wiedemann joined the Delphi Board of Managers effective April 1, 2010. His cash retainer has been prorated accordingly.
- (3) Reflects the grant date fair value of the equity awards granted under the Board of Managers 2010 Class E-1 Interest Incentive Plan, which are one-time grants that vest over the three-year period from November 2009 to November 2012 (in other words, not an annual long-term incentive program). As of December 31, 2010, 20% of each respective award had vested. These awards are described in detail above. These values as set forth in the table were determined in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The grant date for accounting purposes is June 30, 2010. For assumptions used in determining the fair value of the awards, see Note 22. Share-Based Compensation to the consolidated financial statements included herein. The year-end membership interest balances are:

Name	Vested Interests: 12/31/2010	Unvested Interests: 12/31/2010	Total Interests: 12/31/2010
Gary L. Cowger	400	1,600	2,000
Nicholas M. Donofrio	400	1,600	2,000
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Mark P. Frissora	400	1,600	2,000
Rajiv L. Gupta	400	1,600	2,000
John A. Krol	800	3,200	4,000
J. Randall MacDonald	400	1,600	2,000
Sean O. Mahoney	400	1,600	2,000
Michael McNamara	400	1,600	2,000
Thomas W. Sidlik	400	1,600	2,000
Bernd Wiedemann	400	1,600	2,000

Lawrence A. Zimmerman	400	1,600	2,000

(4) In 2010 we provided loans to Messrs. Cowger, Frissora, Gupta, Krol, MacDonald, Mahoney and Sidlik to assist with their payment of taxes associated with an election under Section 83(b) of the Code which they made with respect to their equity awards. We also provided a loan to Mr. McNamara in 2011. These loans have been repaid in cash. As a result, no member of the Board of Managers currently has any loans outstanding with the Company at the time of this filing.

Future Board Compensation

Our directors will receive the following annual compensation, 40% of which will be paid in cash and 60% of which will be delivered in the form of time-based restricted stock units. Each director may elect, on an annual basis, to receive 50% or 100% of his or her cash retainer in restricted stock units. The Chairman of the Board will receive \$500,000 annually and all other directors will receive \$250,000 annually. Additionally, chairs of our board committees will receive the following additional annual compensation:

Committee	Additional An	Additional Annual Compensation			
Audit Committee/Finance Committee (1)	\$	25,000			
Compensation and Human Resources Committee	\$	20,000			
Innovation and Technology Committee	\$	10,000			
Nominating and Governance Committee	\$	10,000			

(1) The committee chair compensation represents the aggregate responsibilities of the Board member who serves as the chair of both the Audit Committee and the Finance Committee.

It is anticipated that the annual grant of restricted stock units will be made on the day of the annual meeting of shareholders and will vest on the day before the next annual meeting. Cash compensation will be paid at the end of each fiscal quarter. Any director who joins the board other than in connection with the annual meeting of shareholders will receive prorated cash compensation and a prorated grant of restricted stock units based on the date the director joins the board and the date of the next annual meeting. The restricted stock units will vest on the day of the next annual meeting.

All directors who continue in office following the closing of this offering will receive prorated annual compensation for their service during the period from the closing of this offering to the first annual shareholders meeting, which is anticipated to take place in mid-2012. For the portion of prorated annual compensation that a director will receive in restricted stock units and the portion that he or she elects to receive in restricted stock units (if any), a grant will be made at the closing of this offering, and those restricted stock units will vest on the date of the first annual meeting in 2012. Cash payments, appropriately prorated, will be made at the end of each fiscal quarter.

In order to align the interests of the directors with the interests of shareholders, we will also establish shareholding requirements for our directors. The holding requirement for each director will be five times the value of his or her designated annual cash retainer (at least \$500,000, based upon the current cash retainer). Each new director will have up to five full years from his or her date of appointment to fulfill this holding obligation. Current directors will be required to hold a minimum of \$1 million in equity until December 31, 2012, a minimum of \$750,000 in equity until December 31, 2013 and a minimum of \$500,000 in equity by December 31, 2014 and thereafter.

RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Acquisition Financing

In connection with the acquisition of certain assets of the Predecessor by Delphi Automotive LLP and GM on the Acquisition Date, (i) we issued the Old Notes pursuant to the NPA with an Acquisition Date fair value of \$49 million and (ii) entered into the DDTL with a syndicate of lenders. A majority of the holders of the Old Notes and the lenders under the DDTL were related parties as holders of the Class A and Class B membership interests. In connection with the redemptions of our Class A and Class C membership interests as described below under Redemption Agreements, we terminated the DDTL and repaid and extinguished the Old Notes at an aggregate purchase price of approximately

\$57 million.

The Old Notes paid 12% interest and had a maturity date of October 6, 2014. The Old Notes were recorded at \$47 million in our consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2011, immediately before giving effect to the extinguishment of the Old Notes. The DDTL had included maximum available borrowing of \$890 million, which was split into a U.S. tranche of up to \$267 million in borrowings and a foreign tranche of up to \$623 million in borrowings. There was no commitment fee associated with the DDTL, but, if drawn, we would have been required to pay interest at the rate of LIBOR plus 6.0% per annum, with a minimum LIBOR amount of 2.0% per annum. The DDTL had a term of 5 years.

The U.S. tranche under the DDTL was guaranteed by each of our U.S. subsidiaries as well as certain foreign subsidiaries. The foreign tranche under the DDTL was guaranteed by each of the guarantors under the U.S. tranche. In addition, subject to legal and other customary limitations, the DDTL required certain of our material foreign subsidiaries to become guarantors under the foreign tranche. The loans, guarantees and other obligations under the U.S. tranche were secured by substantially all of the assets of our U.S. subsidiaries. The loans, guarantees and other obligations under the foreign tranche were secured by all of the assets securing the U.S. tranche. Subject to legal and other customary limitations, the foreign tranche was also secured by substantially all of the assets of any of our material foreign subsidiaries that became guarantors under the foreign tranche. The Old Notes were unsecured and were guaranteed by the same Delphi entities that guaranteed the loans under the U.S. tranche of the DDTL.

The NPA and the DDTL contained affirmative and negative covenants that imposed restrictions on our financial and business operations, including our ability, among other things, to incur or secure other debt, make investments, sell assets, make distributions or repurchase stock or stock equivalents.

Agreements with GM

Commercial, Supply and Access Agreements

GM was, until March 31, 2011, a holder of Class A membership interests in Delphi Automotive LLP. We redeemed 100% of GM s membership interests on March 31, 2011 for an aggregate purchase price of \$3.8 billion as described below under Redemption Agreements.

In connection with the MDA, we entered into three agreements with GM: the Access Agreement dated July 26, 2009 (the Access Agreement), the Commercial Agreement dated July 26, 2009 (the Supply Agreement). We terminated the Access Agreement in connection with our redemption of the Class A membership interests on March 31, 2011, other than with respect to GM s license to use certain intellectual property under limited circumstances. The license will terminate on March 31, 2015, unless there is an event of default in respect of an access facility, in which case, the license will be perpetual. The Commercial Agreement and the Supply Agreement remain in place.

The Commercial Agreement governs the sale of products between GM and us out of and to the four Old Delphi sites that were sold to General Motors Components Holdings, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of GM, under the MDA (the GMCH Sites). Each party agreed to continue to sell such products to the other party, at the prices that were in effect as of January 1, 2009, with certain limited exceptions. The Commercial Agreement also grants to GM perpetual licenses with respect to certain intellectual property used to manufacture products at the GMCH Sites and certain other products that were in production on the date of the Commercial Agreement. The Commercial Agreement expires on October 6, 2012.

The Supply Agreement governs the terms of sale by us to GM of parts produced in North America that were under contract on October 6, 2009. It provides for reductions in pricing with respect to certain parts that are produced at our North American facilities, which occur on October 6, 2011 and October 6, 2012. We have also agreed to cooperate with GM in connection with GM s resourcing of business governed by the Supply Agreement, including by providing tooling information and access to our facilities for the purpose of viewing production processes. Our supply obligations with respect to parts that are produced at our North American facilities continue until the end of the applicable vehicle program. In addition, under the Supply Agreement, we agreed that tooling (including engineering specifications and test reports) that was used only in connection with the manufacture of GM-component parts (or where any other use is immaterial) or that was otherwise paid for by GM or owned by GM was owned by GM. The tooling provisions provide for the immediate release of GM-owned tooling upon GM s request, create a presumption in favor of GM in the event of any dispute over whether tooling is GM-owned tooling (subject to any other customer ownership rights), and prohibits the use of any tooling which was ever subject to a GM purchase order for the production of parts for sale in the aftermarket unless GM approves in writing.

Our sales to GM are governed by a number of agreements and purchasing arrangements, of which the Commercial Agreement and the Supply Agreement form only a part. Our total sales to GM, including its affiliates, for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 were \$2,405 million. Our total sales to GM, including its affiliates, for the year ended December 31, 2010, the period from October 6, 2009 through December 31, 2009, the period from January 1, 2009 through October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008 were \$2,838 million, \$668 million, \$2,197 million and \$5,053 million, respectively.

Warranty Settlement Agreement

In addition, in connection with the Acquisition, we assumed the Warranty Settlement Agreement related to the warranty matters described in Business Legal Proceedings. Under the Warranty Settlement Agreement, we are obligated to pay GM for repair claims related to these warranty matters.

Our total payments to GM in connection with the Warranty Settlement Agreement for the nine months ended September 30, 2011, the year ended December 31, 2010, the period from August 19, 2009 through December 31, 2009, the period from January 1, 2009 through October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008 were \$2 million, \$7 million, \$2 million, \$9 million and \$14 million, respectively.

Redemption Agreements

On March 31, 2011, we entered into a redemption agreement with GM for the redemption of 1,750,000 of our Class A membership interests, representing all of our outstanding Class A membership interests, for a redemption price of approximately \$3.8 billion, and a redemption agreement with the PBGC for the redemption of 100,000 of our Class C membership interests, representing all of our outstanding Class C membership interests, for a redemption price of \$594 million. Upon the closings of the redemptions, GM and the PBGC ceased to be members of Delphi Automotive LLP.

Concurrently with the entry into the redemption agreements, we entered into a rights modification agreement dated March 31, 2011 with certain holders of our Class B membership interests to consent to the GM

and PBGC redemptions, the termination of the DDTL and the elimination of certain governance rights under our limited liability partnership agreement.

Registration Rights Agreement

Effective upon consummation of this offering, we will enter into a registration rights agreement (the Registration Rights Agreement) with our existing shareholders that will receive our ordinary shares in exchange for interests in Delphi Automotive LLP. The ordinary shares that will be issued to such holders will be issued in a private placement and will be subject to restrictions on resale under the Securities Act. The agreement will provide for the rights set forth below.

Demand Registration Rights. Upon the expiration of the applicable lock-up restrictions, each shareholder beneficially owning at least 10% of the total outstanding amount of our ordinary shares immediately after the consummation of this offering (an affiliate shareholder) will be entitled to request that we effect up to an aggregate of four demand registrations under the Registration Rights Agreement, and no more than one demand registration within any six-month period, covering the affiliate shareholders ordinary shares that are not subject to lock-up restrictions but are subject to transfer restrictions under Rule 144 (registrable securities). As described in Shares Eligible for Future Sale Lock-Up Agreements, 30% of each shareholders ordinary shares (other than our directors and officers) will be released from lock-up restrictions on the 90 day after the date of this prospectus (the early release date), with the remaining ordinary shares held by each such shareholder being released on the 180th day after the date of this prospectus (the lock-up expiration date). The demand registration rights are subject to certain customary conditions and limitations, including customary underwriter cutback rights and deferral rights. No demand registration rights exist while a shelf registration is in effect.

Shelf Registration Rights. We are required to use best efforts to file a shelf registration statement covering 30% of each shareholder s registrable securities and cause such registration statement to become effective no later than the early release date. We must use best efforts to effect the registration of the remaining 70% of each shareholder s registrable securities on a shelf registration statement on the lock-up expiration date. We must keep these shelf registrations effective, subject to customary blackout rights, for so long as the shares held by such shareholders are not freely tradeable under Rule 144 of the Securities Act. Shareholders beneficially owning at least 5% of the total outstanding amount of our ordinary shares immediately after the consummation of this offering will have the right to cause us to undertake up to six underwritten offerings from the shelf registration, but no more than one underwritten offering in a six-month period. Each underwritten takedown constitutes a demand registration for purposes of the maximum number of demand registrations we are obligated to effectuate.

Piggyback Registration Rights. If we propose to register any ordinary shares (other than in a shelf registration or on a registration statement on Form S-4 or S-8) at any time 180 days after the date of this prospectus, our shareholders are entitled to notice of such registration and to include their registrable securities in that registration. The registration of shareholders registrable securities pursuant to a piggyback registration does not relieve us of the obligation to effect a demand registration as required under the Registration Rights Agreement. The managing underwriter has the right to limit the number of registrable securities included in a piggyback registration if the managing underwriter believes it would interfere with the successful marketing of the ordinary shares.

Subject to limited exceptions, the Registration Rights Agreement provides that we must pay all registration expenses in connection with a demand, piggyback or shelf registration. The Registration Rights Agreement contains customary indemnification and contribution provisions.

Other Related Party Transactions

On December 13, 2010, we entered into a Master Sale and Purchase Agreement whereby (1) our wholly-owned subsidiary, Delphi International S.a.r.l., sold its 49.5% interest in Daesung Electric Co., Ltd. to LS Mtron Ltd. for KRW 39,600,000,000 (U.S. \$35 million), (2) Daesung Electric Co., Ltd. sold its entire 40% interest in

Delphi Electrical Centers (Shanghai) Company, Limited to Delphi Automotive Systems Singapore Pte. Ltd. for KRW 5,119,000,000 (U.S. \$5 million) and (3) Daesung Electric Co., Ltd. sold certain assets and properties related to production of connectors to Delphi Korea LLC for up to KRW 4,400,000,000 (U.S. \$4 million). Upon the closing of these transactions, Delphi Electrical Centers (Shanghai) Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi Automotive Systems Singapore Pte. Ltd., which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi International S.a.r.l., and we had no remaining interest in Daesung Electric Co., Ltd. We closed the sale of Daesung Electric Co., Ltd. and the purchase of the 40% interest in Delphi Electrical Centers (Shanghai) Company on January 31, 2011. Subsequently, we closed the asset purchase portion of the transaction in 2011.

Under the terms of the agreement, LS Mtron Ltd. and Daesung Electric Co., Ltd. agreed to certain non-compete provisions. Additionally, Delphi Korea LLC is required to provide replacement connector products to Daesung Electric Co., Ltd. on an at-cost basis in connection with product warranty claims, subject to certain limitations and rights of reimbursements.

In October 2009, we entered into an engagement letter with Au Sable Associates, LLC (Au Sable). Thomas W. Sidlik, one of our directors, is the sole member of Au Sable. Prior to October 2009, Au Sable advised certain creditors of the Predecessor that became investors in Delphi. Following the Acquisition, we paid Au Sable an amount in excess of \$120,000 in November 2009 for Mr. Sidlik s service as head of the Delphi transition team. Neither Au Sable nor Mr. Sidlik have received any additional compensation from us for such services since then.

In addition, certain of our directors had loans from the Company outstanding prior to this offering, each of which was repaid in full. See Executive Compensation.

Statement Regarding Transactions with Affiliates

In connection with this offering, we will adopt a policy regarding the approval of any transaction or series of transactions in which we or any of our subsidiaries is a participant, the amount involved exceeds \$120,000, and a related person (as defined under SEC rules) has a direct or indirect material interest. Under the policy, a related person must promptly disclose to our general counsel any related person transaction (defined as any transaction involving us and in which any related person has a direct or indirect material interest) and all material facts about the transaction. The general counsel will then assess and promptly communicate that information to the Nominating and Governance Committee of our Board of Directors. Based on its consideration of all of the relevant facts and circumstances, this board committee will decide whether or not to approve such transaction and will generally not approve or ratify a transaction unless it shall have determined that, upon consideration of all relevant information, the transaction is in, or not inconsistent with, the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. If we become aware of an existing related person transaction that has not been pre-approved under this policy, the transaction will be referred to the Nominating and Governance Committee all options available, including ratification, revision or termination of such transaction. On at least an annual basis, the Nominating and Governance Committee shall review previously approved related person transactions, under the standard described above, to determine whether such transactions should continue.

PRINCIPAL AND SELLING SHAREHOLDERS

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of our ordinary shares as of November 4, 2011 (after giving effect to the exchange of Delphi Automotive LLP membership interests for 328,244,510 ordinary shares immediately prior to the completion of this offering) by:

each person whom we know to own beneficially more than 5% of our ordinary shares;

each of the directors and named executive officers individually; and

all directors and named executive officers as a group.

In accordance with the rules of the SEC, beneficial ownership includes voting or investment power with respect to securities and includes the shares issuable within 60 days of November 4, 2011. The percentage of beneficial ownership for the following table is based on 328,244,510 ordinary shares that will be issued immediately prior to this offering in exchange for membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP outstanding as of the date of such exchange and after the completion of this offering, assuming no exercise of the underwriters option to purchase additional shares. Unless otherwise indicated, the address for each listed shareholder is: c/o Delphi Automotive PLC, 5725 Delphi Drive, Troy, MI 48098. To our knowledge, except as indicated in the footnotes to this table and pursuant to applicable community property laws, the persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all ordinary shares. Pursuant to Rule 13d-4 under the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the statements concerning voting and dispositive power concerning the ordinary shares included in the footnotes to this table shall not be construed as admissions that such persons are the beneficial owners of such ordinary shares.

	Shares Beneficially Owned Before the Offering		Number of Shares Being	Shares Beneficially Owned After the Offering (2)	
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Number	Percent	Offered	Number	Percent
Executive Officers and Directors:					
Rodney O Neal (1)					
Kevin P. Clark (1)					
James A. Bertrand (1)					
James A. Spencer (1)					
John D. Sheehan					
Ronald M. Pirtle (3)					
Keith D. Stipp (1)					
John A. Krol	323,039	*		323,039	*
Gary L. Cowger	161,521	*		161,521	*
Nicholas M. Donofrio	161,521	*		161,521	*
Mark P. Frissora	161,521	*		161,521	*
Rajiv L. Gupta (4)	161,521	*		161,521	*
J. Randall MacDonald	161,521	*		161,521	*
Sean O. Mahoney	161,521	*		161,521	*
Michael McNamara	161,521	*		161,521	*
Thomas W. Sidlik	161,521	*		161,521	*
Bernd Wiedemann	161,521	*		161,521	*
Lawrence A. Zimmerman	161,521	*		161,521	*
Officers and directors as a group					
(18 persons)	1,938,249	*		1,938,249	*

	Shares Beneficially Owned Before the Offering		Number of Shares Being	Shares Beneficially Owned After the Offering (2)	
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Number	Percent	Offered	Number	Percent
5% Shareholders:					
Paulson & Co. Inc. (5)	72,312,333	22.03%	20,577,575	51,734,758	15.76%
Elliott Associates, L.P. (6)(7)	16,196,954	4.93%		16,196,954	4.93%
Elliott International, L.P. (6)(7)	25,985,476	7.92%		25,985,476	7.92%
Silver Point Capital LP FSG (8)	29,596,666	9.02%		29,596,666	9.02%
Oaktree Capital (9)	24,618,654	7.50%		24,618,654	7.50%
Other Selling Shareholders:					
3G Fund LP (10)	1,515,780	*	21,220	1,494,560	*
The Alden Funds (11)	6,442,066	1.96%	90,187	6,351,879	1.94%
The Anchorage Funds (12)	7,128,612	2.17%	171,194	6,957,418	2.12%
The BBT Funds (13)	1,446,715	*	80,625	1,366,090	*
The CAI Funds (14)	899,994	*	12,598	887,396	*
The Columbus Hill Funds (15)	1,571,674	*	28,998	1,542,676	*
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC (16)	607,185	*	8,500	598,685	*
The Fernwood Funds (17)	501,731	*	34,940	466,791	*
The Greywolf Funds (18)	13,504,698	4.11%	189,061	13,315,637	4.06%
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (19)	1,178,153	*	175,791	1,002,362	*
The Knighthead Funds (20)	2,112,326	*	29,571	2,082,755	*
The Mason Funds (21)	2,693,351	*	776,529	1,916,822	*
Midtown Acquisitions L.P. (22)	6,400,383	1.95%	89,604	6,310,779	1.92%
Monarch Master Funding, Ltd. (23)	2,249,604	*	156,665	2,092,939	*
Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC (24)	3,173,410	*	57,670	3,115,740	*
The Pentwater Funds (25)	2,414,559	*	76,793	2,337,766	*
Pioneer Floating Rate Trust (26)	785,942	*	54,734	731,208	*
Redwood Master Fund, Ltd. (27)	2,084,198	*	29,178	2,055,020	*
Riva Ridge Master Fund, Ltd. (28)	885,784	*	12,400	873,384	*
The Scoggin Funds (29)	1,127,176	*	324,978	802,198	*
SOF Investments, L.P. (30)	2,357,826	*	33,009	2,324,817	*
Third Point Loan LLC (31)	12,410,384	3.78%	470,673	11,939,711	3.64%
UBS AG London Branch (32)	706,732	*	203,760	502,972	*
The Waterstone Funds (33)	473,678	*	6,627	467,051	*
Other Selling Shareholders (as a group) (34)	3,171,377	*	365,947	2,805,430	*

- * Denotes less than 1% of ordinary shares beneficially owned.
- (1) Members of our management participate in a Value Creation Plan that entitles them to shares based upon the value of our Company (including amounts used to repurchase membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP prior to the date of this offering) as of December 31, 2012 (subject to earlier vesting upon the occurrence of certain events). See Executive Compensation. Because such shares are not issuable within 60 days, our management members are not deemed to have beneficial ownership of such shares in the table above. Based on the initial public offering price set forth on the cover of the prospectus and assuming such price is in effect on December 31, 2012, Messrs. O Neal, Clark, Bertrand and Spencer would be entitled to receive 1,349,384, 674,692, 286,233 and 276,010 shares under the Value Creation Plan, respectively.
- (2) Assumes no exercise of the underwriters option to purchase additional shares. See Underwriting.

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

- (3) Mr. Pirtle was a NEO during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010. He ceased being an executive officer of Delphi on July 1, 2011 and will retire from Delphi on January 1, 2012. See Executive Compensation.
- (4) Includes 32,304 ordinary shares held by certain members of Mr. Gupta s family, to which Mr. Gupta disclaims beneficial ownership.

(5) Represents shares held by various onshore and offshore investment funds and separately managed accounts (collectively, the Funds), all of which are affiliated with and managed by Paulson & Co. Inc. (Paulson). Paulson is an investment advisor that is registered under the Investment Advisors Act of 1940. In its role as investment advisor, or manager of the Funds, Paulson possesses voting and/or investment power over the ordinary shares owned by the Funds. Because John Paulson is the President and sole Director of Paulson, he may be deemed to have voting and/or investment power over such shares. Except for the purpose of determining beneficial ownership under Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, John Paulson and Paulson disclaim beneficial ownership of such securities. The address for the Funds is c/o Paulson & Co. Inc., 1251 Avenue of the Americas, NY, NY 10020.

To the extent that the underwriters sell more than 24,078,827 ordinary shares in this offering, the underwriters have the option to purchase up to an additional 3,611,824 shares from certain of the funds affiliated with and managed by Paulson who are selling shareholders in this offering at the initial offering price.

- (6) Reflects ordinary shares held by DIP Holdco 5 LLC, a subsidiary of Elliott Associates, L.P. Paul E. Singer, Elliott Capital Advisors, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership which is controlled by Mr. Singer, and Elliott Special GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company which is controlled by Mr. Singer, are the general partners of Elliott Associates, L.P. Elliott Associates, L.P. has an address at 712 Fifth Avenue, 36th Floor, New York, New York 10019.
- (7) Reflects ordinary shares held by DIP Holdco 5 Ltd., a subsidiary of Elliott International, L.P. Hambledon, Inc., a Cayman Islands corporation controlled by Paul E. Singer, is the sole general partner of Elliott International, L.P. In addition, Elliott International Capital Advisors Inc., the investment manager of Elliott International, L.P. which is controlled by Mr. Singer, has shared power with Elliott International, L.P. to vote and dispose of the shares owned by Elliott International, L.P. Elliott Associates, L.P. and Elliott International, L.P. are funds under common management. Elliott International, L.P. has an address at c/o Elliott Management Corporation, 712 Fifth Avenue, 36th Floor, New York, New York 10019.
- (8) Includes shares held by: (i) SPCP Group, LLC (SPCP), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Silver Point Capital Fund, L.P. (Fund) and Silver Point Capital Offshore Master Fund, L.P. (Offshore Fund); (ii) SP Auto, Ltd. (SP Auto), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Offshore Fund; and (iii) SPCP Group III, LLC (SPCP Group III). Silver Point Capital, L.P. (Silver Point) is the investment manager of the Fund and the Offshore Fund, and as a result has sole voting and investment power over the shares held, directly or indirectly, by the Fund and the Offshore Fund. Silver Point Capital Management, LLC (Silver Point Management) is the general partner of Silver Point. Silver Point Management is also the manager of SPCP Group III, and as a result has sole voting and investment power over the securities held by SPCP Group III. Because Edward A. Mulé and Robert J. O Shea are the members of Silver Point Management, they may be deemed to have voting and investment power over the shares held, directly or indirectly, by the Fund and SPCP Group III. The address for Silver Point and Silver Point Management is Two Greenwich Plaza, 1st Floor, Greenwich, CT 06830.
- (9) Represents all ordinary shares owned by OCM Opportunities Fund VIIb Delaware, L.P., Oaktree Opportunities Fund VIII Delaware, L.P., Oaktree Huntington Investment Fund, L.P., Oaktree Opportunities Fund VIII (Parallel 2), L.P., Oaktree FF Investment Fund, L.P. Class B, Oaktree Value Opportunities Fund Holdings, L.P., OCM Opps PH Holding, L.P., California Street Holdings 2, L.P., California Street Holdings 3, L.P., California Street Holdings 4, L.P., California Street Holdings 5, L.P. and Colorado Boulevard Holdings 7, L.P. The mailing address for the owners listed above is 333 S. Grand Avenue, 28th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90071.

The general partner of each of OCM Opportunities Fund VIIb Delaware, L.P. and Oaktree Opportunities Fund VIII Delaware, L.P. is Oaktree Fund GP, LLC. The managing member of Oaktree Fund GP, LLC is Oaktree Fund GP I, L.P.

The general partner of Oaktree Huntington Investment Fund, L.P. is Oaktree Huntington Investment Fund GP, L.P. The general partner of Oaktree Huntington Investment Fund GP, L.P. is Oaktree Huntington Investment Fund GP Ltd. The sole shareholder of Oaktree Huntington Investment Fund GP Ltd. is Oaktree Fund GP I, L.P.

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

The general partner of Oaktree Opportunities Fund VIII (Parallel 2), L.P. is Oaktree Opportunities Fund VIII GP, L.P. The general partner of Oaktree Opportunities Fund VIII GP, L.P. is Oaktree Opportunities Fund VIII GP Ltd. The sole shareholder of Oaktree Opportunities Fund VIII GP Ltd. is Oaktree Fund GP I, L.P.

The general partner of Oaktree FF Investment Fund, L.P. Class B is Oaktree FF Investment Fund GP, L.P. The general partner of Oaktree FF Investment Fund GP, L.P. is Oaktree FF Investment Fund GP Ltd. The sole shareholder of Oaktree FF Investment Fund GP Ltd. is Oaktree Fund GP I, L.P.

The general partner of Oaktree Value Opportunities Fund Holdings, L.P. is Oaktree Value Opportunities Fund GP, L.P. The general partner of Oaktree Value Opportunities Fund GP, L.P. is Oaktree Value Opportunities Fund GP Ltd. The sole shareholder of Oaktree Value Opportunities Fund GP Ltd. is Oaktree Fund GP I, L.P.

The general partner of Oaktree Fund GP I, L.P. is Oaktree Capital I, L.P. The general partner of Oaktree Capital I, L.P. is OCM Holdings I, LLC. The managing member of Oaktree Holdings, LLC is Oaktree Holdings, LLC. The managing member of Oaktree Holdings, LLC is Oaktree Capital Group, LLC. The holder of a majority of the voting units of Oaktree Capital Group, LLC is Oaktree Capital Group Holdings, L.P. The general partner of Oaktree Capital Group Holdings, L.P. is Oaktree Capital Group Holdings GP, LLC. The members of Oaktree Capital Group Holdings GP, LLC are Kevin Clayton, John Frank, Stephen Kaplan, Bruce Karsh, Larry Keele, David Kirchheimer, Howard Marks and Sheldon Stone. Each of the general partners, managing members, unit holders and members described above disclaims beneficial ownership of any ordinary shares beneficially or of record owned by any of OCM Opportunities Fund VIII Delaware, L.P., Oaktree Opportunities Fund VIII Delaware, L.P., Class B or Oaktree Value Opportunities Fund Holdings, L.P. The address for all of the entities and individuals identified above is 333 S. Grand Avenue, 28th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90071.

The general partner of each of OCM Opps PH Holding, L.P., California Street Holdings 2, L.P., California Street Holdings 3, L.P., California Street Holdings 4, L.P., California Street Holdings 5, L.P. and Colorado Boulevard Holdings 7, L.P. is OCM FIE, LLC. The managing member of OCM FIE, LLC is Oaktree Capital Management, L.P. The general partner of Oaktree Capital Management, L.P. is Oaktree Holdings, Inc. The sole shareholder of Oaktree Holdings, Inc. is Oaktree Capital Group, LLC. The holder of a majority of the voting units of Oaktree Capital Group, LLC is Oaktree Capital Group Holdings, L.P. The general partner of Oaktree Capital Group Holdings, L.P. is Oaktree Capital Group Holdings GP, LLC. The members of Oaktree Capital Group Holdings GP, LLC are Kevin Clayton, John Frank, Stephen Kaplan, Bruce Karsh, Larry Keele, David Kirchheimer, Howard Marks and Sheldon Stone. Each of the general partners, managing members, unit holders and members described above disclaims beneficial ownership of any ordinary shares beneficially or of record owned by any of OCM Opps PH Holdings 5, L.P., California Street Holdings 2, L.P., California Street Holdings 3, L.P., California Street Holdings 4, L.P., California Street Holdings 5, L.P. or Colorado Boulevard Holdings 7, L.P. The address for all of the entities and individuals identified above is 333 S. Grand Avenue, 28th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90071.

- (10) 3G Fund Partners Ltd. (3G Fund Partners) is the general partner of the 3G Fund LP, a Cayman Islands limited partnership (the 3G Fund), and as such may have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by the 3G Fund. Alexandre Behring, Munir Javeri, and Bernardo Piquet are Directors of 3G Fund Partners, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by the 3G Fund. Alexandre Behring, Munir Javeri, and Bernardo Piquet disclaim beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of the 3G Fund, 3G Fund Partners, Alexandre Behring, Munir Javeri, and Bernardo Piquet is Attention: Back Office, c/o 3G Capital, Inc., 600 Third Avenue, 37th Floor, New York, NY 10016.
- (11) The Alden Funds (as hereinafter defined) are comprised of the following entities: Alden Global Distressed Opportunities Master Fund L.P., a Cayman Islands company (Alden Distressed) and Alden Global Value Recovery Master Fund, L.P., a Cayman Islands company (Alden Value) (together, the Alden Funds). Alden Global Capital Limited is the management company to the Alden Funds and as such has voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by the Alden Funds. David Zales is the Vice President of Alden Global Capital Limited, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares. The address for each of the Alden Funds, Alden Global Capital Limited and David Zales is Operations/B. Pierce, c/o Alden Global Capital, 885 Third Avenue, 34th Floor, New York, NY 10022.
- (12) The Anchorage Funds (as hereinafter defined) are comprised of the following entities: Anchorage Capital Master Offshore, Ltd., a Cayman Islands company (Anchorage Capital), Anchorage Illiquid Opportunities Offshore Master II, L.P., a Cayman Islands company (Anchorage Illiquid Opportunities Offshore Master, L.P., a Cayman Islands company (Anchorage Illiquid), GRF Master Fund II, L.P., a Cayman Islands company (GRF Master II), and GRF Master Fund, L.P., a Cayman Islands company (GRF Master) (together, the Anchorage Funds). Anchorage Advisors Management, L.L.C. (Anchorage Advisors) is the managing member of Anchorage Advisors, L.L.C., which acts as the advisor of Anchorage Capital. Kevin Ulrich and Anthony Davis, as managing members of Anchorage Advisors, Daniel Allen, as Senior Portfolio Manager of Anchorage Advisors, and Michael Aglialoro, as Executive Vice President of Anchorage Advisors, may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Anchorage Capital. Natalie Birrell, as Director of Anchorage Capital, may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Anchorage Capital Group, L.L.C., the managing member of Anchorage IP GP II, L.L.C. which in turn serves as the general partner of Anchorage Illiquid II and Anchorage Illiquid, and the managing member of GRF GP, L.L.C. which in turn serves as the general partner of GRF Master and GRF Master II. Kevin Ulrich, as Chief Executive Officer of Anchorage Management, Anthony Davis, as President of Anchorage Management, Natalie Birrell, as Chief

Operating Officer of Anchorage Management, Michael Aglialoro, as Executive Vice President of Anchorage Management, and Daniel Allen, as Senior Portfolio Manager of Anchorage Management, may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Anchorage Capital. Kevin Ulrich, Anthony Davis, Natalie Birrell, Michael Aglialoro and Daniel Allen disclaim beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of the Anchorage Funds, Anchorage Management, Anchorage Capital Group, L.L.C., Anchorage IP GP II, L.L.C., GRF GP, L.L.C., and Kevin Ulrich, Anthony Davis, Natalie Birrell, Michael Aglialoro and Daniel Allen and Daniel Allen is: Attention Anne-Marie Kim, Esq., c/o Anchorage Capital Group, L.L.C., 610 Broadway, 6th Floor, New York, NY, 10012.

- (13) The BBT Funds (as hereinafter defined) are comprised of the following entities: BBT Fund, L.P., a Cayman Islands limited partnership (BBT Fund) and BBT Master Fund, L.P., a Cayman Islands limited partnership (BBT Master) (together, the BBT Funds). BBT Capital Management, Inc. is the Investment Adviser to each of the BBT Funds, and as such has voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by the BBT Funds. Sid R. Bass is the Director and President of BBT Capital Management, Inc., William O. Reimann and J. Kenneth McCarty are Vice Presidents of BBT Capital Management Inc., and William Rutkoske is Senior Analyst with Talek Investments, LLC, subadviser to BBT Capital Management, Inc., and as such each may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by each of the BBT Funds. Sid R. Bass, William Reimann, J. Kenneth McCarty and William Rutkoske disclaim beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of Sid R. Bass, William Reimann, J. Kenneth McCarty, William Rutkoske, BBT Capital Management, Inc. and the BBT Funds is c/o BBT Genpar, L.P., 201 Main Street, Suite 3200, Fort Worth, Texas 76102.
- (14) The CAI Funds (as hereinafter defined) are comprised of the following entities: DSTAR Ltd., a Cayman Island company (DSTAR), and CAI Distressed Debt Opportunity Master Fund LTD, a Cayman Islands company (CAI Funds) (together, the CAI Funds). CAI LLC is the investment adviser to the CAI Funds and as such has voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by the CAI Funds. James Duplessie, Herbert Seif, and Judith Ottensoser are the managing directors of CAI LLC and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by the CAI Funds. James Duplessie, Herbert Seif, and Judith Ottensoser disclaim beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of the CAI Funds, CAI LLC, and James Duplessie, Herbert Seif, and Judith Ottensoser, 399 Park Ave 7th Floor, New York, NY, 10022.
- (15) The Columbus Hill Funds (as hereinafter defined) are comprised of the following entities: Columbus Hill Overseas Master Fund, Ltd., a Cayman Islands exempted company (CHO), and Columbus Hill Partners, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (CHP) (together, the Columbus Hill Funds). Columbus Hill Capital Management, L.P. (CHCM) is the investment manager of CHO, a Cayman Islands exempted company, and CHP, a Delaware limited partnership, and as such has voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by CHO and CHP. Kevin D. Eng is the director of CHO, and the managing member of CHC Partners, L.L.C. (CHC and the general partner of CHCM), John Petry is the Chief Operating Officer of CHCM, Gene Ko is the Director of Research of CHCM, David Ambrosia is the Managing Director and General Counsel of CHCM and George Kim is the Chief Financial Officer of CHCM, and as such each may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by the Columbus Hill Funds. Kevin D. Eng, John Petry, Gene Ko, David Ambrosia and George Kim each disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of CHO, CHP, CHCM, CHC, Kevin D. Eng, John Petry, Gene Ko, David Ambrosia and George Kim is c/o Columbus Hill Capital Management, LP, 830 Morris Turnpike, 2nd floor, Short Hills, NJ 07078.
- (16)Each of Rob MacNaughton, Bob Franz and George Michaels is a Managing Director of Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC. The ordinary shares held by Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC were acquired in the ordinary course of its business and not for the purpose of resale or distribution. Each of Rob MacNaughton, Bob Franz and George Michaels disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, Rob MacNaughton, Bob Franz and George Michaels is 11 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10025.
- (17) The Fernwood Funds (as hereinafter defined) are comprised of the following entities: Fernwood Associates LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (Fernwood Associates), Fernwood Foundation Fund LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (Fernwood Foundation), and Fernwood Restructurings Limited, a British Virgin Islands corporation (Fernwood Restructurings) (together, the Fernwood Funds). David B. Forer and Thomas P. Borger are each Managing Directors of Fernwood Associates and Fernwood Foundation, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Fernwood Associates and Fernwood Foundation. David B. Forer is a Director of Fernwood Restructurings, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary

shares held by Fernwood Restructurings. Each of David B. Forer and Thomas P. Borger disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of the Fernwood Funds, David B. Forer and Thomas P. Borger is 1370 Avenue of the Americas, 33rd Floor, New York, NY 10019.

- (18) Greywolf Capital Partners II LP (PII), Greywolf Capital Overseas Fund II, Greywolf Capital Overseas Master Fund, Greywolf Opportunities Master Fund LP (GOMF) and Greywolf Structured Products Master Fund, Ltd. (collectively, the Greywolf Funds) are deemed to beneficially own as of November 4, 2011, the respective number of ordinary shares listed next to their names in the table above, which are issuable upon the exchange of their respective membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP for ordinary shares of Delphi Automotive PLC. Greywolf Advisors LLC (the General Partner), as general partner to PII and GOMF, may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of the ordinary shares beneficially owned by PII and GOMF. Greywolf Capital Management LP (the Investment Manager), as investment manager to the Greywolf Funds, may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of the ordinary shares beneficially owned by each Greywolf Fund. Greywolf GP LLC (the Investment Manager General Partner), as general partner of the Investment Manager General Partner and as the sole managing member of the Investment Manager General Partner and as the sole managing member of the General Partner, may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of the ordinary shares beneficial owner of the Investment Manager General Partner and as the sole managing member of the Investment Manager General Partner, may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of the ordinary shares beneficial ownership of the ordinary shares indicated in above table. The address of each listed entity is c/o Greywolf Capital Management LP, 4 Manhattanville Road, Suite 201, Purchase, NY 10577.
- (19) Each of Felice Dilorio, Carlos Mauricio Hernandez, Patrick C. Kirby, Douglas B. Petno, Gregory G. Quental, James E. Staley and Jeffrey Urwin is a Manager of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by J.P. Morgan Securities LLC. Each of Felice Dilorio, Carlos Mauricio Hernandez, Patrick C. Kirby, Douglas B. Petno, Gregory G. Quental, James E. Staley and Jeffrey Urwin disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Felice Dilorio, Carlos Mauricio Hernandez, Patrick C. Kirby, Douglas B. Petno, Gregory G. Quental, James E. Staley and Jeffrey Urwin disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Felice Dilorio, Carlos Mauricio Hernandez, Patrick C. Kirby, Douglas B. Petno, Gregory G. Quental, James E. Staley and Jeffrey Urwin is 4 New York Plaza, 16th Floor, New York, NY 10004.
- (20) The KCM Funds (as hereinafter defined) are comprised of the following entities: LMA SPC for and on behalf of MAP84 Segregated Portfolio, a Cayman Islands segregated portfolio company (MAP84), and Knighthead Master Fund, L.P., a Cayman Islands limited partnership (KMF) (together, the KCM Funds). Knighthead Capital Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (KCM) is the investment manager of KMF and MAP84, and as such has voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by KMF and MAP84. Thomas Wagner and Ara Cohen are managing members of KCM, and Laura Torrado is the general counsel to KCM, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by KMF and MAP84. Thomas Wagner, Ara Cohen and Laura Torrado disclaim beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of KMF, KCM, MAP84, Thomas Wagner, Ara Cohen and Laura Torrado is c/o Knighthead Capital Management, LLC, 623 Fifth Avenue, 29th Floor, New York, NY 10022.
- (21) The Mason Funds (as hereinafter defined) are comprised of the following entities: Guggenheim Portfolio Company X, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (Guggenheim), Mason Capital LP, a Delaware limited partnership (Mason Capital), and Mason Capital Master Fund, LP, a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership (Mason Master) (together, the Mason Funds). Mason Capital Management LLC is the Investment Manager to each of the Mason Funds, and as such has voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by each of the Mason Funds. Each of Kenneth Garschina and Michael E. Martino is a Partner of Mason Capital Management LLC and John C. Grizetti is the Chief Financial Officer of Mason Capital Management LLC, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by each of the Mason Funds. Each of Kenneth Garschina, Michael E. Martino and John C. Grizetti disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of Guggenheim Portfolio Company X, LLC, Mason Capital LP, Mason Capital Management LLC, Kenneth Garschina, Michael E. Martino and John C. Grizetti LP, Mason Capital Management LLC, Kenneth Garschina, Michael E. Martino and John C. Grizetti and John C. Grizetti and John C. Grizetti and John C. Grizetti disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of Guggenheim Portfolio Company X, LLC, Mason Capital LP, Mason Capital Management LLC, Kenneth Garschina, Michael E. Martino and John C. Grizetti is 110 East 59th Street, 30th Floor, New York, NY 10022. The address for Mason Capital Master Fund, LP is 87 Mary Street, Georgetown, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.
- (22) Davidson Kempner Capital Management LLC, acting through its affiliates pursuant to various advisory agreements (DKCM), is the ultimate investment manager of Midtown Acquisitions L.P. (Midtown) and affiliated funds who are partners therein. DKCM has overall responsibility for investment decisions made on behalf of Midtown. Thomas L. Kempner, Jr. serves as the Executive Managing Member of DKCM. The other partners of DKCM are Stephen M. Dowicz, Scott E. Davidson, Timothy I. Levart, Robert J. Brivio, Jr., Eric P. Epstein, Anthony A. Yoseloff, Avram Z. Friedman and Conor Bastable. Each such person disclaims ownership of any securities held by Midtown.

The address for

each of DKCM, Midtown, Thomas L. Kempner, Jr., Stephen M. Dowicz, Scott E. Davidson, Timothy I. Levart, Robert J. Brivio, Jr., Eric P. Epstein, Anthony A. Yoseloff, Avram Z. Friedman and Conor Bastable is 65 East 55th Street, 19th Floor, New York, NY 10022.

- (23) Monarch Alternative Capital, LP (Monarch Alternative) is the investment adviser to Monarch Master Funding, Ltd., a Cayman Islands limited company (MMF), and as such has voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by MMF. Michael Weinstock, Andrew Herenstein and Christopher Santana are managing principals of Monarch Alternative, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by MMF. Michael Weinstock, Andrew Herenstein and Chirstopher Santana each disclaim beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of MMF, Monarch Alternative, Michael Weinstock, Andrew Herenstein and Christopher Santana is 535 Madison Avenue, 26th Floor, New York, NY 10022.
- (24) Dan Ornstein and Adam Savarese are Managing Directors of the trading desk at Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, that acquired and manages the ordinary shares in the ordinary course of its business and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC. Those ordinary shares were not acquired for the purpose of resale or distribution. Each of Dan Ornstein and Adam Savarese disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, a registered broker-dealer, is a subsidiary of Morgan Stanley, a widely held reporting company under the Exchange Act. The address for each of Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, Dan Ornstein and Adam Savarese is 1585 Broadway, New York, NY 10036.
- (25) The Pentwater Capital Management Funds (as hereinafter defined) are comprised of the following entities: Pentwater Equity Opportunities Master Fund Ltd., a Cayman Islands company (Pentwater Equity Opportunities), Oceana Master Fund Ltd., a Cayman Islands company (Oceana), PWCM Master Fund Ltd., a Cayman Islands company (PWCM) and LMA SPC for and on behalf of Map 98 Segregated Portfolio (LMA SPC) (together, the Pentwater Capital Management Funds). Matthew Halbower is the Chief Executive Officer/Chief Investment Officer of each of the Pentwater Capital Management Funds, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Pentwater Equity Opportunities. Matthew Halbower disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of the Pentwater Capital Management Funds and Matthew Halbower is 227 West Monroe, Suite 4000, Chicago, IL 60606.
- (26) Pioneer Investment Management, Inc. is the Investment Adviser to Pioneer Floating Rate Trust, a Delaware statutory trust, and as such has voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Pioneer Floating Rate Trust. Jonathan Sharkey is the Vice President of Pioneer Investment Management, Inc., and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Pioneer Floating Rate Trust. Jonathan Sharkey is the Vice President of Pioneer Floating Rate Trust. Jonathan Sharkey disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of Pioneer Floating Rate Trust, Pioneer Investment Management, Inc. and Jonathan Sharkey is 60 State Street, Boston, MA 02109.
- (27) Redwood Capital Management, LLC is the Investment Manager to Redwood Master Fund, Ltd., a Cayman Islands company, and as such has voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Redwood Master Fund, Ltd. Jonathan Kolatch is the Managing Member of Redwood Capital Management, LLC, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Redwood Master Fund, Ltd. Jonathan Kolatch disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of Redwood Master Fund, Ltd., Redwood Capital Management, LLC and Jonathan Kolatch is 910 Sylvan Ave, Englewood Cliffs, NJ 07632.
- (28) Riva Ridge Capital Management L.P. (RRCM) serves as (i) investment manager to Riva Ridge Master Fund, Ltd. (Riva Ridge) and (ii) sub-advisor to Mariner Investment Group, LLC, who is investment manager to Mariner LDC (LDC and, together with Riva Ridge, the RRCM Funds) Riva Ridge GP LLC, GP (Riva GP) is the general partner to RRCM. The managing members of Riva GP are Stephen Golden and James Shim (collectively the Riva Managers). RRCM, Riva GP and each of the Riva Managers may be deemed to beneficially own the securities held by the RRCM Funds. RRCM, Riva GP and each of the Riva Managers each disclaim beneficial ownership of such securities.
- (29) The Scoggin Funds (as hereinafter defined) are comprised of the following entities: Scoggin Worldwide Fund, Ltd., a Cayman Island partnership (Scoggin Worldwide), Scoggin Capital Management II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (Scoggin Capital), and Scoggin International Fund, Ltd., a Cayman Islands partnership (Scoggin International) (together, the Scoggin Funds). Old Bell Associates

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

LLC is the General Partner of Old Bellow Partners LP, being the Investment Manager to Scoggin Worldwide Fund, Ltd., and as such has voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Scoggin Worldwide Fund, Ltd. Each of Craig Effron, Curtis Schenker and Dev Chodry is a Managing Member of Old Bell Associates LLC, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Scoggin LLC is the Investment Manager to Scoggin Capital Management II, LLC and Scoggin International Fund, Ltd., and as such has voting and dispositive power over the

ordinary shares held by Scoggin Capital Management II, LLC and Scoggin International Fund, Ltd. Each of Craig Effron and Curtis Schenker is a Managing Member of Scoggin LLC, and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by Scoggin Capital Management II, LLC and Scoggin International Fund, Ltd. Each of Craig Effron, Curtis Schenker and Dev Chodry disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of the Scoggin Funds, Craig Effron, Curtis Schenker and Dev Chodry is 660 Madison Avenue, 20th Floor, New York, NY 10065.

- (30) MSD Capital, L.P. is the general partner of SOF Investments, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, and may be deemed to have or share voting and dispositive power over, and/or beneficially own, the ordinary shares held by SOF Investments, L.P. MSD Capital Management LLC is the general partner of MSD Capital, L.P. and may be deemed to have or share voting and/or dispositive power over, and beneficially own, the ordinary shares beneficially owned by MSD Capital, L.P. Michael S. Dell is the controlling member of, and may be deemed to beneficially own the ordinary shares beneficially owned by, MSD Capital Management. Each of Glenn R. Fuhrman, John C. Phelan and Marc R. Lisker is a manager of MSD Capital Management LLC and may be deemed to have or share voting and/or dispositive power over, and beneficially own, the ordinary shares beneficially owned by MSD Capital Management LLC. Each of Mr. Dell, Mr. Fuhrman, Mr. Phelan and Mr. Lisker disclaim beneficial ownership of such ordinary shares. The address for each of SOF Investments, L.P., MSD Capital, L.P, MSD Capital Management LLC, Mr. Dell, Mr. Fuhrman, Mr. Phelan and Mr. Lisker is 645 Fifth Avenue, 21st Floor, New York, NY 10022.
- (31) Third Point LLC is the sole member of Third Point Loan LLC, and as a result has sole voting and investment power over the shares held by Third Point Loan LLC. Because Daniel S. Loeb is the sole managing member of Third Point LLC, he may be deemed to have voting and investment power over the shares held, directly or indirectly, by Third Point Loan LLC. The address for Third Point Loan LLC is 390 Park Ave, 18th Fl, New York, NY 10022.
- (32) Jeffrey Teach and Daniel Frommer are Managing Directors, and Gregory Cass is an Executive Director, of the trading desk at UBS Securities LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, that acquired and manages the ordinary shares held through UBS AG, London Branch, in the ordinary course of its investment business and as such may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over those ordinary shares. Those ordinary shares were not acquired for the purpose of resale or distribution. Each of Jeffrey Teach, Daniel Frommer and Gregory Cass disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address of each of Jeffrey Teach, Daniel Frommer, Gregory Cass, UBS Securities LLC, and, solely for purposes of notifications regarding the ordinary shares, UBS AG, London Branch, is 677 Washington Boulevard, Stamford, CT 06901. For all other purposes, the address of UBS AG, London Branch is 1 Finsbury Avenue, London, England EC2M 2AN.
- (33) The Waterstone Funds (as hereinafter defined) are comprised of the following entities: Waterstone Market Neutral Master Fund, Ltd, a Cayman Island exempted company (Waterstone Neutral), Waterstone MF Fund, Ltd, a Cayman Islands exempted company (Waterstone MF), Waterstone Market Neutral MAC51, Ltd, a Cayman Islands exempted company (Waterstone MAC51), Waterstone Offshore ER Fund, Ltd, a Cayman Islands exempted company (Waterstone ER), IAM Mini-Fund 21 Limited, a Cayman Islands exempted company (IAM), and Prime Capital Master SPC, GOT WAT MAC Segregated Portfolio, a Cayman Islands exempted company (Prime Capital) (together, the Waterstone Funds). Waterstone Capital Offshore Advisors, L.P. (Waterstone Offshore) is the Investment Manager of each the Waterstone Funds, and Waterstone Asset Management, LLC (Waterstone Asset Management) is such Investment Manager s General Partner, and as such each may have voting and dispositive power over the ordinary shares held by each of the Waterstone Funds. Shawn Bergerson disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of the Waterstone Funds, Waterstone Funds, Shawn Bergerson disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of the Waterstone Funds, Waterstone Funds, Waterstone Funds, Shawn Bergerson disclaims beneficial ownership of these ordinary shares. The address for each of the Waterstone Funds, Waterstone Funds, Waterstone Offshore, Waterstone Asset Management and Shawn Bergerson is 2 Carlson Parkway, Suite 620, Plymouth MN 55447.
- (34) Represents ordinary shares held by 30 selling shareholders not listed above who, as a group, own less than 1.0% of our outstanding ordinary shares prior to this offering (after giving effect to the exchange of Delphi Automotive LLP membership interests for ordinary shares immediate prior to the completion of this offering).

DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

Our authorized share capital consists of 1,200,000,000 ordinary shares, par value \$0.01 per share, and 50,000,000 preferred shares, par value \$0.01 per share.

The following descriptions are summaries of the material terms of our Articles of Association and Memorandum of Association (as amended, our Articles of Association and Memorandum of Association , respectively). Reference is made to the more detailed provisions of, and the descriptions are qualified in their entirety by reference to, the Articles of Association and Memorandum of Association, copies of which are filed with the SEC together as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part, and applicable law.

Ordinary Shares

Following this offering, there will be 328,244,510 ordinary shares issued and outstanding, after giving effect to the exchange of Delphi Automotive LLP membership interests for ordinary shares of Delphi Automotive PLC. We are issuing no additional shares in this offering. All outstanding ordinary shares to be issued upon completion of this offering will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. The ordinary shares do not have pre-emptive, subscription or redemption rights. Neither our Memorandum of Association or Articles of Association nor the laws of Jersey restrict in any way the ownership or voting of ordinary shares held by non-residents of Jersey.

Dividend and Liquidation Rights. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive equally, share for share, any dividends that may be declared in respect of our ordinary shares by the Board of Directors out of funds legally available therefor. If, in the future, we declare cash dividends, such dividends will be payable in U.S. dollars. In the event of our liquidation, after satisfaction of liabilities to creditors, holders of ordinary shares are entitled to share pro rata in our net assets. Such rights may be affected by the grant of preferential dividend or distribution rights to the holders of a class or series of preferred shares that may be authorized in the future. Our Board of Directors will have the power to declare such interim dividends as it determines. Declaration of a final dividend (not exceeding the amounts proposed by our Board of Directors) requires shareholder approval by adoption of an ordinary resolution. Failure to obtain such shareholder approval does not affect previously paid interim dividends.

Voting, Shareholder Meetings and Resolutions. Holders of ordinary shares have one vote for each ordinary share held on all matters submitted to a vote of holders of ordinary shares. These voting rights may be affected by the grant of any special voting rights to the holders of a class or series of preferred shares that may be authorized in the future. Pursuant to Jersey law, an annual general meeting shall be held once every calendar year at the time (within a period of not more than 18 months after the last preceding annual general meeting) and at the place as may be determined by the Board of Directors. The quorum required for an ordinary meeting of shareholders consists of shareholders present in person or by proxy who hold or represent between them a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote at such meeting.

An ordinary resolution (such as a resolution for the approval of the financial reports or the declaration of dividends) requires approval by the holders of a majority of the voting rights represented at a meeting, in person or by proxy, and voting thereon.

Amendments to Governing Documents. A special resolution (such as, for example, a resolution amending our Memorandum of Association or Articles of Association or approving any change in authorized capitalization, or a liquidation or winding-up) requires approval of the holders of two-thirds of the voting rights represented at the meeting, in person or by proxy, and voting thereon. A special resolution can only be considered if shareholders receive at least fourteen days prior notice of the meeting at which such resolution will be considered.

Requirements for Advance Notification of Shareholder Nominations and Proposals. Our Articles of Association establish advance notice and related procedures with respect to shareholder proposals and nomination of candidates for election as directors.

Limits on Written Consents. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the shareholders must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting of shareholders and may not be effected by any consent in writing in lieu of a meeting of such shareholders.

Transfer of Shares and Notices. Fully paid ordinary shares are issued in registered form and may be freely transferred pursuant to the Articles of Association unless the transfer is restricted by applicable securities laws or prohibited by another instrument. Each shareholder of record is entitled to receive at least fourteen days prior notice (excluding the day of notice and the day of the meeting) of an ordinary shareholders meeting and of any shareholders meeting at which a special resolution is to be adopted of at least fourteen days. For the purposes of determining the shareholders entitled to notice and to vote at the meeting, the Board of Directors may fix a date as the record date for any such determination.

Modification of Class Rights. The rights attached to any class (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of that class), such as voting, dividends and the like, may be varied with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate general meeting of the holders of the shares of that class.

Election and Removal of Directors. The ordinary shares do not have cumulative voting rights in the election of directors. As a result, the holders of ordinary shares that represent more than 50% of the voting power have the power to elect any of our directors who are up for election. All of our directors will be elected at each annual meeting.

Following this offering, our Board of Directors will consist of 12 directors. Our amended Articles of Association will state that shareholders may only remove a director for cause. Our Board of Directors will have sole power to fill any vacancy occurring as a result of the death, disability, removal or resignation of a director or as a result of an increase in the size of the Board of Directors.

Applicability of U.K. Takeover Code. We do not believe that the U.K. City Code on Takeovers and Mergers will apply to takeover transactions for the Company.

Preferred Shares

We have 50,000,000 authorized preferred shares. The Board of Directors has the authority to issue the preferred shares in one or more series and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions of such shares, including dividend rights, dividend rates, conversion rights, voting rights, terms of redemption, redemption prices, liquidation preferences and the number of shares constituting any series, without further vote or action by the shareholders. We currently do not have any plans to issue any preferred shares.

The purpose of authorizing the Board of Directors to issue preferred shares and to determine their rights and preferences is to eliminate delays associated with a shareholder vote on specific issuances. The issuance of preferred shares, while providing desirable flexibility in connection with possible equity financings, acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could have the effect of making it more difficult for a third party to acquire, or of discouraging a third party from acquiring, a majority of our outstanding voting shares.

Comparison of United States and Jersey Corporate Law

The following discussion is a summary of the material differences between United States and Jersey corporate law relevant to an investment in the ordinary shares. The following discussion is based upon laws and relevant interpretations thereof in effect as of the date of this prospectus, all of which are subject to change.

As in most United States jurisdictions, unless approved by a special resolution of our shareholders, our directors do not have the power to take certain actions, including an amendment of our Memorandum of Association or Articles of Association or an increase or reduction in our authorized capital. Directors of a Jersey corporation, without shareholder approval, in certain instances may, among other things, implement certain sales, transfers, exchanges or dispositions of assets, property, parts of the business or securities of the corporation; or any combination thereof, if they determine any such action is in the best interests of the corporation, its creditors or its shareholders.

As in most United States jurisdictions, the board of directors of a Jersey corporation is charged with the management of the affairs of the corporation. In most United States jurisdictions, directors owe a fiduciary duty to the corporation and its shareholders, including a duty of care, pursuant to which directors must properly apprise themselves of all reasonably available information, and a duty of loyalty, pursuant to which they must protect the interests of the corporation and refrain from conduct that injures the corporation or its shareholders or that deprives the corporation or its shareholders of any profit or advantage. Many United States jurisdictions have enacted various statutory provisions that permit the monetary liability of directors to be eliminated or limited. Jersey law protecting the interests of shareholders may not be as protective in all circumstances as the law protecting shareholders in United States jurisdictions. Under our Articles of Association, we are required to indemnify every present and former officer of ours out of our assets against any loss or liability incurred by such officer by reason of being or having been such an officer. The extent of such indemnities shall be limited in accordance with the provisions of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, as amended.

In most United States jurisdictions, the Board of Directors is permitted to authorize share repurchases without shareholder consent. Jersey law does not permit share repurchases without shareholder consent. However, our Articles of Association will permit our Board of Directors to convert any of our shares that we wish to purchase into redeemable shares, and thus will effectively allow our Board of Directors to authorize share repurchases (which shall be effected by way of redemption) without shareholder consent, consistent with the practice in most United States jurisdictions.

Listing

The ordinary shares have been approved for listing on the NYSE under the symbol DLPH .

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The U.S. transfer agent and registrar for the ordinary shares is Computershare Trust Company, N.A. The U.S. transfer agent and registrar s address is 250 Royall Street, Canton, MA 02021, Attention: Client Administration. Computershare Investor Services (Jersey) Limited will be the registrar for the ordinary shares in Jersey and its address is Queensway House, Hilgrove Street, St Helier, Jersey JE1 1ES.

TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The information presented under the caption Jersey Tax Considerations below is a discussion of the material Jersey tax consequences of investing in the ordinary shares. The information presented under the caption U.K. Tax Considerations below is a discussion of Delphi Automotive PLC s status as a resident of the United Kingdom for U.K. tax purposes and of the material U.K. tax consequences of investing in the ordinary shares. The information presented under the caption U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations below is a discussion of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences to U.S. Holders (as defined below) of investing in the ordinary shares.

You should consult your tax adviser regarding the applicable tax consequences to you of investing in ordinary shares under the laws of Jersey, the United Kingdom and the United States (federal, state and local) and any other applicable foreign jurisdiction.

Jersey Tax Considerations

Delphi Automotive PLC is not regarded as resident for tax purposes in Jersey. Therefore, Delphi Automotive PLC will not be liable to Jersey income tax other than on Jersey source income (except where such income is exempted from income tax pursuant to the Income Tax (Jersey) Law 1961, as amended) and dividends on ordinary shares may be paid by Delphi Automotive PLC without withholding or deduction for or on account of Jersey income tax. The holders of ordinary shares (other than residents of Jersey) will not be subject to any tax in Jersey in respect of the holding, sale or other disposition of such ordinary shares.

In Jersey, no stamp duty is levied on the issue or transfer of the ordinary shares except that stamp duty is payable on Jersey grants of probate and letters of administration, which will generally be required to transfer ordinary shares on the death of a holder of such ordinary shares. In the case of a grant of probate or letters of administration, stamp duty is levied according to the size of the estate (wherever situated in respect of a holder of ordinary shares domiciled in Jersey) and is payable on a sliding scale at a rate of up to 0.75% of such estate.

Jersey does not otherwise levy taxes upon capital, inheritances, capital gains or gifts nor are there otherwise estate duties.

U.K. Tax Considerations

Delphi Automotive PLC intends to conduct its affairs, including by holding a significant number of its board meetings in the United Kingdom, such that it will be treated as managed and controlled in the United Kingdom and therefore be treated as resident in the United Kingdom for U.K tax purposes.

The following statements are a general guide to certain aspects of current U.K. tax law and the current published practice of HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC), both of which are subject to change, possibly with retrospective effect.

Dividends

Delphi Automotive PLC will not be required to deduct or withhold U.K. tax at source from dividend payments it makes.

Capital Gains

Holders of ordinary shares who are not resident or ordinarily resident in the U.K. will not generally be subject to U.K. taxation of capital gains on the disposal or deemed disposal of ordinary shares unless they are carrying on a trade, profession or vocation in the United Kingdom through a branch or agency (or, in the case of a corporate holder, carrying on a trade in the U.K. through a permanent establishment) in connection with which the ordinary shares are used, held or acquired.

Stamp duty and stamp duty reserve tax

No stamp duty reserve tax will be payable on the issue of the ordinary shares or on any transfer of the ordinary shares, provided that the ordinary shares are not registered in a register kept in the U.K. It is not intended that such a register will be kept in the U.K.

No stamp duty will be payable on the issue of the ordinary shares. No stamp duty will be payable on a transfer of the ordinary shares provided that (i) any instrument of transfer is not executed inside the U.K., and (ii) such instrument of transfer does not relate to any property situated, or any matter or thing done or to be done, in the U.K.

Tax position of U.K. resident holders of ordinary shares

The following statements are intended to apply to holders of ordinary shares who are only resident or (in the case of capital gains tax) ordinarily resident for tax purposes in the U.K., who hold the ordinary shares as investments and who are the beneficial owners of the ordinary shares. The statements may not apply to certain classes of holders of ordinary shares, such as dealers in securities and persons acquiring ordinary shares in connection with their employment. Prospective investors in ordinary shares who are in any doubt as to their tax position regarding the acquisition, ownership and disposition of the ordinary shares should consult their own tax advisers.

Dividends

Individuals

An individual holder who receives a dividend from Delphi Automotive PLC will be entitled to a tax credit which may be set off against his total income tax liability on the dividend. Such an individual holder s liability to income tax is calculated on the aggregate of the dividend (the declared dividend) and the tax credit (such aggregate being the gross dividend) which will be regarded as the top slice of the individual s income. The tax credit will be equal to 10% of the gross dividend (i.e. the tax credit will be one-ninth of the amount of the dividend).

An individual holder who is not liable to income tax in respect of the dividend will not be entitled to reclaim any part of the tax credit. An individual holder who is liable to income tax at the basic rate will be subject to income tax on the dividend at the rate of 10% of the gross dividend so that the tax credit will satisfy in full such holder s liability to income tax on the dividend.

An individual holder liable to income tax at the higher rate will be subject to income tax on the gross dividend at 32.5% of the gross dividend, but will be able to set the tax credit off against part of this liability. The effect of the set off of the U.K. tax credit is that such a holder will have to account for additional tax equal to one-quarter of the declared dividend.

An individual holder liable to income tax at the additional rate will be subject to income tax on the gross dividend at 42.5% of the gross dividend, but will be able to set the tax credit off against part of this liability. The effect of that set off of the U.K. tax credit is that such a holder will have to account for additional tax equal to approximately 36.1% of the declared dividend.

Corporate shareholders within the charge to U.K. Corporation Tax

Holders of ordinary shares within the charge to U.K. corporation tax which are small companies for the purposes of Chapter 2 of Part 9A of the Corporation Tax Act 2009 (CTA 2009) (for the purposes of U.K. taxation of dividends) will not be subject to U.K. corporation tax on any dividend received from Delphi Automotive PLC provided certain conditions are met (including an anti-avoidance condition).

Other holders within the charge to U.K. corporation tax will not normally be subject to tax on dividends (including dividends from Delphi Automotive PLC).

If the conditions for exemption are not met or cease to be satisfied, or such a holder elects for an otherwise exempt dividend to be taxable, the holder will be subject to U.K. corporation tax on dividends received from Delphi Automotive PLC, at the rate of corporation tax applicable to that holder.

A corporate holder resident in the U.K. who is not liable to tax on dividends from Delphi Automotive PLC will not be entitled to reclaim any part of the tax credit.

Capital gains

Individuals

For individual holders, the principal factors that will determine the U.K. capital gains tax position on a disposal or deemed disposal of ordinary shares are the extent to which the holder realizes any other capital gains in the U.K. tax year in which the disposal is made, the extent to which the holder has incurred capital losses in that or earlier U.K. tax years, and the level of the annual allowance of tax-free gains in that U.K. tax year (the annual exemption). The annual exemption for the 2011/2012 U.K. tax year is £10,600.

If, after all allowable deductions, an individual holder s taxable income for the year exceeds the basic rate U.K. income tax limit, a taxable chargeable gain accruing on a disposal or deemed disposal of the ordinary shares would be taxed at 28%. Otherwise, such a gain may be taxed at 18% or 28% or a combination of both rates.

A holder who is an individual and who has ceased to be resident or ordinarily resident in the U.K. for tax purposes for a period of less than five complete tax years and who disposes of ordinary shares during that period may also be liable on his return to the U.K. to tax on any capital gain realized, subject to any available exemptions or reliefs.

Companies

A disposal or deemed disposal of ordinary shares by a holder within the charge to U.K. corporation tax may give rise to a chargeable gain or allowable loss for the purposes of U.K. corporation tax, depending on the circumstances and subject to any available exemptions or reliefs. Corporation tax is charged on chargeable gains at the rate applicable to that company.

Holders within the charge to U.K. corporation tax will, for the purposes of computing chargeable gains, be allowed to claim an indexation allowance which applies to reduce capital gains (but not to create or increase an allowable loss) to the extent that such gains arise due to inflation.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following section is the opinion of Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP as to the material U.S. federal income tax consequences to the U.S. Holders described below of owning and disposing of ordinary shares. It does not describe all tax considerations that may be relevant to a particular person s decision to acquire the ordinary shares.

As discussed above under Risk Factors Risks Related to Legal, Regulatory, Tax and Accounting Matters, the IRS has indicated its intention to issue regulations, which if issued with a retroactive effective date and with no exceptions for transactions that were subject to binding commitments on that date, could create a significant risk that Delphi Automotive PLC could be treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Although Delphi Automotive PLC believes that it is more likely than not that it is not a domestic

corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, no assurance can be given that the IRS will not contend that Delphi Automotive PLC should be treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If Delphi Automotive PLC were treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the U.S. tax consequences to holders of ordinary shares would be significantly different. In particular, future cash distributions made by us to holders who are not U.S. Holders could be subject to withholding tax at a 30% rate or a reduced rate specified by an applicable income tax treaty. Holders should consult their tax advisers about the U.S. tax consequences of holding ordinary shares if Delphi Automotive PLC were treated as a domestic corporation. The remainder of the discussion below assumes that Delphi Automotive PLC is not treated as a domestic corporation.

This discussion applies only to a U.S. Holder that holds ordinary shares as capital assets for tax purposes. In addition, it does not describe all of the tax consequences that may be relevant in light of the U.S. Holder s particular circumstances, including alternative minimum tax consequences and tax consequences applicable to U.S. Holders subject to special rules, such as:

certain financial institutions;

dealers or traders in securities who use a mark-to-market method of tax accounting;

persons holding ordinary shares as part of a hedging transaction, straddle, wash sale, conversion transaction or integrated transaction or persons entering into a constructive sale with respect to the ordinary shares;

persons whose functional currency for U.S. federal income tax purposes is not the U.S. dollar;

entities classified as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes;

tax-exempt entities, including an individual retirement account or Roth IRA ;

persons that own or are deemed to own ten percent or more of our voting shares; or

persons holding ordinary shares in connection with a trade or business conducted outside of the United States. If an entity that is classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds ordinary shares, the U.S. federal income tax treatment of a partner will generally depend on the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. Partnerships holding ordinary shares and partners in such partnerships should consult their tax advisers as to the particular U.S. federal income tax consequences of holding and disposing of the ordinary shares.

This discussion is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), administrative pronouncements, judicial decisions, final, temporary and proposed Treasury regulations, and the income tax treaty between the United Kingdom and the United States (the Treaty) all as of the date hereof, any of which is subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect.

A U.S. Holder is a holder who, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, is a beneficial owner of ordinary shares, who is eligible for the benefits of the Treaty and is:

an individual citizen or resident of the United States;

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

a corporation, or other entity taxable as a corporation, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state therein or the District of Columbia; or

an estate or trust the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source.

U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisers concerning the U.S. federal, state, local and foreign tax consequences of owning and disposing of ordinary shares in their particular circumstances.

This discussion assumes that Delphi Automotive PLC is not, and will not become, a passive foreign investment company, as described below.

Taxation of Distributions

Distributions paid on ordinary shares, other than certain *pro rata* distributions of ordinary shares, will be treated as dividends to the extent paid out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits (as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles). Because Delphi Automotive PLC will not generally be required, and does not expect to continue, to maintain calculations of its earnings and profits under U.S. federal income tax principles, it is expected that distributions generally will be reported to U.S. Holders as dividends. Subject to applicable limitations, dividends paid to certain non-corporate U.S. Holders in taxable years beginning before January 1, 2013 may be taxable at favorable rates, up to a maximum rate of 15%. U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisers regarding the availability of the reduced tax rate on dividends in their particular circumstances. The amount of a dividend will include any amounts withheld by Delphi Automotive PLC in respect of any U.K. taxes. The amount of the dividend will generally be treated as foreign-source dividend income to U.S. Holders and will not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction generally available to U.S. corporations under the Code. Dividends will be included in a U.S. Holder s income on the date of the U.S. Holder s receipt of the dividend.

In the event of a change in U.K. law that requires withholding of U.K. taxes on future distributions made by Delphi Automotive PLC, subject to applicable limitations, some of which vary depending upon the U.S. Holder s circumstances, any U.K. taxes withheld from distributions at a rate not exceeding the rate provided by the Treaty will be creditable against the U.S. Holder s U.S. federal income tax liability. U.K. taxes withheld in excess of the rate applicable under the Treaty will not be eligible for credit against a U.S. Holder s federal income tax liability. The rules governing foreign tax credits are complex, and U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisers regarding the creditability of foreign taxes in their particular circumstances. In lieu of claiming a foreign tax credit, U.S. Holders may, at their election, deduct foreign taxes, including any U.K. taxes, in computing their taxable income, subject to generally applicable limitations under U.S. law. An election to deduct foreign taxes instead of claiming foreign tax credits applies to all taxes paid or accrued in the taxable year to foreign countries and possessions of the United States.

Sale or Other Disposition of Ordinary Shares

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, gain or loss realized on the sale or other disposition of ordinary shares will be capital gain or loss, and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder held the ordinary shares for more than one year. The amount of the gain or loss will equal the difference between the U.S. Holder s tax basis in the ordinary shares disposed of and the amount realized on the disposition, in each case as determined in U.S. dollars. This gain or loss will generally be U.S.-source gain or loss for foreign tax credit purposes.

Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules

Delphi Automotive PLC believes that it is not currently a passive foreign investment company (a PFIC) for U.S. federal income tax purposes and does not expect to become one in the foreseeable future. In general, a foreign corporation is a PFIC for any taxable year if: (i) 75% or more of its gross income consists of passive income (such as dividends, interest, rents and royalties) or (ii) 50% or more of the average quarterly value of its assets consists of assets that produce, or are held for the production of, passive income. Because PFIC status depends on the composition of a company s income and assets and the market value of its assets from time to time, there can be no assurance that Delphi Automotive PLC will not be a PFIC for any taxable year.

If Delphi Automotive PLC were a PFIC for any taxable year during which a U.S. Holder held ordinary shares, gain recognized by a U.S. Holder on a sale or other disposition (including certain pledges) of the ordinary shares would be allocated ratably over the U.S. Holder s holding period for the ordinary shares. The amounts allocated to the taxable year of the sale or other disposition and to any year before Delphi Automotive PLC became a PFIC would be taxed as ordinary income. The amount allocated to each other taxable year would be subject to tax at the highest rate in effect for individuals or corporations, as appropriate, for that taxable year, and an interest charge would be imposed on the amount allocated to that taxable year. Further, to the extent that any distribution received by a U.S. Holder on its ordinary shares exceeds 125% of the average of the annual distributions on the ordinary shares received during the preceding three years or the U.S. Holder s holding period, whichever is shorter, that distribution would be subject to taxation in the same manner as gain, described immediately above. Certain elections may be available that would result in alternative treatments (such as mark-to-market treatment) of the ordinary shares. U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisers to determine whether any of these elections would be available and, if so, what the consequences of the alternative treatments would be in their particular circumstances.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Payments of dividends and sales proceeds that are made within the United States or through certain U.S.-related financial intermediaries generally are subject to information reporting, and may be subject to backup withholding, unless (i) the U.S. Holder is a corporation or other exempt recipient or (ii) in the case of backup withholding, the U.S. Holder provides a correct taxpayer identification number and certifies that it is not subject to backup withholding.

The amount of any backup withholding from a payment to a U.S. Holder will be allowed as a credit against the holder s U.S. federal income tax liability and may entitle it to a refund, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.

Certain Reporting Obligations

For taxable years beginning after March 18, 2010, legislation enacted in 2010 requires certain U.S. Holders who are individuals to report information relating to shares of a non-U.S. person, subject to certain exceptions (including an exception for shares held in custodial accounts maintained by a U.S. financial institution). U.S. Holders are urged to consult their tax advisers regarding the effect, if any, of this legislation on their ownership and disposition of shares.

SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Prior to this offering, there has been no market for our ordinary shares. Future sales of substantial amounts of our ordinary shares in the public market could adversely affect market prices prevailing from time to time. Furthermore, because only a limited number of shares will be available for sale shortly after this offering due to existing contractual and legal restrictions on resale as described below, there may be sales of substantial amounts of our ordinary shares in the public market after the restrictions lapse. This may adversely affect the prevailing market price and our ability to raise equity capital in the future.

Upon completion of this offering, we will have 328,244,510 ordinary shares outstanding. Of these shares, 24,078,827 shares, or 27,690,651 shares if the underwriters exercise their option in full, sold in this offering will be freely transferable without restriction or registration under the Securities Act, except for any shares purchased by one of our existing affiliates, as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act. The remaining 304,165,683 ordinary shares existing are restricted shares as defined in Rule 144. Restricted shares may be sold in the public market only if registered or if they qualify for an exemption from registration under Rule 144 of the Securities Act. As a result of the contractual lock-up period described below and the provisions of Rule 144, these shares will be available for sale in the public market as follows:

Number of Shares	Date	
24,078,827	On the date of this prospectus.	
304,165,683 additional	After 180 days from the date of this prospectus (subject, in some	
	cases, to volume limitations).	

As described below and under Relationships and Related Party Transactions Registration Rights Agreement, we have agreed to use best efforts to effectuate a shelf registration for our shareholders when their shares are released from the lock-up agreements described below. Accordingly, while such shares would not be freely tradeable under Rule 144 until six months after this offering, 30% of such shares are expected to be freely tradeable pursuant to such shelf registration 90 days after the date of this prospectus.

Rule 144

In general, under Rule 144 as currently in effect, once we have been a reporting company subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act for 90 days, an affiliate who has beneficially owned restricted ordinary shares for at least six months would be entitled to sell within any three-month period a number of shares that does not exceed the greater of either of the following:

1% of the number of ordinary shares then outstanding, which will equal 3,282,445 shares immediately after this offering; and

the average weekly reported volume of trading of our ordinary shares during the four calendar weeks preceding the filing of a notice on Form 144 with respect to the sale.

However, the six month holding period increases to one year in the event we have not been a reporting company for at least 90 days. In addition, any sales by affiliates under Rule 144 are also limited by manner of sale provisions and notice requirements and the availability of current public information about us.

The volume limitation, manner of sale and notice provisions described above will not apply to sales by non-affiliates. For purposes of Rule 144, a non-affiliate is any person or entity who is not our affiliate at the time of sale and has not been our affiliate during the preceding three months. Once we have been a reporting company for 90 days, a non-affiliate who has beneficially owned restricted ordinary shares for six months may rely on Rule 144 provided that certain public information regarding us is available. The six month holding period

increases to one year in the event we have not been a reporting company for at least 90 days. However, a non-affiliate who has beneficially owned the restricted shares proposed to be sold for at least one year will not be subject to any restrictions under Rule 144 regardless of how long we have been a reporting company.

We are unable to estimate the number of shares that will be sold under Rule 144 since this will depend on the market price for our ordinary shares, the personal circumstances of the shareholder and other factors.

Registration Rights

Upon completion of this offering, the holders of all of our ordinary shares not sold in this offering will be entitled to various rights with respect to the registration of these shares under the Securities Act. Registration of these shares under the Securities Act would result in these shares becoming freely tradable without restriction under the Securities Act immediately upon the effectiveness of the registration, except for shares purchased by affiliates. See Relationships and Related Party Transactions Registration Rights Agreement.

Incentive Compensation Shares

As of September 30, 2011, no options to purchase ordinary shares were outstanding. Pursuant to the Value Creation Plan described under Executive Compensation, members of management will receive equity on December 31, 2012 (subject to earlier vesting in certain circumstances) based upon the value of the Company, which is deemed to include distributions to holders of all membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP and the approximately \$4.4 billion paid to repurchase Class A and Class C membership interests and any Class B membership interest repurchases. Based on the initial public offering price on the front cover of this prospectus and assuming that value is maintained on December 31, 2012, 8,589,445 shares would be issuable under such plan, assuming settlement in shares.

Following the completion of this offering, we intend to file registration statements under the Securities Act covering all ordinary shares issuable pursuant to our Value Creation Plan and our Long Term Incentive Plan. Shares registered under these registration statements will be available for sale in the open market, subject to Rule 144 volume limitations applicable to affiliates, vesting restrictions with us or the contractual restrictions described below.

Lock-Up Agreements

Our officers, directors and all of our existing shareholders have agreed, subject to limited exceptions, not to offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any ordinary shares beneficially owned (as such term is used in Rule 13d-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) or any other securities so owned convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for ordinary shares or enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of any ordinary shares or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for ordinary shares for a period of 180 days after the date of this prospectus, without the prior written consent of Goldman, Sachs & Co. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC; provided that the foregoing restrictions will cease to apply with respect to approximately 90,668,230 ordinary shares held by these shareholders (other than our directors and officers) on the 90th day after the date of this prospectus.

UNDERWRITING

Delphi Automotive PLC, the selling shareholders and the underwriters named below have entered into an underwriting agreement with respect to the shares being offered. Subject to certain conditions, each underwriter has severally agreed to purchase the number of shares indicated in the following table. Goldman, Sachs & Co., J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Barclays Capital Inc., Citigroup Global Markets Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC are the representatives of the underwriters.

Name	Number of Shares
Goldman, Sachs & Co.	4,936,159
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC	4,936,159
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith	
Incorporated	3,250,642
Barclays Capital Inc.	2,528,276
Citigroup Global Markets Inc.	2,528,276
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc.	3,250,642
Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC	722,365
Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated	120,394
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC	722,365
Lazard Capital Markets LLC	620,030
UBS Securities LLC	174,571
CRT Capital Group LLC	48,158
Guggenheim Securities, LLC	48,158
Houlihan Lokey Capital, Inc.	48,158
Scotia Capital (USA) Inc.	24,079
Ticonderoga Securities LLC	48,158
The Williams Capital Group, L.P.	48,158
UniCredit Capital Markets LLC	24,079

Total

The underwriters are committed to take and pay for all of the shares being offered, if any are taken, other than the shares covered by the option described below unless and until this option is exercised.

If the underwriters sell more shares than the total number set forth in the table above, the underwriters have the option to purchase up to an additional 3,611,824 shares from certain of the funds affiliated with and managed by Paulson & Co. Inc. who are selling shareholders in this offering. They may exercise that option for 30 days. If any shares are purchased pursuant to this option, the underwriters will severally purchase shares in approximately the same proportion as set forth in the table above.

Pursuant to the Fourth LLP Agreement, the selling shareholders are not required to pay any underwriting discount on drag-along shares sold by them, and we have agreed to pay a commission with respect to such shares to the underwriters in lieu thereof. The following table shows the per share and total underwriting commissions to be paid to the underwriters by us in respect of the shares sold by the selling shareholders. Such amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters option to purchase 3,611,824 additional shares.

With Respect to Shares Sold by the Selling Shareholders	No Exercise	Full Exercise
Per Share	\$ 1.375	\$ 1.375
Total	\$ 33,108,387	\$ 38,074,645

24,078,827

Shares sold by the underwriters to the public will initially be offered at the initial public offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus. Any shares sold by the underwriters to securities dealers may be sold at a discount of up to \$0.7260 per share from the initial public offering price. If all the shares are not sold at the initial public offering price, the representatives may change the offering price and the other selling terms. The offering of the shares by the underwriters is subject to receipt and acceptance and subject to the underwriters right to reject any order in whole or in part.

The selling shareholders may be deemed to be underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act with respect to the ordinary shares they are offering.

We and our officers, directors, and holders of 304,165,683 of our ordinary shares, including the selling shareholders, have agreed with the underwriters, subject to certain exceptions, not to dispose of or hedge any of our or their ordinary shares or securities convertible into or exchangeable for ordinary shares during the period from the date of this prospectus continuing through the date 180 days after the date of this prospectus, except with the prior written consent of Goldman, Sachs & Co. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC; provided that the foregoing restrictions will cease to apply to approximately 90,668,230 ordinary shares held by the selling shareholders on the 90th day after the date of this prospectus (the early release date). The lock-up agreement does not apply to any existing employee benefit plans.

With respect to our shareholders (other than our directors and officers), the lock-up restrictions do not apply to

the contribution by a shareholder of LLP membership interests in Delphi Automotive LLP in exchange for ordinary shares or the sale by the selling shareholders of ordinary shares in this offering;

any pledge of equity interests that derives a significant part of its value from our equity securities or those of Delphi Automotive LLP created prior to July 12, 2011;

the pledge to a financial institution of equity interests that derives a significant part of its value from our equity securities or equity securities of Delphi Automotive LLP created after July 12, 2011, *provided* that the financial institution, upon any foreclosure, agrees to be bound in writing by the lock-up restrictions described above;

the transfer of ordinary shares as a bona fide gift or gifts, *provided* that the donee or donees thereof agree to be bound in writing by the lock-up restrictions described above;

the transfer of ordinary shares to any trust for the direct or indirect benefit of a shareholder or the immediate family of such shareholder, *provided* that the trustee of the trust agrees to be bound in writing by the lock-up restrictions described above;

the transfer of ordinary shares to any shareholder, member or partner of a shareholder or any subsidiary or other affiliate of such shareholder, *provided* that the recipient agrees to be bound in writing by the lock-up restrictions described above; or

the transfer of ordinary shares that a shareholder acquires in the open market following completion of this offering; and *provided further* that any such transfer pursuant to the fourth or fifth bullets in this paragraph shall not involve a disposition for value, and *provided further* that, in the case of any transfer pursuant to the third, fourth, fifth or sixth bullets in this paragraph, no filing by any party (donor, donee, transferor or transferee) under the Exchange Act or other public announcement shall be required or shall be made voluntarily in connection with such transfer during the restricted period. See Shares Eligible for Future Sale for a discussion of certain transfer restrictions.

With respect to our directors and officers, the lock-up restrictions do not apply to:

the contribution by a director or officer of LLP membership interests in Delphi Automotive LLP in exchange for ordinary shares or the sale by such director or officer of ordinary shares in this offering;

the establishment of any sales plan pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act; *provided* that no sale of ordinary shares shall be made pursuant to such 10b5-1 plan prior to the expiration of the lock-up period described above;

the bona fide pledge by a director or officer of ordinary shares to a financial institution; *provided* that the financial institution, upon any foreclosure, agrees to be bound in writing by the lock-up restrictions described above;

the transfer of ordinary shares as a bona fide gift or gifts, *provided* that the donee or donees thereof agree to be bound in writing by the lock-up restrictions described above;

the transfer of ordinary shares to any trust, partnership, limited liability company or similar entity for the direct or indirect benefit of such director or officer or the immediate family of such director or officer, *provided* that the transferee agrees to be bound in writing by the lock-up restrictions described above;

in the case of a corporation, limited liability company or partnership, the transfer of ordinary shares to any shareholder, member or partner of such entity or any subsidiary or other affiliate of such entity, *provided* that the recipient agrees to be bound in writing by the lock-up restrictions described above;

to any beneficiary of such director or officer pursuant to a will or other testamentary document or applicable laws of descent, *provided* that the recipient agrees to be bound in writing by the lock-up restrictions described above;

the transfer of ordinary shares that such director or officer acquires in the open market following completion of this offering; or

the sale or transfer of ordinary shares to us to satisfy any tax obligations arising upon the vesting of equity awards outstanding on the date of this prospectus or granted hereafter in accordance with the terms of our compensation arrangements described in this prospectus.

and *provided further* that any such transfer pursuant to the fourth, fifth, sixth or seventh bullets in this paragraph shall not involve a disposition for value, and *provided further* that, in the case of any transfer pursuant to the second, third or sixth bullets in this paragraph, no filing by any party (donor, donee, transferor or transferee) under the Exchange Act or other public announcement shall be required or shall be made voluntarily in connection with such transfer during the restricted period. See Shares Eligible for Future Sale for a discussion of certain transfer restrictions.

The 180-day restricted period (or, in the case of shares released from lock-up on the early release date, the 90-day restricted period, each a restricted period) described in the preceding paragraphs will be automatically extended if: (1) during the last 17 days of the restricted period we issue an earnings release or announce material news or a material event; or (2) prior to the expiration of the restricted period, the Company announces that it will release earnings results during the 15-day period following the last day of the restricted period, in which case the restrictions described in the preceding paragraph will continue to apply until the expiration of the 18-day period beginning on the issuance of the earnings release of the announcement of the material news or material event.

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Prior to the offering, there has been no public market for the shares. The initial public offering price has been negotiated among us and the representatives. Among the factors to be considered in determining the initial public offering price of the shares, in addition to prevailing market conditions, will be our historical performance, estimates of our business potential and earnings prospects, an assessment of our management and the consideration of the above factors in relation to market valuation of companies in related businesses.

The ordinary shares have been approved for listing on the NYSE under the symbol DLPH. In order to meet one of the requirements for listing the ordinary shares on the NYSE, the underwriters have undertaken to sell lots of 100 or more shares to a minimum of 400 beneficial holders in the U.S.

In connection with the offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell ordinary shares in the open market. These transactions may include short sales, stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover positions created by short sales. Short sales involve the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of shares than they are required to purchase in the offering. Covered short sales are sales made in an amount not greater than the underwriters option to purchase additional shares from certain of the selling shareholders in the offering. The underwriters may close out any covered short position by either exercising their option to purchase additional shares or purchasing shares in the open market. In determining the source of shares to close out the covered short position, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open market as compared to the price at which they may purchase additional shares pursuant to the option granted to them. Naked short sales are any sales in excess of such option. The underwriters must close out any naked short position by purchasing shares in the

Naked short sales are any sales in excess of such option. The underwriters must close out any naked short position by purchasing shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the price of the ordinary shares in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in the offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of various bids for or purchases of ordinary shares made by the underwriters in the open market prior to the completion of the offering.

The underwriters may also impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular underwriter repays to the underwriters a portion of the underwriting discount received by it because the representatives have repurchased shares sold by or for the account of such underwriter in stabilizing or short covering transactions.

Purchases to cover a short position and stabilizing transactions, as well as other purchases by the underwriters for their own accounts, may have the effect of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the our ordinary shares, and together with the imposition of the penalty bid, may stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the ordinary shares. As a result, the price of the ordinary shares may be higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open market. If these activities are commenced, they may be discontinued at any time. These transactions may be effected on the NYSE, in the over-the-counter market or otherwise.

The underwriters have informed us that they do not intend to confirm sales to discretionary accounts that exceed 5% of the total number of shares offered by them.

Delphi Automotive PLC, the selling shareholders and the underwriters have agreed to severally indemnify each other against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. Certain of the underwriters and their respective affiliates have, from time to time, performed, and may in the future perform, various financial advisory and investment banking services for the issuer, for which they received or will receive customary fees and expenses. Affiliates of certain of the underwriters have acted, and in the future may act, as lenders under the Credit Agreement and may serve as lenders under any of our future credit agreements.

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the underwriters and their respective affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers, and such investment and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of the issuer. The underwriters and their respective affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments.

Certain of the selling shareholders are broker-dealers or affiliates of broker-dealers, including certain of the underwriters. The selling shareholders who are broker-dealers or affiliates of broker-dealers acquired the ordinary shares to be sold in the offering in the ordinary course of their respective businesses and at the time of acquisition of such shares, such selling shareholders had no agreements or understandings, directly or indirectly, with any person to distribute such shares.

Lazard Frères & Co. LLC (Lazard) is acting as our financial advisor in connection with the offering. We have agreed to pay Lazard a fee of up to \$5,000,000 for their services for assisting the Company in analyzing the business and financial condition of the Company, formulating the strategy for the offering and negotiating with the underwriters and selling shareholders in connection with the offering. Lazard Capital Markets LLC is acting as an underwriter and co-manager in the offering. Lazard referred this transaction to Lazard Capital Markets LLC and will receive a referral fee from Lazard Capital Markets LLC in connection therewith. The relationship between Lazard and Lazard Capital Markets LLC is governed by a business alliance agreement between their respective parent companies.

European Economic Area

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a Relevant Member State), each underwriter has represented and agreed that with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant Member State (the Relevant Implementation Date) it has not made and will not make an offer of shares to the public in that Relevant Member State prior to the publication of a prospectus in relation to the shares which has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent authority in that Relevant Member State, all in accordance with the Prospectus Directive, except that it may, with effect from and including the Relevant Implementation Date, make an offer of shares to the public in that Relevant Member State at any time:

(a) to legal entities which are authorized or regulated to operate in the financial markets or, if not so authorised or regulated, whose corporate purpose is solely to invest in securities;

(b) to any legal entity which has two or more of (1) an average of at least 250 employees during the last financial year; (2) a total balance sheet of more than 43,000,000 and (3) an annual net turnover of more than 50,000,000, as shown in its last annual or consolidated accounts;

(c) to fewer than 100 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Directive) subject to obtaining the prior consent of the representatives for any such offer; or

(d) in any other circumstances which do not require the publication by the Issuer of a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an offer of shares to the public in relation to any shares in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the shares to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the shares, as the same may be varied in that Relevant Member State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State and the expression Prospectus Directive means Directive 2003/71/EC and includes any relevant implementing measure in each Relevant Member State.

Notice to Residents of the United Kingdom

Each underwriter has represented and agreed that:

(a) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of the shares in circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the Issuer; and

(b) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to the shares in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Notice to Residents of Switzerland

The shares may not be publicly offered in Switzerland and will not be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange (SIX) or on any other stock exchange or regulated trading facility in Switzerland. This document has been prepared without regard to the disclosure standards for issuance prospectuses under art. 652a or art. 1156 of the Swiss Code of Obligations or the disclosure standards for listing prospectuses under art. 27 ff. of the SIX Listing Rules or the listing rules of any other stock exchange or regulated trading facility in Switzerland. Neither this document nor any other offering or marketing material relating to the shares or the offering may be publicly distributed or otherwise made publicly available in Switzerland.

Neither this document nor any other offering or marketing material relating to the offering, the Company, the shares have been or will be filed with or approved by any Swiss regulatory authority. In particular, this document will not be filed with, and the offer of shares will not be supervised by, the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority FINMA (FINMA), and the offer of shares has not been and will not be authorized under the Swiss Federal Act on Collective Investment Schemes (CISA). The investor protection afforded to acquirers of interests in collective investment schemes under the CISA does not extend to acquirers of shares.

Notice to Residents of the Dubai International Financial Centre

This prospectus supplement relates to an Exempt Offer in accordance with the Offered Securities Rules of the Dubai Financial Services Authority (DFSA). This prospectus supplement is intended for distribution only to persons of a type specified in the Offered Securities Rules of the DFSA. It must not be delivered to, or relied on by, any other person. The DFSA has no responsibility for reviewing or verifying any documents in connection with Exempt Offers. The DFSA has not approved this prospectus supplement nor taken steps to verify the information set forth herein and has no responsibility for the prospectus supplement. The shares to which this prospectus supplement relates may be illiquid and/or subject to restrictions on their resale. Prospective purchasers of the shares offered should conduct their own due diligence on the shares. If you do not understand the contents of this prospectus supplement you should consult an authorized financial advisor.

Notice to Residents of Hong Kong

The shares may not be offered or sold by means of any document other than (i) in circumstances which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.32, Laws of Hong Kong), or (ii) to professional investors within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder, or (iii) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being a prospectus within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.32, Laws of Hong Kong), and no advertisement, invitation or document relating to the shares may be issued or may be in the possession of any person for the purpose of issue (in each case whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere), which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public in Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to shares which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to professional investors within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder.

Notice to Residents of Singapore

This prospectus has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this prospectus and any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the shares may not be circulated or distributed, nor may the shares be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the SFA), (ii) to a relevant person, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions, specified in Section 275 of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.

Where the shares are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 by a relevant person which is: (a) a corporation (which is not an accredited investor) the sole business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of whom is an accredited investor; or (b) a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and each beneficiary is an accredited investor, shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or the beneficiaries rights and interest in that trust shall not be transferable for 6 months after that corporation or that trust has acquired the shares under Section 275 except: (1) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the SFA or to a relevant person, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275 of the SFA; (2) where no consideration is given for the transfer; or (3) by operation of law.

Notice to Residents of Japan

The securities have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan (the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law) and each underwriter has agreed that it will not offer or sell any securities, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan (which term as used herein means any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organized under the laws of Japan), or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to a resident of Japan, except pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law and any other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan.

VALIDITY OF ORDINARY SHARES

The validity of the issuance of the ordinary shares offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Carey Olsen, Jersey, Channel Islands. Certain other matters will be passed upon for us by Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP, New York, New York. Certain legal matters in connection with this offering will be passed upon for the underwriters by Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, New York, New York.

EXPERTS

The balance sheet of Delphi Automotive PLC as of May 19, 2011, and the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Delphi Automotive LLP as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 and for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the period from August 19, 2009 through December 31, 2009 and the Predecessor for the period from January 1, 2009 through October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008 included in this prospectus and registration statement have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports thereon appearing elsewhere herein, and are included in reliance upon such reports given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-1 under the Securities Act with respect to the ordinary shares offered hereby. This prospectus does not contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement and the exhibits and schedules thereto. For further information with respect to the Company and its ordinary shares, reference is made to the registration statement and the exhibits and any schedules filed therewith. Statements contained in this prospectus as to the contents of any contract or other document referred to are not necessarily complete and in each instance, if such contract or document is filed as an exhibit, reference is made to the copy of such contract or other document filed as an exhibit to the registration statement, each statement being qualified in all respects by such reference. A copy of the registration statement, including the exhibits and schedules thereto, may be read and copied at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an Internet website that contains reports, proxy statements and other information about issuers, like us, that file electronically with the SEC. The address of that site is www.sec.gov.

As a result of the offering, we will become subject to the full informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We will fulfill our obligations with respect to such requirements by filing periodic reports and other information with the SEC. We intend to furnish our shareholders with annual reports containing consolidated financial statements certified by an independent public accounting firm. We also maintain an Internet site at www.delphi.com. Our website and the information contained therein or connected thereto shall not be deemed to be incorporated into this prospectus or the registration statement of which it forms a part.

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Delphi Automotive PLC Balance Sheet

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	F-2
Delphi Automotive PLC Balance Sheet as of May 19, 2011	F-3
Note to Balance Sheet	F-4
Delphi Automotive PLC Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2011 (Unaudited)	F-5
Note to Balance Sheet (Unaudited)	F-6
Delphi Automotive LLP Audited Consolidated Financial Statements	
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	F-7
Consolidated Statements of Operations of Delphi Automotive LLP (Successor) for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the period	
from August 19, 2009 to December 31, 2009 and Delphi Corporation (Predecessor) for the period from January 1, 2009 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008	F-8
Consolidated Balance Sheets of Delphi Automotive LLP (Successor) as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009	F-9
Consolidated Balance Sheets of Dephi Automotive ELI (Successor) as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2010 and the period	1-)
from August 19, 2009 to December 31, 2009 and Delphi Corporation (Predecessor) for the period from January 1, 2009 to October 6,	
2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008	F-10
<u>Consolidated Statements of Stockholders</u> Equity (Deficit) and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of Delphi Corporation (Predecessor) for	1 10
the period from January 1, 2009 to October 6, 2009 and the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007	F-12
Consolidated Statements of Owners Equity and Comprehensive Income of Delphi Automotive LLP (Successor) for the year ended	
December 31, 2010 and the period from August 19, 2009 to December 31, 2009	F-13
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	F-14
Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves Schedule for the year ended December 31, 2010, the period from	
August 19 to December 31, 2009, the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008	F-79
Delphi Automotive LLP Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements	
Consolidated Statements of Operations of Delphi Automotive LLP for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010	
(Unaudited)	F-80
Consolidated Balance Sheets of Delphi Automotive LLP as of September 30, 2011 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2010	F-81
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of Delphi Automotive LLP for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010	
(Unaudited)	F-82

 Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income of Delphi Automotive LLP for the three and nine months ended September 30,
 F-83

 2011 and 2010 (Unaudited)
 F-83

 Consolidated Statement of Owners
 Equity of Delphi Automotive LLP for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 (Unaudited)

 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
 F-85

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors of Delphi Automotive PLC:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Delphi Automotive PLC (the Company) as of May 19, 2011. This balance sheet is the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this balance sheet based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the balance sheet is free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company s internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the balance sheet, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall balance sheet presentation. We believe that our audit of the balance sheet provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the balance sheet referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Delphi Automotive PLC at May 19, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP Detroit, Michigan May 23, 2011

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

BALANCE SHEET

	ay 19, 2011
ASSETS	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 0.02
Total assets	\$ 0.02
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY	
Shareholders equity:	
Ordinary shares, \$0.01 par value per share, 10,000 shares authorized, 2 shares issued and outstanding	\$ 0.02
Additional paid-in capital	0.00
Total shareholders equity	\$ 0.02

See accompanying note to the balance sheet.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

NOTE TO BALANCE SHEET

1. Background

In connection with this offering, Delphi Automotive PLC, a Jersey corporation, was formed on May 19, 2011. Delphi Automotive PLC has nominal assets and no liabilities and has conducted no operations. Immediately prior to the closing of this offering, it will acquire all of the outstanding membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP from its existing equity holders in exchange for ordinary shares and, as a result, Delphi Automotive LLP will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi Automotive PLC.

Other than the initial capitalization of Delphi Automotive PLC, no other business has been transacted.

Subsequent Events - Delphi Automotive PLC has evaluated all events that have occurred subsequent to May 19, 2011 through May 23, 2011 (the date the financial statements were available to be issued).

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

BALANCE SHEET

	-	tember 30,
		2011 audited)
ASSETS	(en	iuuiicu)
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	0.02
Total assets	\$	0.02
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY		
Shareholders equity:		
Ordinary shares, \$0.01 par value per share, 10,000 shares authorized, 2 shares issued and outstanding	\$	0.02
Additional paid-in capital		0.00
Total shareholders equity	\$	0.02

See accompanying note to the balance sheet.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

NOTE TO BALANCE SHEET

(Unaudited)

1. Background

In connection with this offering, Delphi Automotive PLC, a Jersey corporation, was formed on May 19, 2011. Delphi Automotive PLC has nominal assets and no liabilities and has conducted no operations. Immediately prior to the closing of this offering, it will acquire all of the outstanding membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP from its existing equity holders in exchange for ordinary shares and, as a result, Delphi Automotive LLP will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi Automotive PLC.

Other than the initial capitalization of Delphi Automotive PLC, no other business has been transacted.

Subsequent Events - Delphi Automotive PLC has evaluated all events that have occurred subsequent to September 30, 2011 through November 1, 2011 (the date the financial statements were available to be issued).

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Delphi Automotive LLP (Successor) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations, owners equity/stockholders deficit and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the period from August 19, 2009 to December 31, 2009, and of the former Delphi Corporation (now known as DPH Holdings Corp.) (Predecessor) for the period from January 1, 2009 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index as Schedule II. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Delphi Automotive LLP (Successor) at December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the period from August 19, 2009 to December 31, 2009, and of the former Delphi Corporation (now known as DPH Holdings Corp.) (Predecessor) for the period from January 1, 2009 to October 6, 2009 and year ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Successor acquired the automotive supply business (other than the global steering business and the UAW manufacturing facilities in the U.S.) of the Predecessor on October 6, 2009. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with ASC 805, Business Combinations, for the Successor as a new entity with assets, liabilities and a capital structure not comparable to prior periods.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2009, the Predecessor changed its method of accounting for consolidated net income (loss) attributed to the parent and non-controlling interests.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP Detroit, Michigan

February 18, 2011

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE LLP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

			ccessor		Predecessor					
	ei Decei	Year nded mber 31, 2010	Aug Dece	od from ust 19 to mber 31, 2009	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009	Dece	ar ended ember 31, 2008			
		(in 1	millions)		(in m	nillions)				
Net sales:	\$	13,817	\$	3,421	\$ 8,334	\$	16,808			
Operating expenses:										
Cost of sales		11,768		3,047	8,480		16,157			
Selling, general and administrative		815		242	734		1,420			
Amortization (Note 8)		70		16	3		5			
Goodwill impairment (Note 8)							325			
Restructuring		224		126	235		326			
Total operating expenses		12,877		3,431	9,452		18,233			
Operating income (loss)		940		(10)	(1,118)		(1,425)			
Interest expense (Note 2)		(30)		(10)	(1,110)		(434)			
Other income (expense), net (Note 19)		34		(17)	24		(+34)			
Reorganization items, net (Note 1)		51		(17)	10,210		5,147			
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and equity income (loss)		944		(35)	9,116		3,297			
Income taxes and equity income (loss)		(258)		27	311		(163)			
neone ax (expense) benefit		(258)		21	511		(105)			
Income (loss) from continuing operations before										
equity income (loss)		686		(8)	9,427		3,134			
Equity income (loss), net of tax		17		5	(36)		29			
Income (loss) from continuing operations		703		(3)	9,391		3,163			
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax					(44)		(97)			
Net income (loss)		703		(3)	9,347		3,066			
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest		72		15	29		29			
Net income (loss) attributable to										
Successor/Predecessor	\$	631	\$	(18)	\$ 9,318	\$	3,037			
Amounts attributable to Successor/Predecessor:	¢	(21	¢	(10)	¢ 0.070	¢	0.104			
Income (loss) from continuing operations	\$	631	\$	(18)	\$ 9,363	\$	3,134			
Discontinued operations (Note 21)					(45)		(97)			

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Net income (loss) attributable to						
Successor/Predecessor	\$	631	\$	(18)	\$ 9,318	\$ 3,037
Net income (loss) attributable to membership						
interest:						
Class A	\$	114	\$	(3)		
Class B		410		(12)		
Class C		107		(3)		
Class E-1						
Total	\$	631	\$	(18)	\$ 9,318	\$ 3,037
				. ,		
Net income (loss) per membership interests unit						
Class A	\$	65.35	\$	(1.80)		
Class B		156.98	Ŷ	(33.00)		
Class C		,064.88		(31.50)		
Class E-1	,					
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share						
Continuing operations					\$ 16.58	\$ 5.55
Discontinued operations					(0.08)	(0.17)
					. ,	. ,

Basic and diluted income (loss) per share

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

\$ 16.50

\$

5.38

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE LLP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

	2010	Successor December 31, (in millions)	2009
ASSETS			
Current assets:			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 3,219	\$	3,107
Restricted cash (Note 2)	47		96
Time deposits	550		
Accounts receivable, net	2,307		2,213
Inventories (Note 4)	988		876
Other current assets (Note 5)	555		543
Total current assets	7,666		6,835
Long-term assets:			
Property, net (Note 7)	2,067		1,960
Investments in affiliates (Note 6)	281		270
Intangible assets, net (Note 8)	665		750
Other long-term assets (Note 5)	403		492
Total long-term assets	3,416		3,472
Total assets	\$ 11,082	\$	10,307
LIABILITIES AND OWNERS EQUITY			
Current liabilities:			
Short-term debt (Note 12)	\$ 218	\$	302
Accounts payable	2,236		1,872
Accrued liabilities (Note 9)	1,265		1,252
Total current liabilities	3,719		3,426
Long-term liabilities:			
Pension and other postretirement benefit obligations (Note 14)	677		811
Other long-term liabilities (Note 9)	587		704
Total long-term liabilities	1,264		1,515

Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)

Owners equity:		
Membership interests (Note 17)	5,550	4,914
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):		
Employee benefit plans (Note 14)	59	33
Other	32	(9)

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Total accumulated other comprehensive income	91	24
Total Delphi owners equity	5,641	4,938
Noncontrolling interest	458	428
Total owners equity	6,099	5,366
Total liabilities and owners equity	\$ 11,082	\$ 10,307

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE LLP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

	Suc	ccessor	Pree Period	lecessor
	Year ended December 31,	Period from August 19 to December 31,	from January 1 to October 6,	Year ended December 31,
	2010	2009	2009	2008
		nillions)		nillions)
Cash flows from operating activities:	(1111)	mmons)	(111)	mmons)
Net income (loss)	\$ 703	\$ (3)	\$ 9,347	\$ 3,066
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by		+ (-)	4 7,417	,
(used in) operating activities:				
Depreciation	351	123	537	817
Amortization	70	16	3	5
Restructuring expense, net of cash paid	(67)	(23)	57	(123)
Goodwill impairment				325
Deferred income taxes	(14)	(93)	(380)	(15)
Pension and other postretirement benefit expenses	59	23	315	598
Equity (income) loss, net of dividends received	(7)	(5)	44	(18)
Reorganization items (Note 3)			(10,210)	(5,147)
GM settlement (Note 3)				(189)
GM warranty settlement (Note 15)				(56)
U.S. employee workforce transition program charges				69
Loss on extinguishment of debt	8			49
(Gain) loss on investments / assets held for sale	(20)		3	(8)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:				
Accounts receivable, net	(184)	(85)	122	1,168
Inventories	(130)	40	149	416
Other current assets	66	138	154	230
Accounts payable	354	277	(123)	(457)
Accrued and other long-term liabilities	88	(94)	(353)	(375)
Other, net	(19)	(111)	223	(215)
U.S. employee workforce transition program payments, net of				
reimbursement by GM			(28)	(219)
Pension contributions and other postretirement benefit payments	(117)	(44)	(111)	(599)
(Payments) receipts for GM settlement and reorganization items,				
net			(70)	1,115
Other, net	1		(4)	
Discontinued operations (Note 21)			68	18
	1.1.10	150		
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	1,142	159	(257)	455
Cash flows from investing activities:				
Capital expenditures	(500)	(88)	(321)	(771)
Purchase of time deposits	(750)			
Maturity of time deposits	200			
Proceeds from sale of property	22		20	53
Proceeds from divestitures, net	71	74	16	133
	40	00	1.40	(020)

49

(3)

(911)

28

862 9

885

142

(862)

(11)

(36)

(1,052)

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Decrease (increase) in restricted cash

Other, net

Discontinued operations

Cash acquired from Delphi Corporation

(230)

(36)

(107)

(958)

Cash flows from financing activities: (Repayments of) proceeds from amended and restated debtor-in-possession facility

3,528

(244)

	Sue	ccessor	Pred Period from	decessor
	Year ended December 31,	Period from August 19 to December 31,	January 1 to October 6,	Year ended December 31,
	2010	2009	2009	2008
	(in r	nillions)	(in I	millions)
Net repayments of borrowings from refinanced debtor-in-possession facility				(2,746)
Accommodation agreement issuance costs			(40)	(58)
Net borrowings under GM liquidity support agreements			850	
Net repayments under other short-term debt agreements	(49)	(21)	(244)	(202)
Repayments under long-term debt agreements	(50)			
Proceeds from issuance of membership interests		2,042		
Proceeds from issuance of five-year notes		41		
Dividend payments of consolidated affiliates to minority				
shareholders	(27)		(13)	(47)
Discontinued operations			6	(10)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities	(126)	2,062	315	465
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash				
equivalents	7	1	35	(39)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	112	3,107	(959)	(77)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	3,107		959	1,036
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$ 3,219	\$ 3,107	\$	\$ 959

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE LLP

PREDECESSOR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY (DEFICIT) AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

	Com	nmon	l	Ad	ditional	E	letained arnings			ulated Oth chensive Lo					lon-		Total ckholders
	Sto Shares	ock Am	ount		aid-in apital	-	cumulated Deficit)	Benefit Plans Other (in millions)		Treasury Total Stock		asury	rolling terest	equity (Deficit)			
Balance at December 31, 2007	565	\$	6	\$	2,756	\$	(14,976)	\$ (1,679)(a)	\$	467(b)	\$	(1,212)	\$	(25)	\$ 167	\$	(13,284)
Adoption of FASB 158, net of tax							(125)	(12)				(12)					(137)
Balance at January 1, 2008	565	\$	6	\$	2,756	\$	(15,101)	\$ (1,691)	\$	467	\$	(1,224)	\$	(25)	\$ 167	\$	(13,421)
Net income Currency translation adjustments and other, net of							3,037								29		3,066
tax Net change in unrecognized										(440)		(440)			(1)		(441)
loss on derivative instruments, net of tax Employee benefit plans										(246)		(246)					(246)
liability adjustment, net of tax								(3,176)				(3,176)					(3,176)
Total comprehensive loss Share-based compensation					10												(797)
expense Other					10										(26)		10 (26)
Dividends															(32)		(32)
Treasury shares issued					(19)									19			
Balance at December 31, 2008	565	\$	6	\$	2,747	\$	(12,064)	\$ (4,867)(a)	\$	(219)(b)	\$	(5,086)	\$	(6)	\$ 137	\$	(14,266)
Net income							9,318								29		9,347
Currency translation adjustments and other, net of tax										170		170			1		171
Net change in unrecognized loss on derivative instruments, net of tax										42		42					42
Employee benefit plans liability adjustment, net of tax								4,733		72		4,733					4,733
Total comprehensive income Deconsolidation of																	14,293
noncontrolling interest Dividends															(7) (20)		(7) (20)
Impact of the Acquisition	(565)		(6)		(2,747)		2,746	134		7		141		6	(140)		(=~)
Balance at October 6, 2009		\$		\$		\$		\$	\$		\$		\$		\$	\$	

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

- a. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss Employee Benefit Plans includes a loss of \$4,867 million (net of a \$490 million tax effect), and \$1,679 million (net of a \$457 million tax effect) for December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
- Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss Other includes a loss of \$22 million, and a gain of \$415 million for December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, within currency translation adjustments and other; and a loss of \$194 million and a gain of \$52 million for December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, within net change in unrecognized gain on derivative instruments; and other loss of \$3 million for 2008. See notes to consolidated financial statements.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE LLP

SUCCESSOR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OWNERS EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

				Memb	ersh	ip Inte	erests		((Comp	ımulated Other orehensive		ıl Delphi		Total
	С	lass A	С	lass B	Cla	ass C	Class	5 E-1	Fotal (in m	(ncome Loss) s)		wners Iquity	ontrolling terest	Owners Equity
Balance at August 19, 2009	\$		\$		\$		\$		\$	\$			\$	\$	\$
Net income (loss)		(3)		(12)		(3)			(18)				(18)	15	(3)
Currency translation adjustments and other, net of tax of \$0 million											(14)	(a)	(14)	(2)	(16)
Net change in unrecognized income on derivative instruments, net of tax of \$0 million											5	(b)	5		5
Employee benefit plans liability adjustment, net of tax of \$10 million											33	(c)	33		33
Total comprehensive income													6	13	19
Issuance of membership interests															
(Note 17)		1,972		2,418		542			4,932				4,932		4,932
Impact of the Acquisition (Note 1)														415	415
Balance at December 31, 2009	\$	1,969	\$	2,406	\$	539	\$		\$ 4,914	\$	24	(d)	\$ 4,938	\$ 428	\$ 5,366
Net income		114		410		107			631				631	72	703
Currency translation adjustments and															
other, net of tax of \$0 million											(7)	(a)	(7)	3	(4)
Net change in unrecognized income															
on derivative instruments, net of tax of \$31 million											48	(b)	48		48
Employee benefit plans liability											40	(0)	40		40
adjustment, net of tax of \$7 million											26	(c)	26		26
Total comprehensive income													698	75	773
Dividends														(45)	(45)
Restricted interests recognized (Note															. , ,
22)								5	5				5		5
Balance at December 31, 2010	\$	2,083	\$	2,816	\$	646	\$	5	\$ 5,550	\$	91	(d)	\$ 5,641	\$ 458	\$ 6,099

a. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income includes a loss of \$21 million (net of a \$0 million tax effect) and \$14 million (net of a \$0 million tax effect) of currency translation adjustments and other for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009, respectively.

- b. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income includes income of \$53 million (net of a \$31 million tax effect) and \$5 million (net of a \$0 million tax effect) of net changes in unrecognized income on derivative instruments for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009, respectively.
- c. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income includes income of \$59 million (net of a \$17 million tax effect) and \$33 million (net of a \$10 million tax effect) of employee benefit plans liability adjustments for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009, respectively.

Table of Contents

d. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income totals \$91 million (net of a \$48 million tax effect), and \$24 million (net of a \$10 million tax effect) at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE LLP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL AND ACQUISITION OF PREDECESSOR BUSINESSES

Nature of operations Delphi Automotive LLP, together with its subsidiaries and affiliates (Delphi, the Company or the Successor) is a supplier of vehicle electronics, transportation components, integrated systems and modules, and other electronic technology. Delphi operates globally and has a diverse customer base, including every major vehicle manufacturer.

Bankruptcy filing On October 8, 2005 (the Petition Date), the former Delphi Corporation (now known as DPH Holdings Corp.) and certain of its United States (U.S.) subsidiaries (the Initial Filers) filed voluntary petitions for reorganization relief under chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (the Bankruptcy Code) in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the Court). The former Delphi Corporation and, as the context may require, its subsidiaries and affiliates, are referred to herein as the Predecessor. On October 14, 2005, three additional U.S. subsidiaries of the former Delphi Corporation (together with the Initial Filers, collectively, the Debtors) filed voluntary petitions for reorganization relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code (collectively the Debtors October 8, 2005 and October 14, 2005 filings are referred to herein as the Chapter 11 Filings). On July 30, 2009, the Court approved modifications to the First Amended Joint Plan Of Reorganization Of Delphi Corporation And Certain Affiliates, Debtors And Debtors-In-Possession (As Modified)(the Modified Plan), which incorporated the master disposition agreement (including all schedules and exhibits thereto, the MDA) among the Predecessor, GM Component Holdings LLC, Motors Liquidation Company (Old GM), General Motors Company, together with its subsidiaries and affiliates (GM) and Delphi, for the sale and purchase of substantially all of the Predecessor s businesses, and completed the emergence of the Predecessor from chapter 11 in accordance with the Modified Plan. Through October 6, 2009 (the Acquisition Date), the Debtors operated their businesses as debtors-in-possession under the jurisdiction of the Court and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code and orders of the Court and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code and orders of the Court and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code and orders of the Court and

the Court. The Predecessor s non-U.S. subsidiaries were not included in the Chapter 11 Filings, continued their business operations without supervision from the Court and were not subject to the requirements of the Bankruptcy Code.

General and basis of presentation Delphi is a limited liability partnership incorporated under the laws of England and Wales on August 19, 2009, for the purpose of acquiring certain assets of the Predecessor.

On the Acquisition Date, the Successor acquired the automotive supply business (other than the global steering business and the manufacturing facilities in the U.S. in which the hourly employees are represented by International Union, United Automobile, Aerospace and Agricultural Implement Workers of America (UAW)) of the Predecessor. As a result of the Acquisition, as defined below, Delphi acquired the major portion of the business of the Predecessor and this business constituted the entirety of the operations of the Successor. Accordingly, as required, the financial information set forth herein reflects: (i) the consolidated results of operations and cash flows of the Successor for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the period from its incorporation on August 19, 2009 to December 31, 2009 and of the Predecessor as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. The Successor had no material or substantive transactions from its incorporation on August 19, 2009 to the Acquisition Date. In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) 805, *Business Combinations*, as of the Acquisition Date, the Company recognized and measured the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed from the Predecessor.

The Predecessor adopted the accounting guidance in FASB ASC 852, *Reorganizations*, effective October 8, 2005 and has segregated in the financial statements for all reporting periods subsequent to such date and through the consummation of the transactions pursuant to the Modified Plan on October 6, 2009, transactions and events that were directly associated with the reorganization from the ongoing operations of the business. The consolidated financial statements of Delphi are not comparable to the consolidated financial statements of the Predecessor due to the effects of the consummation of the Modified Plan and the change in the basis of presentation.

Consummation of the modified plan On October 6, 2009, the Predecessor (i) consummated the transactions contemplated by the Modified Plan among the Predecessor, GM and Delphi and (ii) emerged from chapter 11 in accordance with the Modified Plan as DPH Holdings Corp. and its subsidiaries and affiliates (DPHH), except that two of the Predecessor's debtor subsidiaries became subsidiaries of Delphi. A summary of significant terms of the Modified Plan follows:

Delphi acquired the businesses (other than the global steering business and the manufacturing facilities in the U.S. in which the hourly employees are represented by the UAW) of the Predecessor pursuant to the MDA, and received \$1,833 million from GM, of which \$1,689 million was received on the Acquisition Date and \$144 million was received during the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009, and \$209 million from the debtor-in-possession (DIP) lenders to the Predecessors (collectively, the Acquisition).

GM acquired substantially all of the Predecessor s global steering business and the manufacturing facilities in the U.S. at which the hourly employees were represented by the UAW.

The Predecessor s debtor-in-possession financing was settled.

The Predecessor s liabilities subject to compromise were extinguished.

If cumulative distributions to the members of Delphi Automotive LLP exceed \$7.2 billion, Delphi, as disbursing agent on behalf of DPHH, is required to pay to the holders of allowed general unsecured claims against the Predecessor, \$32.50 for every \$67.50 in excess of \$7.2 billion distributed to the members of Delphi Automotive LLP, up to a maximum of \$300 million.

The Predecessor s equity holders did not receive recoveries on their claims.

Reorganization items The accounting guidance in FASB ASC 852 requires reorganization items such as revenues, professional fees directly related to the process of reorganizing the Debtors under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, realized gains and losses, provisions for losses, and interest income resulting from the reorganization and restructuring of the business to be separately disclosed. Professional fees directly related to the reorganization include fees associated with advisors to the Debtors, unsecured creditors, secured creditors and unions. The Predecessor s reorganization items consisted of the following:

		Predecessor (Income)/Expense Poriod from		
	January 1 to October 6, 2009	Year ended December 31, 2008		
	(in m	illions)		
Sale / disposition of the Predecessor	\$ (794)	\$		
Extinguishment of liabilities subject to compromise	(11,159)			
GM Amended GSA settlement (Note 3)			(5,332)	
PBGC termination of U.S. pension plans (Note 14)	2,818			
Salaried OPEB settlement (Note 14)	(1,168)			
Professional fees directly related to reorganization	68		107	
Write off of previously capitalized EPCA fees and expenses			79	
Other	25		(1)	
Total reorganization items	\$ (10,210)	\$	(5,147)	

Disposition of the Predecessor The Predecessor sold the automotive supply business (other than the global steering business and the UAW manufacturing facilities in the U.S. which were acquired by GM) to Delphi. Certain assets and liabilities were retained by DPHH and various liabilities were extinguished or settled, including the settlement of approximately \$3.3 billion of DIP financing and \$850 million outstanding under GM liquidity support agreements. A summary of the debt settled upon consummation of the Modified Plan is included below:

	(in r	millions)
First Priority Revolving Credit Facility	\$	230
First Priority Term Loan		310
Second Priority Term Loan		2,750
DIP financing		3,290
GM liquidity support agreements		850
Total debt settled	\$	4,140

The \$794 million of gain from reorganization items for the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 primarily relate to the extinguishment of liabilities. As these liabilities were extinguished, the respective carrying values, as noted below, were eliminated resulting in a gain from reorganization, as follows:

The extinguishment of accrued liabilities, resulting in a gain from reorganization items for the Predecessor of approximately \$525 million. The extinguished accrued liabilities primarily included \$260 million in interest accruals related to the Second Priority Term Loan settled under the terms of the Modified Plan and the extinguishment of the \$210 million advance on working capital recovery for the global steering business provided in 2008 in connection with the Amended MRA (as defined and further discussed in Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan).

Certain other long-term liabilities, primarily workers compensation, that were extinguished as part of the bankruptcy process, resulting in a gain from reorganization of approximately \$305 million.

The net other liabilities of the Predecessor that were not acquired by GM or Delphi, resulting in a gain from reorganization for the Predecessor of approximately \$20 million.

The acquisition by GM of substantially all of the Predecessor s global steering business and the manufacturing facilities in the U.S. at which employees were represented by the UAW in Kokomo, Indiana; Rochester, New York; Lockport, New York; and Grand Rapids, Michigan, for no cash consideration paid to Delphi. Under the MDA, in exchange for the sale of these businesses, GM waived certain claims, paid a portion of the DIP loans, agreed to pay certain administrative claims and assumed certain liabilities. The disposition of these businesses by the Predecessor resulted in a loss from reorganization of approximately \$56 million.

The following table summarizes the \$11,159 million of gain from reorganization items related to the extinguishment of liabilities subject to compromise:

Liabilities Assumed by Delphi:	(in millions)
Pension and postretirement obligations	\$ 68
Cure payments	18
Other	3
Total claims reinstated	89

Liabilities Extinguished:	
Pension and postretirement obligations	135
Supplemental executive retirement program obligations	117
PBGC general unsecured claim	3,000
GM allowed general unsecured and administrative claims	4,128
Allowed IUE-CWA and USW claims	129
Debt and notes payable (including junior subordinated notes due 2033)	2,375
Accounts payable	731
Securities & ERISA litigation liability	351
Other	193
Total claims extinguished	11,159
Total liabilities subject to compromise assumed by Delphi or retired	\$ 11,248

Acquisition accounting Delphi has recorded the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed from the Predecessor at estimated fair values in accordance with the guidance in FASB ASC 820, *Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures*. The fair values were estimated based on valuations performed by an independent valuation specialist utilizing three generally accepted business valuation approaches: the income, market, and cost approaches. Generally, the income and market approaches were used and weighted by the independent valuation specialists as appropriate. A further description of each approach follows:

Income Approach: The income approach recognizes the value of an investment is premised on the receipt of future economic benefits. These benefits can include earnings, cost savings, tax deductions and the proceeds from disposition. The discounted cash flow (DCF) method is a form of the income approach commonly used to value business interests. The DCF method involves estimating future cash flows of a business and discounting them to their present value. The discount rate is selected based on consideration of the risks inherent in the investment and market rates of return available from alternative investments of similar type and quality as of the valuation date. More specifically, the DCF method bases the value of a company on the cash flow attributable to that company. This approach is based on the assumptions that: (i) a company is worth what it can generate in future cash flows to its owners; (ii) the future cash flows are reasonably predictable; and (iii) the cost of capital and investors required rates of return on invested capital can be estimated. This approach assumes that the income derived from a company will, to a large extent, determined the value of that company.

The DCF method was based on Company-prepared projections which included a variety of estimates and assumptions. While the Company considers such estimates and assumptions reasonable, they are inherently subject to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties, many of which are beyond the Company s control and, therefore, may not be realized. Changes in these estimates and assumptions may have a significant effect on the determination of the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the Acquisition. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the estimates, assumptions, and values reflected in the valuations will be realized, and actual results could vary materially. The following key assumptions were utilized in applying the DCF method:

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Delphi provided its independent valuation specialist with projected net sales, expenses and cash flows, for the years ending December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 representing the Company s best estimates at the time the analysis was prepared.

Discount rates to determine the present value of the future cash flows from 2010 through 2012 and the terminal values were based on the weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACCs measure the average cost per dollar of capital of an enterprise based on the individual costs of debt and equity and the business unit s target capital structure. The WACC is derived based on a set of guideline public companies for each business unit, and is an indicator of the cost of capital for a market participant in the business unit s industry. The cost of equity estimated using the capital asset pricing model was between 13.4% and 23.5%, with a median of 16.4%. The pre-tax cost of debt was estimated to be 8% based on the yield on Delphi s guideline companies publicly traded bonds as of the Acquisition Date. The range of WACCs for the business units was between 10.3% and 18.8% with a median of 13.6%.

Terminal value for each business unit was based on the Gordon Growth Model using a range of long-term growth rates of 0% to 5%, with a median of 3%.

Market Approach: The market approach measures the value of a company through the analysis of recent sales or offerings of comparable companies. The guideline public companies method and the guideline merged or acquired company method are the most common forms of the market approach used to value business interests. Use of the market approach requires that comparable transactions be available, which may include:

The recent sales price of the same or similar companies or assets in an arm s-length transaction; or

The market price for the license of the same or similar assets to an independent third party.

In applying the market approach, unique sets of comparable guideline public companies were identified using the Capital IQ data services. Capital IQ was used as the source of data to determine the guideline public companies Total Invested Capital (TIC defined as Market value of equity + Market value of debt + Market value of preferred stock and minority interest). The TIC was then calculated as a multiple of Trailing Twelve Months (TTM) Revenue, TTM Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA), TTM Earning Before Interest, and Tax (EBIT), Next Fiscal Year (NFY) Revenue, NFY EBITDA, NFY EBIT, and NFY+1 EBITDA. For the NFY financial data, revenue and earnings estimates were obtained from Capital IQ for the average analyst estimates for the guideline public companies. The business unit s respective multiples were selected depending on circumstances specific to each business unit within the range of the multiples provided by the comparable companies.

Delphi utilized TTM Revenue multiples of 0.3x-1.0x, NFY Revenue multiples of 0.3x-0.8x, NFY EBITDA multiples of 4.0x-6.9x and NFY+1 EBITDA multiples of 3.2x-7.2x. The selected multiples were then applied to respective financial results of the business units to derive an implied value of TIC. The resulting values from TTM Revenue, NFY Revenue, NFY EBITDA, and NFY+1 EBITDA multiples were weighted according to unique characteristics of each business unit, mostly at 20%, 20%, 50%, and 10%, respectively to arrive at minority marketable value of TIC. No control premium was applied to determine the fair value of the TIC of the business units on a controlling basis in consideration of the difficult conditions within the automotive supplier industry.

Cost Approach: The cost approach considers reproduction or replacement cost as an indicator of value. The cost approach is based on the assumption that a prudent investor would pay no more for an entity than the amount for which he could replace or re-create it. Historical costs are often used to estimate the current cost of replacing the entity valued. In doing so, adjustments for physical deterioration and obsolescence are taken into account. When using the cost approach to value a business enterprise, the equity value is calculated as the appraised value of the individual assets that comprise the business less the value of the liabilities that encumber those assets.

The following table summarizes the estimated provisional fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on information that was available at the Acquisition Date. Measurement period adjustments were completed in 2010 and reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the Acquisition Date, primarily related to changes in deferred taxes to reflect book to tax return reconciliations. Accordingly, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets and property, plant and equipment were retrospectively adjusted as of October 6, 2009. The impact of the retrospective adjustments was not material to Delphi s results of operations or cash flows for the period from the Acquisition Date through December 31, 2009 and, therefore, was reflected in operating results in the year ended December 31, 2010.

	October 6, 2009 (As initially reported)	Measurement Period Adjustments (in millions)	per 6, 2009 adjusted)
Fair value of membership interests issued	\$ 4,932	\$	\$ 4,932
Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed			
Cash and cash equivalents(1)	\$ 2,801	\$	\$ 2,801
Restricted cash	124		124
Accounts receivable	2,160		2,160
Inventory(2)	964		964
Property, plant and equipment(3)	2,255	(169)	2,086
Identifiable intangible assets(4)	766		766
Deferred tax assets	305	169	474
Other assets	896		896
Accounts payable	(1,585)		(1,585)
Pension liabilities(5)	(882)		(882)
Debt(6)	(419)		(419)
Deferred tax liabilities	(328)		(328)
Other liabilities(7)	(1,710)		(1,710)
Noncontrolling interests	(415)		(415)
Total identifiable net assets	\$ 4,932	\$	\$ 4,932

Acquisition-related costs of \$19 million were included in Other income (expense), net in the consolidated results of operations of the Successor for the period August 19 to December 31, 2009.

1. Cash and cash equivalents acquired is as follows:

	(in millions)
Cash from issuance of Class A membership interests	\$ 1,689
Cash from issuance of Class B membership interests	209
Cash acquired from the Predecessor	862
Proceeds from issuance of 5-Year Note	41
Total cash and cash equivalents acquired	\$ 2,801

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

- 2. Inventory is recorded at fair value. Raw materials were valued at current replacement costs and work-in-process was valued at the estimated selling prices of finished goods less the sum of costs to complete, costs of disposal and reasonable profit allowances for completing and selling efforts based on profits for similar finished goods. Finished goods were valued at estimated selling prices less the sum of costs of disposal and reasonable profit allowances for the selling efforts.
- 3. Property, plant and equipment are recorded at fair value giving consideration to their highest and best use. Key assumptions used in the valuation of the Company s property, plant and equipment were based on a combination of the cost or market approach, depending on whether market data was available.

4. Identifiable intangible assets are recorded at fair value and include customer relationships, trade names, patents and in-process research and development (IPR&D). The following approaches were considered in valuing the identifiable intangible assets:

Relief from Royalty (RFR)Method: This form of the income approach determines the value of an intangible asset by capitalizing future royalty payments (income) that are avoided (earned) since the intangible asset is owned rather than licensed. Royalty payments are estimated at the amount that a company would be willing to pay in the form of a royalty for the use of the intangible asset, assuming an outside party owned the rights to the intangible asset. The relief from royalty method is generally used to value trademarks, trade names, and some technologies. This methodology is most reliable when there are observable royalty rates charged for the use of comparable intangible assets.

Excess Earnings (EE) Method: Similar to the DCF method described above, the EE method calculates the value of an intangible asset by discounting its future cash flows. Cash flow is calculated by first estimating after-tax income, which is adjusted for non-cash charges. A contributory asset charge is also applied to reflect the costs associated with the use of other assets to generate the cash flow. The excess earnings method is often used to value customer relationships, technologies, and IPR&D. The EE method is the best approach to use when future economic benefits of the intangible asset can be reasonably estimated but need to be segregated from one or more assets that contribute to the production of the cash flow.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values as of the Acquisition Date of the identifiable intangible assets, the method and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair values and the weighted average amortization period of definite-lived intangible assets:

Identifiable Intangible Asset	Valuation Approach	Royalty Rate	Discount Rate	Weighted Average Amortization Period (Years)	Dat V	uisition te Fair 'alue nillions)
Patents	RFR	0.7%-1.2%	14.4%-22.0%	13	\$	442
Customer relationships	EE	N/A	14.5%-22.4%	6		140
Trade names	RFR	0.2%-1.0%	14.5%-21.4%	20		97
IPR&D	EE	N/A	22.4%-39.5%	N/A		87
Total identifiable intangible assets					\$	766

- 5. Pension obligations assumed are comprised primarily of plans outside the U.S. and were recorded at fair value as of the Acquisition Date.
- 6. Debt is comprised of foreign receivables factoring and other debt assumed from the Predecessor and the issuance of a \$41 million five-year note with a 12% interest rate in conjunction with the Acquisition. Debt was recorded at fair value as of the Acquisition Date, which resulted in a \$2 million net reduction to the nominal value of the debt. The difference between the fair value and nominal value of debt will be accreted to nominal value over the term of the indebtedness.
- Contingent liability of up to \$300 million required to be paid to the holders of allowed general unsecured claims against the Predecessor if cumulative distributions to the members exceed \$7.2 billion not probable as of October 6, 2009 and therefore, recorded at zero.
 Pro forma results of consummation of the modified plan and acquisition accounting The following table presents the unaudited pro forma results for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. The unaudited pro forma financial information for the year ended December 31, 2009 adjusts the results of operations of the Predecessor through October 6, 2009 as though the consummation of the Modified Plan and the Acquisition had occurred at the beginning of fiscal 2008 and combines that with the results of operations of the Successor from

the Acquisition Date through December 31, 2009. The pro forma financial information is presented for informational purposes only and is not indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved if the consummation of the Modified Plan and the Acquisition had occurred at the beginning of fiscal 2009. The unaudited pro forma results presented include adjustments to remove the businesses that were not acquired by the Successor, reductions to cost of sales related to the elimination of primarily all of the Predecessor s U.S. pension and workforce postretirement health care benefits and employer-paid postretirement basic life insurance benefits (collectively OPEB) costs, an increase in interest expense related to the Successor s new debt and the reversal of pre-petition interest expense, an elimination of the bankruptcy-related reorganization items and adjustments to depreciation and amortization expense related to the reduction in fair value of the property, plant and equipment and the increase in intangible assets on the Successor s balance sheet.

	2009 (in n	2008 nillions)
Net sales	\$ 11,116	\$ 15,125
Net loss	(846)	(1,373)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies outlined below are applicable to both Delphi and the Predecessor, unless otherwise specifically indicated. Accordingly, except where otherwise indicated, references to Delphi within Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies should be understood to be related both to Delphi and the Predecessor.

Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Delphi and domestic and non-U.S. subsidiaries in which Delphi holds a controlling financial or management interest and variable interest entities of which Delphi has determined that it is the primary beneficiary. Delphi s share of the earnings or losses of non-controlled affiliates, over which Delphi exercises significant influence (generally a 20% to 50% ownership interest), is included in the consolidated operating results using the equity method of accounting. All significant intercompany transactions and balances between consolidated Delphi businesses have been eliminated. All adjustments, consisting of only normal recurring items, which are necessary for a fair presentation, have been included.

In December 2007, the FASB issued certain amendments to FASB ASC 810, *Consolidation*, which establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. The Predecessor adopted these amendments to FASB ASC 810 as of January 1, 2009 and the accompanying financial statements reflect these amendments for all periods presented.

Use of estimates Preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported therein. Generally, matters subject to estimation and judgment include amounts related to accounts receivable realization, inventory obsolescence, asset impairments, useful lives of intangible and fixed assets, deferred tax asset valuation allowances, income taxes, pension and other postretirement benefit plan assumptions, accruals related to litigation, warranty costs, environmental remediation costs, worker s compensation accruals and healthcare accruals. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, actual results reported in future periods may be based upon amounts that differ from those estimates.

Subsequent events Delphi has evaluated all events that have occurred subsequent to December 31, 2010 through February 18, 2011 (the date the financial statements were available to be issued).

Revenue recognition Sales are recognized when there is evidence of a sales agreement, the delivery of goods has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable and the collectability of revenue is reasonably assured. Sales are generally recorded upon shipment of product to customers and transfer of title under standard commercial terms. In addition, if Delphi enters into retroactive price adjustments with its customers, these reductions to revenue are recorded when they are determined to be probable and estimable. From time to time,

Delphi enters into pricing agreements with its customers that provide for price reductions, some of which are conditional upon achieving certain joint cost saving targets. In these instances, revenue is recognized based on the agreed-upon price at the time of shipment.

Sales incentives and allowances are recognized as a reduction to revenue at the time of the related sale. In addition, from time to time, Delphi makes payments to customers in conjunction with ongoing and in limited circumstances future business. These payments to customers are recognized as a reduction to revenue at the time of the commitment to make these payments.

Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are included in net sales, while costs of shipping and handling are included in cost of sales.

We collect and remit taxes assessed by different governmental authorities that are both imposed on and concurrent with a revenue-producing transaction between us and our customers. These taxes may include, but are not limited to, sales, use, value-added, and some excise taxes. We report the collection of these taxes on a net basis (excluded from revenues).

Membership interests At the Acquisition Date, the outstanding common stock of the Predecessor was cancelled and membership interests in Delphi were issued to Delphi s owners. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, Delphi s investors held membership interests of \$5.6 billion and \$4.9 billion, respectively. Total membership interests and current period net income (loss) are allocated among the respective classes based on the cumulative distribution provisions of the Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Partnership Agreement of Delphi Automotive LLP (the LLP Agreement). Refer to Note 17. Membership Interests for additional information.

Predecessor weighted average shares and dividends Basic and diluted income per share amounts were computed using weighted average shares outstanding for each respective period. As a result of the market price of shares as compared to the price associated with outstanding options in the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and year ended December 31, 2008, the effect of potentially dilutive securities has been excluded from the calculation of income per share as inclusion would have had an anti-dilutive effect.

Actual weighted average shares outstanding used in calculating basic and diluted income per share were:

	Period from	
	January 1 to October 6, 2009	Year ended December 31, 2008
	(in th	ousands)
Weighted average basic and diluted shares outstanding	564,637	564,361

Securities excluded from the computation of diluted income per share because inclusion would have had an anti-dilutive effect:

	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2000	Year ended December 31,
	2009 (in th	2008 ousands)
Anti-dilutive securities	43,346	58,953

The Company did not pay dividends during these periods.

Research and development Costs are incurred in connection with research and development programs that are expected to contribute to future earnings. Such costs are charged against income as incurred. Research and

development expenses (including engineering) were \$1.0 billion, \$0.3 billion, \$1.0 billion and \$1.8 billion for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods August 19 to December 31, 2009, January 1 to October 6, 2009, and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Time deposits During 2010, Delphi entered into various time deposit agreements whereby certain of Delphi s funds on deposit with financial institutions may not be withdrawn for a specified period of time. Time deposits with original maturity periods of three months or less have been included as Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2010, while time deposits with original maturity periods greater than three months have been separately stated in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2010. The carrying value of time deposits approximates fair value as of December 31, 2010.

Marketable securities Marketable securities with maturities of three months or less are classified as cash and cash equivalents for financial statement purposes. Debt securities with maturities greater than three months are classified as held-to-maturity, and accordingly are recorded at cost in the consolidated financial statements. Equity securities with maturities greater than three months are classified as available-for-sale and are recorded in the consolidated financial statements at market value with changes in market value included in other comprehensive income (OCI). Available-for-sale securities with a cost basis of \$13 million and \$26 million and a carrying value of \$12 million and \$23 million were held as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. In the event debt or equity securities experience an other-than-temporary impairment in value, such impairment is recognized as a loss in the consolidated statement of operations. In 2010, Delphi recognized an other-than-temporary impairment of \$9 million.

Restricted cash Restricted cash includes balances on deposit at financial institutions that have issued letters of credit in favor of Delphi.

Accounts receivable Delphi enters into agreements to sell certain of its accounts receivable, primarily in Europe. Since the agreements allow Delphi to maintain effective control over the receivables, these various accounts receivable factoring facilities were accounted for as short-term debt at December 31, 2010 and 2009. Collateral is not generally required related to these trade accounts receivable.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is established based upon analysis of trade receivables for known collectibility issues and the aging of the trade receivables at the end of each period and, generally, all accounts receivable balances greater than 90 days past due are fully reserved. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the accounts receivable reserve was \$64 million and \$33 million, respectively and the provision for doubtful accounts was \$45 million, \$32 million, \$22 million and \$63 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods August 19 to December 31, 2009, January 1 to October 6, 2009, and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively.

The Company exchanges certain amounts of accounts receivable, primarily in the Asia/Pacific region, for bank notes with original maturities greater than three months. The collection of such bank notes are included in operating cash flows based on the substance of the underlying transactions, which are operating in nature.

Inventories As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in, first-out basis, or market, including direct material costs and direct and indirect manufacturing costs, refer to Note 4. Inventories. Obsolete inventory is identified based on analysis of inventory for known obsolescence issues, and, generally, as of December 31, 2010, the market value of inventory on hand in excess of one year s supply is fully-reserved.

From time to time, payments may be received from suppliers. These payments from suppliers are recognized as a reduction of the cost of the material acquired during the period to which the payments relate. In

some instances, supplier rebates are received in conjunction with or concurrent with the negotiation of future purchase agreements and these amounts are amortized over the prospective agreement period.

Property Property, plant and equipment, including internally-developed internal use software and special tools, were adjusted to fair value as of October 6, 2009, which represents a new cost basis, and were adjusted for depreciation in subsequent periods. Major improvements that materially extend the useful life of property are capitalized. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. For the Successor, depreciation is determined based on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of groups of property. For the Predecessor, depreciation was determined based on the estimated useful lives of groups of property generally using straight-line methods or using an accelerated method, which accumulates depreciation of approximately two-thirds of the depreciable cost during the first half of the estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements under capital leases are depreciated over the period of the lease or the life of the property, whichever is shorter, with the depreciation applied directly to the asset account.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the special tools balance was \$247 million and \$258 million, respectively, included within property, net in the consolidated balance sheet. Special tools balances represent Delphi-owned tools, dies, jigs and other items used in the manufacture of customer components. Special tools also include unreimbursed pre-production tooling costs related to customer-owned tools for which the customer has provided a non-cancelable right to use the tool. Delphi-owned special tools balances are depreciated over the expected life of the special tools that are not subject to reimbursement are capitalized and depreciated over the expected life of the related vehicle program, whichever is shorter. The unreimbursed costs incurred related to customer-owned special tools that are not subject to reimbursement are capitalized and depreciated over the expected life of the special tool or the life of the related vehicle program, testing and other costs incurred in the design and development of production parts are expensed as incurred, unless the costs are reimbursable, as specified in a customer contract. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Delphi-owned special tools balances were \$220 million and \$240 million, respectively, and the customer-owned special tools balances were \$27 million and \$18 million, respectively.

Valuation of long-lived assets The carrying value of long-lived assets held for use including intangible assets is periodically evaluated when events or circumstances warrant such a review. The carrying value of a long-lived asset held for use is considered impaired when the anticipated separately identifiable undiscounted cash flows from the asset are less than the carrying value of the asset. In that event, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset. Fair value is determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the risk involved and our review of appraisals. Impairment losses on long-lived assets held for sale are determined in a similar manner, except that fair values are reduced for the cost to dispose of the assets. Refer to Note 21. Discontinued Operations and Note 7. Property, Net for more information.

Intangible assets Intangible assets were \$665 million and \$750 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. In general, definite-lived intangible assets are being amortized over their useful lives, normally 6-20 years. Refer to Note 8. Intangible Assets and Goodwill for more information.

Warranty Expected warranty costs for products sold are recognized at the time of sale of the product based on its estimate of the amount that eventually will be required to settle such obligations. These accruals are based on factors such as past experience, production changes, industry developments and various other considerations. These estimates are adjusted from time to time based on facts and circumstances that impact the status of existing claims. Refer to Note 10. Warranty Obligations.

Foreign currency translation Assets and liabilities of non-U.S. subsidiaries that use a currency other than U.S. dollars as their functional currency are translated to U.S. dollars at end-of-period currency exchange rates. The consolidated statements of operations of non-U.S. subsidiaries are translated to U.S. dollars at average-period currency exchange rates. The effect of translation for non-U.S. subsidiaries is generally reported in OCI. The effect of remeasurement of assets and liabilities of non-U.S. subsidiaries that use the U.S. dollar as their

functional currency is primarily included in cost of sales. Also included in cost of sales are gains and losses arising from transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of a particular entity. Net foreign currency transaction losses of \$20 million, \$2 million, \$5 million and \$29 million were included in the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively.

Restructuring Delphi continually evaluates alternatives to align the business with the changing needs of its customers and to lower the operating costs. This includes the realignment of its existing manufacturing capacity, facility closures, or similar actions in the normal course of business. These actions may result in voluntary or involuntary employee termination benefits, which are mainly pursuant to union or other contractual agreements. Voluntary termination benefits are accrued when an employee accepts the related offer. Involuntary termination benefits are accrued upon the commitment to a termination plan and the benefit arrangement is communicated to affected employees, or when liabilities are determined to be probable and estimable, depending on the existence of a substantive plan for severance or termination. Contract termination costs are recorded when contracts are terminated or when Delphi ceases to use the leased facility and no longer derives economic benefit from the contract. All other exit costs are expensed as incurred. Refer to Note 11. Restructuring. Refer to Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan for employee termination benefits and other exit costs related to non-core product lines. Pursuant to the Amended MRA (as defined in Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan), GM reimbursed the Predecessor for severance obligations paid by the Predecessor after January 1, 2009 in relation to all current and former UAW-represented hourly active, inactive, and retired employees.

Environmental liabilities Environmental remediation liabilities are recognized when a loss is probable and can be reasonably estimated. Such liabilities generally are not subject to insurance coverage. The cost of each environmental remediation is estimated by engineering, financial, and legal specialists based on current law and considers the estimated cost of investigation and remediation required and the likelihood that, where applicable, other responsible parties will be able to fulfill their commitments. The process of estimating environmental remediation liabilities is complex and dependent primarily on the nature and extent of historical information and physical data relating to a contaminated site, the complexity of the site, the uncertainty as to what remediation and technology will be required, and the outcome of discussions with regulatory agencies and, if applicable, other responsible parties at multi-party sites. In future periods, new laws or regulations, advances in remediation technologies and additional information about the ultimate remediation methodology to be used could significantly change estimates by Delphi. Refer to Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies.

Asset retirement obligations Asset retirement obligations are recognized in accordance with FASB ASC 410, Asset Retirement and *Environmental Obligations*. Conditional retirement obligations have been identified primarily related to asbestos abatement at certain sites. To a lesser extent, conditional retirement obligations also exist at certain sites related to the removal of storage tanks and polychlorinated biphenyl disposal costs. Asset retirement obligations were \$4 million and \$3 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Customer concentrations Sales to GM were approximately 21%, 20%, 26% and 30% of our total net sales for the year ended December 31, 2010, the period from August 19, 2009 to December 31, 2009, the period from January 1, 2009 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively. Accounts and other receivables due from GM were \$393 million and \$354 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. No other single customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated net sales in any period presented.

Global sales to Ford Motor Company were approximately 9% of total sales during the year ended December 31, 2010.

Filings for reorganization relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code by domestic customers and other companies in the automotive parts industry have not had a significant impact on Delphi s results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008.

Derivative financial instruments All derivative instruments are required to be reported on the balance sheet at fair value unless the transactions qualify and are designated as normal purchases or sales. Changes in fair value are reported currently through earnings unless they meet hedge accounting criteria.

Exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates, interest rates and certain commodity prices are managed by entering into a variety of forward contracts and swaps with various counterparties. Such financial exposures are managed in accordance with the policies and procedures of Delphi. Delphi did not enter into derivative transactions for speculative or trading purposes. As part of the hedging program approval process, Delphi identifies the specific financial risk which the derivative transaction will minimize, the appropriate hedging instrument to be used to reduce the risk and the correlation between the financial risk and the hedging instrument. Purchase orders, sales contracts, letters of intent, capital planning forecasts and historical data are used as the basis for determining the anticipated values of the transactions to be hedged. Delphi does not enter into derivative transactions that do not have a high correlation with the underlying financial risk. Hedge positions, as well as the correlation between the transaction risks and the hedging instruments, are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Foreign exchange forward contracts are accounted for as hedges of firm or forecasted foreign currency commitments to the extent they are designated and assessed as highly effective. All foreign exchange contracts are marked to market on a current basis. Commodity swaps are accounted for as hedges of firm or anticipated commodity purchase contracts to the extent they are designated and assessed as effective. All other commodity derivative contracts that are not designated as hedges are either marked to market on a current basis or are exempted from mark to market accounting as normal purchases. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the exposure to movements in interest rates was not hedged with derivative instruments. Refer to Note 18. Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Derivatives and Hedging Activities for additional information.

Extended disability benefits Costs associated with extended disability benefits provided to inactive employees are accrued throughout the duration of their active employment. Workforce demographic data and historical experience are utilized to develop projections of time frames and related expense for postemployment benefits. Pursuant to the Amended MRA (as defined in Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan), GM reimbursed the Predecessor for extended disability benefits paid by the Predecessor after January 1, 2009 in relation to all current and former UAW-represented hourly active, inactive, and retired employees. Refer to Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan for more information.

Workers compensation benefits Workers compensation benefit accruals are actuarially determined and are subject to the existing workers compensation laws that vary by state. Accruals for workers compensation benefits represent the discounted future cash expenditures expected during the period between the incidents necessitating the employees to be idled and the time when such employees return to work, are eligible for retirement or otherwise terminate their employment. Delphi assumed only workers compensation liabilities associated with claims incurred after the Petition Date for the employees it hired. The remaining workers compensation liabilities of the Predecessor were discharged as part of the bankruptcy process, assumed by GM as part of its acquisition of substantially all of the Predecessor s global steering business and the manufacturing facilities in the U.S. at which the employees were represented by the UAW, or remained liabilities of DPHH. Pursuant to the Amended MRA (as defined in Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan), GM reimbursed the Predecessor for workers compensation benefits paid by the Predecessor from January 1, 2009 through October 6, 2009 in relation to all current and former UAW-represented hourly active, inactive, and retired employees. Refer to Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan for more information.

Discontinued operations In accordance with FASB ASC 360-10, *Property, Plant, and Equipment*, the general accounting principles applicable to the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, a business component that is disposed of or classified as held for sale is reported as discontinued operations if the cash flows of the component have been or will be eliminated from the ongoing operations of an entity and that entity will no longer have any significant continuing involvement in the business component. The results of discontinued operations are aggregated and presented separately in the consolidated statements of operations and consolidated

statements of cash flows. Assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations are aggregated and reported separately as assets and liabilities held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet. Amounts presented for prior years are required to be reclassified to effect their classification as discontinued operations.

For periods ended October 6, 2009 and prior, amounts have been derived from the consolidated financial statements and accounting records of the Predecessor using the historical basis of assets and liabilities held for sale and historical results of operations related to the Predecessor s global steering and halfshaft businesses (the Steering Business) and the Automotive Holdings Group (AHG), which includes various non-core product lines and plant sites that did not fit the Predecessor s strategic framework. At the Acquisition Date, substantially all of the Steering Business was acquired from the Predecessor by GM. While the historical results of operations of the Steering Business and AHG include general corporate allocations of certain functions historically provided by the Predecessor, such as accounting, treasury, tax, human resources, facility maintenance, and other services, no amounts for these general corporate retained functions have been allocated to discontinued operations in the statements of operations. Expenses related to the service cost of employee pension and other postretirement benefit plans were allocated to discontinued operations in the statements of operations. Allocations have been made based upon a reasonable allocation method. Refer to Note 21. Discontinued Operations for more information.

Contractual interest expense and interest expense on unsecured claims Contractual interest expense represents amounts due under the contractual terms of outstanding debt, including debt subject to compromise for which interest expense is not recognized in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 852, *Reorganizations*. Contractual interest expense was \$494 million and \$558 million for the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009, and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively. In September 2007, the Predecessor began recording prior contractual interest expense related to certain prepetition debt because it became probable that the interest would become an allowed claim based on the provisions of the plan of reorganization filed with the Court in September 2007 and confirmed, as amended, on January 25, 2008. The plan of reorganization confirmed on January 25, 2008 also provided that certain holders of allowed unsecured claims against the Predecessor would be paid postpetition interest on their claims, calculated at the contractual non-default rate from the petition date through January 25, 2008, when the Predecessor ceased accruing interest on these claims. At December 31, 2008, the Predecessor had accrued interest of \$415 million related to prepetition claims. As discussed in Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan, on July 30, 2009, the Court confirmed the Modified Plan, eliminating postpetition interest on prepetition debt and allowed unsecured claims. Therefore, the reversal of the \$415 million of accrued interest was included as a reduction of interest expense in the consolidated statement of operations of the Predecessor for the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009.

Recently issued accounting pronouncements In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued guidance related to accounting for transfers of financial assets which changes the way entities account for securitizations and special-purpose entities, codified in FASB ASC 810, *Consolidation*, and FASB ASC 860, *Transfers and Servicing*. The adoption of this guidance on January 1, 2010 did not have a significant impact on Delphi s financial statements.

In October 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2009-13, *Revenue Recognition Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force*, which amends FASB ASC 605, *Revenue Recognition*, by modifying the criteria used to separate elements in a multiple-element arrangement, introducing the concept of best estimate of selling price for determining the selling price of a deliverable, establishing a hierarchy of evidence for determining the selling price of a deliverable, requiring use of the relative selling price method and prohibiting use of the residual method to allocate arrangement consideration among units of accounting, and expanding the disclosure requirements for all multiple-element arrangements within the scope of FASB ASC 605-25. The amended guidance is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. Alternatively, this amended guidance may be applied retrospectively for all prior periods. Delphi does not expect the adoption of ASU 2009 -13 to have a significant impact on its financial statements.

In April 2010, the FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 08-9, *Milestone Method of Revenue Recognition* (Issue 08-9). ASU 2010-17, *Revenue Recognition Milestone Method*, which resulted from the ratification of Issue 08-9 and amends FASB ASC 605. ASU 2010-17 allows, but does not require, an entity to make an accounting policy election to recognize a payment that is contingent upon the achievement of a substantive milestone in its entirety in the period in which the milestone is achieved. The guidance in ASU 2010-17 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning on or after June 15, 2010, and may be applied prospectively to milestones achieved after the adoption date or retrospectively for all periods presented. Early adoption is permitted. Delphi does not expect the adoption of ASU 2010-17 to have a significant impact on its financial statements.

In August 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-20, *Receivables Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses*. This guidance amends required disclosures about an entity s allowance for credit losses and the credit quality of its financing receivables. The update will require entities to provide a greater level of disaggregated information about the credit quality of its financing receivables and its allowance for credit losses. The guidance is effective for public companies for interim and annual reporting periods ending on or after December 15, 2010 and for non-public companies, for annual reporting periods ending on or after December 15, 2011. In January 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-01 *Receivables Deferral of the Effective Date of Disclosures* about troubled debt restructurings in ASU 2010-20. This guidance temporarily delays the effective date of the disclosures about troubled debt restructurings for public entities. An effective date has yet to be determined. Delphi does not expect the adoption of ASU 2010-20 or 2011-01 to have a significant impact on its financial statements other than providing the new disclosures as required.

3. ELEMENTS OF PREDECESSOR TRANSFORMATION PLAN

GM The Predecessor and Old GM entered into comprehensive settlement agreements consisting of the Global Settlement Agreement dated September 6, 2007 (as amended through December 7, 2007, (the Original GSA), and the Master Restructuring Agreement dated September 6, 2007 (as amended through December 7, 2007 (the Original MRA)). The Original GSA and the Original MRA were approved in the order confirming the Predecessor s initial plan of reorganization on January 25, 2008. The Original GSA and the Original MRA provided that they would not be effective until and unless the Predecessor emerged from chapter 11. However, as part of the Predecessor s overall negotiations with its stakeholders to further amend the initial plan of reorganization and emerge from chapter 11 as soon as practicable, on September 12, 2008, the Predecessors and Old GM entered into an Amended and Restated Global Settlement Agreement (the Amended GSA) and an Amended and Restated Master Restructuring Agreement (the Amended MRA). The Court approved such amendments on September 26, 2008 and the Amended GSA and Amended MRA became effective on September 29, 2008. These amended agreements included provisions related to the transfer of certain legacy pension and other postretirement benefit obligations and became effective independent of and in advance of substantial consummation of an amended plan of reorganization, although provisions relating to the acceleration of payment terms were not immediately effective. The effectiveness of these agreements resulted in a material reduction in the Predecessor's liabilities and future expenses related to U.S. hourly workforce benefit programs. Upon the Acquisition Date, the Amended MRA was terminated (except that Old GM agreed to remain responsible for certain of its obligations thereunder) and the MDA and certain ancillary agreements govern certain aspects of the relationship among GM and Delphi, as purchaser of the major portion of the Predecessor's businesses.

Global settlement agreement The Original GSA and the Amended GSA resolved outstanding issues between the Predecessor and Old GM, including: litigation commenced in March 2006 by the Predecessor to terminate certain supply agreements with Old GM; all potential claims and disputes with Old GM arising out of the separation of the Predecessor from Old GM in 1999, including certain post-separation claims and disputes; the proofs of claim filed by Old GM against the Predecessor in the Predecessor's chapter 11 cases; Old GM is treatment under the Predecessor's original plan of reorganization; and various other legacy U.S. hourly

workforce benefit issues including commitments by the Predecessor and Old GM regarding other U.S. OPEB, pension obligations, and other Old GM contributions with respect to labor matters and releases.

In 2008, the Predecessor recorded a net reorganization gain of \$5.3 billion. In addition, under the Amended GSA, the Predecessor received net cash from GM totaling \$641 million on September 30, 2008, principally related to reimbursement of hourly OPEB benefit payments since January 1, 2007 and amounts paid by the Predecessor under special attrition programs.

The following table provides each component of the net reorganization gain recorded for the elements of the Amended GSA that were implemented during the third quarter of 2008 and which are described in more detail below. The table also reflects the net cash received on September 30, 2008 attributable to each of the elements of the Amended GSA:

	Reorganization Gain (Loss) (in m	 Received m GM
Hourly Pension Plan Settlement:		
Hourly Plan Partial Pension Transfer to GM	\$ 2,083	\$
Recognition of Hourly Plan related OCI amounts	(494)	
Hourly OPEB Settlement:		
GM assumption of OPEB obligation	6,821	
Recognition of OPEB related OCI amounts	266	
Allowed Claims and Other:		
Allowed GM administrative claim	(1,628)	
Allowed GM general unsecured claim	(2,500)	
Allowed IUE-CWA and USW claims	(129)	
OPEB reimbursement from GM	353	350
Special attrition programs	491	230
Other, net	69	61
Total, net	\$ 5,332	\$ 641

Hourly pension plan partial pension transfer to GM On September 26, 2008, the Predecessor received the consent of its labor unions and approval from the Court to transfer certain assets and liabilities of the Delphi Hourly-Rate Employees Pension Plan (the Hourly Plan) to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension Plan. On September 29, 2008, the Predecessor transferred liabilities of approximately \$2.6 billion and assets of approximately \$0.5 billion of the Hourly Plan to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension Plan, representing 30% and 10% of the projected benefit obligation and plan assets, respectively, as of September 29, 2008. The transfer was sufficient to avoid an accumulated funding deficiency for the Hourly Plan for plan year ended September 30, 2008. In consideration, Old GM received an allowed administrative bankruptcy claim equivalent to 77.5% of the net unfunded liabilities transferred, or \$1.6 billion. The transfer was accounted for as a partial settlement of the Hourly Plan under the accounting guidance related to employer s accounting for settlements and curtailments of defined benefit pension plans and for termination benefits in 2008. The Predecessor recognized a settlement loss of \$494 million included in reorganization items in the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2008, which reflects the recognition of \$494 million of previously unrecognized actuarial losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income. The amount of actuarial losses recognized represents the proportion of the projected benefit obligation transferred to Old GM relative to the total projected benefit obligation of the Hourly Plan.

Hourly OPEB settlement and OPEB reimbursement from GM On September 23, 2008, the Predecessor received approval from the Court and on September 26, 2008 received the consent of its labor unions to cease

providing traditional U.S. hourly OPEB. In addition, upon effectiveness of the Amended GSA, Old GM assumed financial responsibility for all of the Predecessor s traditional hourly OPEB liabilities from and after January 1, 2007, subject to certain reimbursement obligations by the Predecessor. Old GM assumed approximately \$6.8 billion of postretirement benefit liabilities for certain of the Predecessor s active and retired hourly employees. The assumption of the traditional hourly OPEB liability by Old GM and Old GM s agreement to reimburse postretirement benefit expenses through the administrative transfer date of February 1, 2009 was accounted for as a settlement under the guidance related to employer s accounting for postretirement benefits other than pensions, in the third quarter of 2008. The Predecessor recognized \$266 million of previously unrecognized actuarial gains recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income during the year ended December 31, 2008. Additionally, on September 30, 2008, the Predecessor recognized \$350 million as a reorganization gain for the reimbursement from Old GM for OPEB payments previously made by the Predecessor to the hourly workforce from and after January 1, 2007. During the Predecessor period from January 1 to October 6, 2009, Old GM and GM funded an additional \$41 million of OPEB payments made to the hourly workforce. Refer to Note 14. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits for further information.

GM general unsecured claim With respect to Old GM s claims in the Predecessor s chapter 11 cases, Old GM under the Amended GSA had agreed to a general unsecured claim of \$2.5 billion, primarily for OPEB and special attrition programs for the U.S. hourly workforce. However, under the Modified Plan and the MDA, Old GM and GM agreed to waive the general unsecured claim in the Predecessor s chapter 11 cases. GM and certain related parties and the Predecessor and certain related parties have also exchanged broad, global releases, effective as of the effective date of the Amended GSA (which releases do not apply to certain surviving claims as set forth in the Amended GSA). In addition to providing a release to GM, the Predecessor agreed to withdraw with prejudice the sealed complaint filed against GM in the Court on October 5, 2007. In addition, the Modified Plan contains additional mutual releases between Old GM, GM and the Predecessor.

Allowed IUE-CWA and USW claims General unsecured claims in the amounts of \$126 million and \$3 million were granted to the International Union of Electronic, Electrical, Salaried, Machine and Furniture Workers-Communication Workers of America (IUE-CWA) and the United Steel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial and Service Workers International Union and its Local Union 87L (the USW), respectively, under the respective labor settlement agreements.

Special attrition programs The reorganization gain recorded during the year ended December 31, 2008 included \$491 million related to the 2006 and 2007 special attrition programs because these programs were directly related to the chapter 11 cases. On September 30, 2008, Old GM reimbursed the Predecessor \$230 million related to the funding of various 2007 U.S. hourly workforce special attrition programs, consistent with the provisions of the U.S. labor union settlement agreements. Additionally, previously recognized Old GM general unsecured claims of \$333 million primarily related to the 2006 U.S. hourly workforce attrition programs previously reimbursed by Old GM were forgiven and subsumed in the overall \$2.5 billion allowed general unsecured claim granted to GM, as discussed above. As of December 31, 2008, the Predecessor s receivable from Old GM related to the funding of the UAW buydown arrangements under the 2007 U.S. hourly workforce special attrition programs was \$68 million. Refer to Note 13. U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Programs for more information.

Other, net Other, net of \$69 million recognized during 2008 includes a \$51 million reimbursement from Old GM related to the U.S. labor settlement agreement with the IUE-CWA, dated August 5, 2007, of which \$25 million was reimbursement of costs and expenses incurred by the Predecessor in connection with the execution and performance of the IUE-CWA labor agreement and \$26 million was reimbursement to the Predecessor of a portion of the allowed claim under the IUE-CWA labor agreement.

Master restructuring agreement The Amended MRA was intended to, among other things, govern certain aspects of the commercial relationship between the Predecessor and Old GM following the effectiveness of the Amended MRA and continuing after the Predecessor s emergence from chapter 11. The Amended MRA

addressed the scope of Old GM s existing and future business awards to the Predecessor and related pricing and sourcing arrangements, Old GM s commitments with respect to reimbursement of specified ongoing U.S. hourly workforce labor costs, the disposition of certain of the Predecessor s facilities, and the treatment of existing commercial agreements between the Predecessor and Old GM. The MDA superseded the Amended MRA, and the Amended MRA was terminated as of the Acquisition Date (except as set forth in the MDA).

Upon effectiveness of the Amended MRA in 2008, the Predecessor received net cash from GM totaling \$559 million and recognized related pre-tax earnings of \$355 million during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, of which \$189 million was recorded in GM settlement in operating expenses and \$166 million was recorded in discontinued operations.

The following table shows each component of the pre-tax earnings recorded upon effectiveness of the Amended MRA in 2008 and the cash received on September 30, 2008:

	GM Settlement Gain in Pre- Tax Earnings (in n	0 000	Received om GM
Reimbursement of hourly labor costs	\$ 272	\$	273
Production cash burn breakeven reimbursement	81		74
Working capital backstop Steering Business			210
Other	2		2
Total, net	\$ 355	\$	559
Continuing operations	\$ 189		
Discontinued operations	\$ 166		

Existing and future business awards and related matters The Amended MRA (i) addressed the scope of existing business awards, related pricing agreements, and extensions of certain existing supply agreements, including Old GM s ability to move production to alternative suppliers, and the reorganized Predecessor s rights to bid and qualify for new business awards; (ii) eliminated the requirement to implement price-downs with respect to certain businesses and restricted Old GM s ability to re-source products manufactured at core U.S. operations through at least December 31, 2011 and Mexican operations through December 31, 2010; (iii) contained a commitment by Old GM to provide the Predecessor with an annual keep site facilitation fee of \$110 million in 2009 and 2010 which was not contingent on the Predecessor s emergence from chapter 11, payable in quarterly installments during these periods, which, consistent with the Predecessor s policy, was recognized in earnings over the applicable, future production periods; and (iv) contained commitments by Old GM concerning the sale of certain of the Predecessor s non-core businesses and additional commitments by Old GM if certain of the Predecessor s businesses and facilities were not sold or wound down by specified future dates. On March 31, 2009, June 30, 2009 and September 30, 2009, the Predecessor received quarterly installments of the annual keep site facilitation fee of \$27.5 million, of which approximately \$75 million was recorded as net sales during the Predecessor period from January 1 to October 6, 2009.

Reimbursement of hourly labor costs Old GM agreed to reimburse the Predecessor for hourly workforce labor costs in excess of \$26 per hour, excluding certain costs, including hourly pension and OPEB contributions provided under the supplemental wage agreement, at specified UAW manufacturing facilities retained by the Predecessor. The economic substance of this provision of the Amended MRA was to lower the Predecessor s labor costs at specified UAW-represented manufacturing facilities to \$26 per hour, excluding certain costs, in order to maintain more competitive operations in the U.S. During the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009, the Predecessor received \$106 million of reimbursement from GM of hourly labor costs in excess of \$26 per hour. The Predecessor recorded \$50 million and \$25 million as a reduction to operating expenses during the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively. The remaining \$31 million was recognized in 2009 as a reduction to operating expenses in discontinued operations.

Production cash burn breakeven reimbursement The Predecessor had agreed to continue manufacturing at certain non-core sites to meet Old GM s production requirements and Old GM had agreed to provide the Predecessor with operating cash flow breakeven support, or production cash burn breakeven (PCBB), from January 1, 2008 through site-specified time periods to compensate the Predecessor for keeping these sites in production. Additionally, Old GM had agreed to reimburse capital spending in excess of \$50,000 per month at the PCBB sites from January 1, 2008 through site-specified time periods. GM reimbursed the Predecessor \$74 million on September 30, 2008 for the retroactive portion of the PCBB payments through August 2008. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Predecessor recognized \$11 million related to the retroactive portion of the PCBB payments as a reduction of operating expenses included in GM settlement. PCBB reimbursement, including capital spending, from Old GM was recognized contemporaneously as incurred, and was treated as a reduction to operating expenses, fixed assets or discontinued operations, as appropriate. During the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009, the Predecessor received \$150 million of PCBB reimbursement from GM, of which \$86 million was recorded as income from discontinued operations and \$2 million was recorded as a reduction to the Predecessor s operating expenses.

Working capital backstop Steering Business Old GM agreed to provide payments to the Predecessor for the Steering Business if the sales value was less than defined estimated working capital amounts of the businesses. In addition, Old GM agreed to provide payments to the Predecessor related to the Steering Business if it was not sold prior to the effectiveness of the MRA. Old GM provided a \$210 million advance on working capital recovery to the Predecessor related to the Steering Business on September 30, 2008 which was recorded as a deferred liability upon receipt. As further discussed above, under the terms of the Modified Plan, Old GM acquired the Steering Business from the Predecessor on the Acquisition Date. The Steering Business was reported as a discontinued operation, refer to Note 21. Discontinued Operations for further information.

Reimbursement of hourly workers compensation and other benefits Old GM agreed to reimburse the Predecessor for all current and future workers compensation, disability, supplemental unemployment benefits, and severance obligations paid by the Predecessor after January 1, 2009 in relation to all current and former UAW-represented hourly active, inactive, and retired employees. Consistent with the substance of the provision, the Predecessor recognized anticipated, future reimbursements from Old GM contemporaneously with the Predecessor s incurrence of related cash payments. During the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009, the Predecessor received related reimbursements from GM of \$28 million. The Predecessor recorded \$35 million as a reduction to operating expenses during the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009.

Pensions Subsequent to entering chapter 11, the Predecessor had generally limited its contributions to the Hourly Plan, the Delphi Retirement Program for Salaried Employees (the Salaried Plan), the ASEC Manufacturing Retirement Program, the Delphi Mechatronics Retirement Program, the PHI Bargaining Retirement Plan and the PHI Non-Bargaining Retirement Plan (collectively, the U.S. Pension Plans) to normal cost contributions, which are less than the minimum funding requirements established by the Internal Revenue Code and the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA). Following the Court s approval of the Hourly and Salaried Pension Program Modification Motion on September 23, 2008, the Salaried Plan, the Mechatronic Plan, the ASEC Plan, and the PHI Non-Bargaining Plan were frozen effective September 30, 2008. The Hourly Plan was frozen on November 30, 2008. By freezing the U.S. pension plans, the Predecessor halted the accrual of normal cost payments going forward, thereby preserving liquidity.

On July 21, 2009, the Predecessor announced that the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (the PBGC) was expected to make a determination whether to initiate the termination process for the U.S. pension plans. Also on July 21, 2009, the Predecessor reached agreement with the PBGC to settle the PBGC s various claims against the Predecessor and its global affiliates (the Predecessor-PBGC Settlement Agreement). Pursuant to that settlement agreement, the PBGC received a \$3 billion allowed general unsecured non-priority claim which received the same treatment given to holders of general unsecured claims as set forth in the Modified Plan. The PBGC received additional consideration from GM which, together with the PBGC s allowed unsecured claim, was in consideration for, among other things, a full release of all causes of action, claims, and liens; the liability

to be assumed by the PBGC related to the possible termination of the U.S. pension plans; and the withdrawal of all notices of liens filed by the PBGC against the Predecessor s global non-U.S. affiliates. The Predecessor-PBGC Settlement Agreement, which was subject to Court approval, was filed with the Court on July 21, 2009. In connection with seeking Court approval of the Predecessor-PBGC Settlement Agreement, the Predecessor sought a finding by the Court that such termination did not violate the Labor MOUs, the Union 1113/1114 Settlement Approval Orders, or the Local Agreement Between Delphi Connection Systems (formerly Packard-Hughes Interconnect) And Electronic And Space Technicians Local 1553, and any modifications thereto. On July 30, 2009, the Court approved the Predecessor-PBGC Settlement Agreement and made the finding that such agreement did not violate the Predecessor s collective bargaining agreements. On August 10, 2009, the PBGC and the Predecessor executed a termination and trusteeship agreement, retroactive to July 31, 2009, with respect to the U.S. pension plans.

Labor During the second quarter of 2007, the Predecessor signed an agreement with the UAW, and during the third quarter of 2007, the Predecessor signed agreements with the remainder of its principal U.S. labor unions, which were ratified by the respective unions and approved by the Court in the third quarter of 2007. Among other things, as approved and confirmed by the Court, this series of settlement agreements or memoranda of understanding among the Predecessor, its unions, and Old GM settled the Debtors motion under sections 1113 and 1114 of the Bankruptcy Code seeking authority to reject their U.S. labor agreements and to modify retiree benefits (the 1113/1114 Motion). As applicable, these agreements also, among other things, modify, extend or terminate provisions of the existing collective bargaining agreements among the Predecessor and its unions and cover issues such as site plans, workforce transition and legacy pension and other postretirement benefits obligations as well as other comprehensive transformational issues.

Portions of these agreements became effective in 2007, and the remaining portions were tied to the effectiveness of the Original GSA and the Original MRA, and substantial consummation of a plan of reorganization approved by the Court. However, as noted above, the Predecessor filed amendments to the GSA and the MRA, which were approved by the Court and became effective on September 29, 2008.

Among other things, these agreements generally provided certain members of the union labor workforce options to retire, accept a voluntary severance package or accept lump sum payments in return for lower hourly wages. Refer to Note 13. U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Programs for more information.

Portfolio In March 2006, the Predecessor identified non-core product lines and manufacturing sites that did not fit into its future, strategic framework, including brake and chassis systems, catalysts, cockpits and instrument panels, door modules and latches, ride dynamics, steering, halfshafts, wheel bearings and power products. With the exception of the catalyst and global exhaust product lines, included in the Powertrain Systems segment, the Company s non-core product lines were included in discontinued operations, refer to Note 21. Discontinued Operations.

Costs recorded by the Predecessor related to the transformation plan for non-core product lines include employee termination benefits and other exit costs and U.S. employee workforce transition program charges and are further described in Note 11. Restructuring, Note 13. U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Programs and Note 21. Discontinued Operations.

Cost structure The Predecessor implemented restructuring initiatives in pursuit of its transformation objective to reduce selling, general and administrative expenses. These initiatives included changing the model for delivery of financial services, information technology and certain sales administration activities; as well as the reduction of the global salaried workforce by leveraging attrition and using salaried separation plans, and the realignment of certain salaried benefit programs with business conditions. While the continually challenging economic environment persisted in 2009, further restructuring initiatives continued to be required. The Predecessor implemented a number of cash conservation measures, including a short-term salaried layoff plan, the suspension of 2009 pay increases and annual incentive payments for eligible employees, the cessation of

health care and life insurance benefits in retirement to salaried employees and retirees effective March 31, 2009 and a decrease in salaried severance payments in 2009. The PBGC s termination of the U.S. Pension Plans effective July 31, 2009 (refer to Note 14. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits) also had the effect of reducing the Predecessor s cash needs.

4. INVENTORIES

A summary of inventories is shown below:

	Suc	Successor	
	December 31, 2010	2	nber 31, 009
	(in n	nillions)	
Productive material	\$ 544	\$	494
Work-in-process	159		133
Finished goods	285		249
Total	\$ 988	\$	876

5. ASSETS

Other current assets consisted of the following:

	Successor			
	December 31, 2010	2	nber 31, 009	
		(in millions)		
Income and other taxes receivable	\$ 208	\$	184	
Prepaid insurance and other expenses	87		95	
Deferred income taxes (Note 16)	136		196	
Deposits to vendors	12		25	
Notes receivable	33		21	
Derivative financial instruments (Note 18)	59		4	
Other	20		18	
Total	\$ 555	\$	543	

Other long-term assets consisted of the following:

	Sue	Successor	
	December 31, 2010		nber 31, 009
	(in r	nillions)	
Deferred income taxes (Note 16)	\$ 183	\$	276
Notes receivable	31		33
Income and other taxes receivable	87		110
Deferred charges	4		5
Other investments	13		19
Derivative financial instruments (Note 18)	17		2

Table of Contents

Other	68	47
Total	\$ 403	\$ 492

6. INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES

As part of Delphi s operations, it has investments in 10 non-consolidated affiliates accounted for under the equity method of accounting. These affiliates are not publicly traded companies and are located primarily in

South Korea, China and Mexico. Delphi s ownership percentages vary generally from approximately 20% to 50%, with the most significant investments in Korea Delphi Automotive Systems Corporation (of which Delphi owns approximately 50%), Daesung Electric Co. Ltd (of which Delphi owns approximately 50%), Delphi-TVS Diesel Systems Ltd (of which Delphi owns approximately 50%), and Promotora de Partes Electricas Automotrices, S.A. de C.V. (of which Delphi owns approximately 40%). The aggregate investment in non-consolidated affiliates was \$281 million and \$270 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Dividends of \$10 million, \$0 million, \$8 million and \$11 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2009, respectively in a non-consolidated affiliates. A \$23 million impairment charge was recorded in the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 related to Delphi s investment in a non-consolidated affiliate.

The following is a summary of the combined financial information of significant affiliates accounted for under the equity method as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 and for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008 (unaudited):

	Successo December	
	2010	2009
	(in million	s)
Current assets	\$ 888	\$ 711
Non-current assets	545	490
Total assets	\$ 1,433	\$ 1,201
Current liabilities	\$ 587	\$ 376
Non-current liabilities	227	271
Stockholders equity	619	554
Total liabilities and stockholders equity	\$ 1,433	\$ 1,201

	Suc	Pre	decessor		
	ended to Ja		Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009	Decen	[.] ended nber 31, 008
	(in m	nillions)	(in I	millions)	
Net sales	\$ 1,750	\$ 369	\$ 866	\$	2,477
Gross profit	\$ 215	\$ 53	\$ 56	\$	273
Net income (loss)	\$ 41	\$ 5	\$ (44)	\$	53

A summary of transactions with affiliates is shown below:

	Suc	ccessor Period from	Pre	decessor
	Year ended December 31, 2010	Year August 19 ended to December 31, December 31,		Year ended December 31, 2008
	(in n	nillions)	(in t	millions)
Sales to affiliates	\$ 62	\$ 7	\$8	\$ 48

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1						
Purchases from affiliates		\$ 315	\$	51	\$ 90	\$ 267

7. PROPERTY, NET

Property, net consisted of:

Lives (Years) 2010 (in		ember 31,
		2009
		n millions)
	\$ 163	\$ 173
3-20	79	61
40	492	556
3-20	1,470	1,026
3-10	104	72
	246	195
	2,554	2,083
	(487)	(123)
	\$ 2,067	\$ 1,960
	3-20 40 3-20	2010 (in \$ 163 3-20 79 40 492 3-20 1,470 3-10 104 246 2,554 (487)

Delphi evaluates the recoverability of certain long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Estimates of future cash flows used to test the recoverability of long-lived assets include separately identifiable undiscounted cash flows expected to arise from the use and eventual disposition of the assets. Where estimated future cash flows are less than the carrying value of the assets, impairment losses are recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the assets. The fair value of the assets was determined based on the held for use classification. Delphi may incur significant impairment charges or losses on divestitures upon these assets being classified as held for sale. The following table summarizes the impairment charges included in cost of sales related to long-lived assets held for use for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Segment	Successor Period from Year August 19 ended to December 31, December 31, 2010 2009		Period from January 1 to	Decen	r ended nber 31, 008
	(in millions)		(in	millions)	
Electronics and Safety	\$	\$	\$ 37	\$	15
Powertrain Systems		12			
Electrical/Electronic Architecture			1		2
Thermal Systems		5	2		10
Eliminations and Other			1		
Continuing operations		17	41		27
Discontinued operations					10
Total	\$	\$ 17	\$ 41	\$	37

During the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009, the Predecessor s Electronics and Safety segment recorded \$37 million of long-lived asset impairment charges related to the exit of its occupant protection systems business in North America and Europe.

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

As further described in Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses, Delphi acquired the following intangible assets in conjunction with the Acquisition:

	As of December 31, 2010				А	2009				
	Gross Carrying Amount	Amor	nulated tization nillions)	Ca	Net rrying nount	Gross Carrying Amount	Amor	nulated tization millions)	Ca	Net rrying nount
Amortized intangible assets:										
Patents and developed technology	\$455	\$	48	\$	407	\$442	\$	9	\$	433
Customer relationships	137		32		105	140		6		134
Trade names	95		6		89	97		1		96
Total	687		86		601	679		16		663
Unamortized intangible assets:										
In-process research & development	64				64	87				87
Total	\$ 751	\$	86	\$	665	\$ 766	\$	16	\$	750

Delphi incurs costs to renew or extend the term of the acquired intangible assets which are recognized as expense and not capitalized. The estimated useful lives of the Company s amortized intangible assets range from 6 to 20 years. Amortization expense is estimated to be \$70 million annually for the years ending December 31, 2011 and 2012, \$68 million for the year ending December 31, 2013, \$60 million for the year ending December 31, 2014 and \$52 million for the year ending December 31, 2015.

A roll-forward of the gross carrying amounts for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 is presented below:

	2	2010 (in mi	009
Balance at January 1	\$	766	\$
Acquisitions			766
Write-offs		(3)	
Foreign currency translation and other		(12)	
Balance at December 31	\$	751	\$ 766

A roll-forward of the accumulated amortization for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 is presented below:

	2010	2009
	(in milli	ions)
Balance at January 1	\$ 16	\$
Provisions	70	16
Non-recurring charges (write-offs)		
Foreign currency translation and other		
Balance at December 31	\$ 86	\$ 16

As further described in Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses, as a result of determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed under the Acquisition, the January 1, 2009 balance of goodwill of \$62 million was adjusted and there is no goodwill recognized in the consolidated balance sheets of the Successor as of December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Table of Contents

During the year ended December 31, 2008, declining market conditions caused the implied fair values of the Electrical/Electronic Architecture segment and the Electronics and Safety segment to be less than their respective book values, which resulted in goodwill impairment, totaling \$168 million and \$157 million, respectively, related to the respective segments.

9. LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following:

	2	Succe Decem 2010 (in mil	ber 31	2009
Payroll-related obligations	\$	203	\$	199
Employee benefits, including current pension obligations		167		56
Income and other taxes payable		220		248
Warranty obligations (Note 10)		243		181
Restructuring (Note 11)		115		216
Customer deposits		22		32
Deferred income taxes (Note 16)		4		20
Other		291		300
Total	\$	1,265	\$	1,252

Other long-term liabilities consisted of the following:

	20	Decem	009
Environmental (Note 15)	\$	18	\$ 18
Extended disability benefits		8	13
Warranty obligations (Note 10)		119	151
Restructuring (Note 11)		54	13
Payroll-related obligations		11	12
Accrued income taxes		52	61
Long-term debt (Note 12)		71	94
Deferred income taxes (Note 16)		178	275
Other		76	67
Total	\$	587	\$ 704

10. WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS

Expected warranty costs for products sold are recognized principally at the time of sale of the product based on estimates of the amount that will eventually be required to settle such obligations. These accruals are based on factors such as past experience, production changes, industry developments and various other considerations. These estimates are adjusted from time to time based on facts and circumstances that impact the status of existing claims.

Although Delphi has recognized its best estimate for its total aggregate warranty reserves across all of its operating segments as of December 31, 2010, the estimated reasonably possible amounts to ultimately resolve all matters is approximately \$75 million in excess of the recorded

The table below summarizes the activity in the product warranty liability for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009:

	Successor Period from Year August 19 ended to December 31, December 31, 2010 2009 (in millions)			Predecessor Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 (in millions)
Accrual balance at beginning of period	\$ 332	\$		\$ 364
Fair value of liabilities assumed in the Acquisition			344	
Provision for estimated warranties incurred during the period	62		9	41
Provision for changes in estimate for preexisting warranties	80		15	73
Settlements made during the period (in cash or in kind)	(99)		(35)	(92)
Gain from reorganization				(395)
Foreign currency translation and other	(13)		(1)	9
Accrual balance at end of period	\$ 362	\$	332	\$

In 2009, Delphi received information regarding potential warranty claims related to certain components supplied by Delphi s Powertrain segment. Delphi recorded its best estimate of the warranty obligation related to this matter as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and during 2010 reflected a change in the previous estimate of probable loss related to this matter by recognizing warranty expense in cost of sales of \$75 million. This adjustment resulted in a corresponding \$75 million decrease in net income attributable to Delphi, and the per unit impact for the Class A, B and C membership interests were \$11.25, \$137.52, and \$65.63, respectively.

Refer to Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies, Ordinary Business Litigation for additional disclosure regarding warranty matters.

11. RESTRUCTURING

Delphi continually evaluates alternatives to align its business with the changing needs of its customers and to lower the operating costs of the Company. This includes the realignment of its existing manufacturing capacity, facility closures, or similar actions in the normal course of business. These actions may result in voluntary or involuntary employee termination benefits, which are mainly pursuant to union or other contractual agreements. Voluntary termination benefits are accrued when an employee accepts the related offer. Involuntary termination benefits are accrued when Delphi commits to a termination plan and the benefit arrangement is communicated to affected employees, or when liabilities are determined to be probable and estimable, depending on the existence of a substantive plan for severance or termination. Contract termination costs are recorded when contracts are terminated or when Delphi ceases to use the leased facility and no longer derives economic benefit from the contract. All other exit costs are accrued when incurred.

Delphi s restructuring costs are undertaken as necessary to execute management s strategy, streamline operations, take advantage of available capacity and resources, and ultimately achieve net cost reductions. These activities generally fall in one of two categories:

- (1) Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities and other exit or disposal activities, as it relates to executing the Company s strategy in the normal course of business.
- (2) Transformation plan activities, including selling or winding down non-core product lines, transforming the salaried workforce to reduce general and administrative expenses.

The following table summarizes the restructuring charges recorded for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods from August 19 to December 31 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008 by operating segment:

Segment	Successor Period from Year August 19 ended to December 31, December 31, 2010 2009		iod om Period ist 19 from o January 1 to ber 31, October 6,		Decer	r ended nber 31, 2008
	(in millions)			(in n	nillions)	
Electronics and Safety	\$ 29	\$	20	\$ 91	\$	150
Powertrain Systems	49		50	45		69
Electrical/Electronic Architecture	94		50	99		82
Thermal Systems	52		5	11		25
Eliminations and Other			1	(11)		
Continuing operations	224		126	235		326
Discontinued operations				14		146
Total	\$ 224	\$	126	\$ 249	\$	472

The table below summarizes the activity in the restructuring liability for the periods from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and August 19 to December 31, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2010:

	Employee Termination Benefits Liability	Costs	er Exit Liability iillions)	Total
Predecessor balance at December 31, 2008	\$ 205	\$	45	\$ 250
Provision for estimated expenses incurred during the period	216		55	271
Provision for changes in estimates for preexisting programs	(21)		(1)	(22)
Foreign currency and other	(1)		(5)	(6)
Payments made during the period	(159)		(66)	(225)
Gain from reorganization	(240)		(28)	(268)
Accrual balance at October 6, 2009	\$	\$		\$
Fair value of liabilities assumed in the Acquisition	240		21	261
Provision for estimated expenses incurred during the period	121		6	127
Provision for changes in estimates for preexisting programs	(1)			(1)
Payments made during the period	(141)		(8)	(149)
Foreign currency and other	(9)			(9)
Accrual balance at December 31, 2009	\$ 210	\$	19	\$ 229
Provision for estimated expenses incurred during the period	194		31	225
Provision for changes in estimates for preexisting programs	(1)			(1)
Payments made during the period	(260)		(31)	(291)
Foreign currency and other	5		2	7

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Accrual balance at December 31, 2010

\$ 148 **\$** 21 **\$** 169

Delphi and the Predecessor have initiated several programs to streamline operations and lower costs. The following are details of significant charges during 2010.

Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities. As part of Delphi s ongoing efforts to lower costs and operate efficiently, the Company recorded \$28 million of restructuring costs in North America, primarily related to the Electrical/Electronic Architecture segment s continued

efforts to reduce the workforce. The four reporting segments recorded \$174 million of restructuring costs in conjunction with workforce reduction and programs related to the rationalization of manufacturing and engineering processes, including plant closures, primarily in Europe. The Electronics and Safety segment also incurred \$8 million of costs related to the ongoing sales and wind-down of its occupant protection systems businesses during the year ended December 31, 2010.

The following are details of significant charges during 2009.

Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities. As part of Delphi and the Predecessor s ongoing efforts to lower costs and operate efficiently, the Electronics and Safety, Powertrain Systems, Electrical/Electronic Architecture and Thermal Systems segments executed initiatives to realign manufacturing operations within North America to lower cost markets and to reduce the workforce in line with the realigned manufacturing operations, and incurred approximately \$34 million and \$69 million of restructuring costs during the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009, respectively. Additionally, European, South American and Asian operations in the Electronics and Safety and Electrical/Electronic Architecture segments incurred \$78 million and \$99 million of restructuring costs in the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009, respectively, in conjunction with workforce reductions and programs related to the rationalization of manufacturing and engineering processes. Additionally, the Electronics and Safety segment incurred \$5 million and \$7 million of costs related to upcoming sales and wind-down of its occupant protection systems business in North America and Europe during periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009, respectively and the protection systems business in North America and Europe during periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009, respectively.

Transformation plan activities. As part of an effort to transform its salaried workforce and reduce general and administrative expenses, Delphi and the Predecessor identified certain salaried employees in North America during periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 for involuntary separation and incurred \$5 million and \$58 million, respectively, in related employee termination benefits included in continuing operations. Delphi also incurred \$6 million of U.S. salaried separations recorded in discontinued operations for the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009. As a result of the Amended MRA, \$53 million of U.S. employee termination benefits were reimbursed by GM during the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009, of which \$44 million and \$9 million related to U.S. hourly separations and U.S. salaried separations, respectively. The following are details of significant charges during 2008.

Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities. As part of the Predecessor s ongoing efforts to lower costs and operate efficiently, the Electronics and Safety segment transferred core products manufactured at a shared location in Portugal to a lower cost market and exit non-core products from that facility, and recognized employee termination benefits of \$17 million during 2008. Additionally, the Electronics and Safety, Powertrain Systems, Electrical/Electronic Architecture and Thermal Systems segments executed initiatives to realign manufacturing operations within North America to lower cost markets, and incurred approximately \$104 million of restructuring costs during 2008. In addition, the Electronics and Safety segment exited production of a non-profitable product line and recorded \$22 million of contract termination costs. European operations in the Electronics and Safety and Electrical/Electronic Architecture segments incurred \$12 million of restructuring costs in conjunction with workforce reductions and programs related to the rationalization of manufacturing and engineering process. The Powertrain Systems segment transferred certain operations to lower cost markets in eastern Europe and Asia Pacific during 2008 and incurred restructuring costs of \$10 million.

Transformation plan activities. As part of an effort to transform its salaried workforce and reduce general and administrative expenses, the Predecessor identified certain salaried employees in North America during 2008 for involuntary separation and incurred \$131 million in related employee termination benefits included in continuing operations, and incurred \$31 million in discontinued operations.

12. DEBT

The following is a summary of debt outstanding as of December 31, 2010 and 2009:

	20	010	Successor (in millions)	2	009
Accounts receivable factoring	\$	112		\$	110
12.00%, unsecured notes, due 2014		47			49
German loan agreement					23
Capital leases and other		130			214
Total debt		289			396
Less: current portion		(218)			(302)
Long-term debt	\$	71		\$	94

Under the terms of the Acquisition, (i) Delphi issued \$41 million in senior unsecured five-year notes (the Notes) pursuant to a Note Purchase Agreement (the NPA) with an Acquisition Date fair value of \$49 million and (ii) entered into a delayed draw term loan under the credit agreement (the DDTL) with a syndicate of lenders. The Notes pay 12% interest and mature on October 6, 2014 and are recorded at \$47 million and \$49 million in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. The DDTL includes maximum available borrowing of \$890 million, which is split into a U.S. tranche of up to \$267 million in borrowings and a foreign tranche of up to \$623 million in borrowings. There is no commitment fee associated with the DDTL, but, if drawn, Delphi is required to pay interest at the rate of LIBOR plus 6.0% per annum, with a minimum LIBOR amount of 2.0% per annum. The DDTL has a term of 5 years. A majority of the holders of the Notes and the lenders under the DDTL are related parties as holders of the Class A and Class B membership interests.

The U.S. tranche under the DDTL is guaranteed by each of Delphi s U.S. direct and indirect parent companies and each of Delphi s U.S. subsidiaries as well as certain foreign subsidiaries. The foreign tranche under the DDTL is currently guaranteed by each of the guarantors under the U.S. tranche. In addition, subject to legal and other customary limitations, the DDTL requires certain material foreign subsidiaries of Delphi to become guarantors under the foreign tranche and Delphi has begun to deliver such guarantees. The loans, guarantees and other obligations under the U.S. tranche are secured by substantially all of the assets of Delphi s U.S. direct and indirect parent companies and each of Delphi s U.S. subsidiaries. The loans, guarantees and other obligations under the foreign tranche are currently secured by all of the assets securing the U.S. tranche. Subject to legal and other customary limitations, the foreign tranche are unsecured by substantially all of the assets of any material foreign subsidiaries of Delphi that become guarantors under the foreign tranche. The Notes are unsecured and are guaranteed by the same Delphi entities that guarantee the loans under the foreign tranche of the DDTL.

The NPA and the DDTL contain affirmative and negative covenants that impose restrictions on Delphi s financial and business operations, including Delphi s ability, among other things, to incur or secure other debt, make investments, sell assets, pay dividends or repurchase stock or stock equivalents. As of December 31, 2010, Delphi was in compliance with the covenants of the NPA and DDTL, no amounts were drawn under the DDTL, and the full \$890 million under the DDTL remained available.

Accounts receivable factoring Various accounts receivable factoring facilities are maintained in Europe and are accounted for as short-term debt. These uncommitted factoring facilities are available through various financial institutions. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, \$112 million and \$110 million, respectively, were outstanding under these accounts receivable factoring facilities.

Capital leases and other As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, approximately \$130 million and approximately \$214 million, respectively, of other debt issued by certain international subsidiaries was outstanding, primarily related to bank lines in Asia Pacific and capital lease obligations.

German loan agreement During 2009, two of Delphi s German subsidiaries entered into a loan agreement for up to 125 million with a German financial institution. This loan was drawn upon as needed during 2009 and 2010 to fund restructuring initiatives, capital investment and other ongoing cash needs. As of December 31, 2009, \$23 million was outstanding under the loan agreement. During 2010, Delphi repaid the loan in full and terminated the loan agreement.

Interest Cash paid for interest related to amounts outstanding totaled \$30 million, \$8 million, \$157 million and \$442 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009, and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively.

The principal maturities of debt, at nominal value, excluding the accretion related to the Notes of approximately \$6 million are as follows:

	Year	Debt and Capital Lease Obligations (in millions)
2011		\$ 218
2012		9
2013		4
2014		43
2015		5
Thereafter		4
Total		\$ 283

13. U.S. EMPLOYEE WORKFORCE TRANSITION PROGRAMS

The following table represents the movement in the U.S. employee workforce transition program liability for 2009 and 2008:

U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Program Liability

	(in m	illions)
Balance at December 31, 2008		123
Buy-down wage liability adjustment		(17)
Payments		(28)
Gain from reorganization		(78)
Balance at October 6, 2009	\$	
Fair value of liabilities assumed in the Acquisition		14
Payments		(14)
Balance at December 31, 2009	\$	

2008 Reimbursement

As discussed in Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan, the net reorganization gain recorded for the elements of the Amended GSA that were implemented during 2008, included \$491 million related to GM s reimbursement of costs incurred under the 2006 and 2007 special attrition programs. GM reimbursed the Predecessor \$230 million related to the funding of various 2007 U.S. hourly workforce special attrition programs, consistent with the provisions of the U.S. labor union settlement agreements. Additionally, previously recognized GM general unsecured claims of \$333 million primarily related to the 2006 U.S. hourly workforce attrition programs previously reimbursed by GM had been forgiven and were subsumed in the overall \$2.5 billion allowed

general unsecured claim granted to GM, which was waived under the MDA. The following table details this component of the reorganization gain and cash received:

Amended GSA Effectiveness	0	anizatio Fain (Cash
Amounts reimbursed for buyouts	\$	68	\$ 68
Amounts reimbursed for retirement incentives			7
Amounts reimbursed for buy-downs		90	155
Forgiveness of 2006 special attrition program allowed claim		333	
Total	\$	491	\$ 230

14. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

Prior to the PBGC termination of the U.S. pension plans, (as further discussed in Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan), the Predecessor sponsored pension plans covering employees in the U.S., which generally provided benefits of stated amounts for each year of service, as well as supplemental benefits for employees who qualified for retirement before normal retirement age. Certain employees also participated in non-qualified pension plans covering executives, which are based on targeted wage replacement percentages and are unfunded. The Predecessor froze the Salaried Plan, the Supplemental Executive Retirement Program (SERP), the ASEC Manufacturing Retirement Program, the Delphi Mechatronics Retirement Program and the PHI Non-Bargaining Retirement Plan effective September 30, 2008. Additionally, the Predecessor reached agreement with its labor unions resulting in a freeze of traditional benefit accruals under the Hourly Plan effective as of November 30, 2008.

On September 26, 2008, the Predecessor received the consent of its labor unions and approval from the Court to transfer certain assets and liabilities of the Hourly Plan to the GM Hourly-Rate Employee Pension Plan, pursuant to section 414(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer), as agreed under the Amended GSA. The 414(1) Net Liability Transfer was to occur in two separate steps. On September 29, 2008, the Predecessor completed the first step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer, transferring liabilities of approximately \$2.6 billion and assets of approximately \$0.5 billion of the Hourly Plan to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension Plan, representing 30% and 10% of the projected benefit obligation and plan assets, respectively, as of September 29, 2008. The 414(1) Net Liability Transfer was sufficient to avoid an accumulated funding deficiency for the Hourly Plan for plan year ended September 30, 2008. In consideration of the first step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer, Old GM received an allowed administrative bankruptcy claim equivalent to 77.5% of the net unfunded liabilities transferred, or \$1.6 billion. The first step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer was accounted for as a partial settlement of the Hourly Plan under the accounting guidance related to employer s accounting for settlements and curtailments of defined benefit pension plans and for termination benefits in the third quarter of 2008. The Predecessor recognized a settlement loss of \$494 million included in reorganization items in the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2008, which reflects the recognition of \$494 million of previously unrecognized actuarial losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income. The amount of actuarial losses recognized represents the proportion of the projected benefit obligation transferred to Old GM relative to the total projected benefit obligation of the Hourly Plan.

The second step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer (the Second Pension Transfer) was to occur upon the effectiveness of an amended plan of reorganization. In July 2009, GM advised the Predecessor that it would not assume the Hourly Plan and would not complete the Second Pension Transfer. GM and the PBGC negotiated a separate release and waiver agreement regarding a possible initiation by the PBGC of the plan termination process for the Hourly Plan, which provides consideration to the PBGC for certain releases to be granted to, among others, GM, the Predecessor, and the Predecessor s global affiliates. On July 22, 2009, the PBGC initiated the process to terminate the Hourly Plan and the U.S. salaried and subsidiary pension plans. The Predecessor recognized a pension curtailment and settlement loss of \$2.8 billion included in reorganization items in the

consolidated statement of operations for the period ended October 6, 2009. This loss included the reversal of \$5.2 billion of liabilities subject to compromise related to the U.S. pension plans offset by the recognition of \$5.0 billion of related unamortized losses previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and the recognition of a \$3.0 billion allowed general unsecured non-priority claim granted to the PBGC. For additional information regarding the PBGC termination of the Hourly Plan and the U.S. salaried and subsidiary pension plans, refer to Note 3. Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan.

On February 4, 2009, the Predecessor filed a motion with the Court seeking the authority to cease providing retiree OPEB benefits in retirement to salaried employees, retirees, and surviving spouses after March 31, 2009. On February 24, 2009, the Court provisionally approved the Predecessor s motion to terminate such benefits effective March 31, 2009 based on the Court s finding that the Predecessor had met its evidentiary burdens, subject to the appointment of a retirees committee (the Retirees Committee) to review whether it believes that any of the affected programs involved vested benefits (as opposed to at will or discretionary, unvested benefits). On March 11, 2009, the Court issued a final order approving the Predecessor s motion to terminate salaried OPEB benefits. The Court approved a settlement agreement (the Settlement), between the Predecessor and the Retirees Committee and the Delphi Salaried Retirees Association (the Association) settling any and all rights for the parties to appeal the Court s March 11, 2009 final order authorizing the Predecessor to terminate salaried OPEB benefits to the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York (the District Court). Pursuant to the Settlement, the Predecessor agreed to provide the Retirees Committee with consideration of \$9 million to resolve pending litigation, including withdrawing the appeals of the Retirees Committee and the Association to the District Court. The consideration provided by the Predecessor under the Settlement included an initial \$1 million payment in May 2009 to a hardship fund, subsequent monthly payments of \$1.25 million for five months beginning in June 2009, and a final \$1 million payment in November 2009, which, under the terms of the Modified Plan, was paid by DPHH. In addition, the Predecessor contributed \$500,000 toward the creation of a Voluntary Employees Beneficiary Association (VEBA) and agreed to reimburse up to an additional \$250,000 of reasonable legal expenses incurred by the counsel for the Retirees Committee and the Association. Neither Delphi nor the Predecessor has any future funding obligations or commitments to the VEBA. Following the initial payment of \$1.5 million by May 1, 2009, the District Court dismissed the appeal filed by the retirees with prejudice. The Predecessor recognized a salaried OPEB curtailment and settlement gain of \$1,168 million included in reorganization items in the consolidated statement of operations for the period ended October 6, 2009. This settlement gain reflects the reversal of existing liabilities of \$1,173 million (\$1,181 million net of \$8 million to pay salaried OPEB claims incurred but not reported as of March 31, 2009) and the recognition of previously unamortized net gains included in accumulated other comprehensive income of \$4 million. The reorganization gain also reflects the impact of the \$9 million consideration to be provided for the Settlement described above.

On September 23, 2008, the Predecessor received approval from the Court and on September 26, 2008 received the consent of its labor unions to cease providing traditional U.S. hourly OPEB. In addition, upon effectiveness of the Amended GSA, Old GM assumed financial responsibility for all of the Predecessor s traditional hourly OPEB liabilities from and after January 1, 2007. GM assumed approximately \$6.8 billion of postretirement benefit liabilities for certain of the Predecessor s active and retired hourly employees. The assumption of the traditional hourly OPEB liability by Old GM and Old GM s agreement to reimburse postretirement benefit expenses through the administrative transfer date of February 1, 2009 was accounted for as a curtailment and a settlement under the guidance related to employer s accounting for postretirement benefits other than pensions. The Predecessor for the year ended December 31, 2008, which reflects the assumption by Old GM of the net unfunded liability of \$6.8 billion and the recognition of \$266 million of previously unrecognized actuarial gains.

As a result of the salaried workforce transformation plan activities in North America discussed in Note 11. Restructuring, salaried separations in 2008 have resulted in significant reductions in expected future service, or

curtailments, of the Salaried Plan, OPEB and SERP. The Predecessor recorded net salaried pension curtailment losses of \$75 million and salaried OPEB curtailment gains of \$82 million for the year ended December 31, 2008.

The amounts shown below reflect the change in the U.S. defined benefit pension obligations during 2010 and 2009.

	Succ Year ended December 31, 2010		ccessor Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009		Per Jan	edecessor riod from wary 1 to ber 6, 2009	
			millions)		(in	millions)	
Benefit obligation at beginning of period	\$	81	\$		\$	11,411	
Liabilities established / assumed in the Acquisition				81			
Service cost						12	
Interest cost		4		1		393	
Actuarial loss		5					
Benefits paid		(7)		(1)		(496)	
Impact of transfers / settlements						(11,203)	
Gain from reorganization						(117)	
Benefit obligation at end of period	\$	83	\$	81	\$		
Change in plan assets:							
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period	\$		\$		\$	6,147	
Actual return on plan assets						547	
Delphi contributions		7		1			
Benefits paid		(7)		(1)		(496)	
Impact of transfers / settlements						(6,198)	
•							
Fair value of plan assets at end of period	\$		\$		\$		
Underfunded status	\$	(83)	\$	(81)	\$		
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:							
Current liabilities		(8)		(7)			
Non-current liabilities		(75)		(74)			
Total	\$	(83)	\$	(81)	\$		
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist of (pre-tax):							
Actuarial loss	\$	5	\$		\$		
Total	\$	5	\$		\$		

The amounts shown below reflect the change in the non-U.S. defined benefit pension obligations during 2010 and 2009.

	Suc	Pred	Predecessor		
	Year ended December 31, 2010	Peri Aug Dece	iod from gust 19 to ember 31, 2009	Perio Janu	od from ary 1 to er 6, 2009
	(in millions)		(in m	nillions)	
Benefit obligation at beginning of period	\$ 1,533	\$		\$	1,242
Liabilities assumed in the Acquisition			1,540		
Service cost	38		13		32
Interest cost	84		21		76
Plan participants contributions	2		1		3
Actuarial loss (gain)	4		(25)		
Benefits paid	(66)		(21)		(106)
Impact of curtailments	(8)		(2)		48
Plan amendments and other	(9)		(6)		
Exchange rate movements	(60)		12		118
Gain from reorganization	()				(1,413)
C					
Benefit obligation at end of period	\$ 1,518	\$	1,533	\$	
Change in plan assets:					
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period	\$ 798	\$		\$	622
Assets acquired in the Acquisition			739		
Actual return on plan assets	95		28		
Expected return on plan assets					63
Delphi contributions	109		43		81
Plan participants contributions	2		1		3
Benefits paid	(66)		(21)		(106)
Exchange rate movements and other	(28)		8		54
Gain from reorganization					(717)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period	\$ 910	\$	798	\$	
Underfunded status	\$ (608)	\$	(735)	\$	
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:	+ (000)	-	()		
Current liabilities	(13)		(5)		
Non-current liabilities	(595)		(730)		
		¢		¢	
Total	\$ (608)	\$	(735)	\$	
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist					
of (pre-tax):			(10)		
Actuarial gain	\$ (75)	\$	(40)	\$	
Prior service cost (credit)			(2)		
Total	\$ (75)	\$	(42)	\$	

The amounts shown below reflect the change in the other postretirement benefit obligations during 2010 and 2009.

	Year ended December 31, 2010	Aug	d from ust 19 to ıber 31, 009	Po fi Janu Oct 2	ecessor eriod rom ary 1 to ober 6, 009 nillions)
Benefit obligation at beginning of period	\$7	\$		\$	1,201
Liabilities assumed in the Acquisition			7		
Service cost					7
Interest cost	1				18
Benefits paid	(1)				(30)
Impact of curtailments	(1)				
Impact of transfers / settlements					(1,171)
Gain from reorganization					(25)
Benefit obligation at end of period	\$6	\$	7	\$	
Change in plan assets:					
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period	\$	\$		\$	
Delphi contributions	1				30
Benefits paid	(1)				(30)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period	\$	\$		\$	
Underfunded status	\$ (6)	\$	(7)	\$	
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:					
Current liabilities	(2)				
Non-current liabilities	(4)		(7)		
Total	\$ (6)	\$	(7)	\$	
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist of (pre-tax):					
Actuarial loss	\$	\$		\$	
Prior service credit					
Total	\$	\$		\$	

The projected benefit obligation (PBO), accumulated benefit obligation (ABO), and fair value of plan assets for pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets and with plan assets in excess of accumulated benefit obligations are as follows:

	τ	Non-U	Non-U.S. Plans			
	2010	2009	2010		2009	
		(in millions)				
		Plans with AB	O in Excess of Plan Asse	ts		
PBO	\$ 83	\$ 81	\$ 1,402	\$	1,420	
ABO	83	81	1,246		1,264	
Fair value of plan assets at end of year			807		708	
		Diana anith Dia	an Assets in Excess of AB	0		
		Plans with Pla	in Assets in Excess of AB	0		
PBO	\$	\$	\$ 116	\$	113	
ABO			74		77	

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Fair value of plan assets at end of year			103	90
			Total	
РВО	\$ 83	\$ 81	\$ 1,518	\$ 1,533
ABO	83	81	1,320	1,341
Fair value of plan assets at end of year			910	798

Benefit costs presented below were determined based on actuarial methods and included the following:

	U.S. Pension Plans					
	Su	Pred	Predecessor			
	Year ended December 31, 2010	Period from August 19 to 1, December 31, 2009		Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009	Decer	r ended nber 31, 2008
	(in ı	nillions)		(in n	(in millions)	
Service cost (a)	\$	\$		\$ 12	\$	128
Interest cost	4		1	393		814
Expected return on plan assets				(341)		(833)
Settlement loss (gain)				(188)		494
Curtailment loss-PBO						75
Amortization of prior service costs				15		26
Amortization of actuarial losses				126		21
Net periodic benefit cost	\$4	\$	1	\$ 17	\$	725

(a) Includes \$23 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 of costs previously accrued related to the U.S. employee workforce transition programs.

	Non-U.S. Pension Plans							
	Sud Year ended December 31, 2010	ccessor Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009	Prec Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009	lecessor Year ended December 31, 2008				
	(in r	nillions)	(in r	n millions)				
Service cost	\$ 38	\$ 13	\$ 32	\$ 50				
Interest cost	84	21	76	90				
Expected return on plan assets	(55)	(12)	(63)	(86)				
Settlement (gain) loss	(1)			55				
Curtailment (gain) loss	(9)	(2)	48	2				
Amortization of transition amount				1				
Amortization of prior service costs			2	7				
Amortization of actuarial losses	3		14	5				
Net periodic benefit cost	\$ 60	\$ 20	\$ 109	\$ 124				

Other Postretirement Benefits					
Successor			redecessor		
Year	Period	Period	Year ended		
ended	from	from	December 31,		
December 31,	August 19	January 1 to	2008		
2010	to	October 6,			

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

		December 31, 2009	2009	
	(iı	n millions)	(in million	s)
Service cost	\$	\$	\$ 7 \$	27
Interest cost	1		18	428
Settlement gain			(1,175)	(7,087)
Curtailment gain-PBO	(1)			(8)
Curtailment gain-prior service				(74)
Amortization of prior service costs (credit)			(30)	(108)
Amortization of actuarial losses			9	37
Net periodic benefit cost	\$	\$	\$ (1,171) \$	(6,785)

Net periodic benefit cost above reflects \$5 million and \$32 million that was included in loss from discontinued operations of the Predecessor for the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively.

Experience gains and losses, as well as the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and plan provisions are amortized over the average future service period of employees. The estimated actuarial loss for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost in 2011 is \$2 million.

The principal assumptions used to determine the pension and other postretirement expense and the actuarial value of the projected benefit obligation for the U.S. and non-U.S. pension plan and postretirement plans were:

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31:

		Pension 1		tretirement efits		
	U.S. Plans		Non-U.	S. Plans		
	2010	2009	2010	2009	2010	2009
Weighted-average discount rate	4.10%	5.00%	5.69%	6.00%	4.52%	5.26%
Weighted-average rate of increase in compensation						
levels	N/A	N/A	3.88%	3.90%	4.50%	4.50%
Assumptions used to determine net evolutions for	vears anded De	combor 31.				

Assumptions used to determine net expense for years ended December 31:

	Pension Benefits					Other Po	ostretirement	Benefits	
		U.S. Plans			Non-U.S. Plans				
	2010	2009	2008	2010	2009	2008	2010	2009	2008
Weighted-average discount rate	5.00%	6.16%	6.35%	5.97%	6.22%	5.99%	5.20%	6.12%	6.41%
Weighted-average rate of increase in									
compensation levels	N/A	N/A	4.45%	3.89%	3.95%	4.16%	4.50%	4.50%	4.50%
Expected long-term rate of return on									
plan assets	N/A	8.25%	8.75%	7.14%	7.81%	8.28%	N/A	N/A	N/A

Delphi selects discount rates by analyzing the results of matching each plan s projected benefit obligations with a portfolio of high-quality fixed income investments rated AA-or higher by Standard and Poor s.

In 2010, Delphi no longer has any U.S. pension assets; therefore no U.S. asset rate of return calculation was necessary for 2010. The primary funded non-U.S. plans are in the United Kingdom and Mexico. For the determination of 2010 expense, Delphi assumed a long-term asset rate of return of approximately 6.75% and 10.0% for the United Kingdom and Mexico, respectively. Delphi evaluated input from local actuaries and asset managers, including consideration of recent fund performance and historical returns, in developing the long-term rate of return assumptions. The assumptions for the United Kingdom and Mexico are primarily conservative long-term, prospective rates.

Delphi s pension expense for 2011 is determined at the 2010 measurement date. For purposes of analysis, the following table highlights the sensitivity of the Company s pension obligations and expense to changes in key assumptions:

Change in Assumption	Impact on Pension Expense	Impact on PBO
25 basis point (bp) decrease in discount rate	+ \$2 million	+ \$ 63 million
25 bp increase in discount rate	- \$3 million	- \$59 million
25 bp decrease in long-term return on assets	+ \$2 million	
25 bp increase in long-term return on assets	- \$2 million	

The above sensitivities reflect the effect of changing one assumption at a time. It should be noted that economic factors and conditions often affect multiple assumptions simultaneously and the effects of changes in key assumptions are not necessarily linear. The above sensitivities also assume no changes to the design of the pension plans and no major restructuring programs.

Pension Funding

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

		Projected Pension Benefit Payments				
	U.S. Plans	Non-U				
2011	\$ 8	\$	62	\$	1	
2012	9		58		1	
2013	9		63			
2014	9		67		1	
2015	5		69		1	
2016 2020	45		441		2	
T 1 ' C (1 (11 C') (1	D11' ('' (1') 1	• • • •	c ·	(1 ¢00 '11'		

Inclusive of the expected benefit payments above, Delphi anticipates making required pension contributions of approximately \$80 million in 2011.

Delphi sponsors and the Predecessor sponsored defined contribution plans for certain U.S. hourly and salaried employees. Expense related to the contributions for these plans was \$29 million, \$4 million, \$38 million and \$23 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively.

Plan Assets

The pension plans sponsored by Delphi and the Predecessor invest in a diversified portfolio consisting of an array of asset classes that attempts to maximize returns while minimizing volatility. These asset classes include developed market equities, emerging market equities, private equity, global high quality and high yield fixed income, real estate, and absolute return strategies.

The fair values of Delphi s pension plan assets weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2010 and 2009, by asset category, are as follows:

	Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2010 Quoted Prices						
			Active rkets				
		f	or	Significant	Significant		
		Ide	ntical	Observable	Unobservable		
		As	ssets	Inputs	Inputs		
Asset Category	Total	(Lev	vel 1)	(Level 2)	(Level 3)		
			(iı	n millions)			
Cash	\$ 185	\$	185	\$	\$		
Equity mutual funds	388			388			
Bond mutual funds	234			234			
Debt securities	63		63				
Equity securities	40		40				

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424	31

Total	\$ 910	\$ 288	\$ 622	\$

	Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2009 Quoted Prices							
		in Acti Marke						
		for		Signif	icant	Signi	ificant	
		Identic	al	Obser	vable	Unobs	ervable	
Asset Category	Total	Asset: (Level	1)	Inpo (Leve nillions)		-	puts vel 3)	
Cash	\$ 15	\$	15	\$		\$		
Equity mutual funds	405				405			
Bond mutual funds	157				157			
Real estate trust fund	82						82	
Alternative investments	56						56	
Debt securities	57		57					
Equity securities	26		26					
Total	\$ 798	\$	98	\$	562	\$	138	

	Fair Value Measurements Using Significan Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)				
	Real Estate Trust Fund (in millions)	Inves	rnative tments		
Beginning balance at December 31, 2008	\$ 75	\$	54		
Actual return on plan assets:					
Relating to assets still held at the reporting date	9		9		
Relating to assets sold during the period	(1)				
Purchases, sales, and settlements	(1)		(7)		
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3					
Ending balance at December 31, 2009	\$ 82	\$	56		
Actual return on plan assets:					
Relating to assets still held at the reporting date					
Relating to assets sold during the period	(35)		2		
Purchases, sales, and settlements	(47)		(58)		
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3					
Ending balance at December 31, 2010	\$	\$			

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Environmental Matters

Delphi is subject to the requirements of U.S. federal, state, local and foreign environmental and occupational safety and health laws and regulations. As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the undiscounted reserve for environmental investigation and remediation was approximately \$23 million (of which \$5 million was recorded in accrued liabilities and \$18 million was recorded in other long-term liabilities) and \$21 million (of which \$3 million was recorded in accrued liabilities and \$18 million was recorded in other long-term liabilities), respectively. Delphi cannot ensure that environmental requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that its eventual environmental remediation costs and liabilities will not exceed the amount of its current reserves. In the event that such liabilities were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded, Delphi s results of operations could be materially affected.

Ordinary business litigation

Delphi is from time to time subject to various legal actions and claims incidental to its business, including those arising out of alleged defects, breach of contracts, product warranties, intellectual property matters, and employment-related matters. It is the opinion of Delphi that the outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse impact on the consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows of Delphi. With respect to warranty matters, although Delphi cannot ensure that the future costs of warranty claims by customers will not be material, Delphi believes its established reserves are adequate to cover potential warranty settlements. However, the final amounts required to resolve these matters could differ materially from the Company s recorded estimates.

GM warranty settlement agreement

As previously disclosed, Old GM alleged that catalytic converters supplied to Old GM for certain 2001 and 2002 vehicle platforms did not conform to specifications. In May 2007, Old GM informed the Predecessor that it had experienced higher than normal warranty claims with respect to certain 2003-2005 vehicle models due to instrument clusters. Effective December 2007, the responsibility for this product line was transferred to the Electronics and Safety segment. In 2007, the Predecessor reached a tentative agreement with Old GM to resolve these claims along with certain other known warranty matters. On September 27, 2007, the Court authorized the Predecessor to enter into a Warranty, Settlement, and Release Agreement (the Warranty Settlement Agreement) with Old GM resolving these and certain other known warranty matters. Under the terms of the Warranty Settlement Agreement, the Predecessor agreed to pay Old GM up to an estimated \$199 million, comprised of approximately \$127 million to be paid in cash over time as noted below, and up to approximately \$72 million to be paid in the form of delivery by the Predecessor to Old GM of replacement product. The Warranty Settlement Agreement settled all outstanding warranty claims and issues related to any component or assembly supplied by the Predecessor s responsibility in whole or in part, and (iii) in Old GM s normal investigation process, or which should have been within that process, but were withheld for the purpose of pursuing a claim against the Predecessor.

In conjunction with overall negotiations regarding potential amendments to the plan of reorganization to enable the Predecessor to emerge from chapter 11 as soon as practicable, including discussions regarding support assisting the Predecessor in remaining compliant with the global operating income before depreciation and amortization, including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment, transformation and rationalization charges related to plant consolidations, plant wind-downs, and discontinued operations (EBITDAR) covenants in its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility, Old GM agreed, on July 31, 2008, to forgive certain of the cash amounts due under the Warranty Settlement Agreement. As a result, the Predecessor recorded the extinguishment of this liability as a reduction of warranty expense in 2008, of which \$56 million was included in cost of sales, which had a corresponding favorable impact on operating income, and \$56 million was included in discontinued operations. Delphi assumed the Warranty Settlement Agreement in connection with the Acquisition.

Other warranty matters

The Predecessor began experiencing quality issues regarding parts supplied to Old GM from the Steering Business in 2005 and established warranty reserves to cover the estimated costs of various repairs that may be implemented. The reserve was subsequently reduced due to a settlement reached with GM and the settlement was paid in 2006. The Predecessor negotiated with its supplier to determine if any portion of the expense was recoverable, and in 2008, the Predecessor and the supplier reached an agreement whereby the supplier paid the Predecessor \$17 million to resolve the matter. The \$17 million was recorded as a reduction of warranty expense in discontinued operations.

The Predecessor also began experiencing quality issues regarding parts purchased by the Thermal Systems segment during 2006 and established warranty reserves of approximately \$60 million to cover the cost of various

repairs that may be implemented. During 2008, the Predecessor recovered \$28 million from an affiliated supplier and recorded it as a reduction of warranty expense. The reserve has subsequently been adjusted for payments, settlements and the impact of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the related reserve was \$10 million and \$11 million, respectively.

In 2009, Delphi received information regarding potential warranty claims related to certain components supplied by Delphi s Powertrain segment. Delphi has recorded its best estimate of the warranty obligation related to this matter as of December 31, 2010, and during 2010 recognized warranty expense in cost of sales of approximately \$75 million related to this matter.

Brazil matters

Delphi conducts significant business operations in Brazil that are subject to the Brazilian federal labor, social security, environmental, tax and customs laws, as well as a variety of state and local laws. While Delphi believes it complies with such laws, they are complex, subject to varying interpretations, and the Company is often engaged in litigation with government agencies regarding the application of these laws to particular circumstances. In addition, Delphi also is a party to commercial and labor litigation with private parties. As of December 31, 2010, related claims totaling approximately \$240 million have been asserted against Delphi. As of December 31, 2010, the Company maintains accruals for these asserted claims of approximately \$38 million (using December 31, 2010 foreign currency rates). The amounts accrued represent claims that are deemed probable of loss and are reasonably estimable based on the Company s analyses and assessment of the asserted claims and prior experience with similar matters. While the Company believes its accruals are adequate, the final amounts required to resolve these matters could differ materially from the Company s recorded estimates and Delphi s results of operations could be materially affected.

Romania value added tax (VAT) assessment

During the first quarter of 2010, as a result of a tax audit for years 2006 2008, the Company received a tax assessment from the Romanian tax authorities in the amount of approximately \$42 million based on the taxing authority s assessment that the Company underpaid its VAT (mostly on export sales) by approximately \$24 million and owes accrued interest and penalties of \$18 million. The Company filed an appeal contesting the assessment and during October, 2010, the Romanian tax authorities substantially reduced the amount of the assessment and decided to re-audit the Company. As of December 31, 2010, the Company maintains a reserve for this contingency that is substantially less than the amount of the initial assessment. While the Company believes its reserve is adequate, the final amounts required to resolve this initial assessment could differ materially from the Company s recorded estimate.

Operating leases

Rental expense totaled \$98 million, \$34 million, \$76 million and \$132 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively. As of December 31, 2010, Delphi had minimum lease commitments under noncancelable operating leases totaling \$301 million, which become due as follows:

	Year	Oper Con	num Future rating Lease nmitments millions)
2011		\$	80
2012			66
2013			53
2014			43
2015			35
Thereafter			24
Total		\$	301

16. INCOME TAXES

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and equity income (loss) for U.S. and non-U.S. operations are as follows:

	Sue	cessor		Predecessor				
	Period from Year August 19 ended to December 31, December 32 2010 2009		Year August 1 ended to December 31, December		ust 19 :0 iber 31,	Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009	De	ar ended cember 31, 2008
	(in r	nillions)		(in mi	llions)			
U.S. income (loss)	\$ 313	\$	(86)	\$ 9,460	\$	4,067		
Non-U.S. income (loss)	631		51	(344)		(770)		
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and equity income/(loss)	\$ 944	\$	(35)	\$ 9,116	\$	3,297		

The Predecessor s U.S. income of \$9,460 million for the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 includes a reorganization gain of \$10,210 million primarily relating to the extinguishment of liabilities subject to compromise. The Predecessor s non-U.S. loss of \$770 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 includes an inter-company loss of \$863 million related to an international restructuring transaction. This transaction involved the transfer of certain European subsidiaries to the Predecessor s Luxembourg holding company in exchange for Euro denominated debt which created an inter-company gain in the U.S. and a corresponding foreign loss.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes is comprised of:

	Su	ccessor	Predecessor			
	Year ended December	Period from August 19 to	Period from January 1 to	Year ended December		
	31, 2010	December 31, 2009	October 6, 2009	31, 2008		
	(in I	nillions)	(in mill	ions)		
Current income tax expense:						
U.S. federal	\$ 98	\$ 11	\$	\$		
Non-U.S.	150	51	53	176		
U.S. state and local	10			(1)		
Total current	258	62	53	175		
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense, net:						
U.S. federal	(17)	(41)	(358)	(10)		
Non-U.S.	3	(50)	(13)	(8)		
U.S. state and local		(2)				
Total deferred	(14)	(93)	(371)	(18)		
Investment tax credits				(1)		
Less: income tax benefit related to noncontrolling interest	14	4	7	7		
Total income tax expense (benefit)	\$ 258	\$ (27)	\$ (311)	\$ 163		

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Cash paid or withheld for income taxes was \$254 million, \$20 million, \$92 million and \$141 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively.

A reconciliation of the provision (benefit) for income taxes compared with the amounts at the U.S. federal statutory rate was:

	Suc	ccessor Pe	Predecessor			
	Year	from August 19		Period from January 1		
	ended	1	to	to	Yea	ar ended
	December 31, 2010	December 31, 2009		October 6, 2009	December 31 2008	
	(in n	nillions)		(in m	n millions)	
Tax at U.S. federal statutory income tax rate	\$ 330	\$	(12)	\$ 3,190	\$	1,154
U.S. income taxed at other rates	9		(1)	266		114
Non-U.S. income taxed at other rates	(31)		(16)	56		281
Change in valuation allowance	(21)			(3,464)		(1,403)
Tax Credits	(29)		(10)			
Change in tax law	(15)			(4)		
Other changes in tax reserves	(2)		9			
Other comprehensive income adjustment				(358)		
Withholding taxes	24		2	3		24
Other adjustments	(7)		1			(7)
Total income tax provision (benefit)	\$ 258	\$	(27)	\$ (311)	\$	163

Included in loss from discontinued operations are income tax provisions of \$17 million and \$14 million for the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009, and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively.

Delphi s tax rate is affected by the tax rates in the U.S. and foreign jurisdictions, the relative amount of income earned by jurisdiction, and the relative amount of losses for which no tax benefit was recognized due to a valuation allowance. During the period from January 1 through October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company provided a full valuation allowance on its deferred tax assets in the U.S. due to a history of operating losses and other negative evidence. Since the acquisition, the Company has been in a net deferred tax liability position in the U.S. and no valuation allowance has been recorded. During the period from January 1 through October 6, 2009, the Company recognized tax benefits associated with gains from Other Comprehensive Income of \$358 million (see discussion in Note 14).

Delphi currently experiences tax holidays in various non-U.S. jurisdictions with expiration dates from 2012 through 2023. The income tax benefits attributable to these tax holidays are approximately \$5 million in 2010, \$2 million for January 1 to October 6, 2009, \$1 million for August 19 to December 31, 2009, and \$10 million in 2008.

Deferred income taxes

Delphi accounts for income taxes and the related accounts under the liability method. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflect the impact of temporary differences between amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the bases of such assets and liabilities as measured by tax laws. Significant components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

	2010	Successor December 31 (in millions)	2009
Deferred tax assets:			
Pension and other employee benefits	\$ 161	\$	220
Net operating loss carryforwards	466		460
Tax credits	19		18
Warranty	81		40
Other	149		253
Total gross deferred tax assets	876		991
Less: valuation allowances	(501)		(552)
Total deferred tax assets	\$ 375	\$	439
Deferred tax liabilities:			
Fixed Assets	\$ 18	\$	17
Tax on unremitted profits of certain foreign subsidiaries	16		7
Intangibles	204		238
Total gross deferred tax liabilities	238		262
Net deferred tax assets	\$ 137	\$	177

Net current and non-current deferred tax assets and liabilities are included in the consolidated balance sheets as follows:

		uccessor cember 31		
	2010 (in	millions)	2009	
Current assets	\$ 136	\$	196	
Current liabilities	(4)		(20)	
Long term assets	183		276	
Long term liabilities	(178)		(275)	
Total deferred tax asset	\$ 137	\$	177	

The net deferred tax assets of \$137 million as of December 31, 2010 are primarily comprised of deferred tax asset amounts from the U.K., Poland, Mexico, China and Brazil, offset by a deferred tax liability in the U.S.

Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards

As of December 31, 2010, Delphi has recorded deferred tax assets of approximately \$466 million for non-U.S. net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards with recorded valuation allowances of \$411 million. These NOL s are available to offset future taxable income and realization is dependent on generating sufficient taxable income prior to expiration of the loss carryforwards. The non-U.S. NOL s relate primarily to France,

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Spain, and Luxembourg. The NOL carryforwards have expiration dates ranging from one year to an indefinite period.

Deferred tax assets include \$19 million and \$18 million of tax credit carryforwards at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. These tax credit carryforwards expire in 2011 through 2029.

Cumulative undistributed foreign earnings

Except for withholding taxes of \$16 million on undistributed earnings that are not indefinitely reinvested, no additional material provision has been made for U.S. or non-U.S. income taxes on the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries as the Company has concluded that such earnings are either indefinitely reinvested or should not give rise to additional income tax liabilities as a result of the distribution of such earnings.

Uncertain tax positions

Delphi recognizes tax benefits only for tax positions that are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by tax authorities. The amount recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Unrecognized tax benefits are tax benefits claimed in our tax returns that do not meet these recognition and measurement standards.

A reconciliation of the gross change in the unrecognized tax benefits balance, excluding interest and penalties is as follows:

	Successor Period from Year August 19 ended to December 31, December 31, 2010 2009			Period January Octobe 200 (in	Predecessor Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 (in millions)	
Balance at beginning of period	(in n \$ 83	nillions) \$		millo \$	ons) 79	
Liabilities assumed in the Acquisition	φ 05	ψ	80	Ψ	12	
Additions related to current year	9		10		1	
Additions related to prior year	11		1		6	
Reductions related to prior year	(19)		(6)		(10)	
Reductions due to expirations of statute of limitations	(1)		(1)		(1)	
Settlements-cash	(1)		(1)			
Gain from reorganization					(75)	
Balance at end of period	\$ 82	\$	83	\$		

A portion of our unrecognized tax benefits would, if recognized, reduce our effective tax rate. The remaining unrecognized tax benefits relate to tax positions for which only the timing of the benefit is uncertain. Recognition of these tax benefits would reduce our effective tax rate only through a reduction of accrued interest and penalties. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the amounts of unrecognized tax benefit that would reduce our effective tax rate were \$52 million and \$60 million, respectively.

Delphi recognizes interest and penalties as part of income tax expense. Total accrued liabilities for interest and penalties were \$18 million and \$20 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Total interest and penalties recognized as part of income tax expense (benefit) was a decrease of \$3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, a decrease of \$3 million for the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009, an increase of \$1 million for the Predecessor period from January 1 to October 6, 2009.

Delphi files tax returns in multiple jurisdictions and is subject to examination by taxing authorities throughout the world. Taxing jurisdictions significant to Delphi include U.S., Brazil, China, France, Germany, Mexico, Poland and the U.K. Open tax years related to these foreign taxing jurisdictions remain subject to examination and could result in additional tax liabilities. In general, Delphi affiliates are no longer subject to income tax examinations by foreign tax authorities for years before 2002. It is reasonably possible that audit

settlements, the conclusion of current examinations or the expiration of the statute of limitations in several jurisdictions could impact the Company s unrecognized tax benefits. However, Delphi does not expect the overall change in unrecognized tax benefits over the next twelve months to be significant.

In the U.S., federal income tax returns for years prior to 2009 have been effectively settled. Open tax years related to various states remain subject to examination, but are not considered to be material.

Tax return filing determinations and elections

The Company was established on August 19, 2009 as a limited liability partnership incorporated under the laws of England and Wales and it has elected to be treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. On September 17, 2009, the Internal Revenue Service (the IRS) issued Notice 2009-78 (the Notice) announcing its intent to issue regulations under Section 7874 of the Internal Revenue Code (titled Rules Relating to Expatriated Entities and Their Foreign Parents) with an effective date prior to the Acquisition Date. If regulations as described in the Notice are issued with the effective date indicated in the Notice, the Company believes there is a substantial risk that it could be treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, retroactively as of the Acquisition Date. If the Company is treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, retroactively as of the Acquisition Date. If the Company is treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, retroactively as of the Acquisition Date. If the Company is treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, it would be subject to U.S. federal income tax on its worldwide taxable income including some or all of the distributions from its subsidiaries as well as some of the undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries that constitute controlled foreign corporations. This could have a material adverse impact on the Company s future tax liability related to these distributions and earnings. Also, future cash distributions made by the Company to non-U.S. members could be subject to U.S. income tax withholding at a rate of 30%, unless reduced or eliminated by tax treaty.

Consistent with the election to be treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Company filed an informational 2009 U.S. federal partnership tax return on September 15, 2010. In light of the Notice, the IRS is currently reviewing whether section 7874 applied to Delphi s acquisition of the automotive supply and other businesses of the Predecessor as part of the 2009 Compliance Assurance Process audit of the Predecessor. It is not clear as to when such review will be concluded or its outcome.

17. MEMBERSHIP INTERESTS

In conjunction with the consummation of the Modified Plan on the Acquisition Date, all outstanding shares of stock of the Predecessor were cancelled and Delphi issued membership interests in accordance with the terms of the Acquisition.

As more fully described in Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses, in conjunction with the Acquisition and the consummation of the Modified Plan, on October 6, 2009, the Company and GM collectively acquired substantially all of the assets of the Predecessor, the Class A, B and C membership interests were issued to GM, certain investors, including former creditors of the Predecessor, and the PBGC, respectively, and the debt outstanding from the DIP lenders was settled. In June 2010, 24,000 Class E-1 membership interests were issued to the Board of Managers, as more fully described herein.

The Class A and Class B members received their membership interests in consideration for \$1,833 million and \$209 million of cash, respectively. In addition, the rights of the DIP lenders to receive certain assets of the Predecessor were assigned to the Company. These assets had a fair value of \$2,890 million determined in accordance with FASB ASC 805, *Business Combinations*. The Class A and Class B members received non-controlling representation on Delphi s Board of Managers, and, along with Class C members, rights to potential future distributions by Delphi as defined by the LLP Agreement. The PBGC interests were derived from negotiations between GM and the PBGC with respect to the Predecessor s terminated U.S. pension plans. The Class E-1 membership interests were issued to the Board of Managers under the Class E-1 Interest Incentive Plan in order to attract and reward board members and to promote the creation of long-term value for interest holders of Delphi.

The fair value of the Class A, B and C membership interests issued on October 6, 2009 totaled \$4,932 million, and was determined, as more fully described in Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses, as follows:

	(in r	nillions)
Fair value of Predecessor assets acquired, net of liabilities assumed	\$	2,890
Fair value of cash contributed by GM		1,833
Fair value of cash contributed by investors, including DIP lenders		209
Fair value of net assets acquired	\$	4,932

The fair value of the membership interests issued on the Acquisition Date was allocated between the respective classes based on the distribution provisions of the LLP Agreement. The distribution percentages vary by class of membership interest and by cumulative amount distributed, and, between classes, are not related or proportional to the number of membership interests held.

The following table summarizes the membership interests issued:

Class	Members	Membership Interests Issued	Date Issued	Inter Dece	nbership rests as of ember 31,)10	Inter Dece 20	nbership rests as of ember 31, 009 n millions)	Fair Mei Inter	cation of Value of nbership rests as of uisition Date
А	GM	1,750,000	October 2009	\$	2,083	\$	1,969	\$	1,972
В	DIP Lenders ⁽¹⁾	354,500	October 2009		2,816		2,406		2,418
С	PBGC	100,000	October 2009		646		539		542
E-1	Board of Managers	24,000	June 2010		5				
		Total		\$	5,550	\$	4,914	\$	4,932

(1) Included a controlling equity stake for affiliates of Silver Point Capital and Elliot Management. Since October 6, 2009, Class B

membership interests trade on the 144A market and, therefore, the holders of Class B membership interests change over time. Additionally, the LLP Agreement requires the consent of or provides special rights to Class A and certain Class B membership interest holders with respect to certain events, including changes in corporate governance, the execution of significant transactions and the issuance of additional securities.

In conjunction with the initiation of certain long-term incentive plans during 2010, for the 2010 Board of Managers Class E-1 Interest Incentive Plan (the Plan) and the Value Creation Plan (the VCP), which are both long-term incentive plans designed to assist the Company in attracting, retaining, motivating and rewarding the Board of Managers and key employees of the Company, and promoting the creation of long-term value, the distribution provisions of the LLP Agreement were modified to include provisions for the Class E-1 membership interests and the VCP. The LLP Agreement includes provisions related to future distribution amounts for the Class E-1 and key employee incentive plans based on rates/amounts as defined in the agreement (approximately 2.3%), with ratable reductions in the distribution percentages applied to the Class A, B and C members. Refer to Note 22. Share-Based Compensation for further information.

Total membership interests and current period net income are allocated between the respective classes based on the cumulative distribution provisions of the LLP Agreement. The distribution percentages vary by class of membership interest and by cumulative amount distributed, and, between classes, are not related or proportional to the number of membership interests held. The following table outlines the distribution provisions of the LLP Agreement, excluding the impact of any potential ratable reductions described above:

Cumulative Distribution Amount

(excluding the impact of any potential ratable reductions)		Class	
(in millions)	Α	В	С
\$0 - \$1,000	49.12%	38.60%	12.28%
\$1,000 - \$2,000	57.78%	27.78%	14.44%
\$2,000 - \$2,500	61.39%	27.78%	10.83%
\$2,500 - \$2,642	68.61%	27.78%	3.61%
\$2,642 - \$3,500	24.94%	73.75%	1.31%
\$3,500 - \$3,642	19.69%	73.75%	6.56%
\$3,642 - \$4,000	26.25%	65.00%	8.75%
\$4,000 - \$5,500	17.50%	65.00%	17.50%
\$5,500 - \$6,000	26.25%	65.00%	8.75%
\$6,000 - \$7,000	31.50%	65.00%	3.50%
\$7,000+ (a)	35.00%	65.00%	

(a) Under the terms of the Modified Plan, if cumulative distributions to the members exceed \$7.2 billion, Delphi, as disbursing agent on behalf of DPHH, is required to pay to the holders of allowed general unsecured claims against the Predecessor, \$32.50 for every \$67.50 in excess of \$7.2 billion distributed to the members, up to a maximum amount of \$300 million. This contingency is not considered probable of occurring as of December 31, 2010. Accordingly, no provision for this matter has been recorded as of December 31, 2010.
 Under the terms of the LLP Agreement, distributions from Delphi are generally prohibited unless all of the following conditions are satisfied:

There are no principal amounts outstanding related to the DDTL;

The distribution occurs more than 18 months after the Acquisition Date;

After giving effect to a distribution, Delphi must have at least \$800 million of cash and cash equivalents on hand; and

Delphi s cash flow from operating activities during the six months prior to the distribution date was positive and Delphi is reasonably sure that its cash flows from operating activities will continue to be positive for six months following the distribution date. Net income (loss) per membership interests unit

Total membership interest equity as of October 6, 2009 was allocated to the respective classes of membership interests across all tranches of the cumulative distribution schedule as defined by the LLP Agreement. In subsequent periods total membership interest equity at the end of the period is allocated to the respective classes of membership interests across all tranches of the cumulative distribution schedule as defined by the LLP Agreement. The allocation of the net income (loss) for the period is the difference between the ending and beginning of period allocation of membership interest equity as there were no distributions during this period.

Delphi computes net income (loss) per membership interests unit by dividing its net income (loss) attributable to membership interests by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period. The overall computation and presentation of its net income (loss) per membership interests unit are made in accordance with FASB ASC 260, *Earnings Per Share*.

The following table summarizes the net income (loss) per membership interests unit for each period presented:

	Weighted Average Membership Interests	Year Ended December 31, 2010 Net Income Attributable to Membership Interests	Year Ended December 31, 2010 Net Income Per Membership Interests Unit	Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009 Net Loss Attributable to Membership Interests	Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009 Net Loss Per Membership Interests Unit
Class			(in millions,	except per unit data)	
A	1,750,000	\$114	\$ 65.35	\$ (3)	\$ (1.80)
В	354,500	410	1,156.98	(12)	(33.00)
С	100,000	107	1,064.88	(3)	(31.50)
E-1	12,000		N/A	N/A	N/A
	Total	\$ 631		\$ (18)	

18. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES Financial Instruments

Delphi s financial instruments include its accounts receivable factoring arrangements, capital leases and other debt issued by Delphi s foreign subsidiaries and the Notes. The fair value of these financial instruments is based on quoted market prices for instruments with public market data or the current book value for instruments without a quoted public market price. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the total of the financial instruments listed above was recorded at \$289 million and \$396 million, respectively, and had estimated fair values of \$293 million and \$396 million, respectively. For all other financial instruments recorded at December 31, 2010 and 2009, fair value approximates book value.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Delphi is exposed to market risk, such as fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and changes in interest rates, which may result in cash flow risks. To manage the volatility relating to these exposures, Delphi aggregates the exposures on a consolidated basis to take advantage of natural offsets. For exposures that are not offset within its operations, Delphi enters into various derivative transactions pursuant to its risk management policies, which prohibit holding or issuing derivative financial instruments for trading purposes, and designation of derivative instruments is performed on a transaction basis to support hedge accounting. The changes in fair value of these hedging instruments are offset in part or in whole by corresponding changes in the fair value or cash flows of the underlying exposures being hedged. Delphi assesses the initial and ongoing effectiveness of its hedging relationships in accordance with its documented policy. As of December 31, 2010, Delphi has entered into derivative instruments to hedge cash flows extending out to April 2013.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had the following outstanding notional amounts related to commodity and foreign currency forward contracts that were entered into to hedge forecasted exposures:

Commodity	Quantity Hedged	Successor Unit of Measure in thousands)
Copper	41,517	pounds
Primary Aluminum	27,763	pounds
Secondary Aluminum	18,830	pounds
Silver	119	troy ounces
Gold	6	troy ounces
Platinum	1	troy ounce
Foreign Currency		
		(in millions)
South Korean Won	47,291	KRW
Hungarian Forint	9,907	HUF
Mexican Peso	4,770	MXN
Japanese Yen	2,763	JPY
Chinese Yuan Renminbi	399	CNY
Romanian Leu	341	RON
New Turkish Lira	157	TRY
Euro	91	EUR
Brazilian Real	88	BRL
Polish Zloty	76	PLN
British Pound	55	GBP
Singapore Dollar	28	SGD
The Community had additional families around a strength at the time distinction of the second strength and the second strength at t	14 1 41 010 111	

The Company had additional foreign currency forward contracts that individually amounted to less than \$10 million.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

	Successor					
	Asset Derivati	ves		Liability Derivati	ives	
			ıber 31, 2010			ıber 31, 2010
	Balance Sheet Location			Balance Sheet Location		
Designated derivatives instruments:			(in m	illions)		
Commodity derivatives	Other Current Assets	\$	37	Accrued Liabilities	\$	
Foreign currency derivatives	Other Current Assets		29	Accrued Liabilities		
Foreign currency derivatives*	Accrued Liabilities			Other Current Assets		7
Commodity derivatives	Other Long-Term Assets		11	Other Long-Term Liabilities		
Foreign currency derivatives	Other Long-Term Assets		10	Other Long-Term Assets		4
Total		\$	87		\$	11

Derivatives not designated: None

	Successor						
	Asset Derivat	ives		Liability Derivati	ves		
	Balance Sheet	December	31,		Decem	ber 31,	
	Location	2009		Balance Sheet Location	20	09	
Designated derivatives instruments:			(in n	nillions)			
Commodity derivatives	Other Current Assets	\$	4	Accrued Liabilities	\$	1	
Foreign currency derivatives*	Accrued Liabilities		2	Accrued Liabilities		2	
Commodity derivatives	Other Long-Term Assets		2	Other Long-Term Liabilities			
Foreign currency derivatives	Other Long-Term Assets			Other Long-Term Liabilities		1	
Total		\$	8		\$	4	
		Ŷ	0		Ψ	•	

Derivatives not designated:

None

* Derivative instruments within this category are subject to master netting arrangements and are presented on a net basis in the consolidated balance sheets in accordance with accounting guidance related to the offsetting of amounts related to certain contracts.

The fair value of the net asset position of Delphi s derivative financial instruments increased from December 31, 2009 to December 31, 2010 primarily due to the increase in the market price of commodities and certain foreign currencies.

The effect of derivative financial instruments in the consolidated statement of operations of the Successor for the year ended December 31, 2010 is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2010	Gain Recognized in OCI (Effective Portion)	Successor Gain Reclassified from OCI into Income (Effective Portion) (in millions)	Gain Recognized in Income (Ineffective Portion Excluded from Effectiveness Testing)
Designated derivatives instruments:			
Commodity derivatives	\$ 58	\$ 12	\$
Foreign currency derivatives	48	15	
Total	\$ 106	\$ 27	\$

Year ended December 31, 2010	in In	ecognized come illions)
Derivatives not designated:		
Commodity derivatives	\$	1
Foreign currency derivatives		4
Total	\$	5

The effect of derivative financial instruments in the consolidated statement of operations of the Successor for the period from August 19 to December 31, 2009 is as follows:

Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009	Ga Recogn OC (Effe Port	ized in CI ctive	Successor Gain Reclassified from OCI into Income (Effective Portion) (in millions)	Recogy Inc (Ineff Por Excl fre Effect	ain nized in ome čective tion uded om iveness ting)
Designated derivatives instruments:					
Commodity derivatives	\$	6	\$	\$	
Foreign currency derivatives					1
Total	\$	6	\$	\$	1

The effect of derivative financial instruments in the consolidated statement of operations of the Predecessor for the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 is as follows:

Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009	Loss Recognized in OCI (Effective Portion)) Reci from In (Ef Po	redecessor Loss lassified OCI into come fective rtion) n millions)	Recogr Ince (Ineff Por Exch fre Effecti	ome ective tion
Designated derivatives instruments:					
Commodity derivatives	\$ (43)	\$	(164)	\$	3
Foreign currency derivatives	(111)		(180)		2
Total	\$ (154)	\$	(344)	\$	5

	i	Gain s) Recognized in Income in millions)
Derivatives not designated:		
Commodity derivatives	\$	(15)
Foreign currency derivatives		7
Total	\$	(8)

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

The gain or loss reclassified from OCI into income for the effective portion of designated derivative instruments and the gain or loss recognized in income for the ineffective portion of designated derivative instruments excluded from effectiveness testing were recorded to cost of sales in the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009. The gain or loss recognized in income for the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 in the consolidated statements of operations.

Gains and losses on derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges are recorded in OCI, to the extent that hedges are effective, until the underlying transactions are recognized in earnings. Unrealized amounts in

accumulated OCI will fluctuate based on changes in the fair value of hedge derivative contracts at each reporting period. Net gains included in accumulated OCI as of December 31, 2010 were \$54 million after-tax (\$84 million pre-tax). Of this pre-tax total, a gain of approximately \$61 million is expected to be included in cost of sales within the next 12 months and a gain of approximately \$23 million is expected to be included in cost of sales are discontinued when Delphi determines it is no longer probable that the originally forecasted transactions will occur. The amount included in cost of sales related to hedge ineffectiveness was insignificant for both the year ended December 31, 2010 and the period from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and was a gain of \$6 million and a loss of \$12 million for the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively.

Fair value measurements

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

All derivative instruments are required to be reported on the balance sheet at fair value unless the transactions qualify and are designated as normal purchases or sales. Changes in fair value are reported currently through earnings unless they meet hedge accounting criteria. Delphi s derivative exposures are with counterparties with long-term investment grade credit ratings. Delphi estimates the fair value of its derivative contracts using an income approach based on valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single, discounted amount. Estimates of the fair value of foreign currency and commodity derivative instruments are determined using exchange traded prices and rates. Delphi also considers the risk of non-performance in the estimation of fair value, and includes an adjustment for non-performance risk in the measure of fair value of derivative instruments. The non-performance risk adjustment reflects the credit default spread (CDS) applied to the net commodity and foreign currency exposures by counterparty. When Delphi is in a net derivative asset position, the counterparty CDS rates are applied to the net derivative asset position. When Delphi is in a net derivative liability position, estimates of peer companies CDS rates are applied to the net derivative liability position.

In certain instances where market data is not available, Delphi uses management judgment to develop assumptions that are used to determine fair value. This could include situations of market illiquidity for a particular currency or commodity or where observable market data may be limited. In those situations, Delphi generally surveys investment banks and/or brokers and utilizes the surveyed prices and rates in estimating fair value.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, Delphi was in a net derivative asset position of \$76 million and \$4 million, respectively, and there were no adjustments recorded for nonperformance risk as exposures were to counterparties with investment grade credit ratings.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, Delphi had the following assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

As of December 31, 2010:	Т	otal	Successor Significant Quoted Prices in Other Active Observable Markets Level Inputs 1 Level 2 (in millions))ther ervable 1puts	Significant Unobservable Inputs Level 3
Time deposits	\$	550	\$		\$	550	\$
Available-for-sale securities		12		12			
Commodity derivatives		48				48	
Foreign currency derivatives		28				28	
Total	\$	638	\$	12	\$	626	\$
As of December 31, 2009: Available-for-sale securities Commodity derivatives	\$	23 5	\$	20	\$	3 5	\$
Total	\$	28	\$	20	\$	8	\$
10(a)	φ	20	Ψ	20	φ	0	Ψ

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, Delphi had the following liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

			Successor								
			Quoted Prices in Active Markets Level	Signif Otl Obser Inp	Significant Unobservable Inputs						
As of December 31, 2010:	Total		1	Lev	el 2	Level 3					
AT .			(in mill	ions)							
None											
As of December 31, 2009:											
Foreign currency derivatives	\$	1	\$	\$	1	\$					
0											
Total	\$	1	\$	\$	1	\$					

Fair Value Measurements on a Nonrecurring Basis

In addition to items that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, Delphi also has items in its balance sheet that are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. As these items are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis, they are not included in the tables above. Nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis include long-lived assets, goodwill and intangible assets, asset retirement obligations and liabilities for exit or disposal activities measured at fair value upon initial recognition. No impairment charges were recorded during the year ended December 31, 2010. During the periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009, product-line specific long-lived assets with a carrying value of \$18 million and \$87 million were adjusted to their fair value of \$11 million and \$46 million, resulting in impairment charges of \$17 million and \$41 million, respectively. Fair value of long-lived assets is determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the risk involved and a review of appraisals. As such, Delphi has determined that the fair value measurements of long-lived assets fall in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

19. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), NET

Other income (expense), net included:

	Sur Year ended December 31, 2010	ccessor Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009	Predecessor Period from January 1 to Year ended October 6, December 31, 2009 2008				
	(in 1	nillions)	(in millions)				
Interest income	\$ 29	\$ 5	\$ 10	\$ 36			
Impairment investment in available-for-sale security	(9)						
Loss on extinguishment of debt	(8)			(49)			
Acquisition-related transaction costs		(19)					
Other, net	22	(3)	14	22			
Other income (expense), net	\$ 34	\$ (17)	\$ 24	\$ 9			

During the year ended December 31, 2010, Delphi repaid \$12 million of interest-free government-backed debt due in 2021 which required compensating cash collateral. The debt was previously adjusted to a \$4 million fair value as a result of acquisition accounting and therefore Delphi recognized an \$8 million loss on early extinguishment of debt. Other, net primarily includes insurance and other recoveries and income from royalties.

The Successor recognized \$19 million of transaction costs related to the Acquisition for the period from August 19 to December 31, 2009.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Predecessor recognized a \$49 million loss on extinguishment of debt associated with the recognition of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and the Refinanced DIP Credit Facility. Other, net for the year ended December 31, 2008 includes a \$32 million gain from the sale of an investment accounted for under the cost method that had been previously fully impaired, which was offset by \$16 million of expense related to an allowance recorded against a note receivable.

20. DIVESTITURES

On March 31, 2010, Delphi completed the sale of its occupant protection systems business in Asia (Asian OPS Business) to Autoliv AB. The pro forma total net sales of the Asian OPS Business for the Predecessor period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009 were approximately \$200 million. In total, Delphi received net proceeds of \$73 million and recognized a gain on divestiture of \$10 million, which is included in Cost of sales in the consolidated statement of operations of the Successor for the year ended December 31, 2010. The results of operations, including the gain or loss on divestiture were not significant to the consolidated financial statements in any period presented, and the divestitures did not meet the discontinued operations criteria.

21. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Court approval of Delphi s plan to dispose of the Steering Business and the interiors and closures business triggered held for sale accounting in 2007. The Court approval of bidding procedures for the sale of the remaining assets of the chassis business on April 23, 2009 and subsequent approval of the sale triggered held for sale accounting for the Automotive Holdings Group in the second quarter of 2009.

Steering and halfshaft business

In conjunction with the consummation of the Modified Plan on the Acquisition Date, an affiliate of GM acquired the Steering Business. Refer to Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses for further information. During the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009, the Predecessor recorded a loss of \$24 million, net of tax, due to the results of operations and adjustment of assets held for sale to fair value of the Steering Business. During 2008, the Predecessor recorded a loss of \$34 million, net of tax, due to the results of operations, adjustment of assets held for sale to fair value of the Steering Business as of December 31, 2008 and the effectiveness of the Amended MRA.

Automotive Holdings Group

AHG included various non-core product lines and plant sites that did not fit the Predecessor s strategic framework. As part of the Acquisition, the global suspensions and brake business of AHG was acquired by Delphi. Substantially all of the remainder of AHG emerged from chapter 11 as part of DPHH, and, therefore, is not included in Delphi s consolidated financial statements as of and for the period ended December 31, 2009.

Global suspension and brakes business sale On March 31, 2009, the Predecessor announced that it had entered into an asset sale and purchase agreement with BeijingWest Industries Co., Ltd. (BWI) for the sale of Delphi s remaining chassis business, the global suspension and brakes business, whereby BWI would acquire machinery and equipment, intellectual property and certain real property for a purchase price of approximately \$90 million, which is subject to certain adjustments. Certain customer and supplier contracts were also to be assumed and/or assigned to BWI. The 2008 annual revenues for the global suspension and brakes business were \$670 million. The closing of the sale occurred in October 2009 and Delphi received net proceeds of \$82 million, which, under the terms of the Acquisition were transferred, net of Delphi s costs in connection with the sale, to GM during the Successor period from August 19 to December 31, 2009. During the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009, a held for sale loss of \$29 million was recognized by the Predecessor to reflect the revaluation of the disposal group to fair value based on the estimated proceeds of the sale agreement.

Results of discontinued operations

The Steering Business, through the Acquisition Date and the Automotive Holdings Group, through the date of the respective divestitures within the Automotive Holdings Group, are reported as discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of operations and statement of cash flows of the Predecessor for the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008.

The results of the discontinued operations are summarized as follows:

	Pred Period from	decessor		
	January 1 to October 6, 2009	Dece	ar ended ember 31, 2008	
	(in n	millions)		
Total sales	\$ 1,524	\$	3,575	
Loss before income taxes (including equity income, net of tax)	\$ (28)	\$	(83)	
Provision for income taxes	(17)		(14)	
Loss attributable to discontinued operations	\$ (45)	\$	(97)	

22. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Board of Managers Equity Award

In June 2010, the 2010 Board of Managers Class E-1 Interest Incentive Plan (the Plan) was authorized in order to attract and reward board members and to promote the creation of long-term value for interest holders of Delphi. On June 30, 2010, board members received 24,000 restricted interests of a newly created class of membership interests (Class E-1 Interests). The restricted interests are subject to continued service through applicable vesting dates as follows:

20% on November 1, 2010

40% on November 1, 2011

40% on November 1, 2012

Under certain conditions with respect to an initial public offering or a change in control, as defined in the Plan, any interests that have not yet vested may immediately become vested. All unvested Class E-1 Interests will fully vest in the event of a completed initial public offering if the resulting total equity valuation of the Company (based on the average closing price of Delphi shares during the 15-day period beginning on the 30th day after the closing of the offering), plus the value of prior distributions made under the LLP Agreement to holders of membership interests and any amounts distributed to holders of Class E-1 Interests with respect to or to repurchase their Class E-1 Interests, is at least \$6 billion. In addition, upon the completion of an initial public offering, all outstanding membership interests will be converted to ordinary shares.

Approximately \$14 million of compensation expense will be recognized through the remainder of the vesting period. This amount would be recognized immediately if the criteria for immediate vesting are met.

The fair market value of the Class E-1 Interests was estimated to be \$19 million, based on a contemporaneous valuation performed by an independent valuation specialist, utilizing generally accepted valuation approaches. Beginning in the third quarter of 2010, Delphi recognized compensation cost on a straight-line basis. Compensation expense recognized during the year ended December 31, 2010 totaled \$5 million, net of tax. There were no cash flow impacts for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Executive Long Term Incentive Plan

During the second quarter of 2010, the Board of Managers approved and authorized the VCP, a long-term incentive plan designed to assist the Company in attracting, retaining, motivating and rewarding key employees of the Company, and promoting the creation of long-term value. Participants were granted an award in September 2010 for the period ending December 31, 2012. Each individual participant s target value was based on the participants level of responsibility within the Company and the country in which the participant is located. The awards cliff vest fully at the end of the performance period, but may immediately become fully vested upon a change in control, as defined in the VCP, for certain participants. In the event of a qualified termination, as defined, the participant shall vest in a pro-rata percentage of their award as of the termination date. For any other termination, the award shall be forfeited.

The amounts to be settled under the VCP will be determined based on Delphi s enterprise value and accrued distributions (as defined in the VCP) as of December 31, 2012, compared to a target enterprise value of \$8.25 billion. An enterprise value of \$2.5 billion must be achieved to receive a minimum award payout and above this level the payout is determined as a percentage of the target award. The authorized target amount of the awards is \$135 million (of which \$108 million are outstanding as of December 31, 2010), but the ultimate final

settlement amount of the awards could be higher or lower, depending on the enterprise value of Delphi at December 31, 2012. The estimated fair value of the awards granted as of December 31, 2010 was \$171 million. In the event of a completed initial public offering, the estimated enterprise value will be based on the average closing market price of the Company between the first day of trading on a public exchange and the end of the performance period, plus any accrued distributions. Delphi recognized compensation cost in 2010 and will continue to recognize compensation cost, based on estimates of the enterprise value, over the requisite vesting periods of the awards. Compensation expense recognized during the year ended December 31, 2010 totaled \$31 million (\$21 million, net of tax). Based on the estimate of enterprise value as of December 31, 2010, unrecognized compensation expense on a pretax basis of approximately \$140 million is anticipated to be recognized on a straight-line basis during 2011 and 2012. There were no cash flow impacts for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Final settlement can be made in cash, membership interests, common stock or a combination thereof as provided in the participation agreement or as otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Managers.

The VCP awards are accounted for as liability awards pursuant to FASB ASC 718, *Compensation Stock Compensation*. Estimating the fair value of the liability awards under the VCP requires assumptions regarding the Company s enterprise value. Any differences in actual results from management s estimates could result in fair values different from estimated fair values, which could materially impact the Company s future results of operations and financial condition. The fair market value of the liability awards under the VCP is based on contemporaneous valuations performed by an independent valuation specialist, utilizing generally accepted valuation approaches.

Significant Factors, Assumptions, and Methodologies Used in Estimating Fair Value of Enterprise Value for VCP Awards and Fair Value of E-1 Interests

The estimated fair value of the Class E-1 Interests were based on a contemporaneous valuation performed as of the grant date. The liability awards under the VCP were based on contemporaneous valuations performed periodically by an independent valuation specialist. Both the Class E-1 Interests and VCP valuations utilize appropriate weighting of the market and income approaches.

Market Approach: The market approach measures the value of a company through analysis of recent sales or offerings of comparable companies (see Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses for further description of the market approach). Based on analysis of guideline public companies and guideline merged or acquired companies, Delphi utilized 2010 EBITDA multiples and 2011 EBITDA multiples of 4.5x-6.0x to value the Class E-1 Interests and VCP awards.

In addition to the guideline public company and guideline merged or acquired company approaches, the Company considered the trading price of its Class B membership interests by qualified institutional investors in determining the enterprise value of the Company.

Income Approach: The income approach derives the value of a company based on assumptions about the company s future stream of cash flows (see Note 1. General and Acquisition of Predecessor Businesses for further description of the income approach). Delphi provided its independent valuation specialist with projected net sales, expenses and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 for the Class E-1 awards and for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 for the VCP awards. These financial projections represent management s best estimate at the time of the contemporaneous valuations. Discount rates used to determine the present value of future cash flows were based on the weighted average cost of capital which ranged from 11.6%-13.7%.

Predecessor Plans

At the Acquisition Date, all outstanding common stock of the Predecessor, including all stock options exercisable, were cancelled. Prior to the Acquisition Date, the Predecessor s share-based compensation programs included stock options, restricted stock units, and stock appreciation rights. Approximately \$10 million of share-based compensation cost was recognized during the year ended December 31, 2008. In May 2008, the Predecessor cancelled all non-vested restricted stock units, resulting in the recording of \$7 million of unrecognized compensation cost.

23. SEGMENT REPORTING

Effective December 2010, Delphi realigned its segment reporting to reflect certain items previously included in the Eliminations and Other segment within its core business segments. Delphi operates its core business along the following operating segments, which are grouped on the basis of similar product, market and operating factors.

Electronics and Safety, which includes component and systems integration expertise in audio and infotainment, body controls and security systems, displays, mechatronics, safety electronics and electric and hybrid electric vehicle power electronics, as well as advanced development of software.

Powertrain Systems, which includes extensive systems integration expertise in gasoline, diesel and fuel handling and full end-to-end systems including fuel injection, combustion, electronics controls, exhaust handling, test and validation capabilities, diesel and automotive aftermarket, and original equipment service.

Electrical/Electronic Architecture, which includes complete electrical architecture and component products.

Thermal Systems, which includes heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) systems, components for multiple transportation and other adjacent markets, and powertrain cooling and related technologies.

Eliminations and Other, which includes i) the elimination of inter-segment transactions, and ii) certain other expenses and income of a non-operating or strategic nature.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies, except that the disaggregated financial results for the segments have been prepared using a management approach, which is consistent with the basis and manner in which management internally disaggregates financial information for the purposes of assisting internal operating decisions. Generally, Delphi evaluates performance based on stand-alone segment EBITDAR and accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, at current market prices. Through December 31, 2010, Delphi s management believed that EBITDAR was a meaningful measure of performance and it was used by management to analyze Company and stand-alone segment operating performance. Management also used EBITDAR for planning and forecasting purposes. Effective January 1, 2011, Delphi s management began utilizing segment operating income before depreciation and amortization, including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment (EBITDA) as a key performance measure because its restructuring was substantially completed in 2010. Segment EBITDAR should not be considered substitutes for results prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and should not be considered alternatives to net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor, which is the most directly comparable financial measure to EBITDA and EBITDAR that is in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Segment EBITDA and EBITDAR, as determined and measured by Delphi, should also not be compared to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

Included below are sales and operating data for Delphi s segments for the year ended December 31, 2010, periods from August 19 to December 31, 2009 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, as well as balance sheet data as of December 31, 2010 and 2009.

	Successor										
	Electronics and Safety		wertrain ystems	Ele	ectrical/ ectronic hitecture		nermal /stems		inations and her(a)		Total
2010:					(in m	illion	s)				
Net sales	\$ 2,721	\$	4,086	\$	5,620	\$	1,603	\$	(213)	\$	13,817
EBITDA	\$ 247	\$	361	\$	650	\$	109	\$	(6)	\$	1,361
EBITDAR	\$ 293	\$	423	\$	758	\$	165	\$	(6)	\$	1,633
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 100	\$	170	\$	108	\$	42	\$	1	\$	421
Operating income (loss) (b)	\$ 147	\$	191	\$	542	\$	67	\$	(7)	\$	940
Equity income (loss)	\$ (3)	\$	2	\$	7	\$	8	\$	3	\$	17
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest	\$ 1	\$	28	\$	31	\$	12	\$		\$	72

	Successor											
	Elec	tronics			Ele	ctrical/			Elimi	nations		
		and		ertrain		ectronic		ermal		nd		
	S	afety	Sy	stems	Arcl	hitecture	•	stems	Oth	er(a)		Total
August 19 December 31, 2009:						(in m	illions)				
Net sales	\$	761	\$	957	\$	1,325	\$	365	\$	13	\$	3,421
EBITDA	\$	17	\$	9	\$	94	\$	8	\$	1	\$	129
EBITDAR	\$	56	\$	79	\$	155	\$	21	\$	2	\$	313
Depreciation & Amortization	\$	39	\$	52	\$	31	\$	17	\$		\$	139
Operating income (loss) (c)	\$	(22)	\$	(43)	\$	63	\$	(9)	\$	1	\$	(10)
Equity income (loss)	\$	1	\$		\$	5	\$		\$	(1)	\$	5
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest	\$		\$	5	\$	9	\$	1	\$		\$	15

	Predecessor											
	Electronics and Safety	Powertrain Systems		Electrical/ Electronic Architecture		Thermal Systems		Eliminations and Other(a)			Total	
January 1 October 6, 2009:					(in m	illions	5)					
Net sales	\$ 1,801	\$	2,667	\$	2,970	\$	1,008	\$	(112)	\$	8,334	
EBITDA	\$ (319)	\$	(71)	\$	(132)	\$	4	\$	4	\$	(514)	
EBITDAR	\$ (214)	\$	(9)	\$	(18)	\$	17	\$	(5)	\$	(229)	
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 177	\$	163	\$	147	\$	53	\$		\$	540	
Operating income (loss) (d)	\$ (496)	\$	(234)	\$	(279)	\$	(49)	\$	(60)	\$	(1,118)	
Equity income (loss)	\$ (13)	\$	(9)	\$	4	\$	(12)	\$	(6)	\$	(36)	
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest	\$ 1	\$	9	\$	12	\$	6	\$	1	\$	29	

	Predecessor Electronics Electrical/ Eli								inations		
	and Safety	Powertrain Systems		Electronic Architecture		Thermal Systems		and Other(a)		Total	
2008:	-	·		(in millions)							
Net sales	\$ 4,048	\$	5,368	\$	5,649	\$ 2	2,121	\$	(378)	\$ 16,808	
EBITDA	\$ (199)	\$	218	\$	65	\$	125	\$	(420)	\$ (211)	
EBITDAR	\$	\$	251	\$	195	\$	76	\$	(253)	\$ 269	
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 261	\$	269	\$	205	\$	87	\$		\$ 822	
Goodwill impairment	\$ 157	\$		\$	168	\$		\$		\$ 325	
Operating (loss) income (e)	\$ (617)	\$	(51)	\$	(308)	\$	38	\$	(487)	\$ (1,425)	
Equity income	\$	\$	3	\$	9	\$	6	\$	11	\$ 29	
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest	\$	\$	13	\$	12	\$	4	\$		\$ 29	

Balance as of:	Electronics and Safety	and Powert		Electrical/ Electronic Architecture (in n		Thermal Systems nillions)		Eliminations and Other(a)		Total
Successor - December 31, 2010										
Investment in affiliates	\$ 61	\$	53	\$	85	\$	60	\$	22	\$ 281
Capital expenditures	\$ 59	\$	186	\$	202	\$	35	\$	18	\$ 500
Segment assets	\$ 1,905	\$	3,718	\$	3,336	\$	898	\$	1,225	\$ 11,082
Successor - December 31, 2009										
Investment in affiliates	\$ 66	\$	56	\$	74	\$	54	\$	20	\$ 270
Capital expenditures (August 19-December 31,										
2009)	\$ 14	\$	41	\$	21	\$	8	\$	4	\$ 88
Segment assets	\$ 2,326	\$	3,468	\$	3,082	\$	824	\$	607	\$ 10,307
Predecessor - October 6, 2009										
Capital expenditures (January 1-October 6, 2009)	\$ 58	\$	167	\$	60	\$	29	\$	7	\$ 321

- (a) Eliminations and Other includes the elimination of inter-segment transactions and charges related to U.S. employee workforce transition programs in the amount of \$69 million in 2008 (Refer to Note 13. U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Programs).
- (b) Includes charges recorded in 2010 related to costs associated with employee termination benefits and other exit costs of \$29 million for Electronics and Safety, \$49 million for Powertrain Systems, \$94 million for Electrical/Electronic Architecture and \$52 million for Thermal Systems.
- (c) Includes charges recorded from August 19 to December 31, 2009 related to long-lived asset impairments and costs associated with employee termination benefits and other exit costs of \$20 million for Electronics and Safety, \$62 million for Powertrain Systems, \$50 million for Electrical/Electronic Architecture, \$10 million for Thermal Systems, and \$1 million for Eliminations and Other.
- (d) Includes charges recorded from January 1 to October 6, 2009 related to long-lived asset impairments and costs associated with employee termination benefits and other exit costs of \$128 million for Electronics and Safety, \$46 million for Powertrain Systems, \$100 million for Electrical/Electronic Architecture, \$13 million for Thermal Systems, and \$(11) million for Eliminations and Other.
- (e) Includes charges recorded in 2008 related to long-lived asset and goodwill impairments and costs associated with employee termination benefits and other exit costs of \$322 million for Electronics and Safety, \$69 million for Powertrain Systems, \$252 million for Electrical/Electronic Architecture and \$35 million for Thermal Systems.

The reconciliation of EBITDAR to EBITDA includes other transformation and rationalization costs related to 1) the implementation of information technology systems to support finance, manufacturing and product development initiatives, 2) certain plant consolidations and closures costs, and 3) consolidation of many staff administrative functions into a global business service group, and 4) employee benefit plan settlements in Mexico. The reconciliation of EBITDA to net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor follows:

		Successor Electrical/									
2010	Electronics and Safety	Powertrain Systems		Ele	Electronic Architecture		Thermal Systems		Eliminations and Other		fotal
2010: EBITDAR	\$ 293	\$	423	\$	(in m 758	illions) \$	165	¢	(6)	\$	1,633
	\$ 295	ф	423	¢	138	\$	105	\$	(6)	\$	1,055
Transformation and rationalization charges:											
Employee termination benefits and other exit	(20)		(40)		(0.4)		(50)				(22.4)
costs	(29)		(49)		(94)		(52)				(224)
Other transformation and rationalization costs	(17)		(13)		(14)		(4)				(48)
EBITDA	\$ 247	\$	361	\$	650	\$	109	\$	(6)		1,361
Depreciation and amortization	(100)		(170)		(108)		(42)		(1)		(421)
1			. ,								
Operating income (loss)	\$ 147	\$	191	\$	542	\$	67	\$	(7)		940
Interest expense											(30)
Other income, net											34
Income from continuing operations before											
income taxes and equity income											944
Income tax expense											(258)
Equity income, net of tax											17
Net income										\$	703
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest											72
Net income attributable to Successor										\$	631

	Elec	tronics			Elec	Suc strical/	ccessor					
4 (10 D 1 01 0000	and Safety		Powertrain Systems		Electronic Architecture		Thermal Systems		Eliminations and Other		1	Total
August 19 December 31, 2009: EBITDAR	\$ 56		\$ 79		\$ 155		millions) \$ 21		\$ 2		\$ 313	
Transformation and rationalization charges:	Ą	50	φ	19	φ	155	φ	21	Ŷ	2	φ	515
Employee termination benefits and other exit												
costs		(20)		(50)		(50)		(5)		(1)		(126)
Other transformation and rationalization costs		(19)		(20)		(11)		(8)				(58)
EBITDA	\$	17	\$	9	\$	94	\$	8	\$	1		129
Depreciation and amortization		(39)		(52)	·	(31)	·	(17)				(139)
Operating (loss) income	\$	(22)	\$	(43)	\$	63	\$	(9)	\$	1		(10)

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Interest expense	(8)
Other expense, net	(17)
Loss from continuing operations before income	
taxes and equity income	(35)
Income tax benefit	27
Equity income, net of tax	5
Net loss	\$ (3)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest	15
Net loss attributable to Successor	\$ (18)

						ecessor					
	Electronics and Safety		ertrain stems	Ele	ctrical/ ctronic itecture (in n		ermal stems		nations Other]	fotal
January 1 October 6, 2009:											
EBITDAR	\$ (214)	\$	(9)	\$	(18)	\$	17	\$	(5)	\$	(229)
Transformation and rationalization charges:											
Employee termination benefits and other											
exit costs	(91)		(45)		(99)		(11)		11		(235)
Other transformation and rationalization	(1.4)		(17)		(1.5)						(50)
costs	(14)		(17)		(15)		(2)		(2)		(50)
EBITDA	\$ (319)	\$	(71)	\$	(132)	\$	4	\$	4		(514)
Depreciation and amortization	(177)		(163)		(147)		(53)				(540)
Discontinued operations									(64)		(64)
Operating loss	\$ (496)	\$	(234)	\$	(279)	\$	(49)	\$	(60)		(1, 118)
-F	+ (•)	Ŧ	()	Ŧ	(=,)	-	()	Ŧ	(00)		(-,)
Other income, net											24
Reorganization items											10,210
Reorganization nems											10,210
Income from continuing operations before											0.116
income taxes and equity loss											9,116
Income tax benefit											311
Equity loss, net of tax Loss from discontinued operations, net of											(36)
tax											(44)
ал											(++)
N7 - 1										¢	0.045
Net income										\$	9,347
Net income attributable to noncontrolling											29
interest											29
Net income attributable to Predecessor										\$	9,318

	Predecessor Electronics Electrical/											
		and afety		ertrain stems	Elec	trical/ tronic itecture (in mill	Sys	ermal stems		inations Other	Т	otal
2008:												
EBITDAR	\$		\$	251	\$	195	\$	76	\$	(253)	\$	269
Transformation and rationalization charges:												
U.S. employee workforce transition program												
charges										(69)		(69)
GM settlement MRA		42		94		15		88		(50)		189
Employee termination benefits and other exit												
costs		(150)		(69)		(82)		(25)				(326)
Loss on divestitures		(13)		(14)								(27)
Other transformation and rationalization costs		(78)		(44)		(63)		(14)		(48)		(247)
EBITDA	\$	(199)	\$	218	\$	65	\$	125	\$	(420)		(211)
Depreciation and amortization		(261)		(269)		(205)		(87)				(822)
Goodwill impairment		(157)		()		(168)		()				(325)
Discontinued operations										(67)		(67)
*										. /		. /
Operating (loss) income	\$	(617)	\$	(51)	\$	(308)	\$	38	\$	(487)	(1,425)

Interact expense	(434)
Interest expense	
Other income, net	9
Reorganization items	5,147
Income from continuing operations before	
income taxes and equity income	3,297
Income tax expense	(163)
Equity income, net of tax	29
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax	(97)
Net income	\$ 3,066
Net income attributable to noncontrolling	
interest	29
Net income attributable to Predecessor	\$ 3.037

Information concerning principal geographic areas is set forth below. Net sales data reflects the manufacturing location and is for the year ended December 31, 2010, the periods from August 19 to December 31 and January 1 to October 6, 2009 and year ended December 31 2008. Net property data is as of December 31.

				Succe	essor					Period from nuary 1 to	Pr	edecessor		
		Year Decembe			Pe	riod from Decembe	er 31, 2			ember 31, 2009		Year December	ended r 31, 2	
	Ν	et Sales	Pro	perty(a)	N	et Sales	Pro	perty(a)	Ne	et Sales	Ν	et Sales	Pro	perty(a)
				(in mil	lions))					(in	millions)		
United States	\$	4,529	\$	417	\$	1,083	\$	430	\$	3,107	\$	6,994	\$	1,144
Other North America		76		134		16		109		24		63		252
Europe, Middle East & Africa(b)		5,892		1,045		1,448		1,047		3,330		6,950		1,388
Asia Pacific		2,177		325		590		272		1,223		1,747		386
South America		1,143		146		284		102		650		1,054		129
Total	\$	13,817	\$	2,067	\$	3,421	\$	1,960	\$	8,334	\$	16,808	\$	3,299

(a) Net property data represents property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation.

(b) Includes our country of domicile, the United Kingdom. We have net sales of \$690 million, \$159 million, \$394 million and \$1,047 million in the United Kingdom for the year ended December 31, 2010, the period from August 19 to December 31, 2009, the period from January 1 to October 6, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008 respectively. We have net property in the United Kingdom of \$137 million, \$141 million and \$171 million as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

24. QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following is a condensed summary of the Company s unaudited quarterly results of continuing operations for fiscal 2010 and 2009. The historical data included for the three months ended December 31, 2009 represents the Successor s historical financial statements for the period from August 19, 2009 to December 31, 2009 (the Successor had no material or substantive transactions from its incorporation on August 19, 2009 to the Acquisition) and the data included for the three months ended March 31, June 30 and September 30, 2009 represents the Predecessor s historical financial statements for the period from January 1, 2009 to October 6, 2009 (the activity from October 1 through October 6, 2009 is included in the three months ended September 30, 2009).

The historical data included for all 2009 periods and the data for the 2010 periods ended March 31, June 30 and September 30 has been reclassified to conform to the December 31, 2010 presentation. The Company has reclassified amounts from cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses to restructuring and has also included depreciation expense in cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses, as applicable. In addition, the 2010 periods ended March 31 and June 30 also include measurement period adjustments totaling \$11 million of reduced depreciation expense.

	Ma	arch 31,	յւ	ıne 30,	Three 1 Se	accessor nonths en ept. 30, millions)	Dec. 31,	Total
2010								
Net sales	\$	3,410	\$	3,446	\$	3,309	\$ 3,652	\$ 13,817
Cost of sales		2,848		2,903		2,807	3,210	11,768
Gross profit	\$	562	\$	543	\$	502	\$ 442	\$ 2,049
Operating income	\$	324	\$	297	\$	206	\$ 113	\$ 940
Net income	\$	235	\$	233	\$	144	\$ 91	\$ 703
Net income attributable to Successor	\$	215	\$	214	\$	127	\$ 75	\$ 631
Net income per membership interests unit								
Class A	\$	21.50	\$	21.40	\$	12.70	\$ 	\$ 65.35
Class B		394.22		392.38		232.86	137.52	1,156.98
Class C		376.25		374.50		222.25	91.88	1,064.88
Class E-1								

	Ma	T arch 31, (in million	hree m Ju	decessor onths endo ine 30, ot per shar	Se	ept. 30, ints)	Thre e	ccessor e months ended ec. 31, (in m	illions)	Total
2009										
Net sales	\$	2,409	\$	2,775	\$	3,150	\$	3,421	\$	11,755
Cost of sales		2,621		2,830		3,029		3,047		11,527
Gross profit	\$	(212)	\$	(55)	\$	121	\$	374	\$	228
Operating loss	\$	(520)	\$	(357)	\$	(241)	\$	(10)	\$	(1,128)
Income (loss) from continuing		()		(/			·			() -/
operations (a)	\$	538	\$	(564)	\$	9,417	\$	(3)	\$	9,388
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax		18		(28)		(34)				(44)
Net income (loss)	\$	556	\$	(592)	\$	9,383	\$	(3)	\$	9,344
Net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor	\$	552	\$	(603)	\$	9,369	\$	(18)	\$	9,300
Basic and diluted (loss) income per share Continuing operations	\$	0.95	\$	(1.02)	\$	16.65	\$		\$	·

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1											
Discontinued operations			0.03		(0.05)		(0.06)				
Basic and diluted loss per share		\$	0.98	\$	(1.07)	\$	16.59	\$		\$	
Net loss per membership interests unit											
Class A		\$		\$		\$		\$	(1.80)	\$	
Class B									(33.00)		
Class C									(31.50)		
Common stock price											
High		\$	0.17	\$	0.12	\$	0.09	\$	N/A	\$	N/A
Low		\$	0.03	\$	0.05	\$	0.04	\$	N/A	\$	N/A

(a) Income (Loss) from continuing operations includes the reorganization gain of \$11,159 million in the third quarter of 2009 related to the extinguishment of liabilities subject to compromise.

SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

	Beg	lance at inning of Period	Ch C	dditions harged to osts and xpenses	Deductions Other Activity (in millions)		lance at of Period	
Successor								
December 31, 2010:								
Allowance for doubtful accounts	\$	33	\$	45	\$	(12)	\$ (2)	\$ 64
Tax valuation allowance	\$	552	\$	8	\$	(35)	\$ (24)	\$ 501
Period from August 19 to December 31, 2009:								
Allowance for doubtful accounts	\$		\$	33	\$		\$	\$ 33
Tax valuation allowance	\$	490	\$	46	\$		\$ 16	\$ 552
Predecessor								
Period from January 1 to October 6, 2009:								
Allowance for doubtful accounts	\$	134	\$	22	\$	(47)	\$ (109)	\$
Tax valuation allowance	\$	9,144	\$	(237)	\$		\$ (8,417) ⁽¹⁾	\$ 490
December 31, 2008:								
Allowance for doubtful accounts	\$	112	\$	63	\$	(34)	\$ (7)	\$ 134
Tax valuation allowance	\$	9,744	\$	(1,726)	\$	(8)	\$ 1,134	\$ 9,144

(1) Other activity represents the loss of Delphi s U.S. net operating loss carry forwards and other tax attributes in connection with the October 6, 2009 acquisition of substantially all of the Predecessor s businesses, resulting in a corresponding reduction in the valuation allowance.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE LLP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

		Three months ended September 30,				Nine months ended September 30,			
		2011		2010		2011	1001 30	, 2010	
NT / 1	¢	2.021	¢		nillions)		¢	10.165	
Net sales Operating expenses:	\$	3,931	\$	3,309	\$	12,141	\$	10,165	
Cost of sales		3,294		2,807		10,165		8,558	
Selling, general and administrative		222		2,807		667		604	
Amortization		19		207		56		52	
Restructuring (Note 7)		3		68		20		124	
Total operating expenses		3,538		3,103		10,908		9,338	
Operating income		393		206		1,233		827	
Interest expense		(37)		(6)		(84)		(22)	
Other income, net (Note 14)		14		5		13		7	
Income before income taxes and equity income		370		205		1,162		812	
Income tax expense		(87)		(62)		(276)		(209)	
Income before equity income		283		143		886		603	
Equity income, net of tax		2		1		25		9	
Net income		285		144		911		612	
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests		19		17		56		56	
Net income attributable to Delphi	\$	266	\$	127	\$	855	\$	556	
Net income attributable to membership interests:									
Class A	\$		\$	22	\$	76	\$	97	
Class B		265		83		751		362	
Class C				22		25		97	
Class E-1		1				3			
Total	\$	266	\$	127	\$	855	\$	556	
Net income per membership interests unit									
Class A	\$		\$	12.68	\$	43.50	\$	55.58	
Class B		748.29		232.42	2	,119.04		1,019.02	
Class C				221.83		253.78		972.58	
Class E-1		61.91				125.31			

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE LLP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

	September 30, 2011 (Unaudited	at September 30, 2011	December 31, 2010
ASSETS			
Current assets:			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 1,38	6 \$ 1,252	\$ 3,219
Restricted cash	1	0	47
Time deposits			550
Accounts receivable, net	2,64	4	2,307
Inventories (Note 3)	1,14	6	988
Other current assets (Note 4)	62	1	555
Total current assets	5,80	7 5,673	7,666
Long-term assets:			
Property, net	2,18	5	2,067
Investments in affiliates	25	9	281
Intangible assets, net	62	3	665
Other long-term assets (Note 4)	44	4	403
Total long-term assets	3,51	1	3,416
Total assets	\$ 9,31	8 \$ 9,184	\$ 11,082
LIABILITIES AND OWNERS EQUITY			
Current liabilities:			
Short-term debt (Note 8)	\$ 12		\$ 218
Accounts payable	2,38		2,236
Accrued liabilities (Note 5)	1,37	4	1,265
Total current liabilities	3,88	1	3,719
Long-term liabilities:			
Long-term debt (Note 8)	2,05		71
Pension and other postretirement benefit obligations	68		677
Other long-term liabilities (Note 5)	60	5	516
Total long-term liabilities	3,33	9	1,264
Total liabilities	7,22	0	4,983
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)			
Owners equity:			
Membership interests (Note 12)	1,70	6 1,572	5,550
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):			
Employee benefit plans	5		59
Other	(12	9)	32

Edgar Filing:	Delphi Automotive	PLC - Form 424B1
---------------	-------------------	------------------

Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)	(70)		91
Total Delphi owners equity	1,636	1,502	5,641
Noncontrolling interests	462		458
Total owners equity	2,098	1,964	6,099
Total liabilities and owners equity	\$ 9,318	\$ 9,184	\$ 11,082

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE LLP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities: Net income	2011 (in mill	2010
Net income	(in mill	
Net income		ions)
	\$ 911	\$ 612
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:	ψ)II	φ 012
Depreciation	300	259
Amortization	56	52
Amortization of debt issuance costs	6	02
Restructuring expense, net of cash paid	(71)	(90)
Deferred income taxes	17	(13)
Pension and other postretirement benefit expenses	56	48
Equity income, net of dividends received	(15)	(7)
Gain on sale of equity investment	(8)	(*,
Loss on extinguishment of debt	14	8
Gain on sale of investments / assets	11	(20)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:		(20)
Accounts receivable, net	(334)	(192)
inventories	(156)	(143)
Other assets	(79)	84
Accounts payable	185	245
Accrued and other long-term liabilities	91	58
Other, net	(13)	2
Pension contributions and other postretirement benefit payments	(51)	(48)
Net cash provided by operating activities	909	855
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Capital expenditures	(454)	(281)
Purchase of time deposits		(200)
Maturity of time deposits	550	200
Proceeds from sale of property	26	16
Cost of acquisitions, net of cash acquired	(17)	
Proceeds from divestitures, net		83
Decrease in restricted cash	37	30
Proceeds from sale of equity investment	38	
Acquisition of minority held shares	(5)	
Other, net		4
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	175	(148)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Cash flows from financing activities:	(106)	(70)
Net repayments under other short-term debt agreements	(106)	(79)
Repayments under long-term debt agreements	0.005	(13)
Proceeds from issuance of senior secured term loans, net of issuance costs	2,385	
Repayment of senior secured term loans Proceeds from issuance of amended senior secured term loans, net of issuance costs	(1,440) 977	

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

Repayment of senior unsecured five-year notes	(57)	
Dividend payments of consolidated affiliates to minority shareholders	(29)	(25)
Redemption/repurchase of membership interests	(4,638)	
Net cash used in financing activities	(2,908)	(117)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents	(9)	8
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents	(1,833)	598
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	3,219	3,107
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$ 1,386	\$ 3,705

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE LLP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Unaudited)

	Three months ended September 30,			Nine months Enc September 30				
	2	2011	2	2010 (in mi	2 illions)	2011	2	2010
Net income	\$	285	\$	144	\$	911	\$	612
Other comprehensive (loss) income:								
Currency translation adjustments		(164)		113		(47)		(1)
Net change in unrecognized (loss) gain on derivative instruments, net of tax of \$57 million, \$(17) million, \$66 million and \$(16) million, reconcilially		(09)		35		(111)		28
respectively		(98)		55		(111)		28
Employee benefit plans adjustment, net of tax of \$1 million, \$(1) million, \$0 million and \$(4) million, respectively		(2)		(8)				5
Other comprehensive (loss) income		(264)		140		(158)		32
Comprehensive income		21		284		753		644
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests		18		19		59		58
Comprehensive income attributable to Delphi	\$	3	\$	265	\$	694	\$	586

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE LLP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OWNERS EQUITY

(Unaudited)

		Membe	ership inte	rests									
	Class A	Class B	Class C	Class E	2-1	Total	o comp in (mulated other rehensive come loss)	C	al Delph owners equity	Nonco	ontrolling terest	Total g owners equity
D. J	¢ 2.092	¢ 0.01(¢ (1(¢ 6	-	(in mil		01()	ሱ	5 (1 1	¢	450	¢ (000
Balance at December 31, 2010	\$ 2,083	\$ 2,816	\$ 646	\$ 5		\$ 5,550	\$	91(a)	\$	5,641	\$	458	\$ 6,099
Net income	76	751	25	ć	3	855				855		56	911
Currency translation adjustments and other								(50)		(50)	1	3	(47)
Net change in unrecognized loss													
on derivative instruments, net of tax								(111)(b)		(111))		(111)
Employee benefit plans liability adjustment, net of tax													
Dividends												(48)	(48)
												(40)	(40)
Restricted interests recognized (Note 16)				ϵ	5	6				6			6
Acquisition of noncontrolling													
interests	1	1				2				2		(7)	(5)
Redemption/repurchase of													
membership interests	(2,160)	(1,871)	(671)	(5	5)	(4,707)				(4,707)	1		(4,707)
Balance at September 30, 2011	\$	\$ 1,697	\$	\$ 9)	\$ 1,706	\$	(70)(c)	\$	1,636	\$	462	\$ 2,098

(a) As of December 31, 2010, Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (loss) totaled \$91 million (net of a \$48 million tax effect) and included: a loss from currency translation adjustments and other of \$21 million; income from unrecognized gain on derivative instruments of \$53 million (net of a \$31 million tax effect); and income from employee benefit plans liability adjustments of \$59 million (net of a \$17 million tax effect).

- (b) Other Comprehensive Income (loss) includes a loss of \$111 million (net of a \$67 million tax effect) of net changes in unrecognized gains on derivative instruments for the nine months ended September 30, 2011.
- (c) As of September 30, 2011, Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss totaled \$70 million (net of a \$19 million tax effect) and includes: currency translation adjustments and other of \$71 million; unrecognized loss on derivative instruments of \$58 million (net of a \$36 million tax effect); and employee benefit plans liability gain of \$59 million (net of a \$17 million tax effect). See notes to consolidated financial statements.

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE LLP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Nature of operations Delphi Automotive LLP, together with its subsidiaries and affiliates (Delphi or the Company) is a supplier of vehicle electronics, transportation components, integrated systems and modules, and other electronic technology. Delphi operates globally and has a diverse customer base, including every major vehicle manufacturer. The consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in this report should be read in conjunction with Delphi s consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Delphi s 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements.

General and basis of presentation Delphi is a limited liability partnership incorporated under the laws of England and Wales on August 19, 2009, for the purpose of acquiring certain assets of the former Delphi Corporation (now known as DPH Holdings Corp. (DPHH) (Old Delphi)).

Acquisition and acquisition accounting On October 6, 2009 (the Acquisition Date), Delphi acquired the businesses (other than the global steering business and the manufacturing facilities in the United States (U.S.) in which the hourly employees are represented by the International Union, United Automobile, Aerospace and Agricultural Implement Workers of America) of Old Delphi (the Acquisition).

Redemption of Class A and Class C membership interests On March 31, 2011, Delphi redeemed all outstanding Class A and Class C membership interests held by General Motors Company (GM) and the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (PBGC), respectively, for approximately \$4.4 billion. In conjunction with this transaction, Delphi obtained necessary consents to the redemption of the Class A and Class C membership interests and modified and eliminated specific rights provided to certain interest holders under the Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Partnership Agreement of Delphi Automotive LLP (the Second LLP Agreement). In addition, on April 26, 2011, the Second LLP Agreement was amended and restated by the Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Partnership Agreement) to adjust the distribution rights among the holders of the remaining classes of membership interests to reflect the redemption of GM s and the PBGC s interests and to modify and eliminate specific rights as mentioned above. As a result of these transactions, the owners equity of Delphi is comprised of a single voting class of membership interests, the Company s Class B membership interests. In addition to this class of voting membership interests, non-voting Class E-1 membership interests are held by Delphi s Board of Managers. The redemption transaction was funded by a \$3.0 billion credit facility entered into on March 31, 2011 and existing cash. In conjunction with the credit facility, Delphi extinguished the existing senior unsecured five-year notes and the undrawn delayed draw term loan. In May 2011, the credit facility was amended to adjust the commitments and terms, and in July 2011, the Third LLP Agreement was also amended to further position the Company for an initial public offering. Refer to Note 8. Debt and Note 12. Membership Interests for additional disclosures.

Pro Forma Owners Equity at September 30, 2011 (Unaudited) In October 2011, the Board of Managers approved a distribution, principally in respect of taxes, of approximately \$95 million. Additionally, pursuant to the repurchase program of Class B membership interests initiated in August 2011, subsequent to September 30, 2011, 2,300 Class B membership interests were repurchased at a cumulative cost of approximately \$39 million. The unaudited pro forma owners equity at September 30, 2011 gives effect to the distribution and repurchase transactions resulting in a reduction in cash and cash equivalents and owners equity. Refer to Note 12. Membership Interests and Note 18. Subsequent Events for additional disclosures.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Delphi and domestic and non-U.S. subsidiaries in which Delphi holds a controlling financial or management interest and variable interest entities of which Delphi has determined that it is the primary beneficiary. Delphi s share of the earnings or losses of non-controlled affiliates, over which Delphi exercises significant influence (generally a 20% to 50% ownership interest), is included in the consolidated operating results using the equity method of accounting. All significant intercompany transactions and balances between consolidated Delphi businesses have been eliminated. All adjustments, consisting of only normal recurring items, which are necessary for a fair presentation, have been included. The results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected from any other interim period or for the full year and may not necessarily reflect the consolidated results of operations, financial position and cash flows of Delphi in the future.

Use of estimates Preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported therein. Generally, matters subject to estimation and judgment include amounts related to accounts receivable realization, inventory obsolescence, asset impairments, useful lives of intangible and fixed assets, deferred tax asset valuation allowances, income taxes, pension and other postretirement benefit plan assumptions, accruals related to litigation, warranty costs, environmental remediation costs, worker s compensation accruals, share-based compensation accruals and healthcare accruals. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, actual results reported in future periods may be based upon amounts that differ from those estimates.

Subsequent events Delphi has evaluated all events that have occurred subsequent to September 30, 2011 through October 26, 2011 (the date the financial statements were available to be issued).

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Time deposits During 2010, Delphi entered into various time deposit agreements whereby certain of Delphi s funds on deposit with financial institutions could not be withdrawn for a specified period of time. Time deposits with original maturity periods of three months or less were included as Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2010, while time deposits with original maturity periods greater than three months were separately stated in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2010. The carrying value of time deposits approximated fair value as of December 31, 2010. Delphi did not have any time deposits as of September 30, 2011.

Marketable securities Marketable securities with original maturities of three months or less are classified as cash and cash equivalents for financial statement purposes. Debt securities with original maturities greater than three months are classified as held-to-maturity, and accordingly are recorded at cost in the consolidated financial statements. Equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are recorded in the consolidated financial statements at market value with changes in market value included in other comprehensive income (OCI). Available-for-sale securities with a cost basis of \$2 million and \$13 million and a carrying value of \$2 million and \$12 million were held as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. In the event debt or equity securities experience an other-than-temporary impairment in value, such impairment is recognized as a loss in the consolidated statement of operations. In the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, Delphi recognized a loss on sale of equity securities of \$1 million and \$3 million respectively. In the nine months ended September 30, 2011, Delphi recognized an other-than-temporary impairment on available-for-sale equity securities of \$6 million.

Intangible assets Intangible assets were \$623 million and \$665 million as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. In general, definite-lived intangible assets are being amortized over their useful lives, normally 6-20 years. Amortization expense was \$19 million and \$56 million for the three and nine months

ended September 30, 2011 and \$21 million and \$52 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010, respectively.

Debt issuance costs The costs incurred related to the issuance of long-term debt are deferred and amortized into interest expense over the life of the debt using the effective interest method. Deferred amounts associated with debt extinguished prior to maturity are expensed.

Customer concentrations Sales to GM were approximately 20% of our total net sales for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010. Accounts and other receivables due from GM were \$477 million and \$393 million as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. No other single customer accounts for a significant portion of our consolidated net sales in any period presented.

Reclassifications Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified in the consolidated statements of operations within operating expenses for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010 to conform to the current year presentation. The Company has reclassified amounts from cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses to restructuring and has also included depreciation expense in cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses, as applicable.

Membership interests At the Acquisition Date, the outstanding common stock of Old Delphi was cancelled and membership interests in Delphi were issued to Delphi s owners. On March 31, 2011, Delphi redeemed all outstanding Class A and Class C membership interests. Also, as part of the Class B membership interests repurchase program initiated in August 2011, as more fully described in Note 12. Membership Interests, Delphi repurchased 7,705 Class B membership interests during the three months ended September 30, 2011. During October 2011, an additional 2,300 Class B membership interests were repurchased. Membership interests are considered effectively redeemed/repurchased on the trade date of the transaction. As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, Delphi s membership interests were \$1.7 billion and \$5.6 billion, respectively. Total membership interests and current period net income (loss) are allocated among the respective outstanding classes based on the cumulative distribution provisions of the Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Liability Partnership Agreement of Delphi Automotive LLP (the Fourth LLP Agreement). Refer to Note 12. Membership Interests for additional information.

Recently issued accounting pronouncements In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued guidance related to accounting for transfers of financial assets which changes the way entities account for securitizations and special-purpose entities, codified in FASB Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 810, *Consolidation*, and FASB ASC 860, *Transfers and Servicing*. The adoption of this guidance on January 1, 2010 did not have a significant impact on Delphi s financial statements.

In October 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2009-13, *Revenue Recognition Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force*, which amends FASB ASC 605, *Revenue Recognition*, by modifying the criteria used to separate elements in a multiple-element arrangement, introducing the concept of best estimate of selling price for determining the selling price of a deliverable, establishing a hierarchy of evidence for determining the selling price of a deliverable, requiring use of the residual method to allocate arrangement consideration among units of accounting, and expanding the disclosure requirements for all multiple-element arrangements within the scope of FASB ASC 605-25. The amended guidance is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. The adoption of this guidance did not have a significant impact on Delphi s financial statements.

In April 2010, the FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 08-9, *Milestone Method of Revenue Recognition* (Issue 08-9). ASU 2010-17, *Revenue Recognition Milestone Method*, which resulted from the ratification of Issue 08-9 and amends FASB ASC 605. ASU 2010-17 allows, but does not require, an entity to make an accounting policy election to recognize a payment that is contingent upon the achievement of a

substantive milestone in its entirety in the period in which the milestone is achieved. The guidance in ASU 2010-17 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning on or after June 15, 2010, and may be applied prospectively to milestones achieved after the adoption date or retrospectively for all periods presented. The adoption of this guidance did not have a significant impact on Delphi s financial statements.

In August 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-20, *Receivables Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses*. This guidance amends required disclosures about an entity s allowance for credit losses and the credit quality of its financing receivables. The update will require entities to provide a greater level of disaggregated information about the credit quality of its financing receivables and its allowance for credit losses. The guidance is effective for public companies for interim and annual reporting periods ending on or after December 15, 2010 and for non-public companies, for annual reporting periods ending on or after December 15, 2011. In January 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-01 *Receivables Deferral of the Effective Date of Disclosures* about troubled debt restructurings in ASU 2010-20. This guidance temporarily delayed the effective date of the disclosures about troubled debt restructurings for public entities. The adoption of ASU 2010-20 and 2011-01 did not have a significant impact on Delphi s financial statements.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-02, *A Creditor s Determination of Whether a Restructuring is a Troubled Debt Restructuring.* This guidance clarifies the definition of what constitutes a concession given by a creditor and clarifies guidance on whether a debtor is experiencing financial difficulties both for purposes of recording an impairment loss and for disclosure of troubled debt restructuring. The guidance in ASU 2011-02 is effective for public companies with interim and annual periods beginning after June 15, 2011 and for nonpublic companies with fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, ending on or after December 15, 2012. The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have a significant impact on Delphi s financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, *Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in US GAAP and IFRSs*, which updates the definition of fair value and measurement criteria to bring them into agreement with IFRSs (which are also changed to agree with US GAAP). The guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Early adoption is not permitted. Delphi is evaluating the effects of this guidance but does not expect it to have a significant impact on Delphi s financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, *Presentation of Comprehensive Income*. This guidance requires presentation of all non-owner changes in equity to be presented in one continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. It also prohibits the inclusion of comprehensive income items in the statement of equity. Also, the amendments in this update do not change the items that must be reported in other comprehensive income or when an item of other comprehensive income must be reclassified to net income. The guidance is effective for public companies for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011 and for nonpublic companies for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years is presented. Delphi is evaluating the effects of this guidance but does not expect it to have a significant impact on its financial statements other than providing the new presentation.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment. The revised standard is intended to simplify goodwill impairment testing by adding an option to qualitatively assess goodwill for impairment. The guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have a significant impact on Delphi s financial statements.

3. INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in, first-out basis, or market, including direct material costs and direct and indirect manufacturing costs. A summary of inventories is shown below:

	September 30, 2011 (in n	December 31, 2010 hillions)
Productive material	\$ 649	\$ 544
Work-in-process	157	159
Finished goods	340	285
Total	\$ 1,146	\$ 988

4. ASSETS

Other current assets consisted of the following:

	September 30, 2011	20	1ber 31,)10
		nillions)	200
Income and other taxes receivable	\$ 264	\$	208
Prepaid insurance and other expenses	101		87
Deferred income taxes	174		136
Deposits to vendors	12		12
Notes receivable	34		33
Debt issuance costs (Note 8)	17		
Derivative financial instruments (Note 13)	2		59
Other	17		20
Total	\$ 621	\$	555

Other long-term assets consisted of the following:

	September 30, 2011	December 31 2010	l ,
	(in n	nillions)	
Deferred income taxes	\$ 182	\$ \$183	3
Notes receivable	1	31	1
Debt issuance costs (Note 8)	77		
Income and other taxes receivable	96	87	7
Other investments	2	13	3
Derivative financial instruments (Note 13)		17	7
Other	86	72	2
Total	\$ 444	\$ \$403	3

5. LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following:

	September 30, 2011	2	mber 31, 2010
	(in r	nillions)	
Payroll-related obligations	\$ 257	\$	203
Employee benefits, including current pension obligations	115		167
Income and other taxes payable	289		220
Warranty obligations (Note 6)	184		243
Restructuring (Note 7)	64		115
Customer deposits	22		22
Deferred income taxes	6		4
Derivative financial instruments (Note 13)	57		
Unsettled membership interest repurchase transactions (Note 12)	68		
Accrued interest	25		1
Other	287		290
Total	\$ 1,374	\$	1,265

Other long-term liabilities consisted of the following:

	September 30, 2011		mber 31, 2010
	(in n	nillions)	
Environmental (Note 10)	\$ 19	\$	18
Extended disability benefits	9		8
Warranty obligations (Note 6)	150		119
Executive long-term incentive plan	85		31
Restructuring (Note 7)	37		54
Payroll-related obligations	11		11
Accrued income taxes	42		52
Deferred income taxes	171		178
Derivative financial instruments (Note 13)	39		
Other	42		45
Total	\$ 605	\$	516

6. WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS

Expected warranty costs for products sold are recognized principally at the time of sale of the product based on estimates of the amount that will eventually be required to settle such obligations. These accruals are based on factors such as past experience, production changes, industry developments and various other considerations. These estimates are adjusted from time to time based on facts and circumstances that impact the status of existing claims. Delphi has recognized its best estimate for its total aggregate warranty reserves across all of its operating segments as of September 30, 2011. The estimated reasonably possible amounts to ultimately resolve all matters is not materially different from the recorded reserves.

The table below summarizes the activity in the product warranty liability for the nine months ended September 30, 2011:

	oblig	rranty gations nillions)
Accrual balance at beginning of period	\$	362
Provision for estimated warranties incurred during the period		62
Provision for changes in estimate for pre-existing warranties		88
Settlements made during the period (in cash or in kind)		(191)
Foreign currency translation and other		13
Accrual balance at end of period	\$	334

In 2009, Delphi received information regarding potential warranty claims related to certain components supplied by Delphi s Powertrain segment. In March 2011, Delphi reached a settlement with its customer related to this matter and reflected a change in its previous estimate of probable loss as a result of the settlement agreement by recognizing \$76 million of warranty expense in cost of sales. This adjustment resulted in a corresponding \$76 million decrease in net income attributable to Delphi. The per unit impact for the Class A and C membership interests for the three months ended March 31, 2011 were \$11.36 and \$66.28, respectively. The per unit impact for the Class B and E-1 membership interests for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 were \$139.02 and \$10.56, respectively. In April 2011, Delphi made a payment of 90 million (approximately \$133 million at April 30, 2011 exchange rates) related to this matter.

Refer to Note 10. Commitments and Contingencies, Ordinary Business Litigation for additional disclosure regarding warranty matters.

7. RESTRUCTURING

Delphi continually evaluates alternatives to align its business with the changing needs of its customers and to lower the operating costs of the Company. This includes the realignment of its existing manufacturing capacity, facility closures, or similar actions in the normal course of business. These actions may result in voluntary or involuntary employee termination benefits, which are mainly pursuant to union or other contractual agreements. Voluntary termination benefits are accrued when an employee accepts the related offer. Involuntary termination benefits are accrued when Delphi commits to a termination plan and the benefit arrangement is communicated to affected employees, or when liabilities are determined to be probable and estimable, depending on the existence of a substantive plan for severance or termination. Contract termination costs are recorded when contracts are terminated or when Delphi ceases to use the leased facility and no longer derives economic benefit from the contract. All other exit costs are accrued when incurred.

Delphi s restructuring costs are undertaken as necessary to implement management s strategy, streamline operations, take advantage of available capacity and resources, and ultimately achieve net cost reductions. These activities generally relate to the realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities and other exit or disposal activities, as it relates to executing the Company s strategy in the normal course of business and transforming the salaried workforce to reduce general and administrative expenses.

The following table summarizes the restructuring charges recorded for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 by operating segment:

	en	months ded nber 30,	en	months Ided nber 30.
Segment	2011	2010	2011	2010
Electronics and Safety	\$ 1	\$4	\$ 3	\$ 16
Powertrain Systems	2	19	8	31
Electrical/Electronic Architecture		42	8	66
Thermal Systems			1	5
Eliminations and Other		3		6
Total	\$ 3	\$ 68	\$ 20	\$ 124

The table below summarizes the activity in the restructuring liability for the nine months ended September 30, 2011:

	Employee termination benefits liability	costs	er exit liability illions)	Total
Accrual balance at December 31, 2010	\$ 148	\$	21	\$ 169
Provision for estimated expenses incurred during the period	17		3	20
Payments made during the period	(78)		(13)	(91)
Foreign currency and other	3			3
Accrual balance at September 30, 2011	\$ 90	\$	11	\$ 101

As part of Delphi s ongoing efforts to lower costs and operate efficiently, the Company recorded \$3 million and \$20 million of restructuring costs primarily in Asia, Europe and Mexico, primarily related to plant closures and programs related to the rationalization of manufacturing and engineering processes during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, respectively.

As part of Delphi s ongoing efforts to lower costs and operate efficiently, the four reporting segments continued the execution of efforts to reduce employment in North America, and incurred approximately \$3 million and \$12 million of restructuring costs during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010, respectively. Additionally, European, South American and Asian operations in the four reporting segments incurred \$48 million and \$93 million of restructuring costs in conjunction with employment reductions and programs related to the rationalization of manufacturing and engineering processes during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010. The Electronics and Safety segment also incurred \$6 million and \$7 million of costs related to the ongoing sales and wind-down of its occupant protection systems businesses during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010.

8. DEBT Credit Agreement

In March 2011, in conjunction with the redemption of membership interests from Class A and Class C membership interest holders, Delphi entered into the original credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as lead arranger and administrative agent, with respect to \$3.0 billion in senior secured credit facilities (the Credit Facilities). The original credit agreement has been amended and modified (the Credit Agreement) and as of September 30, 2011 consists of a \$1.3 billion 5-year senior secured revolving credit facility (the Revolving Credit Facility), a \$258 million senior secured 5-year term A loan (the Tranche A Term Loan) and a \$950

million senior secured 6-year term B loan (the Tranche B Term Loan). During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, \$36.5 million and \$137.5 million of the Tranche A Term Loan and Tranche B Term Loan, respectively, were repaid under the Credit Agreement. In conjunction with the repayments, approximately \$8 million of debt issuance costs were extinguished. The Revolving Credit Facility was undrawn at September 30, 2011. As of September 30, 2011, Delphi had approximately \$11 million in letters of credit issued under the Credit Agreement. Letters of credit issued under the Credit Agreement reduce availability under the Revolving Credit Facility. In October 2011, the Credit Agreement was amended to be consistent with Delphi s use of a U.K. Channel Islands company as part of its anticipated post IPO structure. Such amendment did not modify any of the financial terms or conditions under the Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement carries an interest rate, at Delphi s option, of either (a) the Administrative Agent s Alternate Base Rate (ABR as defined in the Credit Agreement) plus (i) with respect to the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche A Term Loan, 1.75% per annum or (ii) with respect to the Tranche B Term Loan, 1.50% per annum, or (b) the London Interbank Offered Rate (the Adjusted LIBO Rate as defined in the Credit Agreement) (LIBOR) plus (i) with respect to the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche A Term Loan, 2.75% per annum or (ii) with respect to the Tranche B Term Loan, 2.50% per annum. The Tranche B Term Loan includes a LIBOR floor of 1.00%.

The interest rate period with respect to the LIBOR interest rate option can be set at one-, two-, three-, or six-months as selected by Delphi in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement (or other period as may be agreed by the applicable lenders), but payable no less than quarterly. Delphi may elect to change the selected interest rate over the term of the Credit Facilities in accordance with the provisions of the Credit Agreement. The applicable interest rates listed above for the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche A Term Loan may increase or decrease from time to time by 0.25% based upon changes to Delphi s corporate credit ratings. Accordingly, the interest rate will fluctuate during the term of the Credit Agreement based on changes in the ABR, LIBOR or future changes in Delphi s corporate credit ratings. The Credit Agreement also requires that Delphi pay certain commitment fees on the unused portion of the Revolving Credit Facility and certain letter of credit issuance and fronting fees.

Delphi is obligated to make quarterly principal payments throughout the terms of the Tranche A and Tranche B Term Loans according to the amortization schedule in the Credit Agreement. In conjunction with the repayments during the nine months ended September 30, 2011, all quarterly principal payment obligations prior to maturity have been satisfied for the Tranche B Term Loan and quarterly principal payments have been satisfied through June 30, 2013 for the Tranche A Term Loan and partially satisfied through September 30, 2013. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement are prepayable at Delphi s option without premium or penalty, provided that any prepayment of the Tranche B Term Loan is accompanied by a pro-rata payment of the Tranche A Term Loan (based on the respective amounts then outstanding). Delphi may request that all or a portion of the Term Loans be converted to extend the scheduled maturity date(s) with respect to all or a portion of any principal amount of such Term Loans under certain conditions. The Credit Agreement also contains certain mandatory prepayment provisions in the event Delphi generates excess cash flow (as defined in the Credit Agreement) or Delphi receives net cash proceeds from any asset sale or casualty event. No mandatory prepayments have been made through September 30, 2011.

As of September 30, 2011, Delphi selected the one-month LIBOR interest rate option, as detailed in the table below, and the amounts outstanding, net of the discount (in millions) and rates effective as of September 30, 2011 were:

		Borrowings as of				
	LIBOR plus	September 30, 2011	Rates effective as of September 30, 2011			
Revolving Credit Facility	2.75%	\$	%			
Tranche A Term Loan	2.75%	\$ 220	3.00%			
Tranche B Term Loan	2.50%	\$ 811	3.50%*			

* Includes a LIBOR floor of 1.00%

The Credit Agreement contains certain covenants that limit, among other things, Delphi s (and Delphi s subsidiaries) ability to incur additional indebtedness or liens, to dispose of assets, to make certain investments, to prepay certain indebtedness and to pay dividends, or to make other distributions or redemptions/repurchases, in respect of Delphi s equity interests. In addition, the Credit Agreement requires that Delphi maintain a consolidated leverage ratio (the ratio of Consolidated Total Indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA, each as defined in the Credit Agreement) of less than 2.75 to 1.0. The Credit Agreement also contains events of default customary for financings of this type. Delphi was in compliance with the Credit Agreement covenants as of September 30, 2011.

The Tranche A Term Loan and the Tranche B Term Loan were each issued under the original Credit Agreement at a 0.5% discount and Delphi paid approximately \$86 million of debt issuance costs in connection with the Credit Facilities. The discount and debt issuance costs are being amortized over the life of the facility. The amended and modified Credit Agreement reduced the discount related to the Tranche B Term Loan to 0.25%.

All obligations under the Credit Agreement are borrowed by Delphi Corporation, a wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary of Delphi Automotive LLP (Delphi Corporation), and jointly and severally guaranteed by its direct and indirect parent companies and by certain of Delphi Automotive LLP s existing and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions set forth in the Credit Agreement. All obligations under the Credit Agreement, including the guarantees of those obligations, are secured by certain assets of Delphi Corporation and the guarantors, including substantially all of the assets of Delphi Automotive LLP, and its domestic subsidiaries, and certain assets of Delphi Corporation s direct and indirect parent companies.

Senior Notes

On May 17, 2011, Delphi Corporation issued \$500 million of 5.875% senior notes due 2019 and \$500 million of 6.125% senior notes due 2021 (the Senior Notes) in a transaction exempt from registration under Rule 144A and Regulation S of the Securities Act. The Senior Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by Delphi Automotive LLP and certain of its existing and future subsidiaries. Interest is payable semi-annually on May 15 and November 15 of each year, beginning on November 15, 2011. Interest accrues from May 17, 2011. Delphi paid approximately \$23 million of additional debt issuance costs in connection with the Senior Notes. The net proceeds of approximately \$1.0 billion as well as cash on hand were used to pay down amounts outstanding under the Tranche B Term Loan of the Credit Agreement.

The indenture governing the Senior Notes limits, among other things, Delphi s (and its subsidiaries) ability to incur additional indebtedness or liens, dispose of assets, make certain restricted payments or investments, enter into transactions with affiliates or merge with or into other entities. As of September 30, 2011 the Company was in compliance with the provisions of the Senior Notes.

Acquisition Financing

In connection with the Acquisition, (i) Delphi issued \$41 million in senior unsecured five-year notes (the Notes) pursuant to a Note Purchase Agreement (the NPA) with an Acquisition Date fair value of \$49 million and (ii) entered into a senior secured delayed draw term loan facility (the DDTL) with a syndicate of lenders. The Notes paid 12% interest and were scheduled to mature on October 6, 2014. The DDTL permitted borrowings of up to \$890 million, consisting of a U.S. tranche of up to \$267 million in borrowings and a foreign tranche of up to \$623 million in borrowings. There was no commitment fee associated with the DDTL, but, if drawn, Delphi was required to pay interest at the rate of LIBOR plus 6.0% per annum, with a minimum LIBOR amount of 2.0% per annum. The DDTL had a term of 5 years. A majority of the holders of the Notes and the lenders under the DDTL were related parties as holders of the Class A and Class B membership interests.

In conjunction with the redemption of the Class A and Class C membership interests on March 31, 2011 and execution of the Credit Agreement, each of the DDTL and the NPA was terminated (including the termination, discharge and release of all security and guarantees granted in connection with the DDTL and the NPA) and Delphi paid approximately \$57 million to redeem the Notes in full. In connection with the termination of the Notes, Delphi incurred early termination penalties and recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of approximately \$9 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2011.

Other Financing

Accounts receivable factoring Various accounts receivable factoring facilities are maintained in Europe and are accounted for as short-term debt. These uncommitted factoring facilities are available through various financial institutions. As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, \$70 million and \$112 million, respectively, were outstanding under these accounts receivable factoring facilities.

Capital leases and other As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, approximately \$72 million and approximately \$130 million, respectively, of other debt issued by certain international subsidiaries was outstanding, primarily related to bank lines in Asia Pacific and capital lease obligations.

Interest Cash paid for interest related to amounts outstanding totaled \$53 million and \$22 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

9. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

Certain of Delphi s non-U.S. subsidiaries sponsor defined benefit pension plans, which generally provide benefits based on negotiated amounts for each year of service. Delphi s primary non-U.S. plans are located in France, Germany, Luxembourg, Mexico, Portugal and the United Kingdom (UK). The UK and certain Mexican plans are funded. In addition, Delphi has defined benefit plans in Korea, Turkey and Italy under which amounts are payable to employees immediately upon separation. The obligations for these plans are recorded based on the vested obligation.

Delphi s U.S. subsidiaries sponsor a Supplemental Executive Retirement Program (SERP) for those employees who were U.S. executives prior to September 30, 2008 and were still U.S. executives on October 7, 2009, the effective date of the program. This program is unfunded. Executives receive benefits over 5 years after an involuntary or voluntary separation from Delphi. The SERP is closed to new members and was frozen effective September 30, 2008.

The amounts shown below reflect the defined benefit pension expense for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2011 and 2010:

		Pension benefits			
	Non-U.	Non-U.S. plans		U.S. plans	
	Thi	Three months ended Septemb			
	2011	2010	2011	2010	
		(in mil	lions)		
Service cost	\$ 11	\$8	\$	\$	
Interest cost	22	21		1	
Expected return on plan assets	(16)	(13)			
Settlements and curtailments		(1)			
Net periodic benefit cost	\$ 17	\$ 15	\$	\$ 1	

		Pension benefits				
	Non-U.S	Non-U.S. plans U.S.				
	Nine	Nine months ended September 30				
	2011	2011 2010 2011				
		(in mil	lions)			
Service cost	\$ 34	\$ 26	\$	\$		
Interest cost	67	63	2	3		
Expected return on plan assets	(47)	(40)				
Settlements and curtailments		(3)				
Net periodic benefit cost	\$ 54	\$ 46	\$ 2	\$ 3		

Delphi also maintains other postretirement benefit plans. The cost of these plans is not material to Delphi.

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

European Union Antitrust Investigation

Delphi has received requests for information from antitrust authorities at the European Commission seeking information about alleged conduct by Delphi in connection with an investigation of automotive parts supplies concerning possible violations of antitrust laws related to the supply of wire harnesses to vehicle manufacturers. Delphi is cooperating fully with the European authorities. Investigations of this nature often continue for several years and may result in fines imposed by the European authorities. Any fine could result in a material adverse impact on the Company s operating results and cash flows. However, at this time, Delphi is unable to estimate the financial impact that may ultimately result from this investigation. As a result, no accrual for this matter has been recorded as of September 30, 2011.

Class Action Antitrust Litigation

A number of class action complaints have been filed in various U.S. federal district courts alleging that several wire harness manufacturers, including Delphi, have violated U.S. antitrust laws. These complaints allege that consumers overpaid for their vehicles as a result of the alleged conduct of the wire harness manufacturers. At this time, the Company believes that the allegations contained in the complaints are without merit with regard to the Company and the Company intends to vigorously defend against the allegations set forth in the complaints. As a result, no accruals for these matters have been recorded as of September 30, 2011.

Environmental Matters

Delphi is subject to the requirements of U.S. federal, state and local, and non-U.S. environmental and safety and health laws and regulations. At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the undiscounted reserve for environmental investigation and remediation was approximately \$23

Table of Contents

million (of which \$4 million was recorded

in accrued liabilities and \$19 million was recorded in other long-term liabilities) and \$23 million (of which \$5 million was recorded in accrued liabilities and \$18 million was recorded in other long-term liabilities), respectively. Delphi cannot ensure that environmental requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that its eventual environmental remediation costs and liabilities will not exceed the amount of its current reserves. In the event that such liabilities were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded, Delphi s results of operations could be materially affected.

Ordinary Business Litigation

Delphi is from time to time subject to various legal actions and claims incidental to its business, including those arising out of alleged defects, breach of contracts, product warranties, intellectual property matters, and employment-related matters. It is the opinion of Delphi that the outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse impact on the consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows of Delphi. With respect to warranty matters, although Delphi cannot ensure that the future costs of warranty claims by customers will not be material, Delphi believes its established reserves are adequate to cover potential warranty settlements. However, the final amounts required to resolve these matters could differ materially from the Company s recorded estimates.

Warranty Matters

In 2009, Delphi received information regarding potential warranty claims related to certain components supplied by Delphi s Powertrain segment. In March 2011, Delphi reached a settlement with its customer related to this matter and recognized additional warranty expense in cost of sales of approximately \$76 million. In April 2011, Delphi made a payment of 90 million (approximately \$133 million at April 30, 2011 exchange rates) related to this matter.

Brazil Matters

Delphi conducts significant business operations in Brazil that are subject to the Brazilian federal labor, social security, environmental, tax and customs laws, as well as a variety of state and local laws. While Delphi believes it complies with such laws, they are complex, subject to varying interpretations, and the Company is often engaged in litigation with government agencies regarding the application of these laws to particular circumstances. In addition, Delphi also is a party to commercial and labor litigation with private parties. As of September 30, 2011, related claims totaling approximately \$230 million (using September 30, 2011 foreign currency rates) have been asserted against Delphi. As of September 30, 2011, the Company maintains accruals for these asserted claims of approximately \$40 million (using September 30, 2011 foreign currency rates). The amounts accrued represent claims that are deemed probable of loss and are reasonably estimable based on the Company s analyses and assessment of the asserted claims and prior experience with similar matters. While the Company believes its accruals are adequate, the final amounts required to resolve these matters could differ materially from the Company s recorded estimates and Delphi s results of operations could be materially affected.

Romania Value Added Tax (VAT) Assessment

During the first quarter of 2010, as a result of a tax audit for years 2006 2008, the Company received a tax assessment from the Romanian tax authorities in the amount of approximately \$42 million based on the taxing authority s assessment that the Company underpaid its VAT (mostly on export sales) by approximately \$24 million and owes accrued interest and penalties of \$18 million. The Company filed an appeal contesting the assessment and during October 2010, the Romanian tax authorities substantially reduced the amount of the assessment and decided to re-audit the Company. As of September 30, 2011, the Company maintains a reserve for this contingency that is substantially less than the amount of the initial assessment. While the Company believes its reserve is adequate, the final amounts required to resolve this initial assessment could differ materially from the Company s recorded estimate.

11. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes compared with the amounts at the U.S. federal statutory rate was:

		ths ended ber 30,
	2011	2010
	(in mi	llions)
Tax at U.S. federal statutory income tax rate	\$ 407	\$ 284
U.S. state and local taxes	3	5
Income taxed at other rates	(156)	(68)
Change in valuation allowance	(11)	(8)
Change in tax reserves	(3)	(2)
Withholding taxes	33	17
Tax credits	(3)	(8)
Change in tax law	6	(7)
Other adjustments		(4)
Total income tax provision	\$ 276	\$ 209

Delphi s tax rate in both years is affected by the tax rates in the U.S. and other jurisdictions, the relative amount of income earned by jurisdiction, jurisdictions with a statutory tax rate less than the U.S. rate of 35% and the relative amount of losses for which no tax benefit was recognized due to a valuation allowance. The effective tax rate in the nine months ended September 30, 2011 was impacted by \$10 million withholding tax expense related to the redemption of all the outstanding Class A and Class C membership interests held by GM and the PBGC, respectively.

Cash paid for income taxes was approximately \$205 million and \$133 million, respectively, for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Tax return filing determinations and elections

The Company was established on August 19, 2009 as a limited liability partnership incorporated under the laws of England and Wales. At the time of its formation, the Company elected to be treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Prior to the Acquisition Date, the Internal Revenue Service (the IRS) issued Notice 2009-78 (the Notice) announcing its intent to issue regulations under Section 7874 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended with an effective date prior to the Acquisition Date. If regulations as described in the Notice are issued with the effective date indicated in the Notice and with no exceptions for transactions that were subject to binding commitments on that date, the Company believes there is a substantial risk that it could be treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, retroactive to the Acquisition Date.

The Company filed an informational 2009 U.S. federal partnership tax return on September 15, 2010. In light of the Notice, the IRS is currently reviewing whether Section 7874 applies to Delphi s acquisition of the automotive supply and other businesses of Old Delphi. While Delphi believes, based on the advice of counsel, that it is more likely than not that the Company is not a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and therefore has not reserved any amounts on our financial statements in respect of this issue, no assurance can be given that the IRS will not take the position that the Company should be treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, or that, if the Company were to challenge any such contention by the IRS, that a court would not agree with the IRS.

If the Company were treated as a domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, it would be subject to U.S. federal income tax on its worldwide taxable income, including some or all of the distributions

from its subsidiaries as well as some of the undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries that constitute controlled foreign corporations. This could have a material adverse impact on the Company s future tax liability related to these distributions and earnings. In addition, Delphi could be liable for its failure to withhold U.S. income taxes on distributions to its non-U.S. members, for periods beginning on or after the Acquisition Date, which liability could have a material adverse impact on the Company s results of operations and financial condition.

12. MEMBERSHIP INTERESTS *Overview*

Delphi issued membership interests in accordance with the terms of the Acquisition on the Acquisition Date. The Class A and Class B membership interests entitled the holders to non-controlling representation on Delphi s Board of Managers, and, along with Class C and Class E-1 membership interests, entitled the holders to potential, future distributions by Delphi. Additionally, prior to the redemption of the Class A and Class C membership interests as more fully described below, the Second LLP Agreement required the consent of or provided special rights to Class A and certain Class B membership interest holders with respect to certain events, including changes in corporate governance, the execution of significant transactions and the issuance of additional securities.

The following table summarizes the membership interests issued, redeemed/repurchased, and outstanding:

	Number of membership interests issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2010	Number of membership interests redeemed/ repurchased during the nine months ended September 30, 2011	Number of membership interests outstanding as of September 30, 2011
A	1,750,000	(1,750,000)	
В	354,500	(7,705)	346,795
С	100,000	(100,000)	
E-1	24,000		24,000

Class B membership interests repurchase program

In August 2011, Delphi s Board of Managers approved a repurchase program of Class B membership interests. As of September 30, 2011, 7,705 Class B membership interests were repurchased for a cumulative cost of approximately \$140 million at an average price per membership interests unit of \$18,261. This was recorded as a reduction to the carrying value of the Class B membership interests. Of the approximately \$140 million, approximately \$72 million was settled during the three months ended September 30, 2011, and the remaining approximately \$68 million is recorded as an accrued liability as of September 30, 2011 and was settled in October 2011.

Subsequent to September 30, 2011, an additional 2,300 Class B membership interests were repurchased at a cumulative cost of approximately \$39 million at an average price of \$16,709 per membership interests unit. The Company may opportunistically seek to repurchase additional membership interests in the future.

Class A and Class C membership interests redemption

On March 31, 2011, Delphi redeemed all outstanding Class A and Class C membership interests for \$3,791 million and \$594 million, respectively. In conjunction with the redemption transaction, Delphi incurred

transaction-related fees and expenses totaling approximately \$180 million, including amounts paid to certain membership interest holders. In addition, Delphi obtained necessary consents to the redemption of the Class A and Class C membership interests and modified and eliminated specific rights provided to these membership interest holders under the Second LLP Agreement. Subsequent to the redemption transaction on March 31, 2011, Delphi s membership interest equity is comprised of a single voting class of membership interests, the Company s Class B membership interests. In addition to this class of voting membership interests, non-voting Class E-1 membership interests are held by our Board of Managers.

The amounts paid to redeem the outstanding Class A and Class C membership interests were \$1,736 million in excess of the total recorded carrying value of the Class A and Class C membership interests. The excess was reflected as a pro-rata reduction to the recorded carrying value of the remaining membership interests (the Class B and Class E-1 membership interests).

In conjunction with the redemption transaction, the Second LLP Agreement was amended by the Third LLP Agreement to adjust the distribution rights among the holders of the remaining classes of membership interests and to reflect the elimination of specific rights as mentioned above. Additionally in July 2011, the Third LLP Agreement was amended and restated by the Fourth LLP Agreement to further position the Company for an initial public offering. Key provisions of the Fourth LLP Agreement, which expire on March 31, 2012, include (i) creating drag-along rights that require, if holders of a majority of Class B membership interests request, that all Class B membership interest holders sell a portion of their holdings in an initial public offering, with the Company paying for the cost of the underwriting spread; (ii) establishing a pricing mechanism for the drag-along; and (iii) providing a 180 day lockup in an initial public offering for holders of the Class B membership interests with a 90 day early release for 30% of their shares.

Other

Current period net income and other changes to membership interests in the current period are allocated to the respective outstanding classes based on the cumulative distribution provisions of the Fourth LLP Agreement. The distributions vary by class of membership interests and by cumulative amount distributed, and, between classes, are not related or proportional to the number of membership interests held.

In conjunction with the adoption in 2010 of the 2010 Board of Managers Class E-1 Interest Incentive Plan and the Value Creation Plan (the VCP), both of which are long-term incentive plans designed to assist the Company in attracting, retaining, motivating and rewarding the Board of Managers and key employees of the Company, and promoting the creation of long-term value, the Fourth LLP Agreement includes provisions that address the Class E-1 membership interests and the VCP. The Fourth LLP Agreement includes provisions related to potential distributions, or alternatively, allocations of equity, to the Class E-1 members and employee incentive plans based on rates/amounts as defined in the agreement (approximately 3.7% for the first approximately \$1.6 billion of distributions and approximately 3.4% for distributions thereafter subject to adjustment for the Class B membership interests repurchased) with ratable reductions in the distribution percentages applied to Class B members.

Under the terms of the Fourth LLP Agreement, if the Board of Managers determines that there is available cash (as defined in the Fourth LLP Agreement), the Class B and Class E-1 members will receive a distribution for taxes and pursuant to the cumulative distribution provisions of available cash to enable the members to pay projected tax liabilities attributable to tax book profits and losses by Delphi that are attributable to their membership interests. Any tax distributions will be treated as an advance of amounts otherwise distributable to the members. In October 2011, the Board of Managers approved the payment of a distribution of approximately \$95 million on December 5, 2011 to members who hold membership interests as of the close of business on October 31, 2011. Refer to Note 18. Subsequent Events for additional disclosure.

Additionally, under the terms of the Acquisition and the Fourth LLP Agreement, if cumulative distributions to the members of Delphi under certain provisions of the Fourth LLP Agreement exceed \$7.2 billion, Delphi, as

disbursing agent on behalf of DPHH, is required to pay to the holders of allowed general unsecured claims against Old Delphi, \$32.50 for every \$67.50 in excess of \$7.2 billion distributed to the members, up to a maximum amount of \$300 million. This contingency is not considered probable of occurring as of September 30, 2011. Accordingly, no provision for this matter has been recorded as of September 30, 2011.

Net income (loss) per membership interests unit

Total membership interest equity as of October 6, 2009 was allocated to the respective outstanding classes of membership interests across all tranches of the cumulative distribution schedule as defined by the LLP agreement effective in that period. In subsequent periods total membership interest equity at the end of the period is allocated to the respective outstanding classes of membership interests across all tranches of the cumulative distribution schedule as defined by the LLP agreement effective in that period. The allocation of the net income (loss) for the period is the difference between the ending and beginning of period allocation of membership interest equity as there were no distributions during this period.

Delphi computes net income (loss) per membership interests unit by dividing its net income (loss) attributable to membership interests by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period. The overall computation and presentation of its net income (loss) per membership interests unit are made in accordance with FASB ASC 260, *Earnings Per Share*.

The following tables summarize the net income per membership interests unit:

Class	Weighted average membership interests	Septem Net i attribu mem	nonths ended ber 30, 2011 ncome ntable to bership erests	Net inco membe interest (in 1	rship s unit	Weighted average membership interests except per unit data)	Septemb Net i attribu mem	nths ended oer 30, 2011 income utable to bership erests	m	income per embership erests unit
А	*	\$	*	\$	*	1,750,000**	\$	76	\$	43.50
В	353,493		265	74	48.29	354,161		751		2,119.04
С	*		*		*	100,000**		25		253.78
E-1	24,000		1	(61.91	24,000		3		125.31
	Total	\$	266			Total	\$	855		

* Not applicable due to redemption of membership interests on March 31, 2011.

** Weighted average membership interests for the period outstanding through March 31, 2011.

	Weighted average membership interests	Septem Net attrib mem	nonths ended ber 30, 2010 income outable to abership terests	me inte	ncome per mbership erests unit n millions, exc	Weighted average membership interests cept per unit data)	Septem Net attrib mem	onths ended ber 30, 2010 income utable to bership erests	Net me	income per embership erests unit
А	1,750,000	\$	22	\$	12.68	1,750,000	\$	97	\$	55.58
В	354,500		83		232.42	354,500		362		1,019.02
С	100,000		22		221.83	100,000		97		972.58
	Total	\$	127			Total	\$	556		

13. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES *Financial instruments*

Delphi s financial instruments include its accounts receivable factoring arrangements, capital leases and other debt issued by Delphi s foreign subsidiaries, the Tranche A Term Loan, the Tranche B Term Loan and the Senior Notes. The fair value of these financial instruments is based on quoted market prices for instruments with public market data or the current book value for instruments without a quoted public market price. As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the total of the financial instruments listed above was recorded at \$2,173 million and \$289 million, respectively, and had estimated fair values of \$2,088 million and \$293 million, respectively. For all other financial instruments recorded at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, fair value approximates book value.

Derivatives and hedging activities

Delphi is exposed to market risk, such as fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and changes in interest rates, which may result in cash flow risks. To manage the volatility relating to these exposures, Delphi aggregates the exposures on a consolidated basis to take advantage of natural offsets. For exposures that are not offset within its operations, Delphi enters into various derivative transactions pursuant to its risk management policies, which prohibit holding or issuing derivative financial instruments for trading purposes, and designation of derivative instruments is performed on a transaction basis to support hedge accounting. The changes in fair value of these hedging instruments are offset in part or in whole by corresponding changes in the fair value or cash flows of the underlying exposures being hedged. Delphi assesses the initial and ongoing effectiveness of its hedging relationships in accordance with its documented policy. As of September 30, 2011, Delphi has entered into derivative instruments to hedge cash flows extending out to January 2014.

As of September 30, 2011, the Company had the following outstanding notional amounts related to commodity and foreign currency forward contracts that were entered into to hedge forecasted exposures:

Commodity	Quantity hedged (in t	Unit of measure thousands)
Copper	70,093	pounds
Primary Aluminum	32,454	pounds
Secondary Aluminum	13,987	pounds
Silver	86	troy ounces
Gold	2	troy ounces

Foreign currency	Quantity hedged	Unit of measure (in millions)
Hungarian Forint	10,209	HUF
South Korean Won	5,944	KRW
Mexican Peso	6,523	MXN
Japanese Yen	1,288	JPY
Chinese Yuan Renminbi	569	CNY
Romanian Leu	263	RON
New Turkish Lira	151	TRY
Euro	99	EUR
British Pound	42	GBP
Brazilian Real	50	BRL
Polish Zloty	35	PLN
Singapore Dollar	12	SGD

The fair value of derivative financial instruments recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 are as follows:

	Asset derivativ	ves		Liability derivat	tives	
		Septen	nber 30,		Septen	nber 30,
	Balance sheet location	20)11 (in m	Balance sheet location illions)	20	011
Designated derivatives instruments:			(11111)	innons)		
Commodity derivatives	Other Current Assets	\$	2	Accrued Liabilities	\$	28
Foreign currency derivatives*	Accrued Liabilities		6	Accrued Liabilities		35
Commodity derivatives	Other Long-Term Assets			Other Long-Term Liabilities		19
Foreign currency derivatives	Other Long-Term Liabilities		2	Other Long-Term Liabilities		22
Total		\$	10		\$	104

Derivatives not designated:

None

Asset derivative	s		Liability deriva	tives	
Balance sheet location		010	Balance sheet location		ber 31,)10
		(
Other Current Assets	\$	37	Accrued Liabilities	\$	
Other Current Assets		29	Accrued Liabilities		
Accrued Liabilities			Other Current Assets		7
Other Long-Term Assets		11	Other Long-Term Liabilities		
Other Long-Term Assets		10	Other Long-Term Assets		4
	\$	87		\$	11
	Balance sheet location Other Current Assets Other Current Assets Accrued Liabilities Other Long-Term Assets Other Long-Term	Balance sheet location 2 Other Current Assets \$ Other Current Assets \$ Accrued Liabilities \$ Other Long-Term \$ Assets \$ Other Long-Term \$ Assets \$	Balance sheet locationDecember 31, 2010 (in mill)Other Current Assets\$ 37Other Current Assets29Accrued Liabilities29Other Long-Term Assets11Other Long-Term Assets10	Balance sheet locationDecember 31, 2010Balance sheet location (in millions)Other Current Assets\$ 37Accrued LiabilitiesOther Current Assets29Accrued LiabilitiesOther Current Assets29Accrued LiabilitiesAccrued LiabilitiesOther Current AssetsOther Current AssetsOther Long-TermOther Long-TermAssets11LiabilitiesOther Long-TermOther Long-TermAssets10Assets	December 31, 2010December 31, Balance sheet locationDecember 31, 200Balance sheet location200(in millions)Other Current Assets\$ 37Accrued Liabilities\$Other Current Assets29Accrued Liabilities\$Other Long-TermOther Long-TermAssets11Cong-TermOther Long-TermAssets10Assets10

* Derivative instruments within this category are subject to master netting arrangements and are presented on a net basis in the consolidated balance sheets in accordance with accounting guidance related to the offsetting of amounts related to certain contracts.

The fair value of the net asset position of Delphi s derivative financial instruments decreased from December 31, 2010 to September 30, 2011 primarily due to decreases in the forward rates of commodities and certain foreign currencies.

The effect of derivative financial instruments in the consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2011 is as follows:

Three months ended September 30, 2011	Loss recognized in OCI (effective portion)	Gain reclassified from OCI into income (effective portion) (in millions)		Gain recognized in income (ineffective portion excluded from effectiveness testing)
Designated derivatives instruments:				
Commodity derivatives	\$ (70)	\$	8	\$
Foreign currency derivatives	(71)		6	
Total	\$ (141)	\$	14	\$

	Ga recogn inco	ized in
Derivatives not designated:		
Commodity derivatives	\$	
Foreign currency derivatives		3
Total	\$	3

The effect of derivative financial instruments in the consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2010 is as follows:

Three months ended September 30, 2010	Gain recognized in OCI (effective portion)	Gain reclassified from OCI into income (effective portion) (in millions)		Gain recognized in income (ineffective portion excluded from effectiveness testing)
Designated derivatives instruments:				
Commodity derivatives	\$ 33	\$		\$
Foreign currency derivatives	18		1	
Total	\$ 51	\$	1	\$

Gain recognized in income

Derivatives not designated:	
Commodity derivatives	\$
Foreign currency derivatives	1
Total	\$ 1

The effect of derivative financial instruments in the consolidated statement of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 is as follows:

Nine months ended September 30, 2011	Loss recognized in OCI (effective portion)	recla from C inc (eff poi	ain assified OCI into come ective ction) n millions)	in inco (ineff por	nized n ome ective tion ed from veness
Designated derivatives instruments:					
Commodity derivatives	\$ (65)	\$	31	\$	(1)
Foreign currency derivatives	(58)		23		
Total	\$ (123)	\$	54	\$	(1)
				ir	gnized
Derivatives not designated:					
Commodity derivatives				\$	
Foreign currency derivatives					3
Total				\$	3

The effect of derivative financial instruments in the consolidated statement of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 is as follows:

Nine months ended September 30, 2010	Gain recognized in OCI (effective portion)	recla from O inc (effe por	ain ssified OCI into ome ective ective tion) in millions)	Gain recognized in income (ineffective portion excluded from effectiveness testing)
Designated derivatives instruments:			,	
Commodity derivatives	\$ 24	\$	5	\$
Foreign currency derivatives	33		9	
Total	\$ 57	\$	14	\$

Gain recognized in

Edgar Filing: Delphi Automotive PLC - Form 424B1

	inco	me
Derivatives not designated:		
Commodity derivatives	\$	
Foreign currency derivatives		4
Total	\$	4

The gain or loss reclassified from OCI into income for the effective portion of designated derivative instruments and the gain or loss recognized in income for the ineffective portion of designated derivative instruments excluded from effectiveness testing were recorded to cost of sales in the consolidated statements of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010. The gain or loss recognized in income for non-designated derivative instruments was recorded in other income, net for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

F-	1	0	5
	I	0	5

Gains and losses on derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges are recorded in OCI, to the extent that hedges are effective, until the underlying transactions are recognized in earnings. Unrealized amounts in accumulated OCI will fluctuate based on changes in the fair value of hedge derivative contracts at each reporting period. Net losses included in accumulated OCI as of September 30, 2011 were \$58 million after-tax (\$94 million pre-tax). Of this pre-tax total, a loss of approximately \$55 million is expected to be included in cost of sales within the next 12 months and a loss of approximately \$39 million is expected to be included in cost of sales in subsequent periods. Cash flow hedges are discontinued when Delphi determines it is no longer probable that the originally forecasted transactions will occur. The amount included in cost of sales related to hedge ineffectiveness was insignificant for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Fair value measurements

Fair value measurements on a recurring basis

All derivative instruments are required to be reported on the balance sheet at fair value unless the transactions qualify and are designated as normal purchases or sales. Changes in fair value are reported currently through earnings unless they meet hedge accounting criteria. Delphi s derivative exposures are with counterparties with long-term investment grade credit ratings. Delphi estimates the fair value of its derivative contracts using an income approach based on valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single, discounted amount. Estimates of the fair value of foreign currency and commodity derivative instruments are determined using exchange traded prices and rates. Delphi also considers the risk of non-performance in the estimation of fair value, and includes an adjustment for non-performance risk in the measure of fair value of derivative instruments. The non-performance risk adjustment reflects the credit default spread (CDS) applied to the net commodity and foreign currency exposures by counterparty. When Delphi is in a net derivative asset position, the counterparty CDS rates are applied to the net derivative asset position. When Delphi is in a net derivative liability position, estimates of peer companies CDS rates are applied to the net derivative liability position.

In certain instances where market data is not available, Delphi uses management judgment to develop assumptions that are used to determine fair value. This could include situations of market illiquidity for a particular currency or commodity or where observable market data may be limited. In those situations, Delphi generally surveys investment banks and/or brokers and utilizes the surveyed prices and rates in estimating fair value.

As of September 30, 2011, Delphi was in a net derivative liability position of \$94 million and as of December 31, 2010, Delphi was in a net derivative asset position of \$76 million. No significant adjustments were recorded for nonperformance risk based on the application of peer companies CDS rates and because Delphi s exposures were to counterparties with investment grade credit ratings.

As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, Delphi had the following assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

As of September 30, 2011:	То	otal	Quoted in ac marl leve	tive kets ll 1	ot	ificant her rvable ; level 2	Significant unobservable inputs level 3
Available-for-sale securities	\$	2	\$	2	\$		\$
Commodity derivatives		2				2	
Total	\$	4	\$	2	\$	2	\$
As of December 31, 2010:							
Time deposits	\$ 5	50	\$		\$	550	\$
Available-for-sale securities		12		12			
Commodity derivatives		48				48	
Foreign currency derivatives		28				28	
Total	\$6	538	\$	12	\$	626	\$

As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, Delphi had the following liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

As of September 30, 2011:	Total	Quoted prices in active markets level 1	in active other markets observable		Significant unobservable inputs level 3
Foreign currency derivatives	\$ 49	\$	\$	49	\$
Commodity derivatives	47			47	
Total	\$ 96	\$	\$	96	\$

As of December 31, 2010:

None

Fair value measurements on a nonrecurring basis

In addition to items that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, Delphi also has items in its balance sheet that are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. As these items are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis, they are not included in the tables above. Nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis include long-lived assets, intangible assets, asset retirement obligations and liabilities for exit or disposal activities measured at fair value upon initial recognition. No impairment charges were recorded during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011. Fair value of long-lived assets is determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the risk involved and a review of appraisals. As such, Delphi has determined that the fair value measurements of long-lived assets fall in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

14. OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME, NET

Other (expense) income, net included:

	Three n Septe	Nine months ended September 30,				
	2011	20	10	2011	20	010
			(in m	illions)		
Interest income	\$ 10	\$	9	\$ 26	\$	20
Impairment investment in available-for-sale security			(9)	(6)		(9)
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt	3		(8)	(14)		(8)
Foreign exchange income (expense) on intercompany loans	2		10	3		(5)
Other, net	(1)		3	4		9
Other income, net	\$ 14	\$	5	\$ 13	\$	7

During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, Delphi recognized a \$6 million impairment of an investment in available-for-sale securities. As further discussed in Note 8. Debt, Delphi paid \$36.5 million and \$137.5 million of the Tranche A Term Loan and Tranche B Term Loan, respectively and paid \$57 million to extinguish the Notes and recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of \$14 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2011.

15. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

Acquisitions

In May 2011, Delphi completed the acquisition of a manufacturer of specialized diesel testing equipment for a purchase price of \$19 million. The acquisition was not material to the Company s consolidated financial statements. In connection with the acquisition, the Company recorded goodwill of approximately \$8 million. The purchase price allocation was finalized to reflect final valuation studies.

Sale of Daesung investment

On January 31, 2011, Delphi completed the sale of its 49.5% ownership interest in Daesung Electric, Co., Ltd. Delphi received \$35 million in net proceeds and recognized a gain on divestiture of \$8 million, which is included in equity income, net of tax, in the consolidated statement of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2011.

Sale of occupant protection systems

On March 31, 2010, Delphi completed the sale of its occupant protection systems business in Asia to Autoliv AB. Delphi received net proceeds of \$71 million and recognized a gain on divestiture of \$10 million, which is included in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2010. The results of operations, including the gain or loss on divestiture were not significant to the consolidated financial statements in any period presented, and this divestiture did not meet the discontinued operations criteria.

16. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Board of Managers Equity Award

In June 2010, the 2010 Board of Managers Class E-1 Interest Incentive Plan (the Plan) was authorized in order to attract and reward board members and to promote the creation of long-term value for interest holders of Delphi. On June 30, 2010, 24,000 restricted interests of a newly created class of membership interests, Class E-1

membership interests, were issued to board members. The restricted interests are subject to continued service through applicable vesting dates as follows:

20% on November 1, 2010

40% on November 1, 2011

40% on November 1, 2012

Under certain conditions with respect to an initial public offering or a change in control, as defined in the Plan, any interests that have not yet vested may immediately vest. All unvested Class E-1 membership interests will fully vest in the event of a completed initial public offering if the resulting total equity valuation of the Company (based on the average closing price of Delphi shares during the 15-day period beginning on the 30th day after the closing of the offering), plus the value of prior distributions made under the LLP agreement effective in that period to holders of membership interests (as well as \$4.4 billion paid to repurchase Class A and Class C membership interests (See Note 1. Description of Business), any Class B membership interest repurchases, any additional distributions to Class B and Class E-1 membership interests holders and any amounts distributed to holders of Class E-1 membership interests with respect to or to repurchase their Class E-1 membership interests), is at least \$6 billion. In addition, upon the completion of an initial public offering, all outstanding membership interests will be converted to ordinary shares.

Approximately \$8 million of compensation expense will be recognized through the remainder of the vesting period. This amount would be recognized immediately if the criteria for immediate vesting are met.

At the time of issuance, the fair market value of the Class E-1 membership interests was estimated to be \$19 million, based on a contemporaneous valuation performed by an independent valuation specialist, utilizing generally accepted valuation approaches. Beginning in the third quarter of 2010, Delphi recognized compensation cost on a straight-line basis. Compensation expense recognized during the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 totaled \$2 million and \$3 million, net of tax, respectively. Compensation expense recognized during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 totaled \$6 million and \$3 million, net of tax, respectively. There were no cash flow impacts for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Executive Long Term Incentive Plan

During the second quarter of 2010, the Board of Managers approved and authorized the VCP, a long-term incentive plan designed to assist the Company in attracting, retaining, motivating and rewarding key employees of the Company, and promoting the creation of long-term value. Participants were granted an award in September 2010 for the period ending December 31, 2012. Each individual participant s target value was based on the participants level of responsibility within the Company and the country in which the participant is located. The awards cliff vest fully at the end of the performance period, but may immediately fully vest upon a change in control, as defined in the VCP, for certain participants. In the event of a qualified termination, as defined, the participant shall vest in a pro-rata percentage of their award as of the termination date. For any other termination, the award shall be forfeited.

The amounts to be settled under the VCP will be determined based on Delphi s enterprise value and accumulated distributions (as well as \$4.4 billion paid to repurchase Class A and Class C membership interests (See Note 1. Description of Business), any Class B membership interest repurchases, any additional distributions to Class B and Class E-1 membership interest holders and any amounts distributed to holders of Class E-1 membership interests to repurchase their Class E-1 membership interests) as of December 31, 2012, compared to a target enterprise value of \$8.25 billion. An enterprise value of \$2.5 billion must be achieved to receive a minimum award payout and above this level the payout is determined as a percentage of the target award. The

authorized target amount of the awards is \$135 million (of which \$105 million are outstanding as of September 30, 2011), but the ultimate final settlement amount of the awards could be higher or lower, depending on the enterprise value of Delphi at December 31, 2012. The estimated fair value of the awards granted as of September 30, 2011 was \$172 million. In the event of a completed initial public offering, the estimated enterprise value will be based on the average closing market price of the Company between the first day of trading on a public exchange and the end of the performance period, plus any distributions to holders of all membership interests and the approximately \$4.4 billion paid to repurchase Class A and Class C membership interests, any Class B membership interest repurchases, any additional distributions to Class B and Class E-1 membership interests holders and any amounts distributed to holders of Class E-1 membership interests with respect to or to repurchase their Class E-1 membership interests. Delphi recognized compensation cost in 2010 and will continue to recognize compensation cost, based on estimates of the enterprise value, over the requisite vesting periods of the awards. Compensation expense recognized during the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 totaled \$6 million (\$5 million, net of tax) and \$3 million (\$2 million, net of tax), respectively. Compensation expense recognized during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2011, unrecognized compensation expense on a pretax basis of approximately \$87 million is anticipated to be recognized on a straight-line basis during the remainder of 2011 and 2012. There were no cash flow impacts for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Final settlement can be made in cash, membership interests, common stock or a combination thereof as provided in the participation agreement or as otherwise determined by the Compensation and Human Resources Committee of the Board of Managers.

The VCP awards are accounted for as liability awards pursuant to FASB ASC 718, *Compensation-Stock Compensation*. Estimating the fair value of the liability awards under the VCP requires assumptions regarding the Company s enterprise value. Any differences in actual results from management s estimates could result in fair values different from estimated fair values, which could materially impact the Company s future results of operations and financial condition. The fair market value of the liability awards under the VCP is based on contemporaneous valuations performed by an independent valuation specialist, utilizing generally accepted valuation approaches.

Significant Factors, Assumptions, and Methodologies Used in Estimating Fair Value of Enterprise Value for VCP Awards and Fair Value of E-1 Membership Interests

The estimated fair value of the Class E-1 membership interests were based on a contemporaneous valuation performed as of the grant date. The liability awards under the VCP were based on contemporaneous valuations performed periodically by an independent valuation specialist. Both the Class E-1 membership interests and VCP valuations utilize appropriate weighting of the market and income approaches.

Market Approach: The market approach measures the value of a company through analysis of recent sales or offerings of comparable companies. Based on analysis of guideline public companies and guideline merged or acquired companies, Delphi utilized 2010 net income before depreciation and amortization (including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment), interest expense, other income (expense), net, income tax expense and equity income, net of tax (EBITDA) multiples and 2011 EBITDA multiples of 4.5x-6.25x to value the Class E-1 membership interests and VCP awards.

In addition to the guideline public company and guideline merged or acquired company approaches, the Company considered the trading price of its Class B membership interests by qualified institutional investors in determining the enterprise value of the Company.

Income Approach: The income approach derives the value of a company based on assumptions about the company s future stream of cash flows. Delphi provided its independent valuation specialist with projected net

sales, expenses and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 for the Class E-1 awards and for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 for the VCP awards. These financial projections represent management s best estimate at the time of the contemporaneous valuations. Discount rates used to determine the present value of future cash flows were based on the weighted average cost of capital which ranged from 11.6%-13.7%.

17. SEGMENT REPORTING

Delphi operates its core business along the following operating segments, which are grouped on the basis of similar product, market and operating factors:

Electronics and Safety, which includes component and systems integration expertise in audio and infotainment, body controls and security systems, displays, mechatronics, safety electronics and electric and hybrid electric vehicle power electronics, as well as advanced development of software.

Powertrain Systems, which includes extensive systems integration expertise in gasoline, diesel and fuel handling and full end-to-end systems including fuel injection, combustion, electronics controls, exhaust handling, test and validation capabilities, diesel and automotive aftermarket, and original equipment service.

Electrical/Electronic Architecture, which includes complete electrical architecture and component products.

Thermal Systems, which includes heating, ventilating and air conditioning systems, components for multiple transportation and other adjacent markets, and powertrain cooling and related technologies.

Eliminations and Other, which includes i) the elimination of inter-segment transactions, and ii) certain other expenses and income of a non-operating or strategic nature.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies, except that the disaggregated financial results for the segments have been prepared using a management approach, which is consistent with the basis and manner in which management internally disaggregates financial information for the purposes of assisting internal operating decisions. Through December 31, 2010, Delphi evaluated performance based on stand-alone segment operating income before depreciation and amortization, including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment charges and transformation and rationalization charges (EBITDAR) and accounted for inter-segment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, at current market prices. Delphi s management believed that EBITDAR was a meaningful measure of performance and it was used by management to analyze Company and stand-alone segment operating performance. Management also used EBITDAR for planning and forecasting purposes. Effective January 1, 2011, Delphi s management began utilizing segment EBITDA as a key performance measure because its restructuring was substantially completed by the end of 2010. Segment EBITDA and EBITDAR should not be considered substitutes for results prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and should not be considered alternatives to net income attributable to Delphi, which is the most directly comparable financial measure to EBITDA and EBITDAR that is in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Segment EBITDA and EBITDAR, as determined and measured by Delphi, should also not be compared to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

Included below are sales and operating data for Delphi s segments for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

For the three months ended				Ele	ectrical/			
September 30, 2011:	tronics Safety	- • •	vertrain ystems		ectronic hitecture (in 1	 ermal stems)	 inations Other	Fotal
Net sales	\$ 700	\$	1,181	\$	1,633	\$ 417	\$	\$ 3,931
Inter-segment net sales	19		2		25	14	(60)	
Total net sales	\$ 719	\$	1,183	\$	1,658	\$ 431	\$ (60)	\$ 3,931
EBITDA	\$ 81	\$	167	\$	233	\$ 35	\$	\$ 516
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 26	\$	51	\$	33	\$ 13	\$	\$ 123
Operating income	\$ 55	\$	116	\$	200	\$ 22	\$	\$ 393
Equity income (loss)	\$	\$	1	\$	4	\$ 1	\$ (4)	\$ 2
Net income attributable to noncontrolling								
interest	\$	\$	7	\$	9	\$ 3	\$	\$ 19

For the three months ended

For the three months ended September 30, 2010:	tronics Safety		ertrain stems	Ele	ectrical/ ectronic hitecture (in 1		ermal stems)	 inations Other	,	Total
Net sales	\$ 629	\$	977	\$	1,321	\$	378	\$ 4	\$	3,309
Inter-segment net sales	17		1		29		14	(61)		
Total net sales	\$ 646	\$	978	\$	1,350	\$	392	\$ (57)	\$	3,309
EBITDA	\$ 63	\$	87	\$	129	\$	32	\$	\$	311
EBITDAR	\$ 70	\$	112	\$	176	\$	33	\$	\$	391
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 31	\$	42		23	\$	11	\$ (2)	\$	105
Operating income	\$ 32	\$	45	\$	106	\$	21	\$ 2	\$	206
Equity (loss) income	\$ (3)	\$	1	\$	2	\$	2	\$ (1)	\$	1
Net income attributable to noncontrolling	\$	¢	5	\$	o	¢	4	\$	¢	17
interests	\$	\$	5	\$	8	\$	4	\$	\$	17

For the nine months ended	Electronics	Pov	vertrain		ectrical/ ectronic	T	hermal	Elir	ninations	
September 30, 2011:	and Safety	Sys	stems	Arc	hitecture (in n	Sy: nillion	stems s)	and	l Other	Total
Net sales	\$ 2,193	\$	3,725	\$	4,911	\$	1,312	\$		\$ 12,141
Inter-segment net sales	52		4		101		41		(198)	
Total net sales	\$ 2,245	\$	3,729	\$	5,012	\$	1,353	\$	(198)	\$ 12,141
EBITDA	\$ 279	\$	487	\$	690	\$	133	\$		\$ 1,589
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 79	\$	144	\$	97	\$	36	\$		\$ 356
Operating income	\$ 200	\$	343	\$	593	\$	97	\$		\$ 1,233
Equity income (loss)	\$ 8	\$	2	\$	15	\$	6	\$	(6)	\$ 25
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests	\$	\$	23	\$	25	\$	8	\$		\$ 56

For the nine months ended September 30, 2010:	Electronics and Safety	Power Syste		Electrical/ Electronic Architecture (in mil		ermal tems	 inations Other	Total
Net sales	\$ 1,983	\$ 2	2,961	\$	4,053	\$ 1,149	\$ 19	\$ 10,165
Inter-segment net sales	57		3		85	34	(179)	
Total net sales	\$ 2,040	\$ 2	2,964	\$	4,138	\$ 1,183	\$ (160)	\$ 10,165
EBITDA	\$ 190	\$	315	\$	502	\$ 131	\$	\$ 1,138
EBITDAR	\$ 217	\$	357	\$	579	\$ 138	\$	\$ 1,291
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 76	\$	126	\$	77	\$ 31	\$ 1	\$ 311
Operating income (loss)	\$ 114	\$	189	\$	425	\$ 100	\$ (1)	\$ 827
Equity (loss) income	\$ (4)	\$	2	\$	5	\$ 4	\$ 2	\$ 9
Net income attributable to noncontrolling								
interests	\$ 1	\$	19	\$	25	\$ 11	\$	\$ 56

The reconciliation of EBITDA to net income attributable to Delphi for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 is as follows:

For the three months ended			Elee	ctrical/		Eliminations		
September 30, 2011:	Electronics and Safety	 ertrain stems		ctronic itecture (in n	ermal stems	and Other	Т	fotal
EBITDA	\$ 81	\$ 167	\$	233	\$ 35	\$	\$	516
Depreciation and amortization	(26)	(51)		(33)	(13)			(123)
Operating income	\$ 55	\$ 116	\$	200	\$ 22	\$		393
Interest expense								(37)
Other income, net								14
Income before income taxes and equity income								370
Income tax expense								(87)
Equity income								2
Net income							\$	285
Net income attributable to noncontrolling								
interests								19
Net income attributable to Delphi							\$	266

For the nine months ended	Electronics	Dou	vertrain	ctrical/ ctronic	Th	ermal	Eliminations and	
September 30, 2011:	and Safety		stems	itecture		stems	Other	Total
EBITDA	\$ 279	\$	487	\$ 690	\$	133	\$	\$ 1,589
Depreciation and amortization	(79)		(144)	(97)		(36)		(356)
Operating income	\$ 200	\$	343	\$ 593	\$	97	\$	1,233
Interest expense								(84)
Other income, net								13
Income before income taxes and equity income								1,162
Income tax expense								(276)
Equity income								25
Net income								\$ 911
Net income attributable to noncontrolling								
interests								56
Net income attributable to Delphi								\$ 855

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010, the reconciliation of EBITDAR to EBITDA includes other restructuring costs related to 1) the implementation of projects aimed at reducing the cost and improving the functionality of information technology systems to support finance, manufacturing and product development initiatives, 2) certain plant consolidations and closures costs, 3) continued consolidation of many staff administrative activities, and 4) employee benefit plan settlements in Mexico. The reconciliation of EBITDA to net income attributable to Delphi for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010 is as follows:

For the three months ended		_		 ctrical/	 _		ations		
September 30, 2010:	Electronics and Safety		vertrain /stems	ctronic iitecture (in r	 ermal stems)	aı Ot		r	Fotal
EBITDAR	\$ 70	\$	112	\$ 176	\$ 33	\$		\$	391
Restructuring charges:									
Employee termination benefits and other exit									
costs	(4)		(21)	(43)					(68)
Other restructuring costs	(3)		(4)	(4)	(1)				(12)
EBITDA	\$ 63	\$	87	\$ 129	\$ 32	\$		\$	311
Depreciation and amortization	(31)		(42)	(23)	(11)		2		(105)
Operating income	\$ 32	\$	45	\$ 106	\$ 21	\$	2	\$	206
Interest expense									(6)
Other income, net									5
Income before income taxes and equity income									205
Income tax expense									(62)
Equity income									1
Net income								\$	144
									17

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net income attributable to Delphi

F-114

\$ 127

For the nine months ended				Elec	ctrical/			Elimi	nations		
September 30, 2010:	Electronics and Safety		vertrain stems		ctronic itecture		ermal stems		nd her		Total
EBITDAR	\$ 217	\$	357	\$	579	ninons \$, 138	\$		\$	1,291
Restructuring charges:	<i>+ - - .</i>	Ŧ		Ŧ		Ŧ		-		Ŧ	-,_, -
Employee termination benefits and other exit											
costs	(17)		(34)		(68)		(5)				(124)
Other restructuring costs	(10)		(8)		(9)		(2)				(29)
EBITDA	\$ 190	\$	315	\$	502	\$	131	\$		\$	1,138
Depreciation and amortization	(76)		(126)		(77)		(31)		(1)		(311)
Operating income (loss)	\$114	\$	189	\$	425	\$	100	\$	(1)	\$	827
Interest expense											(22)
Other income, net											(22)
Income before income taxes and equity income											812
Income tax expense											(209)
Equity income											9
Net income										\$	612
Net income attributable to noncontrolling											
interests											56
Net income attributable to Delphi										\$	556

Included below is balance sheet data for Delphi s segments as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

	Electronics and Safety	vertrain /stems	Ele	ectrical/ ectronic hitecture (in 1	ermal stems	ninations d Other	Total
Balance as of:							
September 30, 2011 Segment assets	\$ 1,889	\$ 4,510	\$	3,759	\$ 926	\$ (1,766)	\$ 9,318
December 31, 2010 Segment assets	\$ 1,905	\$ 3,718	\$	3,336	\$ 898	\$ 1,225	\$ 11,082

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In October 2011, the Board of Managers approved a distribution for taxes and pursuant to the cumulative distribution provisions of the Fourth LLP Agreement of approximately \$95 million to members who hold membership interests as of the close of business on October 31, 2011. The distribution is payable on December 5, 2011. Class B membership interest holders will receive a distribution of \$266.80 per unit and Class E-1 membership interest holders will receive a distribution of approximately \$31.47 per unit subject to the updated cumulative distribution provisions and the final shares repurchased under the Class B membership interest share repurchase program on October 31, 2011. Refer to Note 12. Membership Interests for additional disclosure regarding the distribution.

24,078,827 SHARES

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

Ordinary Shares

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

BofA Merrill Lynch

Citigroup

Morgan Stanley

J.P. Morgan

Barclays Capital

Deutsche Bank Securities

Baird	Credit Suisse	Lazard Capital Ma	UBS Investment Bank	
CRT Capital G	roup LLC	Guggenheim Securities	Houlihan Lokey	Scotia Capital
Ticonderoga Se	curities	The Williams Capital Group, L.P.		UniCredit Capital Markets

Through and including December 11, 2011 (the 25th day after the date of this prospectus), all dealers effecting transactions in these securities, whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver a prospectus. This is in addition to a dealer s obligation to deliver a prospectus when acting as an underwriter and with respect to an unsold allotment or subscription.